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No deaM_ brokc_ saMspe_on or other pe_on has been authorized by _e Ci_ or the UnderwdW_ to #re any
MformmMn or to make any reprcsentmMns M conneflMn with the Bonds or the mm_ described herein, other than
those contaMcd in th_ Offidal Stmcment, an_ ff #yen or mad_ such other MformmMn or rcpresentmMns mu_ not
be relied upon as ha_ng been authorized by the City or the Undcrwri_rL Th_ Offi_al Sm_mcut d_s not cons_tutc
an offer to sdl or the s_i_mfion tff an offer to bu_ nor sha_ there be any sMe of the Bonds by any person in any
jur_dictMn _ w_ch _ _ u_awful for such pc_on to make such offe_ so_dmfion or sa_. The Mformm_n and
cxprc_ns of opinion contorted herein arc su_e_ to change wHhout not_ and nehher the dd_cry ofth_ Offi_al
Stmemcnt, nor any sa_ made hereunde_ shaB, under any fi_um_ances, create any impficmMn th_ there has been
no change M the mm_ described her_n _nce the date hereoL Th_ Offi_M _mement _ subm_d in connedMn
with the sale of the Bonds re_ffcd to herein and may not bc wpmduced or used, in whom or in paO, fur any other
purpose. The Underwd_ may offer and sdl Bonds to ccOaM dcale_ and othe_ m prices lower than the offering
prices _ated on the in.de cover page hercoL The offering prices may bc changed frnm time to time by the
Underwrite. No rcpresentmMns are made or imbed by the CBy or the Undcrwritc_ as h_ any offc_ng of any
derivative _rument_

The _o_ affecting the C_y_ finand_ condh_n ate compML Th_ Offi_al _memcnt shouM bc consMcrcd M
hs cnti_ and no one _dor considered le_ impoOam than any other by reason of _s McmMn her_m Where
agrecmem_ reports or _thcr _uments arc _ed to hct cin, rc_rcnte shouM bc made to such agreements, repoOs
or other documents for more comp_ MformmMn regarding the righ_ and obfigmMns of paO_s thcr_ _ds and
o#nMns contMncd therein and the su_ed mm_r thcrcoL Any e_dron_ reprodu_Mn oftMs Offi_al _memcnt m_y
contain compuW_generaWd crro_ or other de.reMus from the printed Offi_M Stmcmcm. In any such cas_ the
printed ve_Mn controls.

UnM_ otherwise n_ed, the Cfly_ Financ_l Plan and other fo_ca_s comMncd hcreM were prepared prior to the
September 11 mtack on thc Word Trade Center and have not been reused to rcfle_ changes that may occur as a
resuH of t_s event.
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IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT
TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN MARKET PRICES OF THE BONDS AT LEVELS
ABOVE THOSE WHICH MIGHT O'FHERW_E PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKE_ SUCH STABILIZING,
IF COMMENCED, MAY BE D_CON'_NUED _F ANY TIME.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURb
TIES COMM_ON OR REGULATORY AUTHORIT_ FUffFHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORI-
lIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF TH_
DOCUMEN_ ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. IN MAKING
AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS
INVOLVED.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
OF

THE CITY OF NEW YORK

This O_dal S_mem p_d_ _n _m_n _n_ing The City of New Yo_ (the "_
in connc_n with the sale of the fixed rate portion of the City_ General Ob_g_n Bonds, F_cal 2002

Series A. In addition to the _00_,_0 fixed rate bonds (the "Bonds"), _00_00 of the Ci_%
Gene_l O_n Bonds, Hscal 2002 Series A will be issued as vafiab_ rate bonds, which will be
described in a separate o_dal _eme_ and are not of_d hereb_

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

On September 11, 2001, two hijacked passenger jetline_ flew into the World Trade CenteL resulting
in a sub_an_al loss of li_, de,ruction of the World Trade Center and damage to other b_gs in the

vi_nit_ The attack a_o resulted in disruption of public Wanspo_ation and business and d_acement of
re_den_ in the immed_ vicinity of the Wo_d Trade Cen_ It is expe_ed that the destruction of the

Wo_d Trade Center will have a substantial impa_ on the City and its econom_ Reduced economic
a_y is expe_ed to lower corporate profit, increase job losses and reduce consumer spend_ which
would resu_ in reduced pe_onal income and sales tax receipts and other business tax revenues for the
City and could negatively af_ct real prope_y values. See "SECTION I: RECENT _INANCIAL DEVELO_
MENTS."

The Bonds will be general obl_ations of the City for the payment of which the City will pledge its
faith and credit. All real prope_y su_e_ to taxation by the City will be su_ect to the levy of ad valorem
taxes, without _mitation as to rate or amount, to pay the prin_p_ o_ applicab_ redemption premium, if
an_ and interest on the Bonds.

The Cit_ with a pop_ation of appro_m_e_ 8 m_lion, is an mternation_ center of business and
cuhure. I_ non-manufa_ufing economy is broadly based, with the banking and securitie_ li_ insurance,
commun_ation_ publ_n_ fashion design, re_ng and con_ru_ion industries accounting for a
_gn_cant potion of the City_ total employment earnings. Additionally, the City is a leading tourist
de_ation. Manufa_u_ng a_i_ty in the City _ conduced pfimari_ in apparel and print_

For each of the 1981 through 2000 fiscal years, the C_y had an operat_g surplus, before discretionary
and other transfer, and achieved balanced operating resuhs as reported in accordance with then
ap_ab_ general_ accepted accounting pfin_es _GAAP"_ after discretionary and other _ans_.
See "SECTION V|: _INANCIAL OPER_TtONS--1996_000 Summary of Operations." The City has been
required to _ose sub_anfi_ gaps between foreca_ revenues and forecast expenditures in order to

m_nt_n balanced operat_g results. There can be no assurance that the City will continue to maintain
balanced operating resu_s as required by New York State law without tax or other revenue increases or
reductions in City services or entitlement program_ which could adve_e_ affect the City_ econom_
base.

As requ_ed by law, the City prepares a fou_year annual finan_al p_n, wh_h _ _e_ewed and ze_sed
on a quavery basis and which includes the City_ ca_tal, revenue and expense pr_e_ions and outlines

proposed gap-clos_g programs for yea_ with projected budget gaps. The City_ cu_ent financial plan,
which was last revised prior to September 11, 2001, proje_s a surplus in the 2001 and 2002 fiscal years,
before discretionary wans_, and budget gaps for each of the 2003, 2004 and 2005 fiscal yea_. This
pattern of current year surplus operating resu_s and preened subsequent year budget gaps has been
consistent through the entire period since 1982, du_ng which the City has achieved surplus operating
result, before discretionary transfers, for each fiscal yea_ For _formation regarding the current financial
plan, as well as subsequent development, see "SECTION I: _ECENT _INANCIAL DEVELOPMENTS" and
"SECtiON VII: F_N_NC_L PLAN." The City is required to submit its finan_M plans to the New York State
Finan_ Control Board _he "Conwol Board_. For fu_her informat_n regarding the Control Board, see
'_CT_ON III: GOVERNMENT AND _INANCIAL CONTROLS--City Finan_ Management, Budgeting and
ConWols--Finan_al _ev_w and Ove_h_"
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For its normal opcration_ the City depends on aid from the Slate of New York (the "Stme') both
to enable the City to balance its budget and to meet its cash requirements. There can be no assurance that

there will not be redu_ions in State aid to the City from amounts cu_cnt_ projected; that State budgcu
will be adopted by the April 1 _mutory dcadfine, or interim appropri_ns will be enacted; or that any
such rcdu_ions or delays will not have advc_e ef_cls on the City; cash flow or expend_ure_ See
"SECTION I: RECENT FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENTS--The State." In adNt_m the Federal budget
negotiation process could result in a _du_n or a delay in the receipt of Federal grants which could have
adve_e effects on the City; cash flow or revenuer The City a_umes that the costs relating to the
Sep_mber 11 attack on the World _?ade Ccn_r (the "September i1 attack") will be paid _om Federal
aid and bo_owings by the New York City 3¥anfifional Finance Authority (the "Finance Authority").

The Mayor is responsible for wepar_g the City_ financial plan, _duNng the City_ current finandM
plan for the 2001 through 2_N fiscal yea_ (the "N_1-2005 Finan_M Plan" or "FinandN Plan"). The
City_ projections set forth in the FinandM Plan are based on various assumpt_ns and cont_gendes
which are unce_Nn and which may not ma_riN_e. Such assumptions and cont_gendes are described
throughout this OffiNal Sta_ment and include the condition of the re_onM and local econom_ the
pro_fion of State and Federal aid and the impa_ on City revenues and expenditures of any future
Federal or State policies affecting the Citg UNess otherwNe noted, the FinandM Plan and other foreca_s
contained herein were prepared prior to the September 11 attack and have not been revised to reflect
changes that may occur as a result of this event.

Imp_mentation of the FinandM Plan is dependent upon the City_ ability to market its securRies
successf_ly. The City_ program for finandng capital p_ects for fiscal yea_ 2_ through 2005
contemNmes the issuance of approxima_ $10.5 billion of general oN_ation bonds and approximate_
$4.0 billion of bonds (exduOng bond anticipat_n notes and recovery bonds and notes issued to pay costs
relating to the September 11 attack) to be issued by the Finance Authority. In adNt_m the FinandN Plan
anti,pates acce_ to approxim_dy $2.4 billion (_duOng the $604 million of bond proceeds received to
date) in financing capacity of TSASC, Inc. ("TSASC_, which issues debt secured by revenues derived
from the se_ment of lit_mion with tobacco companies selling c_aret_s in the United States. The
Finance Authority and TSASC were created to a_ist the City in financing its capital program while
keeping City indebtedness within the forecast level of the constitut_nM re_fi_ions on the amount of debt

the City is authorized to incu_ See "SEc'ITON VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Assumptions--Revenue
Assumptions---4. MNcelNneous Revenues" and "SEcTiON VIII: INDEBq_DN[_SS--Indebtedne_ of the
City and Cc_ain Other Entities--Lirn#ations on _e Ci_ k Autho_ to Contraa lndeb_dnes_" In
addition, the City issues revenue and tax antkipmion notes to finance its seasonal working capital
reqMrements. The success of p_e_ed public sales of Cit_ New York City Municipal Water Finance
Authority ("Waler Authority"), Finance Authority, TSASC and other bonds and notes will be su_e_ to
prcvail_g market condition_ The City_ planned capital and operating expenditures are dependent upon
the sale of its general obfigafion debt, as well as debt of the Water Authority, Finance Authority and
TSASC. Future dev_opmen_ concern_g the City and public d_cus_on of such deve_pments, as well as
prevNl_g market cond_ion_ nay af_ct the _arket for out_anding City general obl_ion bonds and
notes.

In add_ion to the finandng program described above, the Finance Authority issued $1 billion of
recovery notes on O_ober 4, 2001 to pay costs related to the September 11 attack. The Finance Authoriff
note proceeds may be utilized to accommodmc cash needs res_fing _om timing dif_rcnces between
payment by the City of costs relating to the evcn_ of September 11 and receipt of Federal reimbursement
for such co_s, or to meet other City cash requirements caused by such events. Such notes may be paid
with Finance Authority revenues (with the resulting redu_ion in City tax revenues to be of Net by Federal
aid or other sources) or proceeds of renewal notes or bonds of the Finance Authority (which would also
reduce tax revenues to the City). The Finance Amhority is authorized to have outstanNng $2.5 billion of
bonds or notes the proceeds of which are to be used to pay costs related to the September 1l attack.

The City Comptroller and other agencies and public officiaN, _om lime to time, issue repots and
make public _memen_ wh_h, among other things, state that projected revenues and expenditures may
be dif_rent _om those forecast in the City_ financial plans. See "SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--
Certain Repo_"

The N_o_ alleging the city_ financial conNtion and the Bonds described throughout this OffiNal
Statement are complex and are not intended to be summarized in this Introductory Stammcnt. ]his
Official Statement should be read in its enfiretg
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SECTION !: RECENT _NANCIAL DEVELOPMENTS

World Trade Center AHack

On September 11, 2001, two h_acked passenger jeflme_ flew into the World Trade Cente_ resulting
in a sub_ant_l loss of life, de,fusion of the World Trade Center and damage to other buildings in the
vicinit> Trading on the m_or New York stock exchanges was suspended until September 17, 2001, and
bu_ness in the financial district was inte_upte& Recovery effo_s are continuing in the City_ financial
district in lower Manhattan.

Continuing recover_ clean up and repair effo_s will result in sub_ant_l expend_ures. The U.S.

Congress passed emergency _slation which appropriates $40 billion for increased disaster as_ance,
increased security cos_, rebuilding in_astructure systems and other publ_ fadlities, and d_a_er recovery
and related a_ififie_ at least $20 billion of which is for disaster recovery activRies and assistance in New
York, PennsyNania and Vir_nim To date, the Pre_dent has released appro_mate_ $2.5 billion of
emergency funds for the City and the State, including $2 billion for emergency response and debris
removal, and has submRted _gi_ation to Congre_ for an addRional $6.3 billion of emergency funds for
the City and the State, including $2.1 billion for debris removal, $1.75 billion for subway and road repai_
and $1 billion for building repai_. The Pre_dent has ind_ated that he does not intend to seek addition_

supplemental funding during the current session of Congress, but will continue to determine additional
funding needs during the next session of Congress. In addition, the State _ature increased the
financing capacity of the Finance Authority by $2.5 billion to fund the City_ co_s related to or ari_ng
from the September 11 attack, and has authorized the Finance Authority to _sue debt wRhout limit as to
pfincip_ amount that is payable solely from State or Federal aid received on account of the disaste_

The amount of City costs rcsuking from the September 11 attack is expected to sub, untieD exceed
the amount of Federal aid and State resources wh_h, to date, have been identified by the Federal and
State governmen_ as availab_ for these purposes. The City has preliminafi_ estimated that expendRures
related to the September 11 attack will be $11.413 billion for: the police, fire and san_ation departments
and other agende_ anti-te_ori_ preparedncs_ emergency con_ru_ion con_a_s for demolition, debris
removal, _abil_ation and remediation of the World Trade Center site; busine_ retention and rebuildin_
and recon_ru_ion inR_tNes and other City costs. The State and the City are seeking $54 billion of
Federal resources to compensate the City and the State for expenditures related to the September 11
attack, to provide for essential services and to stimulate the State econom> The State and City request
includes $34 billion for rebuilding inffa_ructure, disa_er recovery and debris removal and related
a_Nities at the World Trade Center site and addRional amounts to provide essenti_ serv_es and to
_imulate the State econom£ including grants and tax _centNes to build in lower Manhattan and retain

employees in the State, Federal aid for co_s of heath coverage, unemployment insurance and worke_'
compensation and funding for various State _ansponafion project_

Prior to September 11, the national and local econom_s had been weakenin_ reflecting lower

business inve_ment, increased unemployment and, recentl_ a decline in consumer confidence. It is
expected that the de,ruction of the World Trade Cenmr will have substantial impact on the City and its

econom_ Reduced econom_ a_i_ty _ expe_ed to lower corporate profits, increase job lo_es and reduce
consumer spendin_ which would result in reduced pe_on_ income and sa_s tax receip_ and other
business tax revenues for the City and could negatively affe_ real prope_y values. The events of
September 11 increased the risk of a reces_on and a delay in recover_ It is not possible to quantify at
present with any cc_nty the sho_qerm or long-term adve_e impa_ of the September 1l events on the
City and i_ econom_ any ofgetting econom_ benefi_ which may resuR from recovery and rebuilding
activRies and the amount of addRional resources from Federal, State, City and other sources which will
be require&

Prelim_ary 2002 _nan_ P_n Upd_e

The City will prepare a mortician to the _nan_ Plan in Novemb_ wh_h will amend the
_nan_ _an to accommod_e _s_ns to _cast revenues and expend_ures _r fisc_ years 2002
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through 2005 (the "Fi_t Qua_er ModificationD. Such re_sions will include expeded fiscal year 2(_2 tax

revenue sho_fal_ as a result of the September 11 events, and will spedfy gap-dos_g _itiafives for fiscal

year 2002 to the extent required to offset decreases in projeded revenues or increases in projeded

expenditures. Based on preliminary c_imates, which are subject to revision as addition_ information
becomes av_ the City_ Office of Management and Budget ("OMB") has prepared a preliminary

update to the Finand_ Plan for fiscal year 2002 to retied developmen_ since the publkation of the
Finand_ Plan on June 13, 2001 (the "Pre_m_ary 2002 Update'L The Pre_minary 2002 Updam proje_s

a posfibk budget gap of $1.625 billion in t_cal year 2002, whkh reflec_ (i) preliminary projected tax
revenue sho_falls, as a result of the September 11 attack, totaling $1 billion; (ii) the loss of $145 million

of a_umed State and Federal actions which have not been implemented:, (iii) the addition_ cost of wage
increases for the uniformed force co_ition above the civilian pattern; (iv) the risk that the proposed sale

of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation ("OTB') for $250 million will not be completed in fiscal

year 2002; and (v) the risk that the City will not receive $114 million of State payments to a stock transfer

incentive fund for fiscal year 2002, which was not included in the State budget. The assumed tax revenue

sho_falh for the 2{D2 fiscal year aRer September 11 retied steeper declines in national gro_ dome_ic

product and corporate profits, addition_ declines in capRal gains re_kation_ local job losses exceeding
100,000 and a dgruption in tourism and related spendin_

The Preliminary 2002 Update also sets forth gap-dosing amions totaling $1.625 billion for fiscal year

2002, which includes the Mayor se_ing aside $1 billion from the City_ expense budget as a reserve, which

will not be av_hble for agency spendin& The Mayor has directed City agencies to identify agency actions
to reduce expenditures by the $l bil_on in the spending reserve, which will include pe_onnel reductions

through attrition, and may include addition_ reductions through a targeted severance program. The

gap-dosing actions also include (i) State approv_ of $228 million of State payments to a stock transfer
incentNe fund for fiscal years 2_)1 and 2002, (ii) State _atNe approval, and the successful completion,

of the sale of OTB; and (iii) debt service savings of $147 million. The City is seeking addhional Federal

and State resources of up to appro_mate_ $1 billion annually, starting in fiscal year 2002, which could
reduce projected agency expenditure reduction_ The addition£ resources include an increase in the
Federal share of Medicaid fundin_ Federal welfare spending mandate reliefi other funding for public

health, safety and child care; re,oration of State payments to the stock transfer incentive fund; tort
reform; and State mandate relief and other funding. The timing of actual receipt of revenues and

incurrence of expend_ures for fiscal year 2002, _duding the timing of any tax revenue sho_falls and the
gap-dosing actions in the Prehminary _D2 Update, could require the City to take ac_ons w_hin the 2002

fiscal year to meet its cash flow requirements, depending on the extent to which decreases and delays in
the receipt of revenues as a result of the September 11 events occur more rapid_ than the implementation

of the gap-closing actions in the Prdiminary 2002 Update.

Unless otherwge noted, the Finand_ Plan and other forecas_ contorted herein were prepared prior

to the September 11 attack and have not been revised to reflect changes that may occur as a result of this

event. The City expects to revise its current spending and revenue e_imates in future modifications to the
Finand_ Plan in November 2001 and January or February 2002.

200_2005 Finand_ Plan

For the 2_ fi_al yea_ the City had an opening surplus of $3.187 billion, before _retionary and

other _ans_m, and achieved balanced operat_g result, after dgcretionary and other transfer, in
accordance with GAAP The 2_D fiscal year is the twentieth consecutive year that the City has achieved

an operm_g surplu_ before d_cret_nary and other trans_, and balanced operat_g results, aRer
• _ret_nary and other _ans_.

On June 13, 2001, the City released the _nand_ Plan for the _1 through 2005 fiscal yea_, which
relates to the City and ce_ain entities which receive funds from the City and which reflects changes as a
result of the Cityg expense and capital budgets _r fiscal year 2002, which were adopted on June 8, 2_)1.
The _nand_ Plan is a mortician to the financial plan submitted to the Control Board on June 15, 2000
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(the "June 21_0 F_an_ Plaff') wh_h was subsequent_ mottled in November 2000, January 2001, and
May 2001. The Finand_ Plan pr_e_s revenues and expenOtures for the 2001 and 2002 fiscal yea_

balanced in accordance with GAAE and pr_e_s gaps of $2.8 billion, $2_ _Hion and $2.2 billion for fiscal
years 2003 through 2005, rcspe_Nely.

Changes since the June 2000 Finan_M Plan include: (i) an increase in preened tax revenues of $1.4
billion, $756 million, $907 mi_ $1.1 billion and $2.3 billion in fiscal years 2{_1 through 2005.

respe_Ne[y, reflecting pfimafi_ increases in proje_ed pe_onal income, busine_ and sales tax revenues;

(ii) an increase in proje_ed revenues of $331 million in fiscal year 2001 due to reductions in proposed tax
cuts; (iii) a delay in the a_umed co[_n of $350 mill_n and $35 million of projec_d rent payments for

the City_ _rpo_s from fiscal yea_ 2002 and 2003, respectively, to fiscal yea_ 2004 and 2005: (iv) increased
pension costs totafing $79 million, $287 million, $463 million, $630 million and $825 million in fiscal years

2001 through 2005, respe_Nely, res_fing primari_ from a cost of living adjustment in pension payments

and a reserve, commenting in fiscal year 2002. to cover the costs of the pension funds earning a 0% return
by June 30, 2001 as a resuR of the decline in market returns during fiscal year 2_)1; (v) an increase in labor

cos_ totaling $398 million, $520 mi[l_n, $759 million. $817 million and $917 mill_n in fiscal yea_ 2(_1

through 2005. respe_Nely, to reflect the cost of assumed wage increases in fiscal yea_ 2_)1 and 21_2 for
all City employees equ_ to the ten_five sett_ment with D_tfi_ Coundl 37 of the American Federation

of State, Municip_ and County Emp_yees ("DC 37") and the efimination of pre_ou_y planned savings,

pa_y of_et by recently negotiated fringe benefit cost saving_ and (vi) other net spending increases of
$24 million, $333 million, $72 million, $284 million and $794 mill_n in fiscal yea_ 2001 through 2005,

respe_Nd_ _duding increased spending for Med_a_, police, energg debt ser_c_ campa_n finance
funding and other agency spen_n&

The Finan6_ Plan also sets forlh gap-dos_g actions to dim_a_ a previou_y projected gap for the
2002 fiscal year and to reduce pr_ec_d gaps for fiscal yea_ _3 through 5_5. The gap_fing actions
for the 2002 through 2(_5 fiscal yea_ include: (i) addifion_ agency savings and revenue a_ions totaling
$529 mill_n, $637 mill_n, $242 million, $220 million and $217 mill_n for fiscal yea_ 2001 through 2005,
respe_Nd_ (ii) reimbu_ement from the State and the proceeds of bonds issued by TSASC for landfill
closure co_s in fiscal year 2002 totaling $225 million; (iii) add_n_ Federal and State actions of

$150 million in each of fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2005; and (iv) the proposed sa_ of OTB in fiscal year 2002
for $250 million. The Finan_ Plan includes a proposed d_cretionary trans_r in the 2001 fiscal year of
$2.9 billion to pay debt service and other payments due in fiscal year 2002 and a proposed d_cretionary
transfer in fiscal year 2002 of $345 mill_n to pay debt service due in fiscal year 2003. In ad_t_n, the
Finand_ Plan reflects proposed tax reductions which total $498 million, $630 million, $669 mill_n and

$698 million in fiscal yea_ _2 through 2005, respectively. These tax reductions include a proposed
add_ional 25% reduction in the pe_onal income tax 14% surcharge; an increase in the taxable threshed
for the commcr_ rent tax; an e_ens_n of current tax redu_ns for owne_ of cooperat_e and
condomi_um apa_ment_ and an exten_on of the Lower Manhattan Re_tal_at_n Program. All of these
items except for the commer_ rent tax redu_ion and the redu_n in the pe_onal income _x surcharge
require approval by the State Le_ure. In additiom the Finand_ Plan includes a Tax Redu_ion
Program which totals $100 million in fiscal year 2002 and $200 million in each of fiscal yea_ 2_)3 through
2005. This Tax Redu_n Program includes a proposed earned income tax credit; repeal of the $2 hotel
ta_ elimination of the sales tax on clothing and footwea_ an exemption from the mor_age record_g tax
for fi_t time home buyer; prope_y tax relief for owne_ of condom_ms and coopcrative_ and a real
property tax abatement for con_ru_ion of "en_ronmental_ friend_" structure_ All of these items
require approval by the State Legislature.

The Finand_ Plan assumes: (i) cold,ion of projected rent paymen_ for the City_ airpo_ totaling
$170 mill_n, $315 million and $280 million in the 2003 through 2005 fiscal yea_. respe_ively, which
depends on the succe_ful completion of negot_t_ns with The Port Authority of New York and New
Je_ey (the "Po_ Authoriff') or the enforcement of the City_ rights under the existing leases through
pending legal actions: (ii) State and Federal approval of the State and Federal gap-clofing actions
proposed by the City in the Finandal Plan; (iii) the annual receipt of $114 million of State paymen_ to
a stock trans_r _centNe fund and appro_ma_ $200 m_ion in categorical State education aid reflected
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in the FinandM Plan as revenue to the Cit_ neither of which was included in the Governor_ Executive

Budget; and (N) the successful completion of the sale of OTB, which will require State _gislat_e
approve. The Finan_M Plan contains a labor reserve for wage increases for all City employees equ_ to
the tentatNe settlement with Di_r_t Coun_l 37. The Finan_M Plan does not make any pro_sion for

wage increases other than the labor reserve for pay increases discussed above or for increased pension
expend_ures due to investment losses in fisc_ year 2001. For _formation regarding recent labor
settlemen_ see "SECTION V: CITY SERVICES AND EXPENDITURES--Employees and Labor R_afions"
and for _formation regarding increased pension cos_, see "SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Certain
Repo_" In addRion, the economic and financial con_tion of the City may be affe_ed by various
finano_, so_, econom_ and other fa_o_ which could have a material effect on the City.

The State

The State ended Rs 2000-01 fiscal year in balance on a cash basis, with a reported closing balance in
the Gener_ Fund of $1.l billion. On September 21, 2001, the State DN_ion of the Budget ("DOB")
prepared its Finand_ Plan for the 2001-02 fiscal yea_ The Financial Plan reflected the ena_ment of a
"base_ne" budget for the 2001-02 fiscal year on Augu_ 3, 2001, which did not approve new funding
proposa_ in the Governor_ ExecutNe Budget, and _gislatNe action on September 13, 2001 with respe_
to ce_ain reappropriation_ The F_and_ Plan for the 2001-02 fiscal year pr_e_s Gener_ Fund
d_bu_ements of $41.99 bil_on, with a clofing balance in the General Fund of $2.71 bfll_n, including a
preened reserve of $l.48 billion for econom_ unce_nt_ DOB has prefiouMy preened budget gaps
of $2.5 billion in 2002-03 and $2.9 b_on in 2003-04, and preliminary analysis by DOB _cates that the
potential gaps for such yea_ produced by the _atNe a_ions on the 2001-02 budget are comparable
to these e_imate_

The Finand_ Plan for fiscal year 2001-02 and the proje_ed gaps for subsequent yea_ do not yet
contain any tensions related to the September 1l attack. Howeve_ DOB has stated that it expects that
the attack will depress, at least temporaril5 the norm_ growth in State tax receipts and will increase the
State_ operat_g costs. A pre_m_ary a_e_ment by DOB sugge_s that the less of rec_p_ will be in the
range of $1 billion to $3 billion in fiscal year 2001-02 and in the range of $2 billion to $6 billion in fiscal
year 2002-03 as a result of disruptions to tax payment processes and business activity in a number of
econom_ se_o_, including finance, insurance, real e_ate and tourism. In add_ion, DOB has noted that,
in the long term, the most fignificant risk is the possible 1o_ of finano_ sector firms and related bu_nesses
to other states. DOB has stated that it anticipa_s that the State will take necessary actions to maintain
budget balance for the reminder of the 2001-02 fiscal yeah _du_ng the use of available reserves. DOB
expels to revise _s spending and revenue estimates in future updates as the fisc_ impa_ of the
September 11 attack becomes dearer and more information is known. On O_ober 16, 2001, the Governor
announced a plan to reduce State spending by at least $3 billion for fiscal yea_ 2001-02 and 2002-03
through a hiring freeze, ear_ retirement, refinan_ng of State debt, redu_ions in nonessential State
expenditures and addition_ expend_ure reductions to be identified by State agendes.

SECtiON ik THE BONDS

Gener_

The Bonds will be general o_ns of the Ci_ i_ued pursuant to the Con_n and laws of the
State and the New York Ci_ Cha_er (the "C_y ChaneF) and in accordance wRh bond _s_m_ns of _e
Mayor and a certificate of the Depuff Comptr_ler for Public Finance (the "Certific_e"). The Bonds will
m_ure and bear interest as described on the inside cover page of this Offidal Smmme_ and will contain
a Nedge of the City_ _ith and c_dit _r the payment of _e prinop_ o_ _dem_n premium, if an5 and
intere_ on the Bonds. All real property su_e_ to taxation by the City will be su_e_ to the levy of ad
va_m taxes, wRhout limRafion as to r_e or amounL to pay the prindp_ oL _dem_n p_mium, if
an5 and interest on the Bonds.

Payment Mecha_sm

Pu_uant to the New York State Finan_ Emergency Act For The City of New York (the "_nan_
Emergency Act" or the "A_, a general debt _rv_e fund (the "Gene_l Debt Service Fund" or the

6



"Fund") has been e_abl_hed for City bonds and certain City notes. Pu_uant to the Act, paymen_ of the
City real estate tax must be deposRed upon receipt in the Fund, and retained under a statutory formula,
for the payment of debt service (with exceptions for debt settee, such as prin_pal of seasonM bo_owing_
that is set aside under other procedure_. The _atutory formula has in recent years resulted in retention
of suffi_ent real estate taxes to comply with the City Covenan_ (as defined in "SECIJON II: THE
BONDS--Ce_n Covenants and Agreements"). If the _atutory formula does not result in retention of

sufficient real estate taxes to comply with the City Covenant, the City will comply with the City
Covenan_ eflher by prodding for eady retention of real estate taxes or by making cash payments into the
Fund. J_e prin_pM of and interest on the Bonds will be paid from the Fund until the Act expires on
July 1,2008, and therea_er from a separate fund m_n_ined in accordance with the City Covenant. Since
its inception in 1978, the Fund has been fully funded at the be_nn_g of each payment period.

If the Control Board determines that retentions in the Fund are likely to be insuffioent to provide
for the debt service payable therefrom, it _ust req_re that ad_tionM real estate tax revenues be retained
or other cash resources of the City be paid into the Fund. In addition, the Control Board is required to
take such action as it determ_es to be necc_ary so that the money in the Fund is adequate to meet debt
service requirement_

Enforccabilhy of Chy Obl_ations

As required by the State Con_ution and appl_ab_ law, the City pledges its faith and credit for the
payment of the prindpM of and interest on all City indebtednes_ Holde_ of City debt obl_ations have
a contra_ual right to full payment of prin_pal and in,rest at matufit_ If the City fails to pay prin_pal
or intere_, the holder has the right to sue and is entflled to the full amount due, _ud_g interest to
maturity at the stated rate and at the rate authorized by law thereafter until payment. Under the General
MunicipM Law, if the City fails to pay any money judgmenC it is the duty of the City to assess, levy and
cause to be col_ed amoun_ sufficient to pay the judgment. Dec_ions indicate that judicial enforcement
of statutes such as this provision in the General MunicipM Law is within the discretion of a court. Other
judicial deacons also indicate that a money judgment against a municipality may not be enforceable
against municipM prope_y devoted to public use.

The righ_ of the owne_ of Bonds to receive interest, principal and redemption premium, if an_ from
the City could be adve_e_ af_ed by a restructuring of the City% debt under Chapter 9 of the Federal
Bankrupmy Code. No assurance can be given that any priority of holde_ of City securities (including the
Bonds) to payment from money retained in the Fund or from other sources would be recogn_ed if a
petition were filed by or on behalf of the City under the Federal Bankruptcy Code or pursuant to other
subsequent_ enacted laws relating to creditor" rights; such money might then be available for the
payment of all City cred_o_ generally. Judicial enforcement of the City_ obl_ation to make paymen_

into the Fund, of the obl_ation to retain money in the Fund, of the rights of holde_ of bonds and notes
of the City to money in the Fund, of the obl_ations of the City under the City Covenan_ and of the State
under the State Covenant and the State Pledge and Agreement (in each case. as defined in "--Ce_n
Covenan_ and Agreement') may be within the d_crefion of a coum For further information concerning
rights of owne_ of Bonds against the Cit_ see "SECTION VIII: INDEBteDNESS--Indebtedness of the City
and Ce_ain Other Entities"

Ce_n Covenan_ and Agreements

The City will covenant that: (i) a separate fund or funds for the purpose of paying prin_pal of and
interest on bonds and interest on notes of the City 0n_u_ng _qui_d paymen_ into, but not from, City
sinking _nds) shall be m_n_ed by an officer or agency of the State or by a bank or tru_ company; and
(ii) not later than the last day of each month, there shall be on deposit in a separate fund or funds an
amount suffi_ent to pay prin_p_ of and _re_ on bonds and interest on notes of the City due and
payable in the next succeeding month. The City cu_ent_ uses the debt service payment mechan_m
described above to perform these covenant_ The City will fu_hcr covenant in the Bonds to comp_ with
the financial _po_ing _q_ments of the Act, as in ef_ct _om time to time, and to limit its issuance of
bond anti_p_n notes as _qui_d by the Act, as in ef_ct _om time to time.
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The State p_dges and agrees in the Finand_ Emergency A_ that the State will not take any action

that will impair the power of the City to comp_ with the covenants described in the preceding paragraph
(the "City Covenant') or any right or remedy of any owner of the Bonds to enforce the City Covenan_
(the "State Pledge and Agreement"). The City will include in the Bonds the covenant of the State (the
"State Covenant) to the effe_, among other things, that the State will not sub_ant_l_ impair the

authority of the Contr_ Board in specified respe_ The City will covenant to make confinu_g d_dosure
with respect to the Bonds (the "Unde_a_ng') as summarized below under "SECTION IX: OTHER

INFORMATION--Cont_u_g D_dosure Unde_ak_" In the opinion of Bond Counsd, the enforceabifity
of the C_y Covenant_ the Unde_a_n_ the State Pledge and Agreement and the State Covenant may be
su_e_ to bankruptc5 _soNenc5 reorgan_ion, mor_ofium and other simihr laws alleging creditor'
rights heretofore or hereafter ena_ed and may also be su_e_ to the exercise of the State_ police powe_
and ofjudid_ d_cretion in appropriate cases. The City Covenant, the Unde_a_n_ the State Pledge and
Agreement and the St_e Covenant shall be of no force and ef_ct with respe_ to any Bond if there is a
deposit in trust with a bank or trust company of suffioent cash or cash equivalents to pay when due all
prindpal o_ applicable redemption premium, if an5 and intere_ on such Bond.

Use of Proceeds

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used for capital purposes, indud_g expenses of the City in
connexion with the issuance and sale of the Bonds.

Option_ Redemption

The Bonds will be su_e_ to redemption at the option of the City on or a_er November 1, 2011, in
whole or in pa_, by lot w_hin each matudt5 on any date, upon 30 days' notice to Bondho_e_, at the
follow_g redemption prices, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption:

Redem_n Pfi_
Redemption D_es _ Pe_emage of Par

November 1, 2011 through O_ober 31, 2012 ...... 101%
November 1, 2012 and thereafter ................ 100%

The City may select amoun_ and maturit_s of Bonds for redemption in its sole dNcretion.

On and aSer any redemption da_, _tere_ will cease to accrue on the Bonds called for redemption.

Bond Insurance

The prindpal of and interest on the Bonds maturing in yea_ 2007 and 2010 are insured by Ambac
A_urance Corporation ("Ambac'). The prindpM of and interest on the 5½% Bonds maturing in 2013

and the 5¼% Bonds maturing in 2014 through 2016 are insured by MBIA Insurance Corporation
("MBIA"_ The pfin_p_ of and interest on the 5% Bonds maturing in year 2006 are insured by XL
Ca_tal A_urance Inc. ("XLCA'). For _format_n about Amba_ MBIA and XLCA, see Appendk D.
Spedmen copies of the insurance policies to be issued by the respe_Ne insure_ are contorted in
Append_ E.

Bond Ce_ffic_

Boo,Entry On_ Sys_m

The Depo_mw Tru_ Company ("DTC_, New York, New York, will act as securit_s deposRory _r
the Bonds. Re_rence to the Bonds under the caption "Bond Ce_c_es" shall mean all Bonds that are
deposi_d with DTC from time m time. The Bonds will be issued as _lly-_gistered notes _e_d _ the

name of Cede & Co. (DTC_ pa_ne_h_ nominee) and deposi_d with DTC.

DTC is a fimi_d_urpose trust company o_an_ed under the New York Banking La_ a "banNng
organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking La_ a member of the Federal Reserve
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Symcm, a "c_aring corporat_n" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commer_ Code, and
a "Hearing agency" re_s_red pu_uant to the provis_ns of Se_n 17A of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. DTC h_ds securities that its dire_ participants ("Dire_ PaO_ants") deposit with DTC. DTC
also _d_es the seu_ment among Di_ Participants of secufit_s _ansa_n_ such as tmns_ and
pledges, in deposi_d securities through c_ron_ comp_cfized book-entry changes in Dire_ Partici-
pant' account_ thereby dimming the need for physkal movement of securities ce_ifica_ Di_
Pa_icipants include secufit_s broken and deale_, banks, trust compan_ rearing corporations and
ce_ain other organ_n_ DTC is owned by a number of hs Di_ Pa_icipan_ and by the New York
Stock Exchang_ Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC and the N_n_ A_ooation of Securit_s
De_e_, Inc. Access to the DTC sy_em is a_o av_h_e to others such as securit_s brokers and dealers,
banks and trust companies that clear through or ma_in a custodial re_tionsh_ with a Dire_

Pa_icipant, either di_ or mdire_ _Indirect Participants"). The rules ap_ica_e to DTC and its
Pa_idpan_ are on file with the Securit_s and Exchange Comm_on.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC sys_m must be made by or through Di_ Partidpants, which
will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTCg records. The owne_h_ interest of each actual pu_haser of
each Bond (under this caption, "Book-Entry On_ Sys_m," a "Benefid_ Owneff') is in turn to be
recorded on the Dire_ and Indire_ Pa_idpan_' records. Benefir_ Owne_ will not receive writ_n
confirm_n _om DTC of their pu_has_ but Benefi_ Owne_ are expe_ed to receive wfiuen

confirm_ns pro_ng details of the _ansa_n, as well as periodic _ements of their ho_ings, #om
the Dire_ or Indirect Pa_icipant through which the Benefid_ Owner entered into the _ansa_n.

Trans_ of owne_p _re_s in the Bonds are to be accom_hhed by entries made on the books of
Dire_ and Indirect Partic_an_ acting on behalf of Benefid_ Owne_. Benefid_ Owne_ will not receNe
ce_ffica_s representing their ownership inmm_s in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the
book_n_y sy_em for the Bonds is dhcontinued.

To _d_e subsequent _ans_, all Bonds deposi_d by Dire_ and Indire_ Pa_idpan_ (re_ed
to together as "Partidpan_') with DTC are re_e_d in the name of Cede & Co. The deposit of Bonds
with DTC and their re_rat_n in the name of Cede & Co. ef_ct no change in benefidal ownersh_. DTC
has no knowledge of the a_ual Benefid_ Owne_ of the Bonds; DTC_ records retied only the identity
of the Dire_ Paaicipan_ to whose accoun_ such Bonds are cred_ed, which may or may not be the
Beneficml Owner_ The Dire_ Partiopan_ will _main responsible for kee_ng account of their holdings
on behalf of their cu_ome_.

Conveyance of notices and other commun_ns by DTC to Dire_ Pa_ants, by Di_
Pa_icipan_ to Indirect Panicipan_ and by Dire_ Pa_icipan_ and Indi_ Pa_i_pan_ to Benefid_
Owne_ will be governed by arrangements among them, su_e_ to any statutory or _g_atory
req_remen_ as may be in ef_ct from time to time.

Ndther DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with _spe_ to Bonds. Under its usual procedu_
DTC mails an omn_us proxy (_e "Omn_us Proxy") to the City as soon as pos_ble after the record date.
The tin,bus Proxy assigns Cede & Co._ consem_g or voting rights to those Dire_ Pa_icipan_ to whose
accounts the Bonds are _e_d on the record date (_em_ed in a listing auached to the Omn_us Proxy).

Redempt_n notices shall be sent to Cede & Co. If less than all of the Bonds within a matufi_ are
being _deeme& DTC_ pra_e is to d_erm_e by lot the amount of inte_ of each Dire_ Partidpam
in such m_ufiff to be redeemed.

Prinopal and interest paymen_ on the Bonds wi_ be made to DTC. DTC_ pra_e _ to _ed_ Di_
Pa_icipantg accounts on the payment d_e in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC_
records un_ DTC has reason to believe that it will not recdve payment on the payment date. Paymen_
by Partidpants to Benefid_ Owne_ will be governed by _an_ng in,rubens and cu_omary pra_e_
as is the case with secufit_s held for the accounts of custome_ in bearer form or registered in "street
name", and will be the responsi_lity of such Partidpant and not of DTC, the Ci_ fiscal agent, or the
Cit5 su_e_ to any _utory or regu_tory mq_men_ as may be in ef_ct from time to time. Payment
of pfindp_ and in_est to DTC is the _spons_ility of the City or the Final Agent, d_bu_ement of such
payments to Di_ Partidpan_ shall be the _spon_Nli_ of DTC, and d_bu_ement of such paymen_
to the Benefid_ Owne_ shall be the respon_lity of Di_ and lndireo Partidpants.
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DTC may d_confinue prodding its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any
time by giving reasonab_ notice to the City or the Fiscal Agent. Under such drcum_ance_ in the event

that a successor securities depository is not obt_ne& Bond ce_cmes arc required to be printed and
delivered.

The City may decide to d_cont_uc use of the sys_m of bookmntry trans_ through DTC (or a
successor securities depository), In that event, Bond ce_c_es will be printed and ddNered.

The _formafion in this section concerning DTC and DTC_ book_ntry sy_em has been obtained
from sources that the City believes to be rcl_b_, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy
thereo_

No assurance can be given by the City that DTC will make prompt transit of paymen_ to the

Participants or that Pa_icipan_ will make prompt transit of paymen_ to Benefid_ Owne_, The City
is not respon_b_ or liable for payment by DTC or Pa_icipan_ or for sending transaction _atements or
for m_nt_n_ supervifing or renewing _ecords m_ntained by DTC or Participants.

For every transit and exchange of the Bonds, the Benefid_ Owne_ may be charged a sum suffident
to cover any lax, _e or other charge that may be imposed in relation thereto.

Unle_ otherw_c noted, certain of the _formm_n contained in this subsc_ion "Book-Entry Only
Sy_em" has been extra_ed from _format_n furn_hed by DTC. Neither the City nor the underwfim_
of the Bonds makes any representmion as to the completeness or the accuracy of such _format_n or as
to the absence of material adve_e changes in such information subsequent to the date hereo[

D&conrnuance _ _e Book-Enn T On_ _s_m

In the event that the boo_e_ only sy_em is _o_ue& the City will a_hem_a_ and make
av_h_e _r deli_ _p_mem Bonds in the _rm of _e_d _c_. In add_ion, the __

pm_fio_ would apply: prin_p_ of the Bonds will be payable in lawful money of the United States of
Ameri_ to the m_e_d owne_ the_of on the maturiff date of the Bonds in imme_me_ av_e
funds at the office of the _scal Agent, The Bank of New _rk: if by hand, The Bank of New _rk, 20
Broad Street, New _rk, New _rk 10005, _m _ust Receipt and Delive_ Dcpanmem: if by mail,
The Bank of New _)_, EO. Box 11265, New _rk, New _rk 10286, A_ent_n: Fiscal Agent Depa_mem
(101B-7E) or a_ _r fiscal agent defign_ed by the Cit_ and interest on the Bonds will be payable
by wire trans_r or by check m_d to the _spe_ive addresses of the _e_d owne_ thereof as shown
on the _fion books of the City as of the Record Date (the fi_eenth day of the p_d_g calendar
month _r the Bonds _m_e_ p_Ong the ap_a_e interest payment date.

SECTION II1: GOVERNMENT AND FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Structure of City Governme_

The _ty of New _rk is divided into five countie_ which cor_spond to its five borough. The Cit_

howeve_ is the only unit of local government within its _r_ori_ j_i_ with amh_ff to levy and
collect taxes, and is the unit of local govemmem _imari_ _spo_ _r service _e_ R_pon_fiff

_ _mi_ _ City _ cuwem_ vested by the City Charier in the Mayo_ the _ff _m_ the City
Council, the Public Ad_ and the Borough P_fident_

-- 7he Mayon Rudolph _ G_hnL the Mayor of the Cit_ took office on Janua_ 1, 1994 and was
elected _r a second term commen_ng January 1, 1998. The Mayor is elected in a general election
_r a _u_year term and is the chief execmNe officer of the City The Mayor has the power to

appoint the comm_fionc_ of the City_ various _m_ The Mayor is __ _r
p_paring and _m_eri_ the City_ annual Expense and Caoml Budgets (as defined below)
and financial plan. The Ma_)r has the power to veto local laws enacted by the City Coun_l, but
such a veto may be overridden by a t_hi_s vote of the City C_n_. The Mayor has powe_
and __ relating to land use and City contracts and all residual powe_ of the City
go_mmem not otherw_e de_ga_d by law to some other public offi_al or body The Mayor is
also a member of the Control Board.
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-- The Ci_ Comptrolle_ Alan G. Heve_, the Comptrol_r of the CitN took office on January 1,
1994 and was _e_ed for a second term commenting January 1, 1998. The City Comptrol_r is
elected in a general election for a fouvyear term and is the chief fiscal officer of the City. The City
Comptro_er has extensNe inve_atNe and audit powe_ and responNNiit_s which include
keeping the financial books and records of the City. The City Comptrol_r's audit respon_bilit_s
include a program of performance aud_s of City agendes in connexion with the City_
managemenL planning and control of operations. In addition, the City ComptrN_r g req_red to
evNuate the Mayor's budget, _dud_g the assumpt_ns and methodNogy used in the budget. The
Office of the City Comptroller is respons_ under the City Cha_er and pursuant to State Law
and City inve_ment guidelines for manag_g and _vesting City funds for operat_g and cap_al
purposes. The City Comptroller is also a member of the Control Board and is a trustee, the

cu_od_n and the de,gated _ve_ment manager of the City_ five pension sys_ms. The
investmen_ of those pension sy_em a_e_, aggregating approximate_ $91 billion as of Decem-
ber 31, 2000, are made pu_uant to the _re_ns of the respe_Ne boards of tru_ee_

_ The Ci_ Coun_L The City Coundl is the _atNe body of the City and consi_s of the Public

Advocate and 51 members de_ed for fou_year terms who represent various geographic d_tric_
of the Cit_ Under the City Chane_ the City Coundi must annually adopt a resolution fixing the
amount of the re_ e_ate tax and adopt the Ci_ annual Expense Budget and Capital Budget (as
defined bdow). The City Coundl does not, howeve_ have the power to ena_ local laws impo_ng
other taxes, unless such taxes have been authorized by State _gislation. The City Coun_l has
powe_ and respon_lit_s rehting to ffanchhes and land use and as prodded by State law.

-- The Public Advocate. Mark Green, the Publ_ Advoc_ took office on January 1, 1994 and was
e_ed for a second term commenting January 1, 1998. The Publ_ Advocate is e_ed in a
general e_ion for a fou_year term. The Pubfic Advoca_ may preside at meetings of the City
Coundl without voting powec except in the case of a t_ vote. The Pubfic Advoc_e is fi_t in the
line of succession to the Mayor in the event of the disability of the Mayor or a vacancy in the
office. The Pu_ic Advoca_ appoin_ a member of the City Planning Commission and has various
respon_bilities relating to, among other things, mo_tofing the activ_s of City agendes, the

inve_ion and resolution of ce_ain compl_n_ made by membe_ of the public concerning City
agencies and ensuring appropriate pubfic acce_ to government _formation and meetings.

-- The Borough Presidents. Each of the City_ five boroughs e_s a Borough Pres_ent who serves
for a fou_year term concurrent with other Ci_ e_ed offi_s. The Borough Pre_dents consuR

with the Mayor in the preparation of the City_ annual Expense Budget and Capit_ Budget. Five
percent of discretionary increases proposed by the Mayor _ the Expense Budget and, with certain
exceptions, five percent of the appropriat_ns supported by funds over which the City has
substantial discretion proposed by the Mayor in the Cap_ Budget, mu_ be based on
appropriations proposed by the Borough Pres_ent_ Each Borough Pre_dent also appoints one
member to the Board of Education ("BOE") and has various responsi_lities relating to, among
other things, renewing and making recommendations regarding appl_ations for the use,
devdopment or improvement of land _c_ed w_hin the borough, mon_oring and making
recommendations regarding the performance of contacts prodding for the dehvery of services in
the borough and ove_e_ng the coordin_ion of a borough-w_e public service comp_int
program.

The City Cha_er pro_des that no pe_on shall be eli_e to be _e_ed to or serve in the office of

Mayo_ Public Advocate, ComptroHe_ Borough President or Coun_l member if that pe_on has
pre_ous_ held such office for two or more full consecutive _rms, unless one full term or more has

elapsed since that person last held such office. This City Charier pro_on appfies to terms of office
commen_ng on or after January 1, 1994.

City Finan_ Management, Budgeting and Con_o_

The Mayor is responsible under the City Cha_er for preparing the C_y_ annu_ expense and cap_al
budge_ (as adopted, the "Expense Budget" and the "Capital BudgeL" respe_N_ and col_ctNel_ the
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"Budgets") and for submitting the Budgets to the City Coundl for its review and adoption. The Expense
Budget coven the City_ annu_ operating expend_ures for munidp_ services, while the Capital Budget
covc_ expend_ures for capital pr_e_s, as defined in the City Cha_e_ Operations under the Expense
Budget mu_ refle_ the aggregate expendRure limRations contMned in financial plans.

The City Coundl is responsib_ for adopting the Expense Budget and the CapRM Budget. Pu_uant
to the City Cha_e_ the City Coundl may increase, decrease, add or omit specific units of appropriation
in the Budge_ submRted by the Mayor and add, omit or change any terms or conditions related to such
appropfations. The City Counol is also respon_b_, pu_uant to the City Cha_e_ for appro_ng
modifications to the Expense Budget and adopt_g amendments to the Capital Budget beyond ce_ain
lat_udes allowed to the Mayor under the City Cha_e_ Howeve_ the Mayor has the power to veto any
increase or add_ion to the Budge_ or any change in any term or condRion of the Budgets approved by
the City Coundi, which veto is su_e_ to an override by a two4hirds vote of the Ciff Coundl, and the
Mayor has the power to implement expen_ture redu_ions subsequent to adoption of the Expense

Budget in order to maintain a balanced budget. In adOtio_ the Mayor has the power to determ_e the
non-prope_y tax revenue foreca_ on which the City Council must rely in setting the prope_y tax rates
for adopting a balanced City budget.

Office of Management and Budget

The Office of Management and Budget ("OMB'L with a staff of appro_ma_ 3(_) pro_ssionals, is
the Mayor_ primary advisory group on fiscal i_ues and _ also responsib_ for the preparation, mo_toring

and control of the City_ Budge_ and fou_year financial plans. In addRion, the City prepares a Ten-5_ar
Ca_t_ Strateg_

State law req_res the City to mMnt_n i_ Expense Budget balanced when reposed in accordance
with GAAE In addition to the City_ annual Expense and Capital Budge_, the City prepares a fou_year
finand_ plan which encompasses the City_ revenue, expen_ture, cash flow and cap_al projection_ All
Covered Orga_zation_ as hereina_cr defined, are also required to maintain budgets that arc balanced
when reposed in accordance with GAAE From time to time ce_ain Covered Organ_ations have had
budgets profiding for operations on a cash basis but not balanced under GAAE

To a_ist in ach_ng the goals of the financial plan and budget, the City reviews its financial plan
period_al_ and, if necessar_ prepares modifications to incorporate actual resu_s and revisions to
pr_c_ions and a_umptions to retied cuwent informat_n. The City_ revenue pr_e_ions arc continu_
rcv_wed and period_ updated with the benefit of d_cusMons with a panel of private econom_
an_y_ng the ef_s of changes in econom_ in_c_o_ on City revenues and _formation _om various
econom_ foreca_ing services.

Office of the Comptroller

The City Comptroller is the City_ chief fiscal officer and is responfib_ under the City Chaaer for
renewing and commenting on the Cityg Budgets and financial plans, _dud_g the assumptions and
method_o_es used in their preparation. The City Comptrol_ as an independcnt_ clewed pubfic
offi_al, is required to repo_ annually to the City Coundl on the state of the City_ economy and finances
and pefiod_ally to the Mayor and the City Coundl on the finan_ condition of the City and to make
recommendation_ comments and criti_sms on the operations, fiscal policies and finan_al transactions of
the CR_ Such repots, among other things, have differed with ce_ain of the economi_ revenue and
expenditure a_umptions and pr_e_ns in the Cityg financial plans and Budge_. See "SECTION VII:
FINANCIAL PLAN--Ce_Mn Report_"

The Office of the City Comptrol_ with a pro_ssionM staff of approximat_y 790, e_abl_hes the
City_ accounting and finan_al reposing pra_es and internal control procedure_ The City Comptrol_r
is also responfib_ for the preparation of the City_ annual financial _atement_ wh_h, since 1978, have
been required to be reposed in accordance with GAAR

The ComprehensNe Annum FinandM Repofl of the Comptrol_r for the 1999 fiscal yeah which
_dude_ among other things, the City_ financial _atements for the 1999 fiscal yeac has received the
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Government Finance Office_ A_odN_n award of the Ce_ificate of Ach_vcment for Exc_nce in

FinandN ReponinN the twentieth consecutNc year the Comprehenfive Annual FinanNN Repo_ of the
Comptroller has won such award.

All contracts for goods and ser_ces req_fing the expenditure of City moneys mu_ be rendered with
the City Comptroller. No contra_ can be rendered unless funds for its payment have been appropria_d
by the City CounNl or otherwise authorized. The City Comptrol_r also prepares vouche_ for paymen_
for such goods and services and cannot prepare a voucher unless funds are avNNNe in the Budge_ for
its payment.

The City Comptroller is Nso req_red by the City Charier to audit all City agencies and has the power
to audit all City contract_ The Office of the Comptroller conducts both finandal and management audits
and has the power to mve_ate co_uption in connection with City contracts or contractor_

The Mayor and City Comptrol_r are respons_ for the issuance of City indebtedness. The City
Comp_N_r ove_ees the payment of such indebtedness and is responfiNe for the custody of certain
sinking funds.

Financ_l Reposing and Control S)_ms

Since 1978, the City_ financial _ements have been required to be audRed by independent certified
public accountants and to be presen_d in accordance with GAAE The City has comNe_d twenty
consecutive fiscal yea_ with a General Fund surplus when reposed in accordance with then apN_ab_
GAAE

Both OMB and the Office of the Comptrol_r utilize a financial management sy_em which provides
comprehenfive cuwent and historical information regar_ng the City_ financial condition. This informa-
tion, which is _dcpendent_ evNu_ed by each office, provides a basis for City a_ion required to mNntNn
a balanced budget and continued financial nab_ty.

The City_ operat_g results and foreca_s are analyzed, reviewed and reposed on by each of OMB
and the Office of the Comptrol_r as part of the City_ overall sy_em of internal control. Internal control
sy_ems are reviewed reguNrly, and the City Comptro_er requires an annual report on internal control
and accountabihty from each agenc_ Comprehcn_ve serv_c _vel and produ_ivity targets are form_ated
and mon_ored for each agency by the Mayor_ Office of Operat_ns and reported publicly in a sem_nnuN
management report.

The City has devc_ped and utilizes a cash forecasting sy_em which foreca_s its daily cash balance_
This enables the City to predi_ more accurate_ its shonqerm bo_owing needs and maximize its return
on the investment of availa_e cash balancc_ Monthly _a_men_ of operating revenues and expen_turc_
capital revenues and expenditures and cash flow are reported a_er each monthg end, and m_or variances
_om the financial plan are identified and exN_neC

City funds held for operation and capital purposes arc managed by the Office of the City
Comptr_a with specific g_defines as to _vc_mcnt vehicle_ The City does not invest such funds in
_veraged produc_ or use revere repurchase agreements. The City inve_s pfimafi_ in o_ns of the
United States Government, its agencies and _rumental_ high grade commerdal paper and
repurchase agreements with primary deale_. The _purchase agreemen_ a_e collateralized by Uni_d
States Government treasurie_ agencies and in_rumen_litie_ held by the City_ cu_o_an bank and
marked to market dail_

More than 95% of the aggregate assets of the City_ five defined benefit pension sy_ems are managed
by outside manage_, superv_ed by the Office of the City Comptr_a and the reminder is held in cash
or managed by the City Comptroller. Al_cmions of _vc_ment assets are determ_ed by each fund_
board of trustce_ As of December 31, 2_)0 aggregate pension assets were _cated approximam_ as
follows: 52% U.S. equities: 32% U.S. fixed income; 16% intern_n_ cq_tie_ 0% inmrnation_ fixed
income; and 0% cash.

l')'nan_al Emergency A_

The Finan_ Emergency Act requires that the City submit to the Control Board. at least 50 days
prior to thc beaning of each fiscal year (or on such other date as the Cont_)l Board may approve), a
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financial plan for the City and certain State government_ agendes, public authorities or public benefit
corporations ("PBCs') which receive or may receive monks from the City dire_ly, indirect_ or
cont_gent_ (the "Covered Organ_ations') coveting the fouvyear period beaning with such fiscal yea_
The BOE, the New York City Transit Authority and the Manh_n and Bronx Surface TransR Operating
Authority (col_Nely, "New York City Tranfi_ or "NYCT"_ New York City HeaRh and Hospitah
Corpor_ion ("HHC') and the New York City Houfing Authority (the "Hous_g Authority" or "HA")
are examp_s of Covered Organkations. The A_ req_res th_ the City_ fouvyear financial plans conform
to a numbcr of _andard_ Unle_ otherw_e perm_d by the Control Board under ce_ain cond_ion_ the
City must prepare and balance its budget covering all expenditures other than cap_al items so that the
results of such budget will not show a defidt when reposed in accordance with GAAE Provision mu_ be
made, among other things, for the payment in full of the debt service on all City securit_ The budget
and operations of the City and the Covered Organk_ns mu_ be in conformance with the financial plan
then in effect.

From 1975 to June 30, 1986, the City was su_e_ to a Control Period, as defined in the Act, which
was _rmina_d upon the saturation of the statutory condit_ns for termination, _cluding the termination
of all Federal guaran_es of obl_ations of the Cit5 a de_rmination by the Control Board that the City
had m_nt_ned a balanced budget in accordance with GAAP for each of the three immediate_ preceding
fiscal years and a ce_ificafion by the State and City Comptr_ that sales of securit_s by or for the
benefit of the City satisfied its capital and seasonal finanong req_remen_ in the publ_ credit markets and
were expected to sat_fy such req_remen_ in the 1987 fiscal yea_ With the term_ation of the Control
Period, ce_ain Control Board powe_ were suspended _dudin_ among others, its power to approve or
disapprove ce_ain contra_s 0nduding col_aNe bargai_ng agreements), long-term and sho_4erm
borrowings, and the fouvyear financial plan and modifications thereto of the City and the Covered
Organ_ations. A_er the mrmination of the Control Period but prior to the _atutory expiration date of
the Act on July l, 2008, the City is still required to develop a fou_year financial plan each year and to
modify the plan as changing drcum_ances require. During this period, the Control Board will also
continue to have certain review powe_ and must reimpose a Control Period upon the occu_ence or
substanti_ fikdihood and imm_ence of the occu_ence of any one of ce_n events specified in the Act.
These events are (i) failure by the City to pay pfindpM of or interest on any of its notes or bonds when
due or payable, (ii) the existence of a City oper_ing defidt of more than $100 million, (iii) issuance by
the City of notes in _olation of certain re_ri_ions on sho_-_rm bo_owing imposed by the Act, (iv) any
_olation by the City of any prov_ion of the A_ wh_h substantial_ imp_ the ability of the City to pay
prindp_ of or interest on its bonds or notes when due and payable or its abil_y to adopt or adhere to an
operating budget balanced in accordance with the A_, or (v) joint ce_ification by the State and City
Comptrol_ that they could not at that time make a joint certification that sales of securities in the public
credit market by or for the benefit of the City during the immediatdy preceding fiscal year and the current
fiscal year satisfied its cap_al and seasonal financing req_rements during such period and that there is a
sub_anfi_ fike_hood that such securit_s can be sold in the general publ_ market from the date of the
joint certification through the end of the next succeeding fiscal year in amoun_ that will sat_fy
sub_antial_ all of the capital and seasonal financing req_remen_ of the City during such period in
accordance with the finand_ plan then in effe_.

Financial Renew and Ove_ht

The Control Board, with the Office of the State Deputy Comptrol_r ("OSDC"_ reviews and
mon_o_ revenues and expend_ures of the City and the Covered Organ_ations. In addition, the
Municipal A_istance Corporation for The City of New York ("MAC") was organ_ed to provide
finandng assistance for the City and to exercise ce_ain review functions with respect to the City_ finance_
and the Independent Budget Office (the "IBO") has been e_abl_hed pu_uant to the City Cha_er to
provide analysis to elected offidals and the public on relevant fiscal and budgetary i_ues affe_ing the
Cit_

The Congol Board is required to: (i) renew the fou_year financial plan of the City and of the
Covered Organ_ations and mod_cafions thereto; (ii) review the operations of the C_y and the Covered
Organ_ations, including their complhnce with the financial plan; and (iii) rev_w long-term and
sho_qerm bo_ow_gs and ce_ain contra_ _duding colOgNe barg_ng agreements, of the City and
the Covered Organkations. The requ_ement to submR fouvyear financial plans and budgets for refiew
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was in response to the severe finan_al difficulties and loss of access to the cred_ markets encountered by
the City in 1975. The Control Board mu_ reexamine the finandal plan on at least a qua_efly basis to
determine its conformance to statutory standards.

The ex officio members of the Control Board are the Governor of the State of New York (Chairman);
the Comptroller of the State of New York; the Mayor of The City of New York; and the Comptroller of
The City of New York. In addition, there are three private members appointed by the Governo_ The
Executive Director of the Control Board is appointed jointly by the Governor and the Mayo_ The

Control Board _ assisted in the exerdse of its responsibilities and powers under the Finan6al Emergency
Act by the State Deputy Comptroller.
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SECTION IV: SOURCES OF CITY REVENUES

The City derives its revenues _om a variety of local taxes, user charges and m_cellaneous revenue_
as well as from Federal and State unre_ricted and categorical grants. State aid as a percentage of the
City_ revenues has remained relatively constant over the period _om 1980 to 2000, while unre_ricted

Federal aid has been sharply reduced. The City projects that local revenues will provide approximately
67.0% of total revenues in the 2002 fiscal year while Federal aid, including categorical grant_ will provide

11.3%, and State aid, including unrestricted aid and categofic_ grants, will provide 21.7%. Adjusting the
data for comparabi_ty, local revenues provided approximately 60.6% of total revenues in 1980, while
Federal and State aid each provided approximately 1_7%. A discussion of the City_ princip_ revenue

sources follows. For information regarding assumptions on wh_h the City_ revenue projections are based,
see "SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Assumptions." For information regarding the City_ tax base, see
"APPENDIX A--ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL FACTORS."

Unless otherw_e noted, the Finan_al Plan and other foreca_s contained herein were prepared prior
to the September 11 attack and have not been revised to reflect changes that may occur as a resuR of th_
event.

Real Estate Tax

The real estate tax, the single largest source of the City_ revenue_ is the primary source of funds for
the City_ General Debt Service Fund. The City expects to derive approximately 37.5% of its total tax
revenues and 21.4% of its total revenues for the 2002 fiscal year from the real estate tax. For information
concerning tax revenues and total revenues of the City for prior fiscal years, see "SECTION VI: FINANCIAL
OPERATIONS--1996-2000 Summary of Operation_"

The State Con_kution authorizes the CRy to _vy a real estate tax w_hout limit as to rate or amount

(the "debt service levy") to cover scheduled paymen_ of the pfindpal of and interest on indebtedness of
the City. Howeve_ the State Con_hufion limi_ the amount of revenue which the City can raise from the
real estate tax for operating purposes (the "operating limit") to 2.5% of the average full value of taxable
real estate in the City for the current and the last four fiscal years less interest on temporary debt and the
aggregate amount of business improvement district charges subject to the 2.5% tax fimitafion. The table
below sets fo_h the percentage of the debt service levy to the total lev_ The City Coun_l has adopted
a distinct tax rate for each of the four categories of real property established by State legi_ation.

COMPARISON OF REAL ESTATE TAX LEVIE_ TAX LIMITS AND TAX RATES

Percent of
Levy

Percent of W_h_

Levy De_ Oper_g

OperatiWingth_ ServkDcebt LevSyerV_, Operat_g Oper_Li gmit to $100oR fate PeFru_ Ave_oRfate
_ Year Tolal Level) Lim_ Ievy(2) T_ [e_y Lim_ Lim_) Va_n(4) A_sed VaCation

(DoHa_ _ M_ns)
1996 ...... $7_71A $5,182.3 $2,_)_8 33.2% $8_33A 60_% 1.88% $10.37

1997 ...... 7_35.1 4_333 2.827.4 36.1 7_5Z3 62.8 2.14 1_37

1998 ...... 7,890A 5_285 1,872.9 23.7 7599.7 78.0 2.27 10.37

1999 ...... 8_9_3 6D07_ 1,776.5 21.9 7,170.3 88.0 2.56 1_37

2000 ...... 83743 7,223.2 1.138.9 13.6 726&7 99.4 2.62 10.37

200l ...... 833_3 7A32_ 1,274.6 14.6 7573.1 98.1 2.59 10.37

_2 ...... 92712 8_85_ 1,148.9 12A 8,128.1 99.5 2.46 1037

(1) As approved by _e Ci_ Council.

_) The de_ _c _vy includes a poaion of the total reserve _r uncollected real c_ate taxe_

(3) The m_ease in the percentage between fisc_ year 1997 and fiscal year _E was pfimafi_ due to the di_t_na_ t_ns_,

_r accounting purpose_ in the 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001 fiscal yea_ to pay de_ service and _her expends due in the
1998, 199% 2000, 2001 and 2_12 fiscal years, _spectively, w_ch reduced the amoum of the debt _r_ce _vy in _e 1998, 1999,

2000, 2001 and 2_12 fiscal years and, as a resulL increased the amount of the total levy utilized for operating purposes.

_) Full v_u_n is based on the spe_ equalization ralios (_u_ed bdow) and the b_lable assessed v_u_ Spe_
cquafizafion ratios and full v_uafions are revised pefiod_ally as a result of su_eys by the State Board of Real Propc_y
Servicc_
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Assessment

The City has _adifionally assessed real prope_y at less than market (full) value. The State Board of
Real Prope_y Services (the "State Board") is required by law to determine annually the relationship
between taxable assessed value and market value which is expressed as the "spe_al equalization ratio."

The special equafization ratio is used to compute full value for the purpose of measuring the City_
compliance with the operating limit and general debt limit. For a d_cus_on of the City_ debt limit, see
"SECTION VIII: INDEBTEDNESS--Indebtedness of the City and Ce_ain Other Entities--Limitations on
the Cityk AuthoHty to Contract Indebtedness" The ratios are ca_ulated by using the most recent market
value surveys available and a projection of market value based on recent survey trend_ in accordance with
methodologies e_abl_hed by the State Board from time to time. Ratios, and therefore full values, may
be revised when new surveys are completed. The ratios and full values used to compute the 2002 fiscal
year operating limit and general debt limit which are shown in the table below, have been e_abl_hed by

the State Board and include the resuas of the calendar year 2000 market value survey For information
concerning litigation asserting that the special equal_ation ratios calculated by the State Board in ce_ain

years violate State law because they substantially overe_imate the full value of City real estate for the
purposes of calculating the operating limit, and that the City_ real estate tax levy for operating purposes
exceeded the State Constitutional limR, see "SECTION IX: OTHER INFORMATION--Litigation--Taxes."

BILLABLEASSESSED AND FULL VALUE OF TAXABLE REAL ESTATE(l)

B_a_e A_e_ed
VaCationof Spe_

Taxab_ Equa_z_n
_scal Year Re_ E_e_) + R_io = FullVa_n(2)

1997 ...... $75_68,457,434 02691 $281,_90,848_81

1998 ...... 76,188390,641 0.2604 292_82,145319

1999 ...... 78,239_25_54 0.2566 304,907fl38,714
2000 ...... 80,885286,485 0.2466 328,001,972,770

2001 ...... 84,319fl41 _71 0.2468 341_52,113_35

2002 ...... 89539_63218 0.2380 376216_52,176

Average: 328,672,124_63

(1) Also a_e_ed by_e City,but excluded_om the compu_t_n of _xaNc _N e_a_, a_ variouscategofi_ of prope_y cxem_
_om taxation under State la_ For the 2002fi_N yea_ the b_lable assessedvalue of real estate c_eNMzed by the City as
exemN is $61.7billion,or 40.8%of the $151.1billionbiHablcassesscd valueof all real estate (taxable and cxem_).

(2) _gu_s _r 1997to 2002are based on cstim_ of _c specNlequitation _fio wh_h are revisedannuNlDq_e_ figu_s are
derived _om offidN City Coundl Tax R_Nmmns adopted with respect to the 2(102fi_al yea_ These figur_ Nffer _om the
assessed and full vNum_n of _xaNe real estate _por_d in the Annual _nandN Report of the City ComNrol_ which
excludesve_ns' prope_y su_ect to tax _r _hoN purposesandis basedon emima_s of _c spedN cqual_afion _fio wh_h
are not revisedannuN_

State law provides for the dasfification of all real property in the City into one of four _atutory
classes. Class one primarily includes one-, two- and threeffamily homes; class two includes certain other
reNdenfial prope_y not included in class one; class three includes most utility real property; and class four
includes all other real prope_ The total tax levy confi_s of four tax levies, one for each class. Once the
tax levy is set for each class, the tax rate for each class is then fixed annually by the City Coundl by
dividing the levy for such class by the billable assessed value for such class.

Assessment procedures differ for each class of prope_g For fiscal year 2002, class one was assessed
at approximately 8% of market value and classes two, three and four were each assessed at 45% of market
value. In addition, individual assessmen_ on class one parceN cannot increase by more than 6% per year
or 20% over a five-year period. Market value increases and decreases for most of class two and all of class
four are phased in over a period of five years. Increases in class one market value in excess of applicable
limitations are not phased in over subsequent years. There is also no phase in for class three prope_g

Class two and class four real property have three assessed values: actual, _ansflion and bi_able.
Actual assessed value is establ_hed for all tax classes without regard to the five-year phase-in requ_ement
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applicable to most class two and all class _ur pmpe_ The trans_ion assessed value reflects this
_n. Billable assessed value is the basis for tax fia_fiff and is the lower of the actual or trans_ion
_mem.

The share of the total levy that can be borne by each class is _guN_d by the prov_ns of the Real
_e_y _x La_ Each class; share of the total tax levy is updated annually to refle_ new con_ru_n,

demNNon, N_mt_ns or changes in taxable status and is suNe_ to limimd a_u_mem to refle_ maim

value changes among the _ur classes. Class share a_u_men_ are limi_d to a 5% maximum increase per

year and, in adNt_ increases below 5% must be approved by the State _Nmu_. Nscal year 2002 tax
rates were set on June 7, 2001. and reflect a 5% l_t_n on the market value a_u_mem for 2_2. For

fiscal _ar 2_2, the average tax rate is held at the current rate of $10.37 per $1_ _ _ vNue, _ough
_N_duN class tax rates have changed _om the prior year level.

A change to the Real Prope_y _x _ e_ J_ 1, 1998, allows taxpayers to _e _ _c_
to chN_nge _e _ _ __ ThN change may result in _gnificant refund exposure and reduce

the CityN real estate tax revenue _inN_

City real estate tax revenues may be reduced in future fiscal years as a result of tax refund clNms

a_ening ov_vNu_ inequal_y of _me_ and il_li_ For a dNcusNon of various proceedings

challenging _men_ of real pmpe_y for real estate tax purpose_ see "SEC_ON IX: OTHER

IN_RMA_ON--_n--_x_" For further in_rmation _g_Nng the City_ pmentiN exposure in
_rtain of these wo_e_n_, see "APPENDEX B--_NAN_AL _ATEMEN_--N_ to NnanNN

_memen_--No_ J. LONG-_RM OBLI__u_ and CN_"

The Stale Board annuN_ certifies various class ratios and da_ equN_n rates _ m _e four

classes of real property in the Cit_ "Cla_ rm_' which are d_d _r each class by the State Board
by _ulm_g the ratio of assessed value to market value, are used in real prope_y tax certiorari

wo_eNn_ i_oM_ N_gm_ns of _equN_y of _me_ The Ci_ believes that the State Board
over, imbed ma_ values _r cla_ two and cla_ _ur pmpe_ in _u_i_ the cla_ ratios _r the

1991 and 1992 _ment rNN and has commenced W_n_ chN_n_ng these class ratios. A lowering
of the mark_ value de_rm_ation by the State Board for classes two and four would raise the class ratios

and could result in a _du_n in tax refunds issued as a result of tax ce_iorafi pm_eNn_. For fu_her

in_rmm_n _ing the City_ pm_eNnN _e "SEC_O_ IX: OTHER IN_RMA_ON--_n--

_nd _ _xab_ A_e_ed _lue

During the decade prior to fiscal year 1993, real prope_y tax revenues grew _b__ Because

State Nw pm_s for increases in assessed values of most pmpe_ to be phased into prope_y tax bills
over fi_r period, billable assessed values continued to grow and real prope_y tax revenue increased
through fiscal year 1993 even as market values declined during the local reces_on.

For the 1996 fiscal yea_ billable assessed vNu_ in total was e_entiN_ unchanged _om the prior
year (a decline of 02%), as the rate of decline in class four _owed and sl_ht increases in the vacations
of the other classes of Net the class _ur decline. For the 1996 fiscal yeac actual assessed vNu_n

increased by 0.8%, the first impm_mem since fiscal year 1991. Billab_ assessed vNu_n _r 1996 was
e_emN_y unchanged at $75.9 billion. FNcal year 1997 actual assessed valuation on the final _me_

roll increased by 0.1% or $86 million, while billable a_e_ed valuation decreased by 0.5% or $356 milton

_om fiscal year 1996 to $75.5 billion. For the 1998 fiscal yeac actual assessed vNu_n increased by 1.6%
or $1.3 billion while billable assessed vNu_ increased by 0.7% to $76.0 billion, the first increase since

1993. For the 1999 fi_al yea_ Nlhb_ a_e_cd valuat_n rose by $1.7 _n to $77.7 b_lion. For fiscal year
20_, billable assessed valuation rose by $2.4 billion to $80.1 billion. For fiscal year 2_1, the b_hb_
assessed vMu_n rose by $3.2 billion to $83.3 b_lion. The Depa_ment of Nnance has released the finn

_mem roll _r fiscal _ 2_2, in wh_h billable assessed vNum_n rose by $5.0 billion m _8£ b_n.
Billab_ assessed vNu_s are forecast to exceed local inflation through the 2005 fiscal year _ng
continued growth in manet values.
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Collection of the Real Esta_ Tax

Real estate tax payments are due each July 1 and January 1. Changes to the real prope_y tax law
expanded the _igibifity for quavery tax paymen_ by owne_ of class one and class two properties
assessed at $80,000 or less, up from the previous $40_0_ and cooperatives whose indi_du_ uni_ on

average are valued at $80,000 or le_, up from the pre_ous $4_00_ which are paid in quavery

inMafiments on July 1, October 1, January I and April 1. These provisions apply to in_lmen_ of real
prope_y tax becoming due and payable on or after July 1, 1998. An annu_ interest rate of 9%

compounded dai_ is imposed upon late paymen_ on prope_s for wh_h the annu_ tax bill does not

exceed $2,750 except in the case of (i) any parcel with respe_ to which the real prope_y taxes are held
in escrow and paid by a mo_gage escrow agent and (ii) parc_s consisting of vacant or unimproved land.
An interest rate of 18% compounded d_ is imposed upon late paymen_ on all other properties. These
interest rates are set annuali_

The City primafi_ uses two methods to enforce the cold,ion of real estate taxes. The City _

authorized to sell real prope_y tax liens on class one prope_s which are d_inquent for at least three
yea_ and class two, three and four prope_ies wh_h are definquent for at lea_ one yea_ The City Coun_l
voted to extend such authority until October 31, 2003. In addition, the City _ entitled to foreclose

definquent tax liens by in rein proceedings after one year of definquency with respe_ to properties other
than one- and two-fami_ dw_lings and condominium apa_men_ for wh_h the annual tax bills do not
exceed $2350, as to wh_h a three-year delinquency rule is in effe_.

The real estate tax is accounted for on a modified accrual basis. Revenue accrued is fimRed to prior
year paymen_ received, offer by refunds made, with_ the fi_t two months of the following fiscal yea_
In deriving the real estate tax revenue foreca_, a reserve is provided for cancellations or abatements of
taxes and for nonpayment of current year taxes owed and out_anding as of the end of the fiscal yea_

The following table sets forth the amount of d_quent re_ estate taxes (owed and outstanding as
of the end of the fiscal year of levy) for each of the fiscal yea_ ind_ate& D_inquent real estate taxes do
not include real eMate taxes subje_ to cancelation or abatement under various exemption or abatement
program_ D_inquent re_ estate taxes general_ increase during a reces_on and when the real estate
market deteriorates. Delinquent real estate taxes general_ decrease as the City_ economy and real estate
market recove_

In fiscal years 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001, the City sold to separate business trus_ real

prope_y tax liens for which the City received net proceeds of approximately $169 million, $52 million,
$23 million, $127 million, $73 minion and $211 milfion, respe_Nely.

REAL ESTATE TAX COLLECTIONS AND DELINQUENCIES

(In MillionO
Canc_lat_ns,

Tax N_ C_d_ Dclinque_y
Collections Ab_emem_ Delinque_ as a

Tax Ta_nC°lle_cnSu_ent Percent_a es a {D_queP_fiorYearTax) E_r_p_n_y as ofEnofd_ _ PercentagoefTax
_ Ye_ Le_(1) Ye_ Le_(_ _Tax Le_ C_ Re_n_) Sh_r Rent Yea_ Le_ _en Sale(5)

1996 .... $7_71A $7,306.9 92.8% $24_6 $(399.7) $(275.5) $(28_1) 3.67% $169.1
1997 .... 7,835.1 7,371.3 94.1 146.8 (27%0) (179.4) (284A) 3_3 51.5
1998 .... 7,890.4 7Al&2 94.0 148.2 _45_) (199.1) (277.1) 3.51 22.5
1999 .... 8_99.3 7,519.7 92.8 127.7 (175.5) (303.4) (276.2) 3.40 127.3
2000 .... 8_74.3 7,768.1 92.8 149.2 (200._ (345.7) (26ff5) 3.11 73.0
2001(6).. 8_303 8_5_0 92.3 143.0 (240.0) (405._ (27_ 3.10 211.0
2002(6).. 92712 8A9&0 91.7 128.0 (22ff0) (47_5) (297.5) 3.21 72.0

(_) As approved by _e City Council.
(2) Quaaerly c_m_ on current year lev_
(3) Includes_p_ch_ _ de_Ne tax hens amou_mg _ $7_ mi_om $0.5m_n, $_9 mi_o_ $11_ mi_on and $15_ mi_on

in the 1997,1998,1999,2000and 2001fiscalyears,respea_
(4) These figures include taxes due on ce_n publicly owned property and exclude delinquencyon shd_r rent and exem_

prope_y restored in the 1996fiscalyea_
_) Net of reserve _r de_Ne hen_
(6) Foreca_.
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Other Taxes

Un_ss otherwise noted, the Finan_ Plan and other foreca_s conta_ed herein were prepared prior
to the September 11 attack and have not been refised to reflect changes that may occur as a result of this
event.

The City expels to derive 62.5% of its total tax revenues for the 2001 fiscal year _om a variety of
taxes other than the real estate tax, such as: (i) the 4% sales and compensating use tax, in addition to the

41/4% sales and use tax imposed by the State upon receipts _om retail sales of tan_b_ personal prope_y
and ce_ain services in the City; (ii) the personal income tax on CRy refidents; (iii) a general corporation

tax lefied on the income of corporations doing business in the City; (iv) a banking corporation tax

imposed on the income of banking corporations doing business in the City; and (v) the Stateqmposed
stock transfer tax. While the econom_ effect of the stock transfer tax was eliminated as of October 1,

1981, the City_ revenue loss is, to some extent, mitigated by State paymen_ to a stock transfer tax
incentive fund.

For local taxes other than the real property tax, the C_y may adopt and amend local laws for the levy
of local taxes to the extent authorized by the State. This authority can be w_hdrawn, amended or
expanded by State _gi_ation. Without State authorization, the City may impose prope_y taxes to fund
general operations in an amount not to exceed 2_/_% of property values in the City as determined under
a State mandated formul_ In addRion, the State cannot re_ri_ the City_ authority to _vy and collect real
estate taxes in excess of the 2_% _mitation in the amount necessary to pay prinopal of and interest on
City indebtednes_ For fu_her information concerning the City_ authority to impose real property taxes,
see "SECTION IV: SOURCES OF CITY REVENUES--Real Estate Ta_" Paymen_ by the State to the City of
sales tax and stock transfer tax revenues are su_e_ to appropriation by the State and are made av_hb_
first to MAC for payment of MAC debt service, reserve fund requiremen_ and operating expense_ with
the balance, if an5 payable to the Cit_ Sales tax paymen_ payable to the City would be paid to the
Finance Authority if personal income tax revenues do not sat_fy specified debt service ratios.

Revenues from taxes other than the real property tax in the 2000 fiscal year increased by $749 mflfion

or appro_mate_ 5.5% from the 1999 fiscal yea_ The following tab_ sets fo_h, by categor5 revenues from
taxes, other than the real property tax, for each of the City_ 1996 through 2000 fiscal years.

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

(_ M_fions)

Personal Income(_) ......................... $ 3,90S $ 4,361 $ 5,117 $ 5_79 $ 5,353
General Corporation ........................ 1,209 1_78 1,551 1_23 1,779
Banking Corporation ........................ 361 360 515 388 347
Unincorporated Bufiness Income ............. 496 56_ 671 657 805
Sales ...................................... 2_14 2,912 3_52 3,192 3_09
Commer_ Rent(2) ........................ 531 374 358 333 344
Real Prope_y Transfer ...................... 175 215 288 424 483
Mo_gage Recording ........................ 147 185 232 408 403
Utility ..................................... 214 215 223 222 247
All Other3) ............................... 628 695 704 698 723
Audi_ ..................................... 657 651 458 536 416

Total .............................. $11_40 $12_07 $13,170 $13,660 $14_09

(1) Personfl Income includes $185 mi_on of Cfim_al Ju_e Fund revenues in fisc_ year 199_ $90 m_ion in fisc_ year 1997 and
$185 mi_on in fiscal year 1998 and excludes $16 mi_o_ $144 million and $247 milton retained by the Finance Authority in
1998, 1999 and 2000, respeo_d_ In fiscal years 1999 and 200_ Personal Income also includes $85 mi_on and $200 millio_

respeoivd5 which was prodded to the City by the State as a reimbursement for the reduced pe_onfl income tax revenues
resulting _om the State Tax Relief Program ("STAR Program"). Personal Income also reflect_ commenong in fiscal year 199_
the expiration of the 12.5% personal income tax surcharge and, commenting in fiscal year 2_)_ the repefl of the nonrefidcnt
earnings tax, which together reduced taxes by $1.366 billion in fiscal year 2000. Personal Income taxes flow directly from the
State to the Finance Authority, and _om the Finance Authority to the City only to the ex_nt not required by the Finance
Authority for debt ser_cc and operating expenses.

(Footnotes conrnued on the next page)
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(Footnotes conanued from previous pag_
(2) Comm_M Rent _fl_ _n p_ng _r vafio_ cred_ and exem_ whichreduced c_ns.
(3) All Other include_among_he_, _e _ock tra_fer tax,NewYo_ CityOff-Tr_k B_fing Co_orat_n _OTB') net revenue_

_garette, beer and fiquor_xe_ the h_el tax and the a_omo_ use tax, but excludesthe STARPro_am aid of $117miH_n
and $260mi_n in fi_al yea_ 1999and 2000,respe_ive_

M_cellaneous Revenues

M_cellaneous revenues include revenue sources such as charges colored by the City for the issuance

of ficense_ permi_ and franchises, interest earned by the City on the inve_ment of City cash balance_
tu_ion and fees at the Community Col_ge_ reimbu_ement to the City from the proceeds of water and

sewer rates charged by the New York City Water Board (the "Water Board") for cos_ of delivery of water
and sewer services and paid to the City by the Wa_r Board for its lease interest in the water and sewer

sy_em, rents colored from tenants in City-owned property and from the Port Authority of New York

and New Jersey (the "Po_ Authority") with respe_ to airports, and the cold.ion of fines. The following
table sets fo_h amoun_ of m_ceHaneous revenues for each of the City_ 1996 through 2000 fiscal years.

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

(In MillionO

Licenses, Permi_ and Franch_es .............. $ 237 $ 245 $ 273 $ 291 $ 329
Interest Income ............................. 112 160 199 182 195

Charges for Services ......................... 415 428 435 440 439

Water and Sewer Paymen_ ................... 731 775 823 778 801
Rental Income .............................. 139 143 151 114 139

Fines and Forfe_ures ........................ 417 491 468 479 468
Other ...................................... 683 807 486 408 718

Total ............................... $2,734 $3,049 $2,835 $2,692 $3,089

N_ _s may not add due m roun_ng

Fees and charges col_cted from the users of the water and sewer sy_em of the City are revenues of

the Water Board, a public benefit corporation all of the membe_ of wh_h are appointed by the Mayo_
The Water Board current_ holds a long-term _asehold interest in the water and sewer sy_em pursuant

to a lease between the Water Board and the City.

Other m_c_neous revenues for fiscal year 1996 include an increase of $170 million resulting from
actions at HHC, a one-time cold.ion of $28 million from the New York State Hou_ng Finance Authority
("HFA") and $55 million from the recovery of prior year FICA overpayment_ Other m_ceHaneous
revenues for fiscal year 1997 include a $250 million payment from the Me_opolkan Transpoaation
Authority ("MTA") and $207 million from the sale of WNYC. Other m_cdhneous revenues for fiscal
year 1998 include $84 million from the sale of the United Nations Plaza Hotel. Other m_cdhneous

revenues for fiscal year 1999 include $38 million from a condemnation award and $29 million from the

re_ru_uring of a City lease. Other m_c_laneous revenues for fiscal year 2000 include $42 million from
the recovery of prior year FICA overpaymen_ and $247 million of tobacco settlement revenues that are

not retained by TSASC for debt service and operating expense_

Unre_d_ed Intergovernment_ Aid

Unre_ri_ed Federal and State aid has con_ed primarily of per capita aid from the State
government. These funds, which are not su_e_ to any substantial re_ri_ion as to their use, are used by
the City as general support for its Expense Budget. State general revenue sharing (State per capita aid)
is allocated among the units of local government by _atutory formu_s which take into account the
d_tribufion of the State_ population and the full valuation of taxable real prope_y In recent years,
howevec such allocation has been based on prior year levels in lieu of the _atutory formu_. For a further
discusfion of unre_ricted State aid, see "SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Assumptions--Revenue
Assumptions--5. Unre_ri_ed In_rgovernment_ Aid."
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The _l_wing table sets fo_h amounts of unre_r_ted Feder_ and State aid received by the City in
each of its 1996 _rough 2000 fiscal yea_.

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

On Miilion_

State Per Ca_ta Aid ..................................... $369 $322 $327 $328 $405

Cons_ed Loc_ H_hway A_i_ance Program
_CHIPS_(1) ........................................ 17 6 16 13 8

Other2) ............................................... 235 326 279 311 218

Total ........................................... $621 $654 $622 $652 $631

(1) CHIPS_ to tax_ wh_h a_ _ed and c_ed bythe _a_ andwhich,pursua_ _ aid _rm_ d_m_ed by the St_e
Le_u_, a_ r_umed _ _afious commu_ti_ in the State.

(2) Included in the 1996, 1997,1998,1999and 2000fiscal yea_ are $121mi_on, $133mi_on, $153 mi_on, $168mi_on and
$147million, _e_N_ _ aid a_od_ed wi_ _e partial _e _keo_r _ _ng-t_m _ Me_ c_

Feder_ and State Categorical Grants

The City makes certain expend_ures for services req_red by Federal and State mandates which are

then wholly or parti_ reimbu_ed through Feder_ and State categor_ gran_. State categoric_ grants
are received by the City pfimafi_ in connexion with City weffar_ education, higher education, health and
ment_ health expend_ure_ The City also receives sub_ant_l Federal categorical grants in connection
with the Federal Commun_y DevOopment Block Grant Program ("CommunRy Development"). The
Federal government a_o provides the City with sub_ant_l public assistance, sooai serv_e and education

grants as well as reimbu_ement for all or a portion of ce_n costs incurred by the City in m_nt_ning
programs in a number of areas, _clud_g housing, criminal justice and heaRh. All City claims for Federal
and State gran_ are su_e_ to subsequent audit by Feder_ and State authofit_ The City provides a
reserve for _s_lowances resulting _om these audits which could be asserted _ subsequent yea_. Feder_
grants are also su_ect to aud_ under the Single Audit Act Amendmen_ of 1996. For a fu_her discussion
of Federal and State ca_goric_ gran_, see "SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Assumptions--Revenue
Assumptions--6. Federal and State Ca_gofical Grant_"

The following table sets forth amoun_ of Federal and State categorical gran_ received by the City
for each of the City_ 1996 through 2000 fiscal years.

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

(In M_fiom)
Federal

Commun_y Development(l) ................ $ 279 $ 264 $ 255 $ 239 $ 264

Welfare .................................. 2,241 2,284 2,344 2,183 2,335

Education ................................ 887 929 1_14 1,053 1,127
Other .................................... 787 656 679 787 691

Total ............................... $4,194 $4,133 $4_92 $4,262 $4_17

State

Welfare .................................. $1_20 $1_72 $1_80 $1A42 $1,382

Education ................................ 3,746 3,908 4,155 4A13 4_29
Higher Education ......................... 118 121 125 128 124
Heath and Mental Health .................. 241 254 269 323 348

Other .................................... 254 309 243 333 379

Total ............................... $6_79 $6264 $6,372 $6,639 $7_62

(1) Amoun_ represent a_ual fundsreceived and maybe loweror _gher than the appropriation of funds a_u_ profided by the
Federal government for the papular fisc_ year due _ther to unde_pending or the spendingof fundscarried forward _om
prior fiscalyears.
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SECTION V: CITY SERVICES AND EXPENDITURES

Expend_ures for C_y Ser_ces

Three types of governmental agencies provide public serv_es with_ the City_ borden and receive
finan_al support _om the City One category is the mayor_ agen_es e_abfished by the City Cha_er
which include, among other_ the Police, Fire and San_mion Depa_ment_ Another is the independent
agencies which are funded in whole or in pan through the City Budge_ but which have greater
independence in the use of appropriated funds than the mayoral agen_es. Included in th_ category are
ce_ain Covered Organ_ations such as HHC, the Tranfit Authority and the BOE. A third category
confists of certain PBCs which were crewed to finance the con_rucfion of housing, hospi_ls, dormitories
and other fadlit_s and to prov_e other government_ ser_ces _ the City The _ation e_ablis_ng this
type of agency con_mpla_s that annual paymen_ _om the Cit_ appropri_ed through i_ Expense

Budget, may or will constitute a sub_anti_ pan of the revenues of the agency Included in this category
is, among other_ the City UnNerfiff Con_ru_n Fund ("CUCF'3. For information regarding
expend_ures for City services, see "SECTION VI: FINANCIAL OPERATIONS--1996-2000 Summary of
Operations."

Federal and State laws require the City to pro¼de ceaain social services for needy _dN_u_s and
hmilies who qu_ify for such a_i_ance. The City receives Temporary A_tance for Needy Famil_s

("TANF") block grant funds through the State wh_h, sup_emented by City and State contributions, fund
the Family Asfi_ance Program. The Fami_ A_tance Program provides benefi_ for households with
minor children su_e_, in most cases, to a five-year time limit, effe_Ne December 2001. The five-year
TANF limit is not expected to have a fiscal impa_ on the City, assum_g cont_uation of the Feder_ block
grant in amoun_ a_umed in the Finand_ Plan after September 2002. The Safety Net A_tance Program
provides benefits for adul_ without minor ch_dren, hmilies who have reached the Fami_ A_tance
Program time limit, and other, including ce_ain imm_ran_, who are _eli_b_ for Fami_ A_tance but
are eligible for public ass_tance. Cash asfi_ance benefits under the Safety Net Asfi_ance Program are
also su_e_ to time and digibility limit. Re_pients who reach such time fim_s or fail to satisfy such

digibility requ_emen_ are trans_ed to non-cash assistance. The cost of the Salty Net A_tance
Program is borne equally by the City and the State.

The City also prov_es funding for many other social serv_es such as day care, foster care, fami_
planning, services for the e_edy and special emNoyment services for welfare re_pien_ some of which are

mandmed, and may be wholly or panhl_ subs_e& by either the Federal or State government. See
"SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--A_umptions--Revenue Assumptions--6. Federal and State
Ca_gofic_ Grants"

The City_ e_mentary and secondary school sy_em is operated under the general supervision of the
BOE, with con_derable authority over e_mentary and junior high schools also exer_sed by the 32

Commun_y School Boards. The BOE is respon_ble to the State on policy i_ues and to the City on fiscal
mat_. The number of pupils in the school sys_m for the 2001 through 2004 fiscal yea_ is estimated to
be approxima_ 1.1 million. A_ual enrollment in fiscal yea_ 1996 through 2000 has been 1,043,731,
1_64291, 1_67_76, 1_75,131 and 1_71_1_ respectively. Between fiscal yea_ 1999 and 2001, the
percentage of the City_ total budget _located to the BOE in the adopted budget for such fiscal yea_ has
rem_ned relatNe_ stable at appro_mate_ 29%; in fiscal year 2002 the percentage of the C_y_ total
adopted budget _loca_d to the BOE is proje_ed to be 31.02%. See "SECT|ON VII: FINANCIAL
PLAN--Assumptions--Expenditure Assumptions--2. Other Than Pe_onal Serv_e Cos_--Board of
Educator" The City_ sy_em of higher education, consist_g of its Senior Col_ges and Commun_y
Col_ge_ is operated under the superv_n of the Ciff UnNe_ity of New York ("CUNY"). The City is
proje_ed to provide approximatc_ 32.5% of the costs of the Commu_ty Colleges in the 2001 fiscal yea_

The State has full respon_bility for the costs of operat_g the Senior Col_ges, although the City is
required _iti_ to fund these costs.

The City admin_te_ health services programs for the care of the phy_c_ and ment_ ill and the
aged. HHC m_ntains and operates the City_ eleven mu_dp_ acute care hosp_ah, five long-term care
fadlit_ seven flee standing diagnost_ and ueatment center, many hospita_based and ne_hborhood
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clinics and a health m_nmnance orgaMzation. HHC is funded pfimari_ by third party reimbu_ement

cold,ions from Med_are and Med_a_ and by paymen_ _om Bad DebUCharity Care Pools.

Med_aid provides basic medial a_i_ance to needy persons. The City is required by State law to
furnish medial a_i_ance through Medicaid to all City re,dents meeting eli_bility requirements
e_aN_hed by the State. The State has assumed 81.2% of the non-Federal share of long-term care costs,
all of the costs of prodding medical a_i_ance to the mentally d_a_e& and 50% of the non-Federal share
of Me_caid co_s for d_n_ enrd_d in managed care plans. The Federal government pays approximam_
50% of Medicaid costs for Federa_y eligible redp_n_.

The Cityg Expense Budget has increased during the five-year period ended June 30, 2000, due to,
among other _o_, the costs of labor sett_ment_ debt service costs and the impam of inflation on
various other than pe_onal service costs.

Un_ otherwise noted, the Finand_ Plan and other forecas_ contused herein were prepared prior

to the September 11 attack and have not been revised to reflem changes that may occur as a result of this
event.

Em_oye_ and Labor Rdafions

E__

The _l_wing table presents the number of _H_mc em_oye_ of the Cit_ indud_g the mayo_l
a_n_, the BOE and CUN_ at the end of each of the City_ 1996 through 2000 fiscal years.

Educ_n ................................ 85,959 87,969 93,365 96,930 100,748

Police ................................... 43,589 46,830 46,864 48,092 49,269
Social Serv_e_ Homele_ and C_mn_

Services ................................ 23,604 23,061 22,952 22,224 21,972

_ty UnNe_ff Commu_y Colleges and
Hunmr Campus Schools ................. 3,581 3,667 3,720 3.781 3,756

En¼mnmcm_ Protection and SanRafion .... 15,313 14,624 14,820 15_24 15,542

Fire ..................................... 15,703 15,693 153(N 15,937 15,987
All Other ................................ 47,320 45,108 45,019 44,648 43,538

_tal ................................ 235_69 236,952 242,449 246,636 250,812

The _l_wing _c prcsen_ the number of _lMimc em_o_es _ ccn_n Covered O_an_at_n_ as
reposed by such O_an_ns, at the end of each of the City_ 1996 through 2000 fiscal years.

1_ 1_7 1_8 19_ _

%an_t Au_ff ......................... 42,802 42,687 43,303 _,634 46,082

Hou_ng A_horiff ........................ 14,273 14,170 15_29 14,780 14,867

HHC .................................... 37,527 36,336 34,706 33_18 33,295

To_l(1) .............................. 94,602 93,193 93,038 93,132 94244

(1) The defi_m of "f_bfime em_oyccs" varies among the Covered O_an_m_ns and thc Cit_

The foregdng tables include persons whose salaries or wages are paid by certain publ_ employment
program_ prindpal_ programs funded under the WlA, which suppo_ emOoyees in non-profit and State
agencies as well as in the mayoral agencies and the Covered Organ_at_n_

Labor Re_ns

Sub_anthl_ all of the Cityg full-time emp_yees are membe_ of labor unions. Under ap_a_e law,
the City may not make u_later_ changes in wages, hours or working conditions under any of the
following drcum_ances: (i) during the period of negotiations between the City and a union representing
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muMdpM employees concern_g a colle_Ne bargNning agreemem; (ii) if an impale panel is appointed
then during the period commen_ng on the date on which such panel is app_n_d and ending sixty days
therea_er or thi_y days aRer it submits its report, wh_hever is soonec su_e_ to ex_nsMn under certain
Nrcum_ances to permit comp_fion of panel proceeding_ or (iii) during the pendency of an appeal to the
Board of C_Ne BargMMn_ Although State law proh_i_ strikes by mun_ipM emNoyees, strikes and
work _oppages by emNoyees of the City and the Covered Organ_ations have occurred.

On April 11, 2001, the City reached a labor agreement with DC 37. DC 37 represents approxima_
1_5,000 City employees. The twenty_even month agreement covers the period from April 1.20(_ through
June 30, 2002 and provides for a wage increase of 4% ef%_Ne on April 1, 2000 and a second 4% wage
increase ef_ive on April 1, 2(Dl. In addRion, the agreement e_ablishes a fund valued at 1% to be spent

on enhancemen_ to compensmion as agreed to by the panics. The contract contains a no layoff pledge
and a redeployment agreement and allows the City to e_ablNh a merit pay program to provide add_ional
raises based on employee performance. The City has reached addNonM s_t_ments with Local 300 of
Service EmNoyees InternatMnM, the Commun_m_ns Worke_ of America, the United Probation

Office_ A_o_atMn, 1199 NationM HeaRh and Human Services EmpMyees Union, the Do_o_ Council,
the Pave_ and Roadb_lde_, the L_ensed Pra_M Nudes, Local 333 (marine titles) and Marine

En_nee_ Benevolent A_o_afion (the "MEBA") (_yboat titles). Togethe_ these settlemen_ cover
over 15,000 employees. All of these contracts have the same econom_ _rms as the DC 37 pact except that
the United Probation Office_, Local 3(_), Local 333 and MEBA contracts run from January 1, 2000 to
March 31, _. All of these agreemen_ have been ratified.

The _rms of future wage settlemen_ couN be dNerm_ed through the impale procedure in the New

York City ColOgNe BargNn_g Law, which can impose a binding settlemenC LeN_at_n passed by the
LeN_mure and signed by the Governor on December 18, 1998 places cN_mNe bargNning mat_

relating to police and firefigh_, induNng impale proceeNngs, under the jurisdiction of the State Public
Emp_yment Relat_ns Bored ("PERB"), instead of the New York City Office of ColOgNe BargNning
("OCB'). OCB confiders wage levels of muNNpN emNoyees in similar cities in the Uni_d States in
reaching its determ_ations, while PERB_ de_rm_ations take into account wage levels in both private

and public employment in comparaNe commu_t_ pa_uNfly within the State. In addition, PERB can
impose a sett_ment on the pa_ies for a period not longer than two yea_, unlike OCB which can impose
longer sett_ments. For these reasons, among others, PERB jurisN_n could result in labor seu_ments
which could impose higher costs on the City than those reached under existing procedure_

Since May 4, 2_, the Police Benev_cnt A_oN_ion ("PBA") and the City have held eleven
bargNning ses_on_ and the Ci_ has filed a petition to define the scope of barga_g with OCB. On

December 15, 2000, PBA filed a lawsuit in Albany County seeking a declaratory judgment that
jurisdict_n over scope proceedings rests with PERB. PBA a_o filed a request for a declaration of impasse
with PERB and filed a response to the City_ scope petition at OCB stating that jufisdi_ion should be with
PERB. On April 16, 2001, the Court held in favor of the PBA on both of these issues. On July 12, 2001,
the Appe_a_ Division su_Nned these ded_on_ The City appealed both cases to the Cou_ of AppeaN.
A mediator has been appointed by PERB and a series of medhtion sessions have been scheduled through
Octoben

On July 27, 2001 the City reached a tentatNe seu_ment with a coNR_n of 13 unions representing
all of the employees in the uniformed forces with the except_n of the PBA. This coNRion represen_
appro_ma_ 45,0(_) emp_yecs in the depa_men_ of SaNtatiom Co_e_ion, Fire, and Police. The

30-month agreement provides for two 5% wage increases (the first paid on the 1st day of the agreement
and the second paid one year later). In additiom it pro_des for an additionN 1.5% to be spent on
enhancements to compensation agreed to by the pa_ies. The agreement also contains a merit pay
provision, which allows management to reward exceptional performance by _dividuN employees. The
agreement has been ratified by six of these unions representing approximme_ 21_) employees. The
contract was reje_ed by the Sergean_ Benevolent A_odmion which represen_ approxim_e_ 4,900
em_oyees. The _m_n_g six unions are continuing the contract ratification p_ess.

Since September 2N)0, the United Federation of Teache_ (the "UFT') and the City have held nine
bargaining sesNon_ In April, based on the UFT_ request. PERB appointed a mediato_ While the UFT
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reque_ed on June 7, 2001 that PERB declare an imp_, the _ty and BOE do not bel_ve that an
imp_e has been reached and be_eve that it is _em_e _ reque_ im_venfion. D_ the, PERB has

moved _ _th the proce_ to appoint a h_n_ng pand. This panel only has the au_ to give
an ad_ _pon that is not binding on e_her side. Hearin_ we_ _heduled to commence on Se_ember
2_ 2001 but have been reschedu_d to commence on November 1, 2001.

For in_rmm_n _g_ding the _ __ with respect to the cost of _tu_ labor _U_mems
and related e_cts on the _nand_ Plan, see "SE_N VII: _NAN_AL _--_m_
__ A_m--1. Pe_onal Ser_ce Co_s."

The _ ma_ a humor _ _n _ems _o_ng benefits _r i_ em_oye_ and emNoye_

of various independent agencies 0ndu_ng certain Covered O_an_). The City has made ce_ain
changes to its _m_ and m_hods of c_c_ wh_h have affe_ed the Ci_ pension
contributions _aning in fiscal year 2_. _r further _rmm_n regarding such changes in the _ty_
pension sys_ms and the _ __s thereto, see "SE_ION IX: OTHER _RMA_ON--_n_
S_ms."

Ca_ Expend_ures

The _ty makes sub_a_l cap_al expense,s to _con_ru_, _ha_e and expand the Ci_
_ffa_ru_ure and ph_ assets, including City mass transit h_R_ sewe_, streets, bridges and
tunnels, and to m_e _ _ve_men_ that will improve pmdu_ff in City op_. For add_on_
_rmation _ing the City_ inffa_ru_u_, physical asse_ and capital program, see "SE_ION VII:
_NAN_AL P_N--__ Capital and _nandng Program."

The _ utilizes a __ capital planning process _n_ of the _m_ Ca_ Stm_gy
_o_ the _n-_ Cap_al Plan), the _uv_ar CapRal Pin,am and the cu_e_e_ Capital
Budget. The _n-_ar Capit_ Stm_g_ which is pubfished once every two yea_ in co_un_n with the
Executive Budget, is a _n_e_ planning tool deigned to refle_ _ndamem_ _cafion choices and

bas_ policy o_e_Nes. The _uv_ar Cap_al Program _an_ates m_angc policy goals into spedfic
pr_e_s. The Cap_al Budget defines _r each fiscal year spcdfic pr_e_s and the timing _ their init_on,
des_n, constru_ion and com_

On April 25, 2001, the City punched the _n-_ CapR_ Strategy _r fiscal yea_ 2002 through
2011. The _m_ _ Strategy totals $54.4 billion, of which appm_ma_ 95% would be financed
with City fund_ See "SE_ VIII: _D_DN_S--I_e_ of the City and Ce_n Other

E_--L_s on _e _ Au_o_ _ _n_ _d_n_" The _n-_ Capital _m_gy
provides $7.1 billion _r the BOE _r fiscal yea_ 2_1 through 2005. See "SE_ION VII: _NAN_AL
PLAN."

The _n-_ Ca_l Strategy _dude_ (i) $13.3 billion to construct new schools and improve
exiting educm_n_ hdl_; (ii) $9.3 billion _r impm_men_ to the water and sewer _em; (iii) $5.l
billion _r expanding and upgrading the City_ houfing stock; (iv) $3.6 billion _r _con_ru_n or

_sur_ng of _ st_e_; (v) $1.4 b_lion _r continued __ _v_tmem in ma_ transit; (_) $6.0
bHfion _r the continued _con_ru_n and _ha_n of all four Ea_ River bridges and 337 other
bridge _ru_ure_ (vii) $1.8 bHfion to expand current jail _ and _iii) $1.4 billion _r con_ruction
and improvement of cou_ _

Those programs in _e _n-_ Ca_l Strategy financed with City funds are cu_ent_ expe_ed to
be funded primari_ _om the i_uance of general o_ bonds issued by the _ revenue bonds
i_ued by the _ter Amho_y and the Finance Amhofiff and bonds issued by TSASC wh_h will be paid
from revenues received pu_uant to a _mem of _ with the four leading _ga_t_ compan_
Debt _e on such general obligation bonds is paid out of the City_ opcrating revenue_ debt _i_
on _ter Amho_y bonds is paid out of water and sewer s_tem revenue_ debt service on Finance

Au_oriff bonds is paid out of pe_onal income taxes and debt _i_ on TSASC bonds is paid out of
_nu_ defied from the _ement of fifig_n with toba_o _mpan_s _lling _g_et_s in the Uni_d



States. From time to time in the past, during recessionary periods when operating revenues have come

under increasing pressure, capital fun_ng levels have been reduced from those pre_ously con_m_a_d

in order to reduce debt serv_e costs. For _formm_n concern_g the City_ _n_mrm financing program

for cap_al expendRures, see "SEC_ON VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Lon_Term Capital and Nnandng
Program."

The Ciff_ cap_al expend_ure_ _duding expen_tu_s funded by State and Federal grants, totaled

$21.4 bilfion during the 1996 through 2000 fiscal yea_. CR_nded expen_ture_ which totaled $19.3
bilfion during the 1996 through 2000 fiscal yea_, have been financed through the _suance of bonds by the

Cit5 the Finance Authority, the Water Authority, TSASC, HHC and the Dormitory Authoriff of the
State of New York _DASNY_. The foHow_g table summarizes the m_or categories of capital
expen_tures in the past five fiscal yea_.

1996 1997 1_8 1999 2000 To_l

(In Million_

Educ_n ........................... $ 807 $ 614 $1,228 $1_59 $1_96 $ 5,504

En_ronment_ Pro_n ............. 1,004 978 765 788 797 4,332
Transpo_ation ....................... 554 537 589 636 637 2,953

Trans_ Authority(l) .................. 218 202 246 342 270 1278

Housing ............................. 246 269 235 365 290 1_05
Hos_ ............................ 104 83 71 41 43 342
San_n ........................... 131 213 116 71 118 649

All Other2) ......................... 732 963 850 1_17 1,358 4,920

Total Expen_tures(3) ............. $3,796 $3_59 $4,100 $4,819 $4_09 $21,383

Cit_funded Expend_ures(4) ....... $3,413 $3_69 $3,631 $4,595 $4_96 $19,304

(1) Excludes _e Tran_t Au_ori_ no_Ciff po_on of _e MTA's Capital Program.
(2) All O_er _dud_, among _h_ t_n_, pa_s, co_e_n _dl_ pu_ flm_u_s and eq_pme_.
_) Tot_ expendit_ for _e 1996 _mugh 2000 fisc_ yea_ inc_de _ty, State and Federal _nding and represent amounu w_ch

_dude an accrual _r work-impm_ess. The figures for the 1996 _mugh 2_ fiscal years are derived _om _e Comp_hen_ve
Annu_ _nand_ Repo_ of _e Com_rol_

_) Ci_-_nded expen_m_s do not _dude accrual, but represent a_u_ cash _sb_mems occurring during the fiscal yea_

The City annually issues a condition assessment and a proposed m_ntenance schedu_ for the m_or
potion of its assets and asset sy_ems which have a replacement cost of $10 million or more and a useful

life of at least ten years, as required by the City Cha_e_ For information concerning a report which sets

fo_h the recommended capRal investment to bring ce_n identified assets of the City to a state of good
repai_ see "SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Long-Term Cap_al and Finan_ng Program."



SECTION Vk FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

The City_ General Purpose Finan_ Statements and the au_to_' opinion thereon are presented in
"APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL STATEMENT_" Fu_her details are set fo_h in the Comprehen_ve Annu_
Finand_ Repo_ of the Comptroller for the F_cal Year Ended June 30, 2000, which is av_b_ for

inspe_ion at the Office of the Comptroller. For a summary of the City_ significant accounting policies, see
"APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Notes tO Finanr_ Statement--Note A." For a summary of
the City_ operating resd_ for the pre_ous five fiscal yea_, see "SECTION VI: FINANCIAL OPERATIONS--
1996-2000 Summary of Operations." The City expels to _e_ase i_ General Purpose Finan_ Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 3_ 2001 on O_ober 31, 2001. Such finand_ _atemen_ will also be av_ble
_om the Office of the Comptrol_

Except as otherw_e _d_a_& all of the finan_al data re_ting to the City_ operations contained
herein, although derived _om the City_ books and record_ are unaudRed. In addition, the Cityg
independent ce_ified public accountants have not compiled or examined, or applied agreed upon
procedures t_ the forecast of 2001 resul_ or the FinandM Plan.

The estimates and pr_e_ions cont_ned in this Se_ion and e_ewhere herein are based on, among
other fa_o_, evMuat_ns of historical revenue and expenditure data, analyses of economic trends and
current and anticipated Federal and State _ation affe_g the City_ finances. The City_ finan_M
projections are based upon numerous assumptions and are su_e_ to ce_Mn contingendes and periodic
rev_ions which may involve sub_anti_ change. Consequently, the City makes no representation or
wa_anty that these e_imates and projections will be rea_zed.

In June 1999, GovernmentM Account_g Standards Board ("GASB") issued Statement No. 34,
"Ba_c Finan_ Statemen_ and Management D_cus_ons and An_y_s for State and Local Government"
("GASB 34"). GASB 34, as well as subsequent _atemen_ and documents issued by the GASB, will resuk
in s_nificant changes to the City_ financial _atemen_. The City is required to implement the new

standards for i_ finandal _atement for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002. The City _ currently planning
to implement these standards for its financial _atcments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

GASB 34 requires, among other things, that new "governmenvwide" finan_al _atements be
presented. These financial _atements will be prepared in addition to, and on a different basis of
accounting and measurement focus than, the City_ fund financial _atement_ included in th_ Offi_

Sta_menL resulting in differences between the fund balances and the governmen_wide net assets
reported. One _gnificant dif_rence will be the _dufion of long-term assets and l_bi_t_s reported prior
to GASB 34 in the Gener_ Fixed A_et Account Group ("GFAAG"), and Gener_ Long-term
O_ations Account Group ("GLTOAG"), respe_ively, on the City_ government-wide _atement of net
assets. As of June 30, 2000, the City reponed long-term assets in its GFAAG of $15.4 billion and
long-term o_ations in its GLTOAG of $46.6 billion. The City will record addition_ long-term a_ets for
its in_a_ru_ure _ve_men_ since 1980, as well as addition_ long-term receivables for taxes and other
revenue_ Howeve_ the City ant_ipates that i_ long-term _abififies will continue to exceed its long-term
assets, contributing to a negatNe net asset value for the City on the governmen_wide _atement of net
assets.

GASB 34 also requires the preparation of fund financial _atement_ which will include the City_
individu_ m_or funds such as the General Fund and the Capital Proje_s Fund. The accounting for the
City_ _dNidu_ funds will rem_n unchanged.

199_2000 Summary of Oper_ns

The following table sets fo_h the Ci_ resul_ of oper_ns for its 1996 through 2000 fiscal years in
accordance with GAA_

The _form_ion regarding the 1996 through 2000 fiscal yea_ has been derived kom the City_
audited financial _ements and should be read in co_un_n with the notes accompan_ng this table and
the City_ 1999 and 2000 finan_al _emen_ included in "APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS." The

1996 through 1998 financial _ements are not separ_y p_sen_d herein. For further _formation
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regarding the City_ revenues and expenditures, see "SECTION IV: SOURCES OF CITY REVENUES" and
"SECTION V: CITY SERVICES AND EXPENDITURES"

_ Yea_l)
A_u_

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
(_ M_fiom)

Revenues and Trans_

Real E_a_ Tax(2) ................................ $ 7,100 $ 7291 $ 7239 $ 7fi31 $ 7,850
Other Taxe_3)(4) ................................ 11,040 12,007 13,171 13,660 14A09
M_celhneous Revenues ........................... 2fl34 3_49 2_35 2fi92 3,089
Other C_cgofic_ Gran_ ........................... 343 379 412 367 432
Unre_r_d Federal and St_e Aid(3) ................ 621 654 622 652 631
Federal Categorical Gran_ ......................... 4,194 4,133 4292 4262 4_17
State C_cgofic_ G_nts ........................... 6,079 6,264 6,372 6fi39 7,062
Le_: D_wances Again_ C_egofical G_n_ ......... _0) _36) _14) _39) (5)
Total Revenues and Trans_rs(5) ..................... $32,071 $33fl41 $34,929 $35,864 $37,885

ExpenSe,s and Trans_
So_al Services ................................... $ 7,902 $ 7fl49 $ 7,785 $ 7_92 $ 8,330
Board of Educ_n ............................... 7_35 8_85 8_12 9_78 10_74
City U_ve_i_ ................................... 348 354 364 389 398
Public Salty and Judicial .......................... 4_46 4fl27 4,946 5_18 5,649
He_ Services .................................. 1,829 1,448 1,553 1_51 1,777
Pensions(6) ...................................... 1,356 l_19 1_09 1_42 615
Debt Service(3)(7) ................................ 2,512 4,184 2,934 3,360 3_39
MAC Debt Service Fun_ng(3)_) .................... 132 264 773 386 451
All Other7) ..................................... 5,706 5_06 6,348 6_42 6,647

Total Expenditures and Trans_(5) .................. $32,066 $33,736 $34,924 $35_59 $37_80

Surplus(7) ........................................ $ 5 $ 5 $ 5 $ 5 $ 5

(1) The Ci_ resul_ of operations rear to the City_ Gencr_ Fund revenues and _ans_ reduced by expenditures and trans_.
The revenues and a_s of PBCs included _ the Cites au_ted finandal _ements do not constitu_ revenues and a_ets of
the City_ Gcner_ Fund, and, accorded5 the revenues of such PBC_ other than net OTB revenue_ arc not _duded in the
City_ results of operation_ Expenditures req_red to be made by the City with respe_ to such PBCs are included in the City_
resuRs of opcrafion_ For fuflher information regar_ng the papular PBCs included in the CRy_ financial _atemcnt_ see
"APFENDIXB--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--NotesI,) Financi_ Statement--Note A.'"

(2) Real Estate Tax for the 1996 fiscal year includes $146 mffiion of Cfimin_ Ju_e Fund tcvenue_ Re_ E_e qhx for fisc_ yea_
1996, 1997, 199_ 1999 and 2000 also includes $223 mi_on _om the sale of the City_ delinquent tax receNa_es and
$169mHlio_ $52 raison, $23 miH_ $127 mi_on and $73 mi_n _om the s_c ofrc_ prope_y tax l_n_ respectivd_ In fiscal
yea_ 1999 and 2000, Real E_e Tax includes $31_ miH_n and $59.9 mi_on, respc_Ncly, wh_h was prodded to the City by
the State as a reimbu_ement for the reduced prope_y tax revenues resulting _om the STAR Program.

(3) Revenues includes amounts paid and expe_ed to be paid to MAC by the State _om sa_s tax receipt_ stock _ans_r tax
receipts and State per ca_ta aid otherwise payable by the State to the Cit_ Pursuant to State _atute, these revenues flow
dire_ _om the Sta_ to MAC, and flow to the City only to the extent not rcq_red by MAC for debt service, reserve fund
requirements and for operating expensc_ The City _dudes such revenues as City revenues and repor_ the amount retained
by MAC _om such revenues as "MAC Debt Serv_c Fun_n_" a_hough the City has no control over the statutory application
of _uch revenues to the extent MAC requires them. City _Debt Serv_e" _dude_ and "MAC Debt Scrv_e Funding" _ reduced
b_ payments by the City of debt service on City obfigafions held by MAC. Pe_onal income taxes for the 1996 through 1998
fiscal yea_ _dude $185 m_lio_ $90 mi_on and $185 m_ion of Cfimm_ Justice Fund revenuc_ respectivel_ and exclude
$16 m_ion, $144 raison and $247 m_ion m fiscal yca_ 1998, 1999and 2000, respe_dy retained by the Finance Authofit_
"Debt Service" does not include debt service on Finance Authority obligations _ fiscal yea_ 1999 and 2000. M_cefianeous
Revenues includes tobacco settlement revenues that are not retained by TSASC for debt ser_cc and operating expenses. Debt
Service does not include debt serv_e on TSASC bonds.

(4) Other Taxes includes transfers of net OTB revenues. Other Taxes al_o refle_s the ef_s of the repe_ of the 12.5% _urcharge
commenting in fiscal year 1999 and refle_ _ fiscal year _)00, the repeal of the nonre_dent earnings tax as of July 1, 1999.
For fu_her _formm_n regard_g the C_y_ revenues from Other Taxc_ see '_ECTION IV: SOURCESOF CITY REVENUES--
Addition_ City Revenucs--O_er Taxes."

(5) Total Revenues and Trans_ and Total Expenditures and Trans_ exclude lnte_Fund Revenue_
(6) For _formafion regard_g pension expend_urc_ see "SEC_ON IX: OTHER INFORMATION."

(7) The General Fund surp_s is the surplus after discretionary and other _ans_ and expenditures. The City had General Fund
operating suffuses of $3.187 bi_ion, $2_20 bffiion, $2_86 b_fion, $1.367 billion and $229 mffiion before _scrcfionary and
other Vans_ and expenditures for the 2000. 199_ 199& 1997 and 1996 fiscal years, respe_Nely. D_cr_ionary and other
trans_ are included in Debt Service, MAC Debt Service Funding and for trans_ subsets in All Othec
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Forecast of 2001 Results

The following table compares the foreca_ for the 2001 fiscal year contained in the financial plan
submitted to the Control Board on June 15, 2000 (the 'qune 2000 Forecast") with the Financial Plan
publ_hed on June 13, 2001 (the "June 2001 Forecast"). This forecast was prepared on a basis con_stent
with GAAE For information regarding recent developmenu, see "SECTION I: RECENT FINANCIAL

DEVELOPMENT_" June June Increase {De_ease)
_g_ 2001 _om June

Foreca_ Forecast 2_ Foreca_

REVENUES On Millions)
Taxes

GeneralOther TaxesProperty................................................................. .Tax $13,4558,022 $14,6098,188 $1,154166/_ /

M_cellaneousTaXTaxReductionAudit RevenueRevenuesPr_gram..................................................................................... .. 4,265(418)412 4'9013990 !ii)/_/

l_nPt_!i_er_ltCe_Ge°i_!!:i_t!i IA."!_ i ! i i i i i i i i i i i ! ! i ! i ! 354564290430593305 762915

LeSS:D_all°wanceslntra-CityRevenueSAgainstCategOfical"" "'" " ' " " " "" " "" "'" "" "" " " " '"Grants ........... _/ _/ (212)0

FederalT_egC_t_c_a_t_" : : : : i : i i i : : : i : i i: : i i : i : : :............................ :StateCategorical Grants $25'7607,5324'322$28'0297,8604'751 $2'269429328/_/
Total Revenues .............................. $37,614 $40,640 $3,026

EXPENDITURES

Pers°nalpay_As_You_Go_CapitalOtherThanServiCeSpersonai"" "" " "......................." '"""Services.............................. $20'27616,94585$21'23417,309165 $ 36495880/i/
Debt Service ....................................... 372 376 4
Budget Stabilization & Other Prepayments ............ 905 2,899 1,994 (9)
General Reserve ................................... 200 38 (162)

Less: lnT_rtaa-lciEt_P_ietnUsr_.:i::i::iiiii::ii:i::ii:iiii $38'7831_.(__._,169)(1,381)$42'021 (212)$3,238
Net Total Expenditures ....................... $37,614 $40,640 $3,026

(1) The increase in General Property Tax results from an increase of $127 m_n in l_n sale proceed_ an increase of $28 million
in cN_ns from prior year delinquencN a redu_n of $5 m_n in refunds and a redu_n in uncollectiNe reserve of
$6 mi_on.

(2) The increase in the Other Taxes resumed from increases in personN _come taxes of $416 miNon, generM corporation taxes
of $251 m_n, sales taxes of $286 raison, a_ other taxes of $41 m_lmm uNncorpor_ed busme_ taxes of $67 mi_on, utility
tax of $56 m_mn and STAR Program aid of $15 m_n, commerdN rent tax of $16 mi_on, mo_gage recording tax of
$32 m_mn and real prope_y uansNr taxes of $9 mi_on, offset by a decrease in the banNng corpor_n tax of $36 miNon.

(3) The increase in revenues in the Tax Redu_n Program resumed primarily from a redu_n m the c_ and re_rumufing of the
14% personal income tax surcharge.

(4) The increase in M_ce_aneous Revenues resumed primafi_ from an increase in i_m_y revenue of $212 million,
miscellaneous _cmpts of $249 mi_on, m_ income of $79 milton, _censes of $42 miNon, _ms of $35 m_n, charges for
se_es of $11 mill_n and w_er and sewer revenue ol $13 million, offset by a redu_n in fines of $5 mi_on.

_) The increase m FederN and St_e Ca_gorical Grams res_d primarily from budget mod_c_ns _crea_ng such gran_ that
were proce_ed during the fiscN year and other St_e and _deral ca_go_cal a_u_mems reflexed in _e NnanNN Nan.

(6) The increase _ the Personal Services foreca_ is due in pa_ to increased spen_ng of $500 mi_mn m labor cost_ $187 mi_on
in BOE spen_nN $93 m_n in budget mo_fic_ns processed _om Ju_ 2000 to March 2001, $83 mill_n in pennon costs
and a net increase of $80 m_n in salary spending _ the u_rmed agende_ p_mafi_ for pM_e ove_ime.

(7) The increase _ O_er Than Personal Serv_es is due in pa_ to $717 mi_on m budg_ modifications processed from July 2000
to March 2001, _creased MeNca_ spen_ng of $152 mi_o_ $137 mill_n in publ_ as_ance, energy costs of $89 million and
judgment and claims of $56 miNon, offset by a redu_n of $264 m_fion in prior payable_ $124 m_mn on BOE spen_n_
$90 m_n in Spots Fa_fity cosu, $76 mi_on in the Depa_ment of Sanitation_ Nndfill and expo_ expenses, $39 miNon in
ffancNse bus subsidy paymems and a redas_ficafion of $165 m_n in expenses from Other Than Personal Serv_es to
Pa_A_You-Go-CapitM.

(8) The increase of $80 raison m Pay-As-You-Go-Capital reflects a reclassification of expenses _om O_er Than PersonM Serv_es
of $165 m_n offs_ by a rcdu_n _ BOE of $85 m_n.

(_ The increase m the Budg_ Stabil_n & Other P_paymems N due to a preened Nscrcfionary _ans%r to _e General De_
Ser_ce Fund and MAC in the 2001 fiscal year for debt serv_e due in the 2002 fiscal year and the prepayment in 2001 of
cash-based sub,dies due in the 2002 fiscal yea_
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SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN

The following table sets fo_h the City_ projected operat_ns on a basis con_ent with GAAP for the
2001 through 2005 fiscal yea_ as contMned in the 2001-2005 Finan_M Plan. This table should be read in

co,unction with the accompan_ng notc_ "A_ions to Clo_e the RemM_ng Gaps" and "A_umptions,"
below. For information regarding recent developments, see "SE_HON I: RECENI' FINANCIAL DEVELO_

MENTS." Un_ otherwise noted, the Finand_ Plan and other foreca_s cont_ned herein were prepared
prior to the September 11 attack and have not been revised to reflect changes that may occur as a result
of this event.

_ 1-21_5
_scal Ye_(2)

2001 _2 2003 2004 2005

(In M_)
REVENUES

Taxes

Gener_ Prope_y Tax(3) ..................... $ 8,188 $ 8,478 $ 8,938 $ 9,362 $ 9fl94
Other Taxes(3)(4) ........................... 14fi09 13,731 14A12 15_86 15,850
Tax Audit Revenue .......................... 399 487 427 427 427

Tax Redu_ion Program(5) ................... _ (1001 (200) (200) (200)
M_cel_neous Revenues(6) ..................... 4,901 4,663 3.997 4_62 4_49
Unre_ri_ed Intergovernment_ Aid ............. 593 706 632 632 632
Other Ca_go_c_ Gran_ ...................... 430 392 360 352 344

Less: Intra-City Revenues ...................... ( 1,381) (1,344) (1,302) (1257) (1,257)
D_allowances Ag_n_ Ca_gofic_ Gran_ ...... ___15) _15) (15) (15) __(15)

Subtot_: City Funds ......................... $27fl24 $26,998 $27,249 $28A49 $29,624
Inte_Fund Revenue_7) ........................ 305 317 311 311 311

Total City Funds and Inte_Fund Revenues ..... $28_29 $27.315 $27360 $28.760 $29,935
Federal Categorical Gran_ ..................... 4,751 4,442 4.117 4,090 4_89
State Categorical Gran_ ....................... 7,860 7,941 8_36 8,126 8,204

Total Revenues ............................. $40,640 $39.698 $39,713 $40,976 $42,228
EXPENDITURES

Personal Serv_es(8) ........................... $21,234 $21,938 $22_37 $22,755 $23.19l
Other Than Personal Serv_es ................... 17,309 17,517 17,567 17.864 18,122
Pay-as-you-go Capita(9) ....................... 165 135 135 135 135
Debt Ser_ce .................................. 376 907 2,964 3_01 3_83
Budget Sta_lization & Other Prepayment(10) ... 2,899 345 -- -- --
MAC Debt Service(4)(10) ...................... _ _ 490 489 490
General Reserve .............................. 38 200 200 200 200

Total Expenditures .......................... $42_21 $41_42 $43,793 $44_44 $45,721

Less: InWa-City Expenses ...................... (1,381) (1,344) 1_,302) (1.257) _257)

Net Total Expend_ures ...................... $40,640 $39,698 $42.491 $43,587 $44,464

GAP TO BE CLOSED ............................. $ -- $ -- $(2,778) $(2_ll) $(2,236)

(1) The fou_year finan_ _an for the 2(101 through _ fiscal yea_. as subm_d to the Contr_ Board on June 15, 2_1_

contained the fofiowmg pa_e_ions for the 2001_004 fiscal year_ (i) for _11, lotal revenues of $37.614 billion and total

expenditures of $37.614 b_fion; (fi) for 2002, total revenues of $37A85 _Hion and totM expcn_turcs of $40.121 billion, with a

gap to be dosed of $2_36 _lliom (iii) for 2003, total revenues of $3&170 _Hion and total expend_ures of $4_874 _Hmm with

a gap to be dosed of $2.704 billion; and (iv) for 2f_( totM revenues of $38_89 _H_n and total expenditures of $41.462 billion,
with a gap to be dosed of $2.673 b_fion.

The fou_year finan_M _an for the _)00 through 2_13 fiscal yea_, as submitted to the Contr_ Board on June 14, 1999,

contained the following pr_c_ions for the 2000-_ fiscal yca_: (i) for _1_), total revenues of $35.175 bilhon and total

expenditures of $3L175 bflhon; (ii) for 2001, totM revenues of $35_50 billion and total expcnd_urcs of $37_94 _llion, with a

gap to be dosed of $1_44 billiom (iii) for 20112. total revenues of $36._ bil_m and total expenditures of $37_76 billiom with

a gap to be dosed of $1.869 billiom and (iv) tbr _ff_, to_l revenues of $36_12 Nllion and total expenditures of $38.616 N_on,
with a gap to be closed of $1.804 billion.

(_botnotes continued on the next page)
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(Footnotes con6nued from previous page)

The fou_year finandN Nan for the 1999 through 2_E fiscal years, as submitted to the C(mtrol Board on June 2_ 1998,
co_Nned the fol_wing pr_ections _r the 1999-2(N2 fiscal year_ (i) for 1999, total revenues of $34.186 bflfion and total
expend_urcs of $34.186 billion; (ii) for _, total revenues of $34_72 N_mn and total expenditures of $36.345 b_fion, w_h a
gap to be dosed of $Z2;3 billion; (iii) for 2001, tmal _venues of $3_162 billion and total expenditures of $37269 billion, with
a gap to be _sed of $_1[_7 billio_ and (i_ for 2002, total revenues of $3_920 bill_n and total expen_rcs of $37.602billion
with a gap to be closed of $2.682 b_fion.

The fou_year finand_ plan for the 1998 through _1 fiscal yea_, as submi_ed to the Co_r_ Board on June 1_ 1997,
com_ned the fol_wing pr_ections _r the 199_2001 fiscal year_ (i) for 1998, total revenues of $33373 b_lion and total
expenditures of $33373 _lfion; 0i) _r 199_ _1 revenues of $33_21 _lfion and _tal expen_tures of $3_801 bi_ion with a
gap to be dosed of $1.780 b_hon; (iii) for 2000, tot_ revenues of $33561 _H_n and to_l expenditures of $36.370 bilhon wi_
a gap a) be closed of $Z809 billiom and (iv) for 2001, total revenues of $34.392 bflfion and total expenditures of $37.033 _lfion
with a gap to be dosed of $2.641 billion.

(2) 7_e _nano_ _an com_nes the operating _venues and cxpcn_m_s of the Cit_ _e BOE and CUN_ The _nand_ _an
does not include the total ope_t_ns of HHC, but does include the City_ subfidy to HHC and the Ci_ share of HHC
revenues and expenditures related to HHC_ ro_ as a Mcd_d pro_dc_ Ceflain Covcred Organ_ns and PBCs which
prov_e governmem_ services to the Cit_ such as the Transit Amhorit_ are separ_y constituted and their _vcnues (other
than net OTB _vcnueQ, are not included m the _nan_ Plan; however, Ciff subsidies and ce_n other paymen_ to these
orgamzations are included. Revenucs and expenditures are presented net of intra-City Reins, wh_h are revenues and
expenditures afifing _om _an_ns between CiW agenda.

(3) For a de_fi_n of _e effe_s of the STAR Program and other property tax reductions and other assumptions, _e "SEctION
I: RELENT FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENTS" and "SEcTION VII: FINAN_AL PLAN--A_umptions--Revenue A_ump#ons--
2. Real E_ate Tax."

(4) Other Taxes includes amounts paid and expected to be paid to MAC by the St_e _om sales tax rccei_ stock ffans_r tax
receipts and State per ca_ aid _herxvise payable by the State to the C_ Pursuant to State statute, these revenues flow
_ from the State to MAC, and flow to the City only to the extent n_ required by MAC for de_ ser_c_ reserve _nd
_q_remcms and operating expenses. The City includes such revenues as Ci_ revenues and repots the amoum retained by
MAC _om such revenues as "MAC Debt Serv_e Fun_ng', _though the Ci_ has no comr_ over the _utory application
of such revenues to the extent MAC _q_s them. Estima_s of Ci_ "Debt Service" indud_ and csfimmes of "MAC Debt
Service Funding" are reduced b_ amk_ed paymems by the City of de_ service on City o_at_ns held by MAC. Other
Taxes includes _ans_ of net OTB revcnue_ Pe_on_ income _xes w_l flow _ _om the State to the _nance Authofit_
and _om the Finance A_hofi_ to the City on_ to the e_ent not required by the _nancc A_hofiW for de_ service, reserves
and oper_ing expenses. Sales taxes will flow d_e_ _om the State to the _nance Amhofit_ after _qm_d paymems are
made to MAC, to _e exam necessary to pro_de _mory coverage. Other qhxcs does n_ include amoums _ ate expe_ed
to be retained by the _nancc A_hofiW for its debt service and opcrat_g expenses. Estim_es of De_ Serv_c do not _dude
debt service on _nance AuthofiW o_ns.

(5) For a dc_n_n of the proposed tax _ducfion program, _e "SECHON I: RECE_I" FINANCIALDEVELOPMENT_"For other
_nand_ _an assumpt_ns, see "SECHON VII: FINAN_AL PLAN--Assumptions--Revenue Assumpttons---3. Other Taxe_"

(6) M_cdhneous Revenues _flec_ the _cei_ by the Ciff of a portion of the _nds _om the settlemcm of _n wi_ the four
_a_ng dga_t_ compares. The _nand_ _an _fle_s _e sale of the Ciw_ fight to _¢eive such funds m TSASC which has
issued debt and is expected to continue to issue dc_ payable _om such funds to finance approxim_e_ $2A _on of capRal
pr_e_ M_cefiancous Revenues does not include tobacco s_t_mcm _venues thin are cxpe_ed to be retained by TSASC
for debt se_e and ope_ting expenses t_ing approxim_e_ $687 mi_on _om fiscal years 2001 through 2005. E_im_es of
Debt Service do not include debt service on TSASC o_n_

(7) In_Fund Revenues _prcscms Gcncr_ Fund expendflu_ properly mdudab_ in the Carrel Budget, made on behalf of the
Ca_tal Pa_ec_ Fund pursuant to inte_nd agreement.

(8) For an ex_anmmn of projected expendi_rcs for personal service co_ _ce "S_:cTIONVII: FINAN_At, PLAN--Assumptions--
Expenditu_ Assumptions--1. PERSONAL SERVICE COSTS."

(9) Rep_sen_ ope_ting budget paymcn_ for carrel pr_e_

(10) Budget Sta_lizafion & O_er Prepaymcms primafi_ includes projected d_c_fionary t_ns_ to the General Debt Service
Fund and MAC Dc_ Serv_e Fund in each of the 2001 through 2002 fiscal years for debt serv_e due in the subsequent fi_
year and the p_paymem in fiscal year 2001 of cash-based subfid_s due in the 2002 fiscal yeac

Various actions proposed in the Financial Plan are unce_ain. See " SECTION l: RECENT FINANCIAL

DEVELOPMENTS." If these measures cannot be implemented, the City will be required to take other

actions to decrease expendflures or increase revenues to maintain a balanced financial plan. See

"SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Certain Repoms" and "--Assumption_"
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Actions to Close the Remaining Gaps

In connexion with the Finand_ Plan, the Ci_ has outlined a gap-do_ng program for fiscal yea_
2003 through 2005 to e_m_ate the $2.8 billion, $2.6 billion and $2.2 billion projected budget gaps for the
2003 through 2005 fiscal years, respe_Nely. This program, wh_h _ not specified in detail, assumes for the

2003 through 2005 fiscal yeaR, respe_ivO5 ad_t_n_ agency programs to reduce expenditures or
increase revenues by $1.7 billion, $1.5 billion and $1.1 billion; ad_t_n_ State a_ions of $450 million and

add_ional Federal a_ions of $550 million in each of fiscal yea_ 2003 through 2005; and the av_hN_ty

of $100 million of the General Reserve in each of fiscal years 2003 through 2005.

The City_ proje_ed budget gaps for the 2004 and 2005 fiscal yea_ do not retied the sa_ngs expe_ed

to tesuR _om the prior yea_' program to close the gaps set fo_h in the Finand_ Ham Thus, for examp_,
recurring savings anticipated from the actions wh_h the City proposes to take to balance the fiscal year

2003 budget are not taken into account in projecting the budget gaps for the 2004 and 2005 fiscal yea_.

Although the City has m_nt_ned balanced budgets in each of its last twenty fiscal year and is
projected to achieve balanced operating results for the 2001 and 2002 fiscal years, there can be no

assurance that the gap-dosing actions proposed in the Finand_ Plan can be successful_ imp_mented or
that the City will maintain a balanced budget in future years without addition_ State aid, revenue

increases or expenditure redu_ion_ Addition_ tax increases and reductions in essential City services
could adve_e_ af_ct the City_ economic base.

Assumptions

The Finand_ Plan is based on numerous assumption_ _duding the cond_ion of the City_ and the

re_on_ econom_s and the concom_ant receipt of econom_ senfitNe tax revenues in the amounts

pr_e_e& The Finand_ Plan is su_e_ to various other unce_nfies and confingen_es relating to,

among other _o_, the ef_s on the City economy of the September 11 attack, the extent, if an5 to
which wage increases for City employees exceed the annu_ wage costs assumed for the 2001 through 2005
fiscal years; continuation of preened interest earnings a_umptions for penfion fund asse_ and current

assumpt_ns with respect to wages for City emp_yees affe_ing the City_ required pension fund
contfibution_ the will_gne_ and ability of the Statc to prov_e the aid contemplated by the Finand_

Plan and to take various other actions to assist the City; the ability of HHC, the BOE and other such

agencies to maintain balanced budgets; the wi_ngnc_ of the Federal government to provide the amount
of Federal aid con_mplmed in the Finand_ Plan; the impa_ on City revenues and expenditures of
Federal and State welfare reform and any future _ation affe_ing Med_are or other entitlement

program_ adoption of the City_ budgets by the City Coundl in subsmntial_ the forms submi_ed by the

Mayor; the abil_y of the City to imp_ment cost redu_ion _itiative_ and the success with which the City
contro_ expend_ure_ the impa_ of cond_ions in the real estate market on real estate tax revenue_ the

City_ ability to market its securities succe_ful_ in the public credit markets; and unantiopated
expen_tures that may be incurred as a result of the need to maintain the City_ _ffa_ru_ure. See

"SECTION I: RECEYr FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENT_" Ce_ain of these assumptions have been quest_ned
by the City Comptroller and other public offici_s. See "SECHON VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Ce_n
Reports."

The pr_e_ions and assumptions contained in the Finano_ Plan are su_e_ to revision which may

involve sub_ant_l change, and no a_urance can be given that these e_ima_s and proje_ions, which
include actions which the City expects will be taken but which are not w_hin the City_ control, will be
re_e& For informmion regard_g certain recent development, see "SECTION ]: RECENT FINANCIAL

DEVELOPMENT_"

Revenue Assump_ons

1. GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The Finand_ Plan a_umes that economic growth, a_er slowing in the last qua_er of calendar year
2000 and in calendar year 2001, will begin to recover in calendar year 2002. This a_umption is based on,
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among other things, low inflation; a less restrictive monetary policy by the Federal Reserve; no rece_ion
resulting #ore further declines in the s_ck market, a protra_ed loss of consumer confidence or other
_o_; and continued _rength in the serv_e _du_fie_

The following table presents a foreca_ of the key econom_ ind_ato_ for the calendar years 2001
through 2005. This foreca_ _ based upon _formation available in April 2001.

FORECASTOF KEY ECONOMIC INDICATORS

C_endar Yea_
U._ ECONOMY 1999 2000 2001 2002 2_)3 2004 2005

Econom_ Acti_ and Income

Real GDP (billions of 1996 dol_) ........ 8,876 9,320 9A80 9_83 10,169 10fi75 10,973
Percent Change ........................ 4.2 5.0 1.7 3.2 3.9 4.0 3.8

Pre_ax Corporate Profi_ ($ b_ons) ....... 823 926 869 927 983 1,032 1,085
Percent Change ........................ 8.6 12.5 -6.2 6.8 6.0 5.0 5.2

Personal Income ($ billions) ............... 7,790 8283 8fi74 9,102 9,639 10,181 10,759
Percent Change ........................ 5.4 6.3 4.7 4.9 5.9 5.6 5.7

Non-Agricultural Employment (mflfion_ .... 129 131 132 133 135 137 140
Change From Prior Year ................ 2.9 2.6 0.9 0.8 2.2 2.2 2.3

Unemployment Rate ..................... 4.2 4.0 4.9 5.3 5.1 5.0 4.8
CPLAll Urban (1982-84=100) .............. 166.7 _72.4 176.8 18_.3 185.8 19&4 195.1

Percent Change ........................ 2.2 3.4 2.6 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.5
Wage Rate ($peryea o ................... 34,713 36,296 37,971 39fi92 41,310 42,987 44fi96

Percent Change ........................ 4.2 4.6 4.6 4.3 4.3 4.1 4.0
10-Year Treasury Bond Rate ............... 5.6 6.0 4.9 5.2 5.6 5.7 5.8
Feder_ Funds Rate ...................... 5.0 6.2 4.7 4.6 5.3 5.5 5.5

NEW YORK CITY ECONOMY

Personal Income ($ billion_ ............... 279 303 311 320 338 356 373
Percent Change ........................ 7.5 8.5 2.9 2.7 5.9 5.3 4.8

Non-Agricultural Employment _housand_.. 3,621 3fl21 3,753 3_60 3_92 3,839 3,885
Change From Prior Year ................ 93 100 32 7 32 47 46

Real Gross City Product (_llions of 1996
dollar) ............................... 407 448 453 449 475 496 514
Percent Change ........................ 4.1 10.1 1.0 -0.8 5.7 4.4 3.8

Wage Rate ($ per yeaQ ................... 54_83 58,027 59,723 61,141 64,506 67,397 70_10
Percent Change ........................ 3.7 7.3 2.9 2.4 5.5 4.5 3.9

CPI-AII Urban NY-NJ Area (1982-84=100).. 177.0 182.5 186.9 192.1 197.1 202.1 207.6
Percent Change ........................ 1.9 3.1 2.4 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.8

Souse: OMB model _r _e _ econom_

2. REAL ESTATE TAX

Pr_e_ions of real estate tax revenues are based on a number of assumptions, indudin_ among
other_ assumptions relating to the tax rate, the assessed v_uation of the City_ taxable real estate, the
d_quency rate, debt serv_e needs, a reserve for uncol_cfible taxes and the operat_g lim_. See
"SECTION IV: SOURCE OF CITY REVENUES--Real E_ate Tax."

Pr_e_ions of real estate tax revenues include $211 million, $72 mi_o_ $72 million, $72 million and
$72 million net revenue _om the sale of real prope_y tax liens in fiscal years 2001 through 2005,

respe_Nely. Proje_ions of real e_ate tax revenues include the effe_s of the STAR Program which will
reduce the property tax revenues by an estimated $89 million in fiscal year 2001, $112 million in fiscal year
2002, $132 million in fiscal year 2003, $135 million in fiscal year 2004 and $135 m_lion in fiscal year 2005.
Projections of re_ e_ate tax revenues reflect the e_imated co_ of extending the current tax redu_ion for
owne_ of cooperatNe and condominium apa_ments amount_g to $185 million, $194 million, $204 mil-
lion and $214 m_lion in fiscal years 2002 through 2005, respe_Nelg and the co_ of extending tax

34



abatements through the Lower Manha_an Commerdai Revitalization Program of $2 million, $7 million,
$11 million and $12 million in fiscal years 2002 through 2005, respectively.

The delinquency rate for the 2000 fiscal year was 3.1%. The Finanoal Plan projec_ delinquency rates

of 3.l% for fiscal year 2001 and 3.2% for each of the 2001 through 2005 fiscal years. For information
concerning the definquency rates for prior years, see "SECTION IV: SOURCES OF CITY REVENUES--Real

Estate Tax--Collection of the Real Estate Ta_" For a description of proceedings seeking real estate tax
refunds from the Cit_ see "SECTION IX: OTHER INFORMATlON--Litigation--Taxe_"

3. OTHER TAXES

The following table sets forth amoun_ of revenues (net of refunds) from taxes other than the real
estate tax projected to be received by the City in the Finanral Plan. The amounts set forth below include
projected tax program revenues and exclude the Crimin_ Justice Fund and audit revenues

2001 21102 2003 2004 2005
(In Million_

Personal Income(I) ..................... $ 5,255 $ 4,514 $ 4,718 $ 4,949 $ 5,309
General Corporation .................... 1,749 1,475 1,513 1,655 1,749
Banking Corporation .................... 362 359 409 427 452
Unincorporated Business Income ......... 812 802 856 927 987

Sales(2) ................................ 3,651 3,710 3,899 4,031 4,144
Commerdal Rent(3) .................... 367 356 369 384 406
Real Prope_y Transfer .................. 470 418 443 466 501
Mo_gage Recording .................... 396 340 350 363 388
Utility ................................. 287 276 265 246 234

All Other(4) ........................... 1,260 1,481 1,590 1,639 1,681

Total ................................ $14A09 $13,731 $14,412 $15_86 $15,850

N_e: Totals may n_ add due to roun_n_

(1) Personal Incomedoes n_ _dude $419mi_on. $503m_n. $640mirth. $781m_n and $837milton of pers_m__come
tax revenuespr_ec_d to be paid to the Hnance A_hofi_ for debt scrfice in _c _1 _rough 2005fiscalyea_. rcspecfivd_
These pr_e_ns include the ef_os of the STAR Prog_m. w_ch will reducepersonal _come tax revenuesby an estimmed
$415mi_on, $560miriam $_ m_n, $629m_n and $652m_n in the _)1 _rough 2005flsc_ yca_, rcspc_N_ The
S_tc will reimbu_e _e Ci_ _r such reduced rcvenueg Personal Income_so refle_s the reduction and restructuringof the
14% pe_on_ _come tax surcharge, wh_h became effe_ivc on Janua_ 1, _1 and wh_h reduced pe_onal _come tax
revenuesbyan e_immed $94mi_on. $185mi_on, $196mi_on, $209mirth and$227milfion_ fi_ yea_ _)1 through2005,
respectively,andan ad_fion_ redu_ion in_c 14%personalincometaxsurcharge,w_ch willreducerevenuesbyan ad_fion_
$180m_ $191mfl_o_ $207m_n and $226m_n in fiscalyears2001_rough 2005.respe_Nd_

_) Sales reflectLamong mher changes,a redu_n in the sales taxon utiliti_ and_dudcs no MAC de_ serfice in_e 2_)1 and
20_2fisc_ yea_ and MAC debt serfice of $490mi_on, $489mi_on and $490m_n in the 2003through 2005fiscalyears,
respecfivel_

_) CommcroM Rent reflects the esfima_d cost of incrca_ng the commerd_ rent tax thrcsho_ amou_mg to $25 m_
$26 mi_on, $27 rni_on and $28 mi_on _ fi_ yea_ 2002 _rough 2005,respe_N_

_) All O_er _dudcs, among_hcrs, _ock _ans_r _L OTB nO revenues,cig_te, beer and liquor taxes,the howl tax and the
a_omo_ use tax. The _ock _ans_r _x is$114miH_nin eachof the2001through 2005fiscalyears.All Other also _dudes
$504m_m $672m_m $732mill_n, $764millionand $787m_n in fiscalyears 2001through 2005,rcspcctive_ to be
profided to the Ci_ by the St_e as reimbu_emem _r the reduced prope_y tax and pe_onal income tax revenuesresuRing
_om the STAR Program.

The Finanoal Plan reflects the following assumptions regarding projected baseline revenues from
Other Taxes: (i) with respect to personal income tax revenue_ _ower income growth commenting in the
2001 fiscal yea_ reflecting a slowdown in the growth of capital gains realizafion_ followed by a decline in

fiscal year 2002, reflecting a projected decline in wage and non-wage income, and growth in subsequent
fiscal years reflecting moderate growth in the economy; (ii) with respect to the general corporation tax,
a _owdown in the outlook for the securities industry and the economy in fiscal year 2002 and the impact
of lim_ed liability company legislation which will reduce the number of corporate entries subject to the
general corporation tax over time, followed by modest growth for the secudfies industry and national
corporate profits _a_ing in calendar year 2002; (iii) with respect to the banking corporation tax, an
increase in the liabilhy e_imate in fiscal year 2(_)1 and a decrease in gross collections in fiscal year 2002
reflecting a _owdown in the economy; (iv) with respect to the unincorporated business tax, moderation

35



in securities industry profits and a _owing economy in fiscal yea_ 2001 and 2002, followed by securities
industry profit growth and a recovery in the national economy in subsequent yea_; (v) with respect to the

sales tax, a moderation in wage income and secufit_s industry profit growth, a weakening economy and

moderating employment growth in calendar year 20{)2; (vi) with respe_ to the mortgage recording and

real property trans_r taxes, a decline in fiscal yea_ 2(_1 and 2002 reflexing a slowdown in the economy
and an increase in interest rates, followed by an increase in subsequent fiscal years reflexing foreca_
interest rate reductions and an economic recovery: and (vii) with respect to the commer_ rent tax,

increased growth in the 2001 fiscal year and thereafter due to assumed continued _rength in Manhauan

commer_ real estate. The Finan_ Plan also assumes the timely extenfion by the State Le_ature of
the current rate structures for the resident personal income tax, for the general corporation tax, for the

two special sales taxes and for the cigarette tax. Le_ation extending the general corporation tax, the two

special sa_s taxes and the dgareue tax to December 31,2001 has been enacted. Le_ation extending the
current rate structure for the resident pe_onal income tax and extending the 14% pc_onal income tax
surcharge to December 31, 2_)1 was also enacted. On December 31, 2001, a lower rate schedule for the
resident pe_onal income tax w_h a maximum base rate of 1.61% is to become effe_Ne, unless the current

rate schedule is extended, as has been the case since 1989. The rate schedule for the resident pe_onal
income tax is scheduled to further decline to a maximum base rate of 1.48% on January 1, 2(_)3. The
Finand_ Plan a_umes the timely extenfion of the current maximum base rate of 3.2% for the resident
pe_onal income tax.

4. MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

The following table sets fo_h amoun_ of m_celhneous revenues projc_ed to be receNed by the City
in the Finan_ Plan.

20_1 2002 _3 _4 2005
(In Mi_o_)

Licenses, Permi_and Franch_es .......... $ 338 $ 320 $ 313 $ 311 $ 311
interest Income ......................... 210 155 138 141 143

Charges for Services .................... 428 415 410 410 409
Water and Sewer Payments(l) ............ 856 864 839 857 882
Rental Income ......................... 150 111 265 404 365
Fines and Forfe_ures .................... 485 480 479 476 476

Other ................................. 1,053 974 251 206 206
In_a-City Revenues ..................... 1,381 1,344 1,302 1,257 1_57

Total ................................ $4,901 $4,663 $3,997 $4,062 $4,049

(1) Rec_vcd from the WaterBoard. For further in_rm_n _ga_ing the Water Board, see '_ECI_N VII: _NAN_AL PLAN--
Lon_Term Cap_al and _nandng Pro_am."

Rental Income in the 2001 through 2005 fiscal yea_ includes $25.2 million, $15 million, $185 million,
$330 million and $295 million _om lhe Port Authority as rent paymen_ for the City_ airport_ of which
$170 million, $315 million and $280 million in the 2003 through 2005 fiscal yea_, respe_Nely, is cu_ent_

the subject of a dispute with the Po_ Authority.

In an arb_ration against the Port Authorit_ the City has asse_ed that it is owed addition_ rent under
the John E Kennedy Internation_ and LaGuard_ airpo_s lease. The City contend_ among other things,
that, in determ_ing the amount of rent due to the Cit_ the Po_ Authority has ewoneous_ (i) excluded
from the c_culation of gross revenue the amoun_ of passcngcr facil_y charges ("PFCs') which the Port
Authority has col_ed since 1992 (the "PFC d_m'L (ii) taken ce_n capital dedu_ions for inve_men_
that the Po_ Authority pre_ous_ recovered in full with interesL and (iii) included in the c_culation of
operation and m_ntenancc expense certain general and administrativ_ indire_ and other expensc_ In
denying a stay appfication brought by the Port Authorit_ thc Appdlate Divifion of the New York
Supreme Cou_ held on June 27, 1996 that the City_ claims must be ar_tratcd and that the PFC claim
does not raise any issue of Federal law so long as any addition_ rent to be paid on the claim would be
paid from funds other than PFCs. On November 20, 1996, the Chief Counsel of the Federal A_ation

Admini_ration ("FAN') issued a lette_ at the Port Authority_ request, stating that it was the FANs
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position that under Federal law the sums of PFCs col_ed by the Port Authority could not be included
in the determination of rent. On January 2l, 1997, the Chief Counsel stated in a letter to the City_
Corporation Counsel that his prior letter was an "adv_ory opinion" that by its terms was not binding. If
the City prcvai_ on the PFC claim, the addkional rent resulting from that claim would not be paid from
PFCs; rathe_ such payment would be made fore the Po_ Authority_ consolidated operat_g funds.

M_cellaneous Revenues--Other reflects $153 million, $220 million. $101 million, $56 million and
$56 million of projected resources in fiscal yea_ 2001 through 2005, respe_el5 fore the receipt by the
City of funds fom the se_ment of htigation with ce_ain tobacco compares. M_c_neous Revenues--
Other does not reflect a total of appro_mate_ $687 million expected to be retained by TSASC during
fiscal yea_ 2001 through 2005. M_celhneous Revenues--Other includes the receipt in fiscal year 2001 of
$340 million from the sale of the Col_eum, $25 million from asset sales and $85 million from the health

benefit stabil_ation fund. In fiscal year 2002, M_celhneous Revenues--Other includes $250 milhon fom
the proposed sale of OTB and $70 million from the sale of mortgages and other assets.

5. UNRESTR|CTED [NTERGOVERNMENTAL AID

The following table sets fo_h amounts of unre_rioed intcrgovernmental aid proje_ed to be receded
by the City in the Finano_ Plan.

_1 2002 _3 _4 2_5

(In M_)

State Revenue Sharing .................. $327 $327 $327 $327 $327
Other Aid ............................. 266 379 3(_ 305 3(_

Total ................................ $593 $7(_ $632 $632 $632

The Other Aid category primafi_ consists of approximate_ $158 million annually from aid
assooated w_h the State takeover of long-term care Med_aid costs, $51 million of addition_ unre_ri_ed
aid, $35 million annually from State audits, $23 million annually in _te_governmcnt_ transfer, and
$13 million in prior year claims se_ment_

The receipt of State Revenue Sharing funds could be affeOed by potential prior _aims asse_ed by
the State. For information concerning projected State budget gaps and the possible impa_ on State aid
to the Cit5 see "SECHON I: RECENT FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENTS--The State."

6. FEDERAL AND STATE CA'I_GORICAL GRANI\S

The following table sets forth amounts of Federal and State categorical grants projected to be
received by the City in the Finand_ Plan.

_1 2002 _3 2004 2005

Federal (In Mffi_)

JTPA ................................ $ 18 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

Commun_y Development(l) ........... 342 310 273 272 271
Welfare .............................. 2,501 2,561 2,464 2,436 2,436

Education ............................ 1_69 1,046 1,046 1,046 1,046
Other ............................... 821 525 334 336 336

Total .............................. $4,751 $4,442 $4,117 $4_90 $4,089
State

Welfare .............................. $l,626 $1,521 $1,505 $1,511 $1,515

Education ............................ 5_28 5,580 5,702 5,777 5,844

H_her Education ..................... 164 175 175 175 175
Health and Mental Health ............. 419 368 366 366 366

Other ............................... 323 297 288 297 304

Total .............................. $7,860 $7,941 $8,036 $8,126 $8204

(l) Thisamount represen_ the pr_c_ed annual level of new fund_ Unspent Commu_ Deve_pmcm grants _om prior fiscal
years could increase the amoum actuary received.
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The Finand_ Plan assumes that all existing Federal and State categorical grant programs will
continu_ unless specific _ion provides for their _rmination or adjustment, and assumes increases

in aid where increased costs are proje_ed for existing grant programs. For _formation concern_g

proje_ed State budget gaps and the possible impa_ on State aid to the City, see "SECTION I: RECENT

FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENTS--The State." As of April 30, 2001, appro_matOy 15.70% of the City_

fall-time employees (consisting of employees of the mayoral agencies and the BOE) were p_d by
Commun_y Devdopment funds, water and sewer funds and from other sources not funded by

unre_ri_ed revenues of the City In the 2001 fiscal yeah the City expects to receive approximate_

$221 million born the Community Development Block grant, which is approximate_ $1 million less than
the amount received in the 2000 fiscal yea_

A m_or component of Federal categoric_ aid to the C_y _ the Commun_y Devdopment program.

Pursuant to Federal _ation, Community Development grants are provided to cities pfimari_ to aid
low and moderate income pe_ons by impro_ng housing faolit_ parks and other capit_ improvement_

by pro_d_g ce_n social programs and by promoting econom_ devdopment. These grants are based on
a formula that takes into con_deration such fa_o_ as population, housing overcrowding and pove_

The City_ receipt of ca_goric_ aid is cont_gent upon the sat_fa_ion of ce_n statutory conditions
and is subjeo to subsequent audi_, possible disal_wances and possible prior clams by the State or
Federal government_ The general practice of the State and Federal governmen_ has been to deduct the
amount of any d_lowances again_ the current year_ payment. Sub_anfi_ d_ailowances of aid d_ms
may be asse_ed during the course of the Finano_ Plan. The amounts of such d_lowances attributable
to prior years declined from $124 million in the ]977 fiscal year to $6 million in the 2000 fiscal yea_ This
decrease reflects favorab_ experience with the _vel of _saHowances in recent years, which may not
continue. As of June 30, 200_ the City had an accumu_d reserve of $205 million for future
disallowances of catcgofic_ aid.

On Augu_ 2, 2(_1 the New York State Le_ature passed a baseline budget, wh_h was
appro_matdy $4 billion lower than the Governor_ reque_. This budget negatN_y impaled the
Finand_ Plan by appro_matdy $250 million. Howeve_ the City expec_ the Le_ature to pass a
supplemen_l budget in the near future which could restore many of these funds.

Expenditure Assumprons

1. PERSONAL SERVICES COSTS

The following table sets forth proje_ed expend_ures for personal serv_e costs contained in the
Finano_ Plan.

2001 2_2 2003 2004 2005

fin M_m)

Wages and Salaries ..................... $15,524 $15_21 $15_56 $15,577 $15,563
Pennons .............................. 1299 1_54 1,564 1fi69 1_64

Other Fringe Benefi_ ................... 3,913 3,853 3_32 4_81 4,336
Reserve for ColOgNe Barg_n_g ........

Board of Education .......... 174 467 604 628 628

Other ....................... 324 543 781 800 800

Reserve Subtotal ............... 498 1_10 1,385 1_28 1_28

Total ......................... $21,234 $21,938 $22_37 $22fl55 $23,191

The Finand_ Plan projects that the authorized number of City-funded employees whose salaries are
paid dire_ from City funds, as opposed to Federal or State funds or water and sewer funds, will increase
from an estimated level of 215,891 on June 30, 2001 to an estimated level of 217J28 by June 30, 2005,
before implementation of out-year gap-doing programs included in the Finano_ Plan.

The Reserve for ColOgNe Barg_ning contains fund_g for the cost of wage increases for uniformed
and manageri_ employees and most employees covered by Section 220 of the labor law equal to those
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agreed to in the recently negotiated DC 37 c_e bargaining agreement plus smaller amounts for

unions that remain unsettled for the 1995 through 2000 round. Th_ agreement provides for an increase
totaling 9.26% over twenty_even months. The Reserve for ColOgNe Barg_ning does not contain
prov_ions for wage increases beyond this twenty-seven month period nor does the reserve contain
funding for the add_ional cost of the uniformed fore coafifion agreement above the civilian pattern.
These amounts will be added when the City re_ases i_ November mo_fication to the Finan_ Plan. The

Reserve for CoI_Nc Barg_ng includes appro_m_e_ $200 million per year funded by incremental
State education aid which has not yet been appropriated by the State Le_atur_

The terms of wage se_ments could be de_rmined through the impale procedure in the New York
City ColOgNe Barg_ng Law, which can impose a binding seu_ment.

For a d_cusfion of the City_ pension sy_ems, see "SECTION IX: OTHER INFORMATION--Pennon
Systems"and "APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Notes 1o Finand_ Stmements--Note S." For a

d_cusfion of ce_ain information re_ting to the City_ health insurance costs, see "SECTION VII:
FINANCIAL PLAN--Ce_n Repo_"

2. OTHER THAN PERSONAL SERVICE COSTS

The foHow_g table sets fo_h proje_ed other than pe_onal service ("OTPS') expend_ures
contained in the Finano_ Plan.

2001 2002 2003 _)04 20_

(In Mi_o_)

Admh_at_e OTPS .......... $ 9,652 $10_00 $ 9,830 $ 9,904 $10,022

Public A_istance ............. 2_17 2375 1,971 1,973 1,973

Medical As_ance ............ 3,406 3,580 3,701 3,885 3,977
HHC Suppo_ ................ 247 265 265 262 263

Other ........................ 1,687 4A97 1,800 1,840 1B87

Total(l) ................ $17,309 $17,517 $17_67 $17,864 $18,122

(1) Docs not _dude pay_m_o capflal.

Le_ation has been passed by the State which pro_ the disposal of solid waste in any landfill
located within the City after December 31, 2001. The Financ_l Plan includes the e_imated costs of

phasing out the use of landfills located within the Ci_ under the category OTPS-Othea The New York

City Recycling Law, Local Law No. 19 ("Local Law No. 19") for the year 1989, set requ_emen_ for
_creas_g the tonnage of solid wastc that is recycled by the Depa_ment of Sa_tation and its contractor_

Pu_uant to cou_ ordea the City _ cu_ent_ required to recyc_ 4250 tons pcr day of solid wa_e. The City
is cu_enOy recy_ing over 2,600 tons per day of solid wa_e. If the City is unablc to comp_ with Local Law
No. 19, it may incur sub_anfial costs.

Administra_ve OTPS and Energy

The Finan_ Plan contains e_imates of the Ci_ adminh_atNe OTPS expend_ures for general

supplies and m_erials, eq_pment and sele_ed contra_u_ services and e_imatcs of energy costs in the
2001 fiscal yea_ ThereafteL to account for _flat_m selected OqPS expenditures are proje_ed to rise by
approximate_ 2.6%, 2.6%, 2.8% and 2.8% in fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2005, respe_Nely. Howevca it is
assumed that the savings from a procurement _itiat_e will offer the need for funding preened increases
in OTPS expendflures that result _om the accounting for inflation. Energy co_s for each of the 2002

through 2005 fiscal yea_ are a_umed to decline at varying rates of _flat_n, with total energy
expen_tures projc_ed at $590 million in the 2002 fiscal yea_ falling to $572 million in fiscal year 2005.

PubHc Ass_nce

The average number of pc_ons recking income benefits under public as_ance programs _
projected to be 494,520 per month in the 2002 fiscal yea_ The Finand_ Plan proje_s that the average
number of re_pien_ will decrease by 7.8% in the 2002 fiscal year _om the avcrage number of re_en_
in the 2001 fiscal yea_ The Finan_ Plan a_umes that public as_ance grant levels will remain fiat in thc
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2_1 fiscal yean Of total public a_i_ance expend_ures in the _ for the 2002 fiscal yea_ the _-_n_d
potion _ preened to be $35&0 m_n, a decrease of 7.2% kom the 2_1 fiscal yea_ and is preened to
con_nue to decrease to $350.5 mill_n in fiscal year 2005.

M_al A_n_

Medial ass_tance payment preened in the _nand_ _an cons_ of paymcn_ to v_unm_
hos_ skilled nursing _dl_, _rm_e care _ home care and ph_ans and other
medial pm_n_ The __ potion of medial a_nce paymen_ is _tima_d at $2.535
billion _r the 2001 fiscal year and is expected to increase to $3.012 billion in fiscal year 2005. Such
paymems include, among other things, __ Med_aid payment, but exclude _t_u_
Med_d p_men_ to HHC, as di_u_ed belo_ _ty Mcd_a_ _sts 0ndu_ng C_nded Me_
payme_s to HHC) a_umed in the _nandal Plan do not include 81.2% of the non-Federal sha_ of
lon_rm care costs wh_h have been _sumed by the State. The _nand_ Plan pr_e_s _n_ of
$782 mili_n in the 2001 fiscal year due to the State having _sumed such cos_, and pr_e_s such savings
will increase to $940 mill_n in fiscal year 2_5.

_a_h and Ho_ Co_a_on

HHC operates under its own sec_on of the _nand_ Plan as a Covered O_an_n. HHC_
financial plan p_e_s __d _n_ of $782 million _r the _01 fiscal yea_ _ea_ng to
$875 mifl_n in fiscal year 2005. The __ _pendku_s in the 2_1 fiscal year include $53 million
for the care of prisoners and uni_rmed pe_onnel, $20 million for heath services provided to uninsured
_m_ $13 miH_n of general Ci_ suppon, and $696 million _r the _ty_ share of HHC Med_aid
paymem_

HHC is p_e_ed to achieve balanced budgets in fiscal years 2001 through 2005 on a cash bas_. _tal
receipts am preened to _ _._7 billion in fisc_ year 2001, increa_ng to $3.687 billion in fiscal year 2005.
_tal _u_emen_ are preened to be $3.660 billion in fiscal year 2001, m_e_g to $4.039 billion in
fiscal year 2_5. These _e_ _m_ 0) continued headcount reduction through _; (ii) small
increases in other than pe_on_ service costs in fiscal yea_ 2001 though 2005; and (iii) an increase of
6.2% in Med_d __e and Medi_id managed care between fiscal years 2_1 and 2005.
S_n_ca_ changes have been and may be made in Med_a_, Meddle and other _pany payor
prog_ms, wh_h could have adve_e impa_s on HHC_ financial con_tiom

O_

The pr_e_ns set _h in the _nand_ Plan _r OTP_O_er include the City_ comribm_ to
NYC_ the Housing Au_ori_ CUNY and sub_d_s to libraries and various cultu_l in__. They
also include pr_e_ns _r the cost of future judgme_s and claims which are d_cussed below under
_udgmen_ and Oaims." In the past, the _ty has provided ad_fion_ as_ance to certain Covered
O_an_ns which had exhau_ed their finan_ resources prior to the end of the fiscal yea_ No
a_urance can be given that simi_r ad_t_n_ as_stance will not be required in the future.

_w _ _ _an_

In June 2_1, the City p_pa_d a financial plan _r New _rk City _t _NYC_) covering its
200_ though 2_5 fiscal yea_ (the "NY_ _nano_ Plan"). NYCT_ fiscal year c_n6d_ with the
calendar yea_ For 2001, the NYCT _nand_ Plan pr_ec_ $4.6 billion in revenues and $4.8 billion in
expense_ leaving a budget gap of $239 million. Th_ gap will be o_et by $236 mfll_n in antacid cash
flow a_u_me_s including _e funds and add_ional _i_ and funds made avaflab_ _om a
$23 minion cash basis surplus in 20_. NYCT_ cash basis budget p_e_ a $20 mill_n surplus _r fiscal
year 2_1. Ciff assistance in 2_1 to NY_ _e_g budget is $236 million, in add_ion to $137 mill_n
in re_ estate tax revenue deduced for NYCT_ use.

The NY_ _nand_ Plan _m_s_ budget gaps of $284 million, $388 million, $566 mill_n, and

$646 mili_n in 2_2 through 2005, mspe_Nd5 before the _p_mem_ of cash flow a_u_men_ and
ad_t_n_ _do_ng actions. The City_ _nan_al Plan does not require that NYCT_ out-year gaps be

funded. The City_ _nand_ Plan _sumes that the gaps in 2_2 through 2005 will be closed in pa_ by
increased user charges, p_d_tN_y measu_ reduced service levels, ad_fion_ management actions, or
some _mb_m_n of these a_n_



On April 19, 2000, the Me_opolRan Transpo_ation AuthorRy ("MTA") board approved a five-yea_

$18.1 billion capital plan for the MTA for 2000 through 2004 (the "2000-2004 Capk_ Program"), _duding

appro_mate_ $11.9 billion for NYCT, to be funded with Federal, State and City capital funds, MTA
bonds, and other MTA resource_ The 2000-2004 Capi_l Program includes $530 million in City capital

funds, as well as $345 million in City capital funds exchanged for proceeds _om the sale of the Col_eum.

The _h')0-2004 Capital Program was approved by the Cap_al Program Review Board ("CPRB"), the
State Le_ature and the Governo_

The 2000-2004 CapR_ Program fol_ws the $132 bilfion capital program for 1995 through 1999,

which included $9.3 billion for NYCT. The Ca_t_ Program for 1995 through 1999 supe_eded the

previous capital program for the period 1992 through 1996, which totaled $9.56 billion, with $7.4 billion
in proje_s for NYCZ

There can be no assurance that all the necessary government_ actions for the 2000-2004 CapR_
Program will be taken, that fund_g sources current_ identified will not be reduced or e_m_ate& or that
pa_s of the capital program will not be delayed or reduced. If the MTA_ capital program is delayed or
reduced, ride_hip and fare revenues may decline which could, among other things, impair the MTA's
ability to meet its operating expenses without addit_n_ as_s_nce.

On September 19, 2001, the MTA i_ued a _mement that certain portions of its operations were
affe_ed by the World Trade Cen_r d_as_ The MTA reported that damage occurred to tunne_, _afions
and in_a_ru_ure at transit sys_m _cm_ns at or around the Wodd Trade Cente_ The MTA expects that
insurance and federal disaster assistance funds will cover sub_anfi_ all of the prope_y losses related to

this event. The MTA continues to assess the long4erm impa_ of (1) any loss of fide_hip on the transit
sy_em caused by the property damage, (2) the d_ruption of traffic on certain bridges and tunnels, and (3)
State subsidies genermed by re_onal econom_ _ansa_ns, such as the re_onal sales and use tax and
ce_ain business taxes.

Board of Education

The S_sky-Goodman Act requires the City to alloca_ to the BOE an amount of funds _om the
total budget either equal to the average proportion of the total budget approprimed for the BOE in the
three preceding fiscal yea_ or an amount agreed upon by the City and the BOE. 31.02% of the City_
adopted budget for fiscal year 2002 is a_ocated to the BOE, exceeding the amount required by the
Sta_sky-Goodman Act. The Finan_ Plan a_umes student enrollment to be appro_ma_ly 1.1 million
in the 2001 through 2005 fiscal years.

Judgmen_ and C_ims

In the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2000, the CRy expended $49_7 million for judgmen_ and d_ms.
Expenditures for fiscal year 2001 are projected to reach $498.3 million. Commen_ng next yeaL the
Finan_ Plan includes provisions for judgmen_ and claims of $309.5 million, $325.7 million, $345.7 mil-
lion, and $369.2 million for the 2002 through 2005 fiscal yea_, respe_Nely. These proje_ions incorporate
the impa_ of a recent agreement between the City and HHC, whereb_ commenting in 2_E, d_ms co_s
attributed to HHC will be entirely paid for by HHC. These amount_ which have been deducted from the
City_ proje_ed annual liabifity, are e_im_ed at $154.0 million, $157_ million, $162.0 million and
$167.0 million for the 2002 through 2005 fiscal years, respe_el_ The City is a party to numerous lawsui_
and is the su_e_ of numerous claims and _ve_m_ns. The City has estimmed that its potenti_ future
l_fity on account of ou_mnding claims against it as of June 3_ 2000 amoun_d to appro_ma_ $3.6
billion. This e_imate was made by c_egorifing the various claims and applying a _ati_ mode, based
pfimari_ on a_ual seu_men_ by type of claim during the preceding ten fiscal yea_, and by

sup_ementing the e_imated liabH_y with informat_n supplied by the City_ Corporat_n Counsel. For
further informmion regarding certain of these d_ms, see "SECTION IX: OTHER |NFORMATION--
Lit_ation."

In addition to the above claims, numerous real estate tax certiorah proceedings _vol_ng a_egm_ns
of _equ_ity of assc_ment, illegalRy and overv_uat_n are cu_ent_ pending ag_n_ the Cit_ The C_y_
Finand_ Statements for the year ending June 30, 2000 include an e_imme that the City_ _abi_ty in the
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_omd _n_, as of June 30, 2_0, could amoum to appm_ma_ $540 mffi_n. Prov_ion has
been made in the Hnano_ Han _r esfim_ed refunds of $236 mffi_n, $230 ruffian, $253 m_on,

$258 milhon and $272 mflfion _r the 2_1 _h 2_5 fiscal yea_, __ _ _dudes provi_on
_r repurchase of p_v_u_y sold de_Ne tax liens. For fu_her _rm_n concerning these d_ms,

ce_n _medial _g_n _ _o _d the Cityg _tim_ of pme_M fia_5 see _E_N IX:
OTHER __N--__" and "A_END_ B--_NAN_AL STA_MEN_--No_s _
_nand_ _em_--N_e J."

3. DEBT SERVICE

Debt _e _tim_ _r the 2_1 through 2_5 fiscal years include e_ of debt se_e co_s
on om_an_ng _ty bonds and notes and future debt issuances based on current and p_e_ _ture
mark_ con_t_n_

Ce_n Repots

From time to time, the Control Board stafL OSDC, the City Com_r_ the IBO and others _sue
repots and make pubic _emen_ _g_ng the Cityg finand_ con_fion, comme_g on, among _her
mat_, the _ty_ financial plans, preened _venu_ and expenditures and a_ns by the _ to
_e preened oper_g defic_s. Some of these repots and _emems have warned that the _
may have und_fim_ed ce_ain expenditures and over.imbed ce_ain revenues and have sugge_ed
that the City may not have adequacy provided _r _ture contingende_ Ce_n of these repots have
ana_zed the _ty_ _ture econom_ and social con_ons and have que_ioned whether the _ has the
capa_ty to generate su_em revenues in the future to meet the costs of its expendRure increases and to
prov_e ne_y _. It is reasonab_ _ expe_ _ _po_s and _em_ _ continue to be _sued
and to engender public commem.

On O_ober 4, 2001, the _ty Com_l_r _ed a repo_ proposing a _amework _r _ _e
impa_ of the events of Se_ember 11 on the _ty_ economy and tax revenue_ In the repot, the _y
Com_r_ _tim_ed that job losses _r fiscal year 2_2 could total 115_ some of which may be
_a_d by activity _hfing to dean_ _p_r and reconstruction. In add_o_ the _po_ _fim_ed that
the risk to the City budget _om lost revenues _ng _om the even_ of Sep_mber 11 _ $738 m_fion
_r fiscal year 2_2 and $567 million _r fiscal year 2003, _r a total of $1.3 billion _r the two fisc_ years.
The agg_g_e $1.3 billion of preened _ revenues includes $473 mi_n _om s_es and h_d _s, _
mi_n _om business taxes, $195 mill_n _om prope_y taxes and $162 m_l_n _om personal _come
taxes, as well as p_e_ lost revenues _lming to the comm_o_ rent tax, _g v_s _d _o_
_es. The repo_ noted that its e_imm_ are w_m_y and will be revised as ad_tion_ __
becomes av_h_e. It can be expe_ed that other repots and _emen_, wh_h _11 provide va_g
_mems of the impa_ of the events of Se_emb_ 11 on the Ciff_ economy and tax revenues, will
continue to be i_ued.

On July 6, 2_1, the Ciff Com_ i_ued a repo_ on the _nano_ Plan. The repo_ w_e_ a
po_ible budget surplus of between $63 mill_n and $571 milton, induing the $345 milfion in the Budget
StabH_afion Account, _r _c_ year 2002, and budget gaps, including the gaps p_e_ in the _nan_
Plan, of b_ween $3.4 billion and $3.6 _m $<1 bilfion and $4.6 Nll_n, and $4.3 b_fion and $4.9 bflfion
in fiscal yea_ 2_3 _mugh 2005, respe_Nel5 depending upon wh_he_ (i) the _ff received $114 _
annually _om the _a__ stock _ans_r tax incentNe fund, wh_h the Governor has proposed
efim_m_ (ii) hbor com_s for fiscal yea_ 2003 _ugh 2_5 are settled at the rate of _c_ inflation
at a cost of $326 mill_n, $863 million and $1.4 bilfion, _spe_Nd5 or are settled at a rate consistent _th
new labor contra_s neg_imed b_ween the State and dvil _e em_oye_ at a co_ of $423 _,
$12 billion and $1.9 bi_ion, _spe_Nd_ and (iii) the _ty _ able to commie pmp_ed _s_ _s _t_g
$394 mi_n in fiscal year 2002, _du_ng _e sale of OTB, which requires State approval. Add_on_ risks
identified in the repo_ _r fiscal yea_ 2_2 through 2005 include: (i) _sumed payme_s _om the Po_
Amhofi_ relating to the _ff_ da_ _r back rentals, which are the su_e_ of ar_n; (ii) the rece_
of $125 mill_n in a_umed State and federal aid in fiscal year 2_2 and $150 mffi_n _ _sumed State and
_de_l aid in each of fiscal yea_ 2003 _mugh 2005, which has been proposed in prior yea_ _o_
success; (iii) po_ible increased ove_ime expend_ures of between $190 milfion and $320 mi_on in each



of fiscal years 2002 though 2_5; (iv) the wri_down of o_t_d_g education aid receivables of
$96 miil_n, $72 milfion, $1_ mill_n and $14 mill_n in fisc_ yea_ 2_2 through 2_5, _spe_d_ and
(_ the posfibl_y that pension _n_ will be g_a_r than _c_t in the _nan_ Plan by
$141 milhon, $346 mill_n and $541 miH_n in fiscal yea_ 2_3 _ugh 2_5, _spe_d5 due to
_ve_mem Io_es in _1 _ar 2_1 of &3%compa_d _ the 0% _v_tmem earnin_ _m_n _r fi_ai
year 2001 in the Hnand_ Plan. The repoa noted that these risks may be pa_ of_et by ad&tion_
_sou_ _r _1 yea_ 2_2 through 2_5, _dud_ff (i) the _h_ _ _ mili_n annu_ly in each
of fiscal years 2002 _mugh 2_5 _om the write-off of _ accrued in prior yea_ that do not
m_eriafiz_ (ii) possible debt service _vin_ of $50 mill_n in fiscal year 2002 and $1_ milfion annu_
in each of fiscal years 2_3 through 2005 _om the _n_ng _ o_and_g bond_ lower interest rates on
variable rate oN_s and _wer in.rest co_s on shonqerm debt; (iii) the p_ that tax revenues
will be _e_ _an _ in the _nand_ _an by $89 mill_n, $16 m_ $30 m_fion and $140 mflfion
in fiscal yea_ 2_2 through 2_5, _e_Ne_; and (N) the p_ that tax revenues will be greater
than _sumed in the NnandN Plan by $100 mig_n in fiscal year 2_2 and $200 milfion in each of fiscal
yea_ 2_3 Nmugh 2005 if the tax reduction program _ not approved by the State.

In _m the repo_ noted that the unions _N_em_g police and teache_ are not satisfied with
the wage smflemem agreed upon by D_i_ Counol 37 and the _ff _r Ne period enNng June 30, 2002,
and that each pe_enmge point increase above the Dgtri_ Coundl 37 _u_mem in teachers' salaries

would result in an addNonN cost of $56 million, and each percentage point increase in police salaries
would raise costs by $19 milfion. With _spe_ to HHC, the repo_ noted that the Ciff p_e_s a doNng
cash balance of $353 million _r fiscal year 2001, which the _ff _s HHC will use to dose a preened
oper_g defidt of $336 mill_n _r fiscal year 2002. In addNon, the repo_ noted that the _ff pr_e_s
__ _fiO_ _r HHC of between $332 mill_n and $366tuition in fiscal yea_ 2003 through 2_5, and
that the _ _ _ HHC m _h_ bud_t balance depend heavily on federal and State a_ns, work
_rce aUrition savings and unspedfied _n_. _nN_ the repo_ noted that the _ty_ economy _
weake_n_ as ev_enced by the deceleration in job growth and _come_enNtNe taxes, and that
confidence in the stock mark_ _mains, at best, shak_

On Augu_ 25, 1998, the Ciff CompuN_r i_ued a repo_ _e_ the cu_ent conNt_n of the
_ty_ mNor phys_al a_e_ and the cap_al expenNm_s _q_d to bring them to a _ate of good _pai_
The repo_ _tim_ed that the _p_d_e of appro_m_dy $91.83 billion wouN be _q_d over the
next decade to bring the Ciff_ _a_ru_ure to a _em_ sm_ of good repair and address new caNtN
needs already _e_& and that the Ciff_ current _n-_ar CapRal Str_egg together with NnNng
_cdved _om other sources, N p_d m pm_ approxim_e_ $52.08 N_on. Th_ represents the fir_
time the ComNm_er has issued such a repo_ since May 1979. The capRal need _entified in the 1979
repo_ was _N_e_ two times greater than the actual caNtN _nNt_ _r the period covered
by that repot. OMB notes that in the 1979 repoa, the _m_N_ _entified a cap_al need over seven
times greater than the capital budget then proposed by the Mayo_ The ComNm_ 1998 repo_
egimNes a capital need of appm_mm_y t_ce the amount of the cap_al spending proposed by the
Mayoe

The 1998 repo_ noted that the Ciff_ abii_y to meet all cap_al __s is lim_ed by la_ as well
as _nNng _p_i_ and that the issue _r the City is how be_ to set pri_ti_ and manage limRed
resources. The repo_ stated that its anN_ is not hm_ed to assets valued over $10 milfion. It _ noted that
the annual _ty canal a_et condNon survey as _q_d by se_ion 1110-a of the _ff Cha_er refiews
items valued at $10 mill_n or more. The repo_ also includes m_or sys_ms like traffic s_nN _s_ms,
street l_htinN the Ea_ RNer bridges and assets leased to the _an_t Au_o_y and the _ter Board. The
repo_ findings relate only to current in_a_ru_u_ and do not address future capad_ or technology
needs. While the repo_ indicates that the demands of the Ci_ in_a_ru_ure ou_rip the City_ abiliff
to pay _r Nem, the repo_ identifies several pme_N aRern_Ne m_hods _r capital finandn&

On Ju_ 11, 2001, the _aff of the OSDC i_ued a repo_ on the _nandN Plan. _e repo_ noted that
fiscal year 2_1 has a su_lus of _pmx_Oy $Z9 bffi_n reflected in the Budget _aNfizm_n Accoum.
In addNo_ the repo_ _e_ed net risks of $480 mill_n, $977 million, $1.8 b_fion and $2.4 biihon _r
fiscal yea_ 2_2 thm_h 2_5, _spe_Nd5 wh_ when added to the gaps preened _ the NnandN Plan,



would result in gaps of $480 million, $3.8 billion, $4.4 billion and $4.6 billion in fiscal years 2002 through

2005, _spe_Ne_ The risks identified in the report indudc& (i) the p_em_ _r ad_t_n_ wage co_s

of $233 mill_n, $735 million and $1.2 billion in fiscal yca_ 2_3 through 2_5, _e_ beyond the
amoun_ _sumed in the _nand_ Plan labor reserve, to reflect wage increases at the p_e_ed rate of

infl_m (ii) the a_umed _cei_ of $150 million in _deml and State aid in each of fiscal yea_ 2002

through 2005; (iii) delays in _i_ of Port A_hor_ lease payments a_umed in the _nand_ Plan; (iv)

the possible loss of $114 million in each of fiscal yea_ 2_1 through 2_5 if the Gov_nor_ pmp_al to
_e the S_te ap_opfi_n to the stock tmns_r tax incentive fund is enacted by the State

Le_u_; (v) the posfible writ-down of o_an_ng State educ_n aid _ceNa_es of $63 mill_n,
$72 mill_n and $104 million in fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2_4, _ti_ (vi) addRional pcnsion

contributions of $75 million, $210 million and $335 mffi_n in fiscal yea_ 2003 through 2_5, _e_Ne_
to reflect the 7.8% loss in value of the City_ five pension funds through June 25, 2_)1 and to take into
account teache_' summer school salafie_ (vii) posfible ad_t_n_ __ _r health insurance
totaling between $145 million and $180 million in each of fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2005; (viii) the
po_i_l_y of increased ove_ime spending of $50 million in fiscal year 2_2 and $150 million in each of
fiscal years 2003 through 2005; (ix) the _i_ _ _e pm_e_ of $250 million in fiscal year 2002 _om the

sale of OTB, which _qui_s State appm_k (x) p_e increased Med_aid costs of $15 million,
$40 mill_n, $70 mill_n and $200 mill_n in fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2005, __ as a result of
pmv_ing benefits to indigent legal immi_ and other increased co_s; and (xi) the _m_n in the
_nand_ Plan that the State will allow the City to use between $183 mill_n and $247 million annually of
State education aid to fund BOE wage increases. The report noted that the risks could be panhl_ of_ct
by the posfibifity that tax and m_cdhneo_ revenues could exceed _s in the _nand_ Plan by
$150 mill_n in fiscal year 2_1 and _een $250 million and $330 mill_n in each of fiscal years 2002
through 2_5 and by the posfibil_y of addit_n_ revenues if the tax _du_n program is not appm_d
by the State.

The report also noted that _e p_e_ gaps are among the h_e_ ever preened by the _t_ at this
point in the financial planning proce_, since the budget was fi_t balanced in accordance with GAAP in
fiscal year 1981. The repo_ _aher noted that the economy is showing signs of slowing down, and
exp_ed concerns about the Cityg less conse_Ne _11 Street profit _s for fiscal years 2_3
through 2_5, which equal the profits of the 1995-98 period of the bull manet. In ad_t_n, the report
noted that: (i) collective ba_n_g c_ could be higher by $44 m_n in fiscal year 2002 and $70 mill_n
annually therea_er _r each addRional one percent increase in wages _r teachers and police officc_
above the DC 37 _bor ag_eme_; (ii) City spending _r educ_n could be _e_er _an _sumed in the
_nand_ Plan, if the State ena_s _n tig_en_g minimum _nding _q_men_ for BOE and
other large urban school _fi_s in the State; (iii) HHC faces budget gaps _aning in fiscal year 2_3 in
excess of $400 million annu_ a_er _king _ _u_ the shi_ to managed care and p_e_l c_Ne
ba_n_g cos_, which may _qui_ ad_tion_ _y __; and (iv) the size of the Federal block grant
_r public __ _y be reduced in fiscal year _03 b_au_ _ la_e _du_ns in the public _s_a_e
casdoads n_n_ and caseloads may rise if there is a su_ned downturn in the econom_

On July 11, 2001, the staff of the Control Board issued a repo_ _ewing the _nand_ Plan. While

the report _em_ed n_ risks of $465 mill_n _r fi_al year 2002, the report noted that, absent unforeseen
changes to the City_ econom_ the City_ budget, if managed pmpefl_ should be balanced at the end of
fiscal year 2002. With respect to fiscal years _03 through 2005, the report _em_ed net risks of
$801 mill_n, $1.2 billion and $1.3 billion, _spe_Nd_ which, when com_ncd with the gaps preened in
the _nand_ Plan, rcsuR in e_im_ed gaps of $3.6 billion. $3.8 billion and $3.5 billion for fiscal yea_ 2_B
through 2005, _e_Ne_ The risks _e_ed in the report _dude& (i) the _sumed receipt of b_ween
$209 mill_n and $255 million in federal and State aid in each of fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2_5, induing
the _sumed _t by the City of funds from the State to offset c_c_Ne bargaining costs at BOE; (ii)
pension costs which could exceed those _sumed in the _nand_ Plan by $41 mill_n, $102 million,
$182 million and $384 million in fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2_5, _spe_N_ due to pension inve_ment
losses in fiscal year 2001; (iii) delays in the _c_ of Port A_hofiff lease paymen_ a_umed in the
_nan_ Plan; (iv) the possible loss of $114 million _r each of fiscal years 2002 though 2005 if the
Govemor_ proposal to _me _nding _r a payment to the City #om the stock t_ns_r tax incentive



fund is implemente& (v) the possible write-down of funds owed to BOE by the State which have been
outstanding for ten or more yea_, and the posfible _ilure of the State to resume teacher suppo_ aid for

the CR5 at a co_ of $112 million, $121 million, $153 million and $63 million in fiscal years 2002 through
2005, respeONe_; (vi) possible increased ove_ime costs of between $101 million and $187 million

annu_l_ (vii) _creased waste disposal costs of between $20 m_lion and $26 million in each of fiscal yea_
2002 through 2005; (viii) the receipt of proceeds of $350 m_ion in fiscal year 2002 from the proposed sale

of OTB and other a_ets; and (ix) increased expen_tures of $35 million, $50 million, $60 million and

$70 million in fiscal years 2002 through 2005, respectively, to reimbu_e eligible City retirees for Medicare
Pa_ B premium_ Howeve_ the repo_ also noted that (i) non-prope_y taxes and tax lien sales could be

$420 million and $150 million greater than foreca_ in the Finano_ Plan for fiscal yea_ 2002 and 2003,

respe_Nd_ and (ii) other m_cdhneous revenues could be $100 million grea_r than foreca_ in the
Finand_ Plan for each of fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2005.

In its report, the staff noted that the Finand_ Plan does not include funds for se_men_ being
sought by teache_ and uniformed em_oyees greater than the DC 37 sett_menL and does not prov_e for

wage increases beyond the current round of c_Ne barga_ing for any emp_yees. The repo_ noted

that if the City were to agree to contra_s with its uniformed employees and teache_ that exceeded the
DC 37 settlement by 1% on the fi_t day of the contra_, the add_ion_ cost to the City would be

$113 million in fiscal year 2002 and $115 mill_n in subsequent years, and th_ if the City were to agree
to an ad_tion_ 1% increase commenting in the second yea_ the cost to the City of both increases would

co_ the City $194.4 million in fiscal year 2002 and $230.6 million in 2003 above amounts a_umed in the

Finand_ Plan. In addition, the repo_ expre_ed concern about potential sho_f_ in funding for BOE,
unce_nt_s concerning fitigation _voN_g minimum school funding req_remen_ and unce_nt_s

concerning the amount of State education aid to be prodded when the State budget for its 2001-2002 fiscal
year _ adopted. Finall5 the repo_ noted that the econom_ boom of the past several yea_ appea_ to be

_owing, if not _oppin_ that, for the fi_t time since the 1995 fiscal yea_ tax receipts appear likely to
decline, due to tax cuts and the slipping economy; and that the City must develop the recurring initiatNes
nece_ary to of_et large preened out-year gaps.

Long-Term Capital and Finan_ng Program

The City makes sub_anti_ capital expend_ures to recon_ruct and rehabilitate the City_ infastru_
ture and physical assets, in_uding City mass transit _dlit_ sewe_, _reets, bridges and tunnels, and to

make capital investments that will improve producti_ty in City operations.

The City utilizes a three-tiered capital planning process consisting of the Ten-Year Ca_tal Strateg_
the Four-Year Capital Plan and the cu_ent_ear Cap_ Budget. The Ten-Year Cap_ Strategy is a

long-term planning tool designed to refle_ fundament_ _locafion choices and basic policy o_ectives.
The Fou_Year Capital Program _an_ates mid-range pohcy goals into specific projects. The Ca_tal

Budget defines specific proje_s and the timing of thor _itiation, design, con_ru_ion and completion.

City-funded comm_ment_ which were $344 million in 1979, are proje_ed to reach $6.4 billion in
2001. City-funded expenditures, which more than tripod between fiscal years 1980 and 1985, are forecast

at $4.4 billion in the 2001 fiscal year; total expend_ures are foreca_ at $4.9 billion in 2001. For addRion_
information concerning the City_ cap_al expen_tures and the Ten-Year Capital Strategy covering fiscal

yea_ 2002 through 2011, see "SECTION V: C_TY SERVICES AND _XPENDITURES--Capit_ Expend_ure_"

The following table sets fo_h the m_or areas of cap_al comm_ment preened for the 2001 through
2005 fiscal yea_. See "SECTION V: CITY SERVICES AND EXPeNDITURES--Capital Expenditures." See

"SECTION VIII: INDEBTEDNESS--Indebtedness of the City and Ce_ain Other _nt_ies--Limitations on
the Ci_ k Au&o_ to Contra_ Indeb_dnes_ "
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2001-2005 CAPITAL COMMITMENT PLAN

20_1 2002 2003 2004 2005

City All City AH City All City AH City AH
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds

On Millions)

Mass Transi_l) ................... $ 120 $ 120 $ 4_1 $ 451 $ 106 $ 106 $ 106 $ 106 $ 106 $ 106

Roadwa_ Bridges ................. 571 719 851 1_21 1,168 1003 1_84 1330 777 817

En_ronmem_ Pr_ection_) .......... 2,115 2225 2_90 2,166 2_37 2,662 1_88 1fi58 782 807

Education ....................... 2266 2397 1,164 1,174 1,113 1,123 1,136 1,146 1272 1272

Hous_g ........................ 400 528 387 566 371 494 322 446 418 532

SanCtion ....................... 204 218 293 293 137 137 316 316 329 329

City Oper_n_Fad_s ............ 3,625 3£05 2_95 2585 1211 1271 1_95 1,138 926 989

Econom_ and Po_ Devdopment ...... 560 716 363 553 203 232 57 57 86 86

Reserve _r Un_med CommRmems... (3349) OA4_ (425) _25) 87 87 430 430 565 565

Total Commitmem_3) ............ $@413 $7280 $7£69 $8_84 $7_32 $7_15 $@235 $6fi28 $5261 $5_03

Total Expenditures(4) ............. $ 4_07 $ 4_23 $6,159 $6fi82 $5,899 $6fi09 $6384 $6969 $6_39 $6_80

Nine: Numbe_ may not tally due to roun_n&

(1) Excludes NYCT_ non-CiW ponmn of the MTA's fivesear Ca_t_ Pro_am.

(2) Includes water supply, wacr mmns, water pd_fion comrol, sewer projects and rd_ed eq_pmem.

(3) Commitmen_ represent contracts rendered with the Ci_ Comptroller, exce_ _r ce_n pr_ects wh_h are undertaken

j_m_ by the Ci_ and Sm_.

_) Expen_res represent cash paymems and appropfiat_ns _anned to be expended _r ca_t_ co_s, exdu_ng amours _r
ori#n_ _sue _scoum.

The fo_owing table sets forth the City_ planned financing program for the 2002 through 2005 fiscal
years. See "SECTIONVIII: INDEBTEDNESS--Indebtedness of the City and Certain Other Entities"

2002-2005 FINANCING PROGRAM

2002 2003 2004 2005 To_l

(In Millions)

City General Obligation Bonds .......... $2,025 $1,785 $2_35 $4_30 $10,575
Finance Authority Bonds(l) ............. _350 1,500 1,147 0 3,997
TSASC Bonds(2) ....................... 715 695 630 0 2,040
Water Authority Bonds(3) ............... 1,945 1,816 2,007 1,919 7,687
DASNY and Other Condu_ Debt(4) ..... 1_22 396 290 388 2_96

Total ........................... $7,757 $6,192 $6,609 $6_37 $27,095

Note: Totals may not add due to roundin&

(1) Finance Authority Bonds excludes bonds issued to defease bond anticipation notes and bonds and notes issued to pay costs

related to the September 11 attack and includes other bond anticipation notes and capitM_ed interest thereon.

(2) TSASC Bonds includes a $150 million loan pursuant to the Transpo_ation Inka_ructure Finance and Innovation A_
("TIFIA'_ eshmated to be drawn down by $85 million in fiscal year 2002 and $65 million in fiscM year 2003. The _ze of future

TSASC bond issues will be appro_mate_ $630 million each in fiscal years 2002, 2003 and 200_ The City expects to derive totM

net proceeds of appro_matdy $1_ billion from TSASC for capitM purposes, including the $150 million TIFIA loan, in addition
to the $604 million of proceeds _om the November 1999 TSASC finanon_

(3) Water Authority Bonds includes commerdM paper and ce_ain revenue bonds hsued to date and expected to be issued for the

water and sewer systemh capitM program, and includes reserve amount_ Figures do not include bonds that defease commeroM
pape_

(4) DASNY and Other Conduit Debt includes DASNY financing of the City cou_ capital program, three HHC project_ Jay Street

Devdopment Corp. finanong of the 330 Jay Street proje_, New York City Indu_riM Devdopment Agency finanong of the

New York Stock Exchange project, and other conduit finandngs. The amounts reflected in fiscal years 2002 through 2005

include a totM Mlocation for reserve funds and other co_s of issuance during the period of $403 million.
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A Federal la_ the Americans with D_aNI_ A_ of 1990, generally _q_s that vadous _dfifi_

be made acces_b_ to d_abled pe_ons. The _ty continues m a_ a_s that are required to comp_
with the la_ The _ty may incur _mi_ ad_tion_ cap_al expendRure_ as well as ad_t_n_
_e_i_ expens_ to comp_ with the la_ Com_ me.urns which mqu_e ad_t_n_ _pRal
me.urns are expe_ed to be achieved thmu_ the m_c_n of existing funds wRhin the City_ capRal
pro_am. In addR_n, the _ty could incur sub_ant_l addR_n_ capital expend_ures _r school
con_ru_n if _mrn_Ne pmpm_s to relieve o_mwding in the public schoo_ are not developed and
im_emen_&

C_nt_ if all _ty capRal pr_e_s were imp_men_& expendi_r_ would exceed the Oty_
financing pr_e_ in the current fiscal year and _equem yea_. The Oty has _e_ e_abl_hed
capital _i_ _t_ to main_ capital expense,s wRhin _e av_e _n_e_ finan_n_ Due
to the size and com_e_ of the City_ cap_al pro_am, it is di_cult to _ p_ the tim_g of
capRal pr_e_ a_Nity so that actual capital _n_u_ may vary from the planned annual amount.

The Ci_ _u_year finan_ng program and capaal prog_m includes the issuance of revenue bonds
by the Finance A_ho6_ and tobacco _tOemem bonds by TSASC to p_vide _r _p_ finan_ng needs
of the Cit_ The bonds issued by the Finance Amh_ are secured by the City_ pe_onal income tax
revenue, and other revenues _ pe_onal income tax revenues do not _t_ spe_fied debt serv_e ratios,
and am not su_e_ to the _n_k_ debt _Dm The _nan_ Au_ori_ is authorized to issue
$11.5 billion of bonds and notes _r Oty capital purposes and to have __ $2.5 bi_ion of bonds
and notes to pay costs related to the Se_emb_ 11 attack. Bonds issued by TSASC will be payable _om
funds derived _om the _em_t of l_n with tobacco compan_s selling _gareues in the UnReal
States and will not be su_e_ to the _n_Rm_n_ debt _m_n. See "SEC_ON VIII: IND_DN_S--
_de_edn_s of the City and Ce_ain Other Entiti_--L_m on _e _ Au_o_ _ _n_

The _ty_ current _u_year finan_ng prog_m and capital prog_m includes the issuance of water
and sewer _venue bond_ The _ter A_hori_ is authorized to i_ue bonds to finance ca_l _v_tme_
in the _ty_ water and sewer sy_em. Pursuant to State la_ debt service on this _de_edn_s is secured
by water and sewer _es paid by use_ of the water and sewer _em. Such fees are revenues of _ _r
Board and the Water Board holds a lease interest in the _ty_ water and sewer sy_em. A_er pro_ng
_r debt service on ob_gations of the _ter Amh_ and ce_ain _denml cost_ the revenues of the
_ter Board are paid to the City to cover the C_y_ costs of _e_i_ the water and sewer sy_em and
as rental for the sy_em. The _ty_ _n-_ Ca_t_ _gy covering fiscal yea_ 2_2 through 20ll
p_e_s _4un_d water and sewer _ve_me_ (wh_h _ expec_d to be financed with p_e_ of
_ter Amho6_ de_) at app_ma_ _.16 billion of_e $51_ _H_n _t_ potion of the plan.

The City is su_e_ to _m_y and _l_y _andards _l_ing to the qual_y of its dfin_ng w_e_
The City_ water supply now meets all _chn_al _andards and the City_ current ef_r_ are di_ed
_waM p_ion of the wa_hed a_a. A full scale water _e_ment _61i_ to filter Croton _em w_
is required under a Federal consent decree. State and Federal _l_s _qui_ the Ci_ water supply
to meet ce_ain _andards to avoid fi_ration of the C_skH_De_w_e water supply _em. The City has
taken the pos_ion that increased _g_ en_emem and other e_rts to pro_ its water suppl_
relating to such m_te_ as land use and sewage _e_mem, will preserve the high quality of water in the
Ca_lUDe_wam water supply sy_em and prevent the need for fi_t_n. In accordance with the New
_rk _ Wa_d Mem_andum of Ag_eme_ which was signed on Janua_ 21, 1997, among the Ci_
the St_e, the U.S. En_nmem_ _e_n A_n_ C_E_ the commune,s in the C_s_l_
Delawa_ and C_ton wa_heds and seve_l en_nmem_ _ou_, on May 6, 1_7, USE_ g_n_d the
_ty a filtration avoidance waiver through Ap61 15, 2002. The City has e_m_ that if fiRration of the
Ca_kii_D_awa_ water supply _em is u_m_e_ _q_m& the con_ruction expendRures required
could be between $3 billion and $4 billion.

Im_em_n of the capital plan is dependent upon the City_ abi_ty to ma_ its securities
su_s_l_ in the public credit ma_e_. The terms and the success of preened public s_es of _ty
general o_n bonds, _ter Au_ofi_ Finance A_ho_ and HHC revenue bonds and TSASC



bonds will be subje_ to prevNfing market condit_ns at the times of sa_. No assurance can be _ven that

the credit marke_ will absorb the projc_ed amounts of publ_ bond sales. As a fignificant potion of bond
financing is used to reimbu_e the City_ General Fund for capital expenditures already incurred, if the

City is unable to sell such amounts of bonds it would have an adverse effect on the City_ cash position.

In addition, the need of the City to fund future debt service cogs from current operations may also limit
the City_ capital program. The Ten-Year Capital Strategy for fiscal yea_ 2002 through Nil 1 totals $54.4

billion, of which appro_mate_ 95% is to be financed with City funds. See "SEcnON VHI: INDEBTEDNESS
--Indebtedness of the City and Cc_ain Other Entities--Limitations on the Ci_ X Authod_ to Con_a_

Indebwdness". CongresfionN devdopmenls affect_g Federal taxation general_ could reduce the market
value of tax-favored _ve_ments and increase the City_ debbservice costs in carrying out the cu_ent_

tax-exempt m_or potion of its capital plan. For _formation concerning litigation which, if determined

against the Cit5 could have an adverse impa_ on the amount of debt the City can have outstanding under
the general debt limit (defined as 10% of the average full value of taxable real estate in the City for the

most recent five yea_), see "SECTION IX: OTHER ]NFORMATlON--Lit_ation--TaxeL"

In December 2000, the City issued its annual asse_ment of the a_et condition and a proposed

mNntenance schedule for its assets and asset sys_ms which have a replacement cost of $10 million or

more and a useful li_ of at least ten yea_, as required by the City Cha_er (the "AIMS Repot'). This

repo_ does not refle_ any polly confiderafions wh_h could affc_ the appropriate amount of _ve_mcnL

such as whether there is a continuing need for a paakuNr faNlity or whether there have been changes in
the use of a faNlit_ The AIMS Repo_ c_imated that $4.67 billion in capital investment was needed for
fiscal yea_ 2002 through 2005 to bring the assets to a state of good repai_ The report also e_imated that

$173 million, $129 million, $185 million and $154 million should be spent on mNntenance in fiscal yea_

2002 through 2005, rcspeoNd_

The recommended capital invemment for each inventoried asset is not readily comparab_ to the

capital spending allocated by the City in the Fou_Year Capital Plan and the Ten-Year CapRal Stratcg_
Only a portion of the funding set fo_h in the Fou_Year Capital Plan is Nlocatcd to speNfical_ identificd

assets, and funding in the subsequent yea_ of the Ten-Year Capital Stratcgy is even less idcnt_ab_ with
indNiduN assets. Therefore, there is a sub_antNl difference between the amount of investment

recommended in the report for all inventoried City assets and amoun_ allocated to the spedficM_

identified inventoried assets in the Fou_Year Caotal Plan. The City also issues an annual report (the

"Recondfiation Repot') that compares the recommended capital investment with the capital spending
allocated by the City in the Fou_Year Capital Plan to the spedficN_ identified inventoried assets.

The most recent Reconciliation Repot, in April 2001, concluded that the capital _ve_ment in the
Four-Year Capital Plan for the spedfic_ identified inventoried assets funds 67% of the total _ve_mcnt

recommended in the preceding AIMS Repo_ issued in December 2000. Capital invc_ment allocated in

the Ten-Year Capital Strategy published in April 2001 will fund an additional portion of the recom-
mended inve_ment. In the same Recond_afion Repot, OMB estimated that 53% of the expense

mNntcnance levels recommended were included in the financial plan, compared to 57% of the expense

mNntenancc levels included in the previous yean

New York City Recovery Finandng

q_c Finance Authority issued $1 billion of recovery notes on O_ober 4, 2001 to pay costs related to
the Septcmbcr _1, 2001 attack on the World Trade Cente_ The Finance Authority note proceeds may be
ufil_ed to accommodate cash needs resulting _om time _ffcrenccs between paymcnt by the City of costs

related to thc September 11 attack and receipt of Federal rcimbu_emcnt for such costs, or to meet other
City cash req_rcmen_ caused by such events. Such notes may be paid with Finance Authority revenues

(with the resulting redu_ion in City tax revenues to be of Net by Federal aid or other sources) or proceeds
of renewal notes or bonds of the Finance Authority (which would also reduce tax revenues to the City).
The Finance Authority is authorized to have out_anding $2.5 billion of bonds or notes the proceeds of
which are to bc used to pay costs related to the September 11 attack.
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Seasonal Finandng Requiremen_

The City since 1981 has fully satisfied its seasonal financing needs in the publ_ credit markets,

repaying aft shod-term obligations within their fiscal year of _suance. The City anticipates that its
seasonal financing need for its 2002 fiscal year will be satisfied by the issue of $1.5 billion of shor_term

obl_ations on O_ober 23, 2001. To finance its projected cash flow needs, the City issued $750 million of
shon4erm obl_ations in fiscal year 2001, and issued $750 million of shor_rm obl_ations in fiscal year

200_ $500 million of sho_qerm obl_atons in fiscal year 1999, $[.075 billion of sho_qerm ob[_ations in

fiscal year 1998 and $2A billion of shonqerm obhgations in fiscal year 1997. The delay in the adoption of
the State% budget in certain past fiscal years has required the City to issue shon_erm notes in amoun_

exceeding those expected early in such fiscal yea_.

SECTION VIIi: INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedne_ of the C_y and Ce_n Other Entities

Ou_mnd_g City, MAC and PBC Indeb_dness

The fo_owing table sets fo_h out_anding _debtedness having an initial maturity greater than one
year _om the date of issuance of the Cit_ MAC and the PBCs as of June 30, 2001.

(in Thousand_

Gross City Longq%rm Indebtedness(l) ...................... $_6,835,790

Less: A_ets Held for Debt Serv_e(1) ..................... 1_26A26

Net City Long-Term Indeb_dness ....................... $25,609,364

Gross MAC Long-Term Indebtedne_(2) ..................... 3,217,036

Less: A_e_ Held for Debt Serv_e(2) ..................... 1,198A62

Net MAC Long-Term Indebtedness ..................... 2,018,574

PBC Indeb_dnes_3)

Bonds Payable .......................................... 541,100

Caotal Lease Obl_ations ................................ 1_02,904

Gross PBC Indeb_dness ............................... 1,844,004
Less: A_ets Held for Debt Service ...................... 3_0_74

Net PBC Indebtedness ................................. 1533_30

Combined Net Cit_ MAC and PBC Indeb_dness ....... $29,161,668

(1) With _spect to City Mng-term mde_edness, "A_s Hdd _r Dc_ Scrv_e" con_s of Genc_l DeM Sc_e Fund a_e_, and

$8_4 milli{m pfindpM amoum of City scrim bonds held by MAC. Amoums do not include the mdeMedness of the _nance
Amhori_ and ]SASC, which were $7386 mdl_n and $704 m_l_n, _spe_Nel_ as of June 3_ _D1. Sec "APPENDIX B--
_NAN_AL _l'A]_MEN'l_--Notes to _nandM _eme_s--Notes D. E, F and J."

(2) With respect to MAC indebtednes_ "A_s Held for Debt Ser_ce" con_s_ of assets held in MAC_ deM service funds less

accrued liabilflies for _tere_ payable on MAC Mng-term _deb_dncss plus amoums hdd in reserve funds _r paymem of
pfindpM of and _ on MAC bonds. Other MAC _ndL while not spedficM_ #edged for _c paymem of principal of and

mtere_ on MAC bonds, a_ also availa_e for these purpose_ For fu_her _formMion _garding MAC indebtedne_ and a_e_

held for debt service, see "Municipal AsM_ance Corporation Indebtednesg' below and "APPENDIX B--_NAN_AL
STA]_MEN_--N_cs to _nandM _Memems--N_es C and J."

(3) "PBC IndebtednesS' refers to City o_gm_ns to PBCs. For further in_rmm_n _gar_ng the indebtedne_ of cenMn PBCs,
see "PuMic Benefit CorporM_n lndc_ednes_ below and "APPENDIX B--FINAN_AL _IN[EMEN]\S--Notes to _nandM

_emems--N_es 1 and JY "PBC lndebtedncs_ does not include the _deMedness of _%duM PBCs whkh are En_rpfise
Fund_ _r further in_rmahon mgar_ng the _deMedness of Emerpri_ Funds PBCs, see "APPENDIX B--_NAN_AL
STatEMENTs--NInes to _nancial _a_me_s--N_es L, M, N, O and E"



_ m _n_g _t _ _C _d _C _b_

The __ _e shows the trend in the __ net _n_m and nel sho_A_m debt of the

Ci_ and MAC and in net PBC _deb_dn_s as of June 30 of each of the fiscal yea_ 1989 _ugh 2_l.

Compone_

_ MAC_) UnR and

N_e_ _°_e_ _ _°_e_ Gua_n_e_e_) _t_

On M_m)

1989 .................... $ 9,332 $-- $6,082 $ -- $ 780 $16,194

1990 .................... 11379 -- 5,713 -- 782 18,274

1991 .................... 15,293 -- 5,265 -- 803 21,361

1992 .................... 17,916 -- 4,657 -- 782 23_55

1993 .................... 19,624 -- 4_70 -- 768 24,862
1994 .................... 21,73l -- 4215 -- 1,114 27,060

1995 .................... 23258 -- 4_33 -- 1,098 28 389

1996 .................... 25_52 -- 3_36 -- 1,155 30 143

1997 .................... 26,180 -- 3,717 -- 1,182 31 079

1998 .................... 25_17 -- 3,108 -- 1,129 30 154

1999 .................... 26,287 -- 2,809 -- 1_03 30 499
2_ .................... 25,543 -- 2_77 -- 1,575 29 595

200l .................... 25,609 -- 2_19 -- 1,533 29 162

Amoums do not _dude debt of the City hdd by MAC. See "Outstanding Ci_ MAC and PBC _debtedness--no_ 2."
Amours do not _dude _de_edness of the _nancc A_hofi_ and TSASC, which were $7_86 miU_n and $704 million,
_spect_d_ as of June 30, 2001. See "APPENDIX B--_NANCIAI. STNYEMENTS--N_ tO _nan_ _a_men_--N_ D, E.
F and J."

MAC _Fo_ed o_an_rg _ng-term indebtcd_e_ without _du_n _r _rves, as _How_ $7,307 raison, $6,_)1 mffi_
$6_71 mi_on, $5559 m_n, $5,304 mill_ $4,891 m_m $4fi94 mill_n, $4563 mi_n, $4267 mffi_n, $3_95 raison,

$3,532 million, $3217 mffi_n and $_217 miH_n as of June 30 of each of the yea_ 1989 _rough 2001.
Net of rese_es. See "O_an_ng Indeb_dness--no_ 2." Componcnt Units are PBCs indudcd in the Ci_ finan_

_a_mems other than PBCs wh_h _e Emerpfi_ Funds. F_ mere information concerning Componem Unit PBC_ _e "Pubfic
Bene_ Corpor_n Inde_edn_ below and "APPEND_ B--_NAN_AI. STNrEMENTS--N_es to _nan_ Statemems--

Notes 1 and J." Fcr mo_ in_rm_n Concerning En_pn_ Funds PBCs, _e "APPENDIX B--_NAN_AI. STATEMENTS--
No_s to _nan_ _a_men_--N_ _ M, N, O and E"

C_c_afions of net MAC indeb_dness _dude _e total bonds outstan_ng under MAC_ 1991 Gene_l Bond Rcs_ufions and

accrued intere_ on those bonds less _e amoun_ held by MAC in its debt service and _e _nds.

Rapidity of P_ncipal Re6rement

The following table details, as of June 30, 200l, the cumulatNe percentage of total City general

obligation debt outstanding that is scheduled to be retired in accordance with _s terms in each prospective
five-year period.

5 years 25.95%
10 years 50.53

15 yea_ 71.40

20 years 87.70

25 years 97.72

30 years 99.87



City, MAC and Ci_uaran_ed PBC Debt Serv_e Requiremen_

The fol_w_g table summarizes future debt serv_e _quirements, as of March 31, 2001, on Ci_ and
MAC term and serial bonds o_an_ng and City-guaran_ed debt of and capital lease obligations to
certain PBCs.

Componem

City Lon_Term Debt U_t andCity MAC
Pdn_p_ Gu_an_ed Fund_g

_ Years of Bond_ l_e_(1) De_) Requirements Tot_
(In Thou_nd_

2002 ...................... $ 185,994 $ 445,659 $ 175242 $ 506214 $ 3,445flll

2003 ...................... 1N14_64 134_291 181_38 506,385 3N52_78
2004 ...................... 1_3_528 1274,643 181,613 50_296 3,393,080

2005 ...................... 1Nl1_61 1217N32 180N60 495,880 3305233

2006 through 2147 .......... 21,166,817 10_21376 2,587,240 1A85,149 35_60fi82

Total .................... $25_09364 $15,008,801 $3305_93 $3A99_24 $4955_682

(1) Includes debt ser_ on general o_n bonds onl_ See "APPENDIX B--_NAN_AL STATEMENTS--N_ to _nand_
_emen_--Notes D, E, F and J."

(2) Componem U_ts are PBCs included in the Ci_S finand_ _emems _her _an PBCs wh_h are Em_pri_ Fund_ For

ad_fion_ _rmafion concerning these PBCs, see "Pubfic Benefit Co_n Indebtedne_" be_w and "APPENDIX
B--_NAN_AL STATEMENTS--N_ _ _nan_ _emems--Nm_ I and J." Fcr morn m_rm_mn COhering Enterprise
Fun_ PBC_ _e "APPEND_ B--_NANOAL STATEMENTS--N_ to _nand_ _emems--No_s L, M, N, O and E"

(3) Amoum _own _ for fi_ years 2005 _rough 200&

Ce_ain Debt Ra_os

The following tab_ se_ fo_h information for each of the fiscal yea_ 1989 through 2000, with respect
to the approximate ratio of debt to certain econom_ factors. As used in this table, debt includes net Cit5
MAC, Finance Authority, TSASC and PBC debt.

De_ _ % of Tot_
Taxa_e Re_

Property By

Debt EsfimMed
Per A_e_ed Full

_ Ye_ Capita VaCation VaCation(I)

1989 ............................................ $2202 25.4% 4.6%

1990 ............................................ 2A90 26.0 4.5

1991 ............................................ 2,920 28.0 4.5

1992 ............................................ 3,193 27.9 3.9
1993 ............................................ 3,388 30.4 3.8

1994 ............................................ 3,687 34.1 3.7

1995 ............................................ 3,892 37.2 4.1
1996 ............................................ 4,122 39.2 7.1

1997 ............................................ 4_18 40.2 8.3

1998 ............................................ 4,363 41.0 9.0
1999 ............................................ 4,662 42.2 10.4

2000 ............................................ 4_54 42.0 10.6

Source: Comp_hen_ve Annum _nand_ Repo_ of the Com_roller _r the _scal Ye_ Ended June 30, 20_.

(1) Based on fu_ vNuafions _r e_h _1 ye_ derived _om _e apN_N_n _ the special equM_n r_io _po_ed by the State
Board _r such fi_M yea_

51



of Debt to Personal Income

The following table sets fo_h, for each of fiscal yea_ 1984 through 1998, debt per capffa as a
percentage of pe_onal income per capita in current doHa_. As used in this table, debt includes net Cit_

Finance Authorit_ TSASC and PBC debt.

Debt Debt per Capita
Per Pe_on_ Income as % of Pe_on_

F_cal Ye_ Capita perCapit_D _come perCapita

1984 .............................. $1,695 $15,881 10_7%

1985 .............................. 1,723 16,919 10.18

1986 .............................. 1_33 18,318 10_1

1987 .............................. 1,893 19,488 9.71
1988 .............................. 2,041 21,479 9.50

1989 .............................. 2202 23,004 9.57

1990 .............................. 2A90 24,893 10.00

1991 .............................. 2,920 25597 11A2

1992 .............................. 3,193 27 331 11.68
1993 .............................. 3338 27 677 12.06

1994 .............................. 3,687 26 435 13.95

1995 .............................. 3_92 30 192 12.89

1996 .............................. 4,122 32 147 12.82

1997 .............................. 4,218 33 192 12.71

1998 .............................. 4,363 35 007 12.46

Comp_he_e Annum _nan_ Repo_ of the Com_r_r _r _e _ YearEnded June 30,2000.
Pe_onal income is me_u_d be_ the deduction of pe_onM _come taxes and _her pe_onal taxes.

Cemain Provisions for the Payment of Ci_ Indeb_dness

State Con_Rution requires the City to make an annual appropriation for: (i) payment of interest
City indebtednes_ (ii) redemption or amo_ation of bonds; (iii) redemption of other City

indebtedness (except bond antidpation notes ("BANs"), tax anticipation notes ("TANs"), revenue
anticipation notes ("RANs"), and urban renewal notes ("URNs") contracted to be paid in that year out

tax levy or other revenues); and (iv) redemption of sho_Aerm indebtedness issued in anti_pation
colM_ion of taxes or other revenues, such as TANs, RANs and URNs, and renewMs of such

sho_4erm indebtedness which are not retired within five years of the date of original issue. If this
appropriation is not made, a sum suffirent for such purposes must be set apa_ _om the tint revenues
therea_er received by the City and mu_ be applied for these purpose_

City_ debt serv_e appropriation pro_des for the interest on, but not the pfindpM o_ sho_4erm

indebtednes_ which has in recent years been issued as TANs and RANs. If such pfin_pM were not
for from the anticipated sources, it would be, like debt service on City bonds, a general

obl_ation of the City.

Pu_uant to the FinandM Emergency A_, a general debt service fund (the "GenerM Debt Servke

or the "Fund") has been e_abl_hed for the purpose of paying Month_ Debt Serv_e, as defined
Act. In addition, as required under the A_, a TAN Account has been e_abl_hed by the State

Comptroller within the Fund to pay the prindpM of outstanding City TANs. A_er notification by the City
date when pfindpM due or to become due on an out_anding issue of TANs will equal 90% of the

"avMMbM tax lev_" as defined in the Act, with respect to such issue, the State ComptrolMr must pay into
Account from the colM_ion of real estate tax paymen_ (a_er paying amoun_ required to be

deposffed in the General Debt Service Fund for Month_ Debt Service) amoun_ suffident to pay the
of such TANs. Simi_fl_ a RAN Account has been e_abl_hed by the State Comptroi_r within

Fund to pay the pfindpM of out_anding City RANs. Revenues in anticipation of wh_h RANs are
must be deported in the RAN Account. If revenue consi_s of State or other revenue to be paid
City by the State ComptrolML the State ComptrolMr must deposit such revenue dire_ly into the
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RAN Account on the date such revenue is payable to the Cit_ Under the Act, a_er notification by the
City of the date when prin_p_ due or to become due on an outstanding issue of RANs will equal 90%
of the total amount of revenue against which such RANs were issued on or before the fi_h day prior to
the maturity date of the RANs, the State Comptroller must commence on such date to retain in the RAN

Account an amount suffi_ent to pay the prin_pM of such RANs when due. Revenues required to be
deported in the RAN Account vest immediate_ in the State Comptroller in trust for the benefit of the
holders of notes issued in anticipation of such revenues No pe_on other than a holder of such RANs, has
any right to or claim against revenues so held in trust. Whenever the amount contained in the RAN

Account or the TAN Account exceeds the amount required to be retained in such Account, the excess,

in_uding earnings on investments, is to be withdrawn from such Account and paid into the Gener_ Fund
of the Cit_

Limitations on the Ci_ Authod_ to Contra_ Indeb_dness

The Finan_ Emergency Act imposes various limitations on the issuance of City indebtedness No
TANs may be issued by the City wh_h would cause the prinop_ amount of such issue of TANs to exceed
_)% of the "ava_able tax lev_" as defined in the Act, with respect to such issue; TANs and renewals

thereof mu_ mature not later than the last day of the fiscal year in which they were _sued. No RANS may
be issued by the City which would cause the principal amount of RANs outstanding to exceed 90% of the
"av_ble revenue_" as defined in the Act, for that fiscal year; RANs must mature not later than the last
day of the fiscal year in wh_h they were issued; and in no event may renewa_ of RANs mature later than
one year subsequent to the last day of the fiscal year in which such RANs were ori_n_ i_ued. No BANs

may be issued by the City in any fiscal year which would cause the principal amount of BANs out_andin_
together with interest due or to become due thereon, to exceed 50% of the prin_p_ amount of bonds
issued by the City in the twelve months immediate_ preceding the month in which such BANs are to be
issued; BANs must mature not later than six months a_er their date of _suance and may be renewed once
for a period not to exceed six months. Budget Notes may be issued only to fund cost overruns in the
expense budget; no Budget Note_ or renewa_ thereoL may mature later than sixty days prior to the la_
day of the fiscal year next succeeding the fiscal year during which the Budget Notes were origin_ issued.

The _ation which created MAC (the "MAC A_') contains two limRafions on the amount of
shor_term debt which the City may issue. As of June 30, 2001, the maximum amount of addkional
shorPterm debt wh_h the City could issue was $7.26 billion under the fi_t limitation. The second

lim_ation does not prohibit any i_uance by the City of BANs or shon4erm debt issued and payable
within the same fiscal yea_ such as TANs and RANs. Howeve_ su_e_ to the other re_ri_ions and

requkemen_ described above, as of June 3(_ 2001, the maximum amount of TANs, RANs, or Budget
Notes issued in the current fiscal year and maturing next fiscal yea_ that the City could issue was
approximate_ $841.4 million under the second limitation. These fimitations, and other re_rictions on

maturities of City notes and other requiremen_ described above, could be amended by State _gislat_e
action.

The State Constitution provides that, with certain exception_ the City may not contract indebted-
ness, in_ud_g contracts for capital projec_ to be paid with the proceeds of City bonds ("contra_s for

capital pr_e_s"), in an amount greater than 10% of the average full value of taxable real estate in the C_y
for the most recent five yea_ (the "general debt limit"L See "SECTION IV: SOURCES OF CITY
REVENUES--Real E_ate Tax--Assessment." For in_brmation concerning lit_ation wh_h, if determined

again_ the Cit_ could have an adve_e impa_ on the amount of debt the City can have outstanding under
the general debt limit, see "S_CTION IX: OJ'H_R lgVORMnTIOn--Litigation--Taxes." Certain indebted-
ness ("excluded debt") is excluded in ascen_ning the City_ authority to contract indebtedness within the
constitutional limit. TANs, RANs, BANs, URNs and Budget Notes and long-term indebtedness _sued for

certain types of public improvemen_ and capital projects are considered excluded debt. The City_
_atutory authority for vafiab_ rate debt is limited to 20% of the general debt limit. The State Con_ution
also provides that, subje_ to _atNe implementation, the City may contract _debtedness for low-rent

housing, nu_ing homes for pe_ons of low income and urban renew_ purposes in an amount not to
exceed 2% of the average assessed v_uafion of the taxable real estate of the City for the most recent five

yea_ (the "2% debt limit"). Ex_uded from the 2% debt limit, a_er approval by the State Comptroller, is
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indebtedne_ for ce_n sd_supponing programs _ded by City guaran_es or loans Nekher MAC
indebtedness nor the City_ commitmen_ w_h other PBCs (other than certain guaran_ed debt of the
Hou_ng Amhority) are chargeable against the Ci_ constitution_ debt limks.

To provide for the Ci_ capital prog_m, the _nance A_hori_ and TSASC we_ created, the debt
of w_ch _ not su_e_ to the gener_ debt limit of the Cit_ W_hout the Finance Authori_ and TSASC,
or other _Ne relie_ new con_a_u_ commitmen_ for the City's general obligation financed capital
program would have been vi_ual_ brought to a halt during the Hnand_ Plan period beaning early in
the 1998 fiscal yea_ The debthncurring power of the _nance Amhoriff and TSASC has permitted the
Ci_ to continue to en_r _to new contra_ual commitmen_ and is expe_ed to provide suffident capacity
to continue the Cky_ cap_al program through the end of the Finand_ Plan in 2005. The City_ cu_ent
pr_e_ns indicate that it wi_ req_ an ad&t_n_ $3.0 bi_ion in finandng capadff to commie its
Ten-Year CapR_ S_eg_ The Ciff will ekher seek an amendment to the State Con_kufion to increase
its debt-_curfing capao_ or seek to estabfish some other finandng mechan_m to enable it to commie
its Ten-Year CapR_ Strateg_

The fol_w_g table se_ fo_h the c_c_n of the debt-incurring power of the Cit5 the _nance
Authority and TSASC _s of September 30, 2001.

(in Thou_nd_

Total Ci_ Debt-Incurring Power under Gene_l Debt Limit .... $32_67_12
Gross Debt-Funded ....................................... $25fi54fi06
Less: Excluded Debt ...................................... 607,746

25,046,860
Less: Fisc_ Year 200l Appropri_ns for Prindp_ of Debt ... 299fi02

24fl47_58
Con_a_s and Other LiaN_ Net of Prior TSASC and

Finance Amhori_ Finan_ngs and Reprised Cash .......... 6,890,028

Total Indebtedness ........................................ 31,637,386
Less: Antiopa_d Finance Authofiff Finandng of Lia_fies(1) . 3,248,235
Less: Ant_@_ed TSASC Debt-Incurring Power .............. 1fl96_48 26_92_02

Cit5 Finance Amhority and TSASC Debt-Incurring Power2) .. $ _274_09

N_e: Numb_s may n_ tally due _ _und_

(1) Refle_s _nan_ A_hofity de_-incurring _pacity of $11_ _on, w_ch was m_eased _om $7_ bflfion by St_e _afion
in June 2000. These figures do not include an ad_fion_ $25 bfl_on of de_qncurfing capa_ff _amed by St_e _flation m
Se_ember 2001 to pay co_s rd_ed _ the Sep_mb_ 11 attack.

_) Wdhom _e _eat_n of _e _nance Amhofiff and TSAS_ _e de_qncu_ing pow_ of _e Ci_ under _e gen_ den limit,
_ of Se_emb_ 3_ 2001, wo_d have been exceeded by $7.6 bflfion.

Federal Bankruptcy Code

Under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, a petition may be filed in the Federal bankruptcy cou_ by a
municip_ity which _ insolvent or unable to meet _s debts as they mature. The filing of such a petition
would operate as a _ay of any proceeding to enforce a claim ag_n_ the Cit_ The Federal Bankruptcy
Code requires the munidpality to file a plan for the adju_ment of its debt, which may modify or alter
the righ_ of credito_ and may provide for the municipality to issue indebtednes_ which could have
priority over exi_ing credko_ and which could be secured. Any plan of adju_ment confirmed by the
cou_ mu_ be approved by the requisite m_ority of cred_o_. If confirmed by the bankruptcy court, the
plan would be binding upon all cred_o_ affectgd by it. Each of the City and the Control Board, a_ing
on beh_f of the Cit5 has the legal capadty to file a pet_ion under the Federal Bankruptcy Code.

Munidpal Ass_tance Corporation Indebtedness

MAC was organized in 1975 to pro_de finan_ng assistance for the City and also to exer_se ce_n
review functions with respect to the City_ finances. Since its creation, MAC has profided, among other
things, finan_ng assi_ance to the City by refunding maturing City sho_Aerm debt and _ansferfing to the
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City funds receNed from sa_s of MAC bonds and notes. MAC is amhorized to i_ue bonds and no_s

payable fore ce_n _ock trans_r tax revenues and the City_ potion of the State sales tax derived in

the City and, su_e_ to ce_n prior d_m_ _am per capita a_ otherwise payable by the State to the City.
These revenues are paid, su_e_ to appropfi_n, dim_ by the State to MAC to the extent they are
needed for MAC debt serv_e, MAC reserve fund mquiremen_ or MAC oper_ing expense_ revenues
wh_h are not needed by MAC are p_d by the _e to the Cit5 except for the _ock _ans_r _x revenue_
wh_h are rebated to the payers of the tax. MAC bonds and notes con_u_ general oN_ns of MAC
and do not constitu_ an enfo_ea_e o_n or debt of either the State or the Cit_ Failure by the Stare
to continue the impos_n of such taxes, the _du_n of the rate of such taxes to rates less than those

in effect on Ju_ 2, 1975, failure by the St_e to pay such aid revenues and the redu_n of such aid
revenues below a spedfied level are included among the events of de_t in the restrains authorizing
MAC_ _ng-term debt. The occurrence of an event of defauR may resuR in the acce_r_n of the
m_urity of all or a potion of MAC_ debt.

As of June 3_ 2001, MAC had outstand_g an aggreg_e of approxim_e_ $3217 bilhon of _s bond_
MAC _ authorized to _sue bonds and notes to refund its o_an_ng bonds and notes and to fund ce_ain
reserves. For ad_fion_ _formation _gar_ng MAC _deb_dnes_ see "APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS--No_s tO Finand_ S_men_--No_s C and J."

Public Benefit Corporation Indebtedness

Ci_ Finan_al Commitmen_ _ PBCs

PBCs are corpor_e governmental agenc_s crewed by State law to finance and operate proje_s of
a governmental nature or to profide government_ serv_es. Gene_lly, PBCs issue bonds and notes to
finance construction of housing, hos_tals, dormitories and other _d_s and receive revenues from the
c_n of _es, charges or rentals for the use of their _ _dud_g subsets and other payments
from the government_ enti_ whose residen_ have benefited from the services and _dl_es prov_ed by
the PBC. These bonds and notes do not con_itum debt of the City unle_ exp_ guaranmed or
assumed by the Cit_

The City has unde_aken various types of finano_ commitmen_ with ce_ain PBCs wh_h, a_hough
they gener_ do not represent Ci_ _debtednes_ have a _m_ar budg_ary ef_. During a Control
Period as defined by the Finand_ Emergency Act, nether the Ci_ nor any Covered Organ_n may
enter into any a_angement whereby the revenues or credit of the City are dire_ly or ind_e_ pledged,
encumbered, committed or prom_ed for the payment of oN_m_ns of a PBC unless approved by the
Con_ol Board. The pfinop_ forms of the City_ financial commkmen_ with respe_ to PBC debt
obligations are as fol_ws:

1. Guaranmes_PBC _debtedness may be di_ guaran_ed by the City.

2. Capital Lease Obligations--These are leases of _dl_es by the City or a Covered Organ_
fion, entered into with PBCs, under which the Ci_ has no liab_y beyond monks legally av_hNe
for _ase payment. S_ law general_ pro_des, howeve_ that in the event the Ci_ _i_ to make any
required lease payment, the amount of such payment will be deducted _om State aid otherwise
payable to the Ci_ and will be paid to the PBC.

3. Executed Leas_--These are _ases pursuant to which the City is legally oN_med to make the
req_red rental p_ymen_.

4. Capital Reserve Fund Arrangement--Under _ese arrangements, State law requires the PBC
to m_nt_n a ca_t_ reserve fund in a specified minimum amount to be used sole_ for the payment
of the PBC_ oN_ns. St_e law further pro_des that in the event the capital reserve fund is
de_e& State _d otherwise payable to the Ci_ may be paid to the PBC to restore such fund.

The Ci_ finano_ _ements include MAC and ce_ain PBCs, such as The New York City
Education_ Con_ruction Fund _ECF") and the CUCE For fu_her _form_n regard_g indebtedne_
of these PBCs, see "APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Notes to Finand_ St_ements--Note J."

Ce_a_ other PBCs appear in the financial _ements as Enterpr_e Funds. For _formafion regarding
Enmrprise Funds PBCs, see "APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--No_s to Finand_ Statements--
Notes L, M, N, O and E"
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New York Ci_ Educa_onal Construction Fund

As of June 30, 2001, appro_mate_ $134.0 million pfindp_ amount of ECF bonds to finance costs

related to the school potions of combined occupancy _ructures was out_andin_ Under ECF_ leases
with the City, debt service on the ECF bonds is payable by the City to the extent third party revenues are
not suffident to pay such debt service.

New York Ci_ Ho_s'_g Au_ohq

As of June 30, 2001, the City had guaranteed $13.6 mill_n princ_ amount of HA bonds. The City

has also guaran_ed the repayment of $126.8 mill_n principal amount of HA _debtcdness to the Sta_,
of which the Federal government has ag_ed to pay debt service on $47.2 mill_n. The City also pays

subsidies to the HA to cover oper_ing expense_ ExdusNe of the payment of ce_ain labor costs, such

subsets amoun_d to $36.1 million in the 1999 fiscal year and to $37.0 mill_n in the 2000 fiscal yea_

New York &a_ Housing Finance Agency

As of June 30, 2001, $22_0 million pfin_pal amount of HFA refunding bonds relating to hospital and

family care faolit_s leased to the City was outstandin_ HFA does not receive third party revenues to

offset the City_ cap_al lease obfigations w_h respe_ to these bonds. Lease payment, which are made by
the City seven months in advance of payment dates of the bond_ are intended to cover development and

con_ru_ion costs, including debt service, of each fa_lity plus a share of HFA's overhead and
admini_ratNe expense_

Dormitory Au&ofi_ of &e Sta_ of New York

As of June 30, 2001, $680.7 mill_n principal amount of DASNY bonds issued to finance the design,
con_ru_n and renovation of court _fities in the City was om_an_n& The cou_ _dl_s are leased

to the City by DASNY, with lease paymen_ made by the City in amoun_ suffi_ent to pay debt service
on Authofiff bonds and ce_ain _es and expenses of DASNY.

Ci_ Unive_ity Consguc_on Fund

As of June 30, 2001, approxim_e_ $659.0 m_l_n pfindp_ amount of DASNY bonds, re_t_g to

CommunRy Col_ge _dfit_ su_e_ to cap_al lease ar_ngemems was outstan_ng. The City and the
State are each respon_b_ _r appro_m_e_ one-half of the CUCF_ annual rental payments to DASNY

for Community Col_ge _cil_es which are applied to the payment of debt service on DASNY_ bonds

_sued to finance the leased projec_ plus related overhead and admin_Ne expenses of DASN_

New York Sta_ Urban Development Corpora_on

As of June 30, 2001, $51.8 million pfin_p_ amount of New York State Urban Development
Corporation ("UDC') bonds su_e_ to executed or proposed lease arrangemen_ was outstandin_ This

amount diffe_ _om the amount c_c_ated by UDC ($63.7 million) because UDC has included certain
interest co_s relating to Public School 50 and Intermediate School 229 in Manhattan in i_ c_culafion.
The City leases schools and ce_ain other fadlit_s from UDC.
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SECTION IX: OTHER INFORMATION

Pennon Sy_ems

The City m_nt_ns a number of pension sy_ems prodding benefits for its employees and employees
of various independent agencies 0n_u_ng certain Covered Organ_afion_. The sy_ems com_ne
_atures of a defined benefit pennon plan with those of a defined contribution pension plan. Membe_p
in the City_ five m_or actuarial sy_ems on June 30, 1999 cons_ted of appro_mate_ 329D00 cu_ent

employees, of whom approximate_ 78,000 were employees of ce_ain _dependent agencies whose
pension costs in some cases are provided by City appropri_ions. In add_ion, there were approximate_
243,000 retirees and bencfi_aries cu_ent_ rec_%ng benefits and other vested membe_ term_ated but

not receiving benefits. The City also contributes to three other a_uari_ sy_em_ m_nt_ns a non-
a_ua_ retirement sys_m for retired _dividu_s not covered by the five m_or a_uari_ sys_m_
provides other supp_ment_ benefits to retirees and makes contributions to ce_ain union annu_y fund_

Each of the City_ five m_or a_uari_ pension sy_ems is managed by a board of trustees which

includes representat_es of the City and the em_oyees covered by such sy_em. The City Comptrol_r is
the custod_n oL and has been de,gated _vestment respon_fifies fo_ the m_or a_uari_ system_
su_e_ to the policies e_abl_hed by the boards of trustees of the sy_ems and State law.

The City_ pension expenditures in fiscal year 2000 were $698 million. Expense projections for fiscal
yea_ 2001 through 2005 are e_imated at $1.299 billion, $1.454 billion, $1.564 hi,ion, $1.669 bil_on, and

$1.864 billion, respe_ These projections are based on draft v_u_ion proje_ions by the Chief
A_uar_ The pr_e_ions refle_ the A_uary_ fund_g assumption_ a market value restaa in fiscal year
2000, and an e_ht percent _ve_ment return assumpt_n which is governed by St_e law. Beyond these
baseline projection_ the Finan_ Plan also refle_s the co_s of planned headcount changes, as well as the
e_imated costs of benefit improvemen_ that were enacted into law last yea_ _duding automat_ co_ of
living a_u_men_ for retirees. In addition, as a resuR of the sharp decline in market returns in fiscal year
2001, the Finan_ Plan also contains a reserve, commen_ng in fiscal year 2002, to cover the co_s of the

pension funds earning a zero percent return by June 30, 2001. For information concerning recent
inve_ment earnings on pension a_ets, see "SECTION VII: FINANCIAL PLAN--Ce_n Repo_"

Ce_ain of the sy_ems provide pension benefits of 50% to 55% of "final pay" after 20 to 25 years of
service with addit_n_ benefits for subsequent years of service. For the 2000 fiscal yea_ the City_ total
annual pension costs, _uding the City_ pension costs not a_o_ated with the five m_or a_uari_
systems, plus Federal Steal Security tax paymen_ by the City for the yea_ were approximate_ 12% of
total payroll costs. In addition, contributions are also made by ceaain component units of the CRy and
other government units dire_ to the three cost sharing mu_ emp_yer a_uafi_ sy_ems. The State
Con_ution provides that pension rights of public employees are contractual and shall not be diminished
or imp_red.

For fiscal year 2001, the City made pension contributions to the five m_or sy_ems in amounts
equNa_nt to the pension costs as determined in accordance with GAAE Pennon co_s incurred with

respect to the other actuarial sy_ems to which the City contfibu_s and the City_ non-a_uari_ retirement
sy_ems and supplement_ pension programs for participants in these non-a_uari_ sy_ems are recorded
and paid cu_ently.

Prior to June 30, 1999, four of the five m_or a_uafi_ sy_ems were not fully funded (i.e., the a_uari_
accrued _abihty exceeded the a_uari_ value of the assets). Due to the recognition of recent _gnificant
market performance in the a_uarial asset values, calculated as of June 30, 1999, three addit_n_ sys_ms
became fully funded. As of June 30, 1999, only the New York Fire Depa_ment, Subchapter Two Pennon
Fund was not fully thnded.

The excess of the present value of future pension benefi_ over the present value of the assets of the

five m_or actua_al pension sys_ms 0nduding that which is attributa_e to independent agen_es) as of
June 30, 1994, as ca_u_ted by the City_ Chief A_uary on the basis of the a_uafi_ assumptions then in
effect, is set fo_h in the following table, In ad_fio_ for the period June 30, 1995 to June 30, 1998 this
excess is listed for the m_or a_uafi_ sy_ems other than New York City Employees' Retirement Sy_em
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because it was _lly funded. For June 30, 1999, this excess is l_ted _r the New _rk _re DepanmenL
Sub_a_ _o Pension Fund, the only _m_n_g ___ s_m.

Un_nded
Pennon

June _ Amou_(_

(_ _o_)

1994 ........................................................ _.94_)
1995 ........................................................ 4.03

1996 ........................................................ 4.29
1997 ........................................................ 4.28

1998 ........................................................ 4._

1999 ......................................................... 15

(1) F_ pu_ of ma_ng _e_ __, accrued pe_n comfibm_ns _covaNe from the _ we_ not treated as assets
of the _em.

(2) Pfi_ _ June 30, 199_ amoums are the unfunded pem_n bene_ oN_afion c_c_ed m accordance with GASB _emem
No. 5, D_c_ of Pe_n _formation by Pub_ Emp_y_ Re_m_t Sys_m_ and _e and Loc_ Gov_nm_t Emp_y_

For June 30, 1994, amoums are the un_nded aOuafi_ _ued fiabiliff produced by the m_hod used to _nd _e _a_ and
_fle_ im_ememation of GASB _memem No. _, A_ounting _r l_&ns by _e and Loll Go_mm_ml Emp_ye_
Be_re adoption of this _emenC such amoum was $1.85 b_fion.

The five m_or a_uarial sy_ems are funded on a basis which is designed to reduce gradually any
unfunded accrued fiabfl_y of those sy_ems. For fu_her information regarding the City_ pension sy_ems
see "APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--Notes tO Finand_ Statement--Note S."

The fol_wing paragraphs describe certain martial legal procee_ngs and claims _voNing the City
and Covered Organ_m_ns other than routine lit_n inddenml to the performance of their
government_ and other fun_ns and certain other IR_ation ari_ng out of alleged consfitut_n_
v_lm_n_ to_s, breaches of contract and other fiolat_ns of law and condemnation procee_ngs. While
the ultimme o_come and fiscal impa_, if an5 on the City of the proceedings and claims described below
are not cuwent_ predictable, adve_e d_erm_afions in ce_ain of them might have a mmefial adve_e
effect upon the Ciff_ ability to carry out the Finand_ Plan. The City has estim_ed that its potenti_
future lh_fiff on account of om_an_ng claims again_ it as of June 30, 2000 amoumed to approximme_
$3.6 billion. See "SECTION VII: FINAN_AL PLAN--Assumptions--Expenditure Assumptiom--2. Other
Than Pe_onal Service Costs--Judgmen_ and C_imz"

Taxes

1. Numerous real estate tax certiora_ proceedings alleging overv_u_n, _equ_ity and il_ga_y
are pending ag_n_ the City. Based on _or_ se_ment a_N_5 and _du_ng an esfim_ed premium
for inequ_iff of asse_ment, the City e_immes its potent_! future I_y for outstan_ng certiorad
proceedings to be $540 million at June 30, 2000. For a d_cusfion of the City_ accounting _emment of its
inequ_iff and overv_um_n exposure, see "APPENDIX B--FINANCIAL STNFEMENTS--Notes to _nand_
S_men_--Note J."

2. The City has brought proceedings ch_n_ng the final class ratios for class two and class four
prope_y certified by the State Board for the 1991 and 1992 asse_ment rolls. Class ratios are used in real
prope_y tax certiorad proceedings _v_fing _gm_ns of _equaliff of asse_ment and ratios that are too
low can resuR in more successful claims for refunds for overpaymen_ than approprime. In a proceeding
consolidating the City_ ch_nges to the class ratios for the 1991 and 1992 asse_ment rolls, on
December 15, 1994, the Supreme Coup, New York County annufied the class two and class four rat_s for
those yea_ and remanded the m_r to the State Board for rec_c_ation of the r_ios con_ent with the

deds_n. Pu_uant to a _m_n ex_n_ng its time to appeal, the State Board has not yet appealed the
judgment, but if the original class ratios were r_n_ed on appeal, it could lead to an increase in refunds,
for overpayment of real property taxes paid in the 1992 and 1993 fiscal yea_. The State Board and the
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City have _so agreed to toll the City_ time to challenge final class ratios for classes two and four for the
1993 and 1994 assessment rol_, pending the outcome of efforts to resolve the mauer without fu_her
litigation. For addition_ informatio_ see "SEC'rlON IV: SOURCES OF CITY REVENUES--Re_ E_ate
Tax--Assessmen_ "

3. A group of real prope_y taxpayers has brought a series of declaratory judgment a_ions charging
that Tax Resolutions adopted by the City Coundl violate the State Constitutio_ Pi_ntiffs _ge that the
spedal equitation ratios ca_ulated by the State Board resulted in the ove_tatement of the average fall
v_uation of real prope_y in the City with the result that the City_ real estate tax levy is in excess of the

State Constitution_ real estate tax lim_. Actions relating to the real estate tax levies for fiscal years 1993,
1994, 1995 and 1996 have been commenced by groups of taxpaye_ and are pending in State Supreme
Coup, Albany County. The first such a_ion was d_missed on _anding grounds. A_hough pl_ntff_ do not
speofy the extent of the alleged real property overv_uat_n, an adverse determination s_nificanfly
reducing such limit could subje_ the City to substanfi_ liaNfity for real prope_y tax refunds and could
have an adverse impact on the amount of debt the City can have outstanding under the general debt limit
(defined as 10% of the average full value of taxable re_ estate in the City for the most recent five years).

Miscellaneous

1. On April 3, 1990, the New York State Court of Appea_ ruled, in a case brought by a group of
New York City re6pien_ of Aid to Families with Dependent Children ("AFDC"L that the New York
Social Serv_es Law requires that AFDC redp_nts recede for hou_ng an adequate _lowance that bears
a reasonab_ relationship to the cost of housing and remanded the case to the trial court. On April 16,
1997, the _l cou_ held that the cu_ent shelter allowance _ not reasonab_ related to the co_ of hou_n_
On May 6, 1999, the Appd_te D_ision, First Depa_ment, affirmed the trial court de_sion. The State has
filed a motion for leave to appeal the Appellate Cou_ dec_ion to the Cou_ of Appeal_ The shelter

allowance, while determined by the State Depa_ment of Social Services ("DSS"), is funded by
contributions from the Federal, State and City government. The City_ contribution is 25% of the total
_lowance. _ plaintiffs are ultimate_ successful in seeking sub_ant_l increases in the shelter _lowanc_

it could resu_ in substantial costs to the Cit_

2. In three pending actions pl_ntiffs seek broad i_un_Ne relief dirtied toward the City_ lead
paint poisoning prevention a_ivit_ In the Federal a_ion, a class has been ce_ified COhering of children

under the age of seven and pregnant women residing in housing owned by the City or where the City
admin_ters federal community devdopment block grant funds.

In one of the State actions, a class has been ce_ified confining of children under the age of seven

living in muRiple dwdlings in New York City where a compl_nt of lead paint has been made which the
City _leged_ has not timdy and adequatOy inspe_ed and abated. Orde_ have been issued in such a_ion
directing the City_ Depa_ment of Hou_ng Preservation and Devdopment and Depa_ment of Health to
issue regulations in conformance with the cou_ interpretation of local hw governing the remov_ of lead
paint in refident_l building_ While both agencies were in the process of prom_gating these regulations,
the parties to the lit_ation agreed to a stay of the relevant orders in contemplation of _slatNe change.
In the summer of 1999, the City Coundl passed and the Mayor figncd a new local law governing lead paint
in re_denti_ buildings. The City is current_ defending two lawsui_ that ch_nge the new local law as
having been passed in violation of State and City environment_ laws, and in violation of the State_
Municipal Home Rule Law. In October 2000, a trial court judge ruled that the City did not comp_ with

the pertinent enfironmental laws when R adopted th_ loc_ law. The City has appe_ed from the judgment
entered, and the trial cou_ judgment has been stayed pending resolution of the appeal. Also in
October 2000, a trial court judge ruled that the lawsuit alleging non-compl_nce with the State_ Municipal
Home Rule Law was moot in light of the ruling on the environmental lawsuit. The petitioner in that
iawsuR has filed a notice of appe_.

The State class action also ch_nges the City's actNRies relating to the screening of ch_dren for lead
po_oning, the timeliness and adequacy of enforcement effo_s, and inspe_ion of day care facilities. The
Federal action seeks warnings to tenants of lead paint hazards, abatement of lead paint hazards, and
med_ monitoring of class member. In another State action, plaintiffs ch_nge the City_ enforcement
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a_N_ with _gard to lead paint in day care center, nu_ery schools and k_de_ane_. Adve_e
d_m_afions on these issues could resu_ in sub_ami_ add_on_ costs to the City

In ad_fio_ nearly 1.100 d_ms have been fi_d ag_n_ the City on behalf of ch_dren exposed to lead
in City apartment. The suits seek to hold the City liable for _iling to fix lead paint hazards in _ff_w_d
bui_in_ and _r _ihng to en_e _ad _ _anda_s in prN_e_ owned bm_ Such d_ms cou_
cost the City in excess of $300 million in the future.

3. On Janua_ 26, 1994, the Ea_ern Pa_d _m_ A_oNation _EPV_) commen_d an
action in the Un_ed States D_tri_ Cou_ _r _e Somh_n Dist6_ of New _rk alleging that the _y had

Niled to take s_ps p_d by the America_ with D_aN_s A_ and _l_s pmmu_ed
thereunder to make the streets and _dewNks of the City accessible to handicapped persons. The EP_
seeks to compel the Cit_ among other things, to imp_mem a plan to pmv_e curb ramps or other sloped

areas at all im_ns in the City by a certain Nture dNe, to be _r_d in accordance with U.S.
Depa_mem of Justice _gul_n_ If the EP_ were to prevail in this a_ion, _i_ such work in
an exped_ed time flame would imp_e sub_antial costs on the City

4. In May 1997, ten inNv_uaN commenced an action pu_uant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983 against the _ty
in the Uni_d States Di_fi_ Cou_ _r the Southern Di_ri_ of New _rk on behalf of Nem_N_ and

pe_ons _l_y _tuated, alleging that City co_e_nN office_ since July 1996 had violated the
_m_n_ righ_ of pe_ons _cd _r m_demeano_ or non_fim_M o_n_s _ _ri_ca_ng such
pe_ons upon entry into p_wNgnment holding pens at the Manh_mn and Queens _iminN coup-

houses. In April 1998, the district _u_ g_d NN_' minion _r cl_s certification. The City e_ima_s
that there are _W_y 68,_0 persons in the class. The City and the lawye_ _we_ming the
N_iff class have reached a s_fleme_ which has been appm_d by the Court under which the City is
_q_d to pay between twen_ and fi_y milfion doHa_.

5. In Fcbma_ 1997, a _rmer New _rk City school prindpN filed an a_ion in New _rk State
Sup_me Cou_ chN_n_ng the inve_mem policies and pm_ of the Refi_me_ Board of the
_he_' R_m S_ of The City of N_ _ (the %_ with _ga_ to a compone_ of the
Sy_em conNming of member comfib_ns and eamin_ thereon known as the _ri_le B Fund (the
"Fund"). NNn_f alleges that the trustees of the S_m il_gal_ mNntNned the Fund as a fixe_comc
fund and _no_d a _qu_emem that a sub_antiN amount of the Fund_ a_ets be invested in equity
__ The de_ndan_ are the Sy_em and i_ _v_u_ trustees. Plaintiff seeks damages on behalf of
all Fund panidpan_ in exce_ of $25_N_00. In May 1999, the App_N_ DNN_n, _t Depa_mem,
aNrmed the Sup_me Cou_ earlier denial of the defendant' minion _r summ_y judgmem. If the
plaintiff were to prevail in this action, it could result in sub_antNl costs to the City

_x _em_

In the opinion of Sidley Auxin Brown & _od LLP, New _rk, New _rk, as Bond Counsel, except
as provided in the _l_wing _n_n_, interest on the Bonds will not be _dudaNe in the gross income of
the owne_ of the Bonds _r purposes of Federal income taxation under existing la_ Interest on the
Bonds will be _dudab_ in the gross income of the owne_ _e_of _oa_Ne to the date of issue of the
Bonds in the event of a Nilu_ by the City to comply with applicable _q_men_ of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the "Code"), and covenan_ _g_ng use, expend_ure and

inve_me_ of bond premeds and the timely payment of ce_ain _ve_me_ earnings to the Uni_d States
_su_; and no opinion is rendered by Sidley Austin Brown & _od LLP as to the exd_n from gross
income of the interest on the Bonds _r Federal income tax _r_s on or a_er the date on which any

act_n is taken under the Bond W_n_ upon the approval of counsel other than such firm.

Interest on the Bonds will be exempt from pe_onal income taxes impo_d by the State or any

pMN_I subdivNion thereoL _duNng the City

lntere_ on the Bonds will not be a spedfic p_n_ item for purposes of the Federal _dM_N or

corporate aRernative minimum tax. The Code contains other pmv_o_ that could result in tax
consequence_ upon which Sidley AuXin Brown & _od LLP _nde_ no opinion, as a result of owne_Np
of such Bonds or the induNon in certain comp_ 0ndu_n_ without hm_n, _o_ related to the



corporate aRernatNe minimum tax) of intere_ that is excluded from gross income. Interest on the Bonds
owned by a corporation will be included in the cMcuMfion of the corporation_ Federal MternatNe
minimum tax fiabilit_

Owne_hip of tax-exempt obligations may resuR in coHaterM tax consequences to ce_ain taxpayer_

inc_din_ wffhout fimitation, financial in_itutions, prope_y and casualty insurance compan_ ce_ain
fore_n corporations doing business in the Un_ed States, ce_Mn S Corporations with excess passive
income, indifiduM redpien_ of Social Security or railroad retkement benefit, taxpayers eligible for the

earned income tax credit and taxpaye_ who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness
to purchase or carry tax-exempt obl_ation_ Prospe_ive purchase_ of the Bonds should consult their tax
adv_o_ as to the appi_abil_y of any such collaterM consequence_

The excess, if an5 of the amount payable at maturity of any maturity of the Bonds over the initial
public offering price to the pubhc (excluding bond house_ broken or _milar pe_ons a_ing in the
capacity of underwrite_ or wholesaMrs) at which price a sub_antiM amount of such maturity is sold
con_kutes original issue d_coun_ which will be exdudaNe from gross income to the same extent as
interest on the Bonds for Federal, New York State and New York City income tax purpose_ The Code
provides that the amount of ori_nal issue discount accrues in accordance with a constant intere_ method

based on the compounding of intere_, and that a holder_ adjured basis for purposes of determining a
holder_ gain or loss on disposition of the Bonds with ori#nal issue discount (the "OLD Bonds") will be
increased by such amount. A potion of the original i_ue d_count that accrues in each year to an owner
of an OID Bond which is a corporation will be included in the cMculation of the corporation_ Federal
aRernatNe minimum tax fiabilit_ In additio_ original issue discount that accrues in each year to an owner
of an OID Bond is included in the cMculation of the d_tribution requirements of ce_ain regulated
inve_ment compan_s and may result in some of the collaterM Federal income tax consequences
d_cussed above. Consequently, owne_ of any OlD Bond should be aware that the accrual of original
issue discount in each year may result in an aRernatNe minimum tax l_bilit5 add_ionM distribution
requiremen_ or other colhteral Federal income tax consequences Mthough the owner of such OlD Bond
has not received cash attributable to such o_ginal issue discount in such yea_

Owners of OlD Bonds should consuR their pe_onM tax adv_o_ with respe_ to the determination
for Federal income tax purposes of the amount of original issue discount or interest properly accruable
with respect to such OID Bonds, other tax consequences of owning OID Bonds and other _ate and local
tax consequences of holding such OID Bonds.

The excess, _ an5 of the tax bas_ of the Bonds to a purchaser (other than a purchaser who holds such
Bonds as inventor5 stock in trade or for sale to cu_omers in the ordinary coupe of bu_nesQ over the
amount payable at maturity is "bond premium." Bond premium _ amo_ed over the term of such Bonds

for Federal income tax purposes (oL in the case of a bond with bond premium callable prior to its stated
maturit5 the amo_ation period and yield may be required to be determined on the basis of an earlier
call date that results in the lowe_ yield on such bond). Owne_ of such Bonds are required to decrease
their a_u_ed basis in such Bonds by the amount of amoa_abM bond premium attfibutabM to each
taxable year such Bonds are held. The amo_able bond premium on such Bonds attributable to a taxable
year is not deductible for Federal income tax purposes; howeveL bond premium is treated as an offset to
qualified _ated interest received on such Bonds. Owne_ of such Bonds should consult their tax adv_ors

with respe_ to the determination for Federal income tax purposes of the _eatment of bond premiums
upon sale or other disposffion of such Bonds and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of
owning and disposing of such Bonds.

Le_Mation affeoing munidpM securities is con_ant_ being con_dered by the United States
Congress. There can be no assurance that M#_ation ena_ed a_er the date of issuance of the Bonds will
not have an adve_e effect on the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. Le#sMfive or regMatory actions and
proposah may also affect the economk value of the tax exemption or the market price of the Bonds.

Ratings

The Bonds have been rated A2 by Moody_, A by Standard & Poor_ and A+ by Fitch. Such ratings
reflect on_ the views of Moody_, Standard & Poor_ and Filch. These ratings do not reflect any bond
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insurance relating to any portion of the Bonds. The Ciff expects that ratings on the Ambac Insured

Bonds, MBIA Insured Bonds and the XLCA Insured Bonds (as defined in Appendix D) will be received
prior to November 1, 2_1. The _tin_ on the Ambac Insured Bonds, MBIA Insured Bonds and the

XLCA Insured Bonds will be based on the insurance policies to be issued by Ambac, MBIA and XLCA,
mspe_ivd_ Bonds insured by these insure_ are rated "Aaa" by Moody_, "AAN' by Standard & Poor_
and "AAN' by _tch. Such ratings reflect only the views of Moody_, Standard & Poor_ and Fitch _om
which an __ of the _gnificance of such _tin_ may be obtained. There is no a_urance that such
_ _ continue for any given period of time or that they will not be revised downward or _awn
cntirel_ Any such downward revision or _t_w_ could have an adve_e ef_ct on the ma_ pri_s of

such bonds. On July 16, 1998, Standard & Poor_ revved its r_ing of Ci_ bonds to A- _om BBB+. On
Se_ember 13, 2000, Standard & Poor_ revised i_ _ting of City bonds upward to A. Moody_ _ting of
_ty bonds was revised in Augu_ 2000 to A2 _om A3. On March 8, 1999, _tch revved i_ _ting of _ty
bonds upwa_ to A _om A- and on Se_em_r 15, 2_0, _h revised its _ting to A+.

Leg_ O_ons

The legality of the a_horiz_n and issuance of the Bonds will be covered by the appro_ng legal
opinion of Sidley Austin Brown & _od _Le, New _rk, New _, Bond Counsel to the Cit_ Re_nce
should be made to the _rm of such opinion set _h in Appendix C hereto _r the mat_ covered by
such opinion and the scope of Bond Counsel_ engagement in relation to the issuance of the Bonds. Such
firm is also acting as counsel _r and against the City in ce_ain other un_l_ed maue_.

Ce_ain legal mat_ will be pa_ed upon _r the City by its Corpor_ion Counsel.

M_gan, Lewis & Bockius LLe, New _rk, New _rk, Special Counsel to the _ will pa_ upon
ce_ain legal mat_ in connection with the p_pa_tion of this O_al _emen_ A d_criV_n of those
mat_ and the nature of the renew conduced by that firm is set _h in its opinion and a_ompan_ng
memorandum which are on file at the o_ce of the Co_n Counsel. Such firm is _so a_g as counsel
against the City in ce_ain un_l_ed matte_.

Ce_ain legal ma_e_ will be passed upon by Clif_ Chance Roge_ & _lls LLP, New _rk, New
_rk, counsel _r the Underwrite. Such firm is also a_ing as counsel _r and against the City in certain
unrelated m_te_.

U_e_

The Bonds are being pu_h_ed _r _o_ri_ by the Underwri_ _r whom J._ M_gan Securities

Inc., Go,man, Sachs & Co. and S_omon Sm_h Barney Inc. are a_ing as lead managc_. The
compe_n for services rendered in _n_ with the __i_ of the Bonds shall be
$2_4Z101 _5. All of the Bonds will be purchased if any are purchased.

Ce_ain of the U_e_ri_ h_d sub_a_l amoun_ of City bonds and notes and MAC bonds and
ma_ _om time to time during and a_er the offering of the Bonds to the public, pu_hase and sell City
bonds and notes _ndu_ng the Bonds) and MAC bonds _r their own accounts or _r their accounts or

_r the accounts of others, or receive payments or p_payme_ theron.

Com_ng D_u_ Unde_a_ng

As authorized by the A_, and to the extent that (i) Rule 15c2-12 (the "Ru_ of the Securities and
Exchange CommAfion _) under the Securities _xchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "1934 A_

_qui_s the underwri_ (as defined in the Rule) of securities of_d he,by (under this caption, if
su_e_ to the Rule, the "securitY,') _ d_ermin_ as a _nd_ion to p_ch_ing _e _cufiti_, _ _e City
will covenant to the effect of the Unde_a_n_ and (ii) the Rule as so applied is authorized by a Federal
law that as so con_rued is within the powe_ of C_e_ the City agrees with the record and benefi_
owne_ from time to time of the om_an_ng securities (under th_ caption, if su_e_ to the Rule,
__e_) to provide:

(a) w_hin 185 days a_er the end of each fiscal yea_ to each n_n_ _cogn_ed m_l
securit_s in_rm_n _pofi_W and to any New _r_ State in_rm_n dep_i_ core financial



in_rm_n and _e_g data _r the prior fiscal yea_ _dud_g (i) the Ci_ audited general

pu_e financial _eme_ p_pa_d in accordance with gener_ _ed a_oum_g prindp_s

in ef_ _om time to time, and (ii) m_erial h_oric_ _fi_ data on the _ty_ revenue_

expend_ure_ fin_i _e_ and m__ _ of the type _und h_n in _s IM
V and VIII and under the o_io_ "l_ _mm_y _ O__' in Se_ion VI and "Pens_n
Sy_em_ in Section IX; and

(b) in a time_ manne_ to each n_n_ m_ m_l securities m_rm_n _pofi_

or to the M_l Securit_s Ru_ma_ng Boa_, and to any New _ St_ _rm_n depo_r5
notice of any of the _l_wing events with _spe_ to the __ if m_eri_:

(1) _nop_ and interest payment de_nquenoe_

(2) non_mem related demurs;

(3) un_hedu_d draws on debt _i_ _ _ finandal _cuR_

(4) unscheduled draws on cred_ enhan_mems _fle_g financial _cuk_

(5) sub_Rm_n of credit or i_ p_fid_ or their failure to _;

(6) adve_e tax opinions or even_ a_ing the _x_xem_ _atus of the _fi_;

(7) mo_fications to righ_ of securi_ holder_

(8) bond calls;

(_ de_anc_;

(1_ release, sub_ufion, or sale of prope_y securing _paymem of the __

(11) r_ing changes; and

(12) Nilu_ of the _ty to comp_ _th clause (a) above.

Event (3) is included pursuant to a letter from the SEC staff to the N_ional A_oN_n of Bond

Lawye_ dated SeNemb_ 1_ 1995. Howeve_ event (3) may not be apN_aNe, since the terms of the
secufit_s do not provide _r "debt service _e_"

Even_ (4) and (5). The City does not unde_ake to provide any notice with _spe_ to credit

enhancemem added a_er the primary o_fing _ _e __ unless the _ff _Ni_ _r or pa_iNp_
in o_NNng the enhanceme_.

Event _) is relevant only to the extent in_ on the secufit_s is _emN.

Event (8). The City does not undegake to pmv_e the above_cfibed event notice of a mandmo_
scheduled _demN_n, not _r_ contingent upon the occurrence of an evenL if (i) the _rms, dates
and amoums of _dem_n are set _h in detail in the final offiNN _eme_ (as defined in the Rule),
(ii) the only open issue is wh_h _fiti_ _ be _deemed in the case of a pa_ial _m_, (iii) notice
of _dem_n is Nven to the BondhNd_s as required under the terms of the securit_s and (iv) public
notice of _demN_n is gNen pu_uant to Exchange A_ Rdease No. 23856 of the SEC, even if the
_N_ schedu_d amoun_ are reduced prior to optional _dem_ or _curiff purchases.

At the da_ he_o_ the_ is no New _rk Sta_ _rmation _fi_y and the n_nN_ _cogn_ed
muNNpN securities _rmation _pofimfi_ are: B_ombe_ Mun_N R_o_m_ 100 Bufiness Park
Drive, _, New Je_ey 08558; Standard & Poor_ J.J. Kenny R_ofim_ Inc., 55 _ter Stem,
45th Floo_ New _rk, New _rk 1_4l; DPC Data Inc., One Exec_Ne Drive, Fo_ Lee, New Jersey
07024; and Interactive Data, 1_ Wil_m Street, New _rk, New _rk 10038, Attn: Repofimr_

No BondhNder m_ _Ru_ any su_, amen or pm_eNng _ law or in equ_y ("Pm_e_ng_ _r _e
en_emem _ _e Unde_aNng or _r any _medy _r breach thereo_ unless such BondhNd_ shall have
filed with the Co_n Counsel of the City evidence of own_sh_ and a wri_en notice of and reque_
to cure such breach, and the City shall have refused m comNy w_hin a reasonab_ time. All Proceedings



shall be in.Rued only as specified heroin, in the Federal or State courts located in the Borough of
Manhattan, State and City of New York, and for the equal benefit of all holde_ of the outstanding
securities benefited by the same or a substanti_ similar covenanL and no remedy shall be sought or
granted other than specific performance of the covenant at issue.

Any amendment to the Unde_a_ng may only take effect ifi

(a) the amendment is made in conne_n with a change in Nrcum_ances that arises _om a
change in legal req_remcnt_ change in law, or change in the ident_N nature, or _atus of the CitN
or type of business conduce& the Unde_akin_ as amended, would have complied with the
req_rements of the Rule at the time of award of the securities a_er taking into account any
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in drcum_ances; and the
amendment does not materiN_ impair the _res_ of Bondholder, as determined by pa_ies
unaffifiated with the City (such as, but without lim_ation, the Cityg financiN adv_or or bond counsel)

and the annual financial information contNning (if appl_ab_) the amended operating data or
financial _format_n wi_ exNNn, _ narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the "impa_"
(as that word is used in the letter from the staff of the SEC to the National A_oNation of Bond

Lawye_ dated June 23, 1995) of the change in the type of operating data or financial _formation
being pro_de& or

(b) all or any pa_ of the Rule, as in_rpreted by the staff of the SEC at the date of the
Unde_akinN ceases to be in ef%ct for any reason, and the City elects that the Unde_aking shall be
deemed _rm_atcd or amended (as the case may be) accord_N_

For purposes of the Unde_aNnN a benefidN owner of a security includes any pe_on who, dire_ly
or _dire_ly, through any con_a_, arrangement, unde_mnNn_ reNtionship or otherwise has or shares
inve_ment power which includes the power to dispose, or to direct the dNpo_tion oL such secufitN
suNe_ to certain exceptions, as set fo_h in the Unde_a_n& An asse_ion of bencfiNN owne_Np mu_
be filed, with full documentary suppo_, as part of the written request to the Corporation Counsel
described above.

Finan_ai Ad_sor

The City retains Public Resources Advisory Group ("PRAG') to act as financial advisor with respe_
to the City_ financing program. PRAG is acting as financial adv_or for the issuance of the Bonds.

Fu_her _rm_n

The _nces herein to, and summafi_ o_ Federal, State and local laws, _u_ng but not hmited
to the State _n_ the _nan_ Eme_e_y A_, the MAC Act and the _ty Cha_eq and
document_ ag_ements and _urt de_fion_ _du_ng but n_ fimi_d _ _e _nan_ Plan, a_ summaries

of cen_n __ the_oL Such summari_ do not purpo_ to be commie and are qualified in their
enti_ by _n_ to such acts, laws, document_ a_eements or de_s_n_ _pies of wh_h a_ av_hb_
_r _spe_n during business hou_ at the office of the Corporation Counsel.

Copies of the most recent financial plan _bm_ed to the Control Board are av_b_ upon wriUen
request to the Office of Management and Budget, Gene_l Counsel, 335 Adams Street, Bmok_
NY 11201, and co_es of the pubhshed Comp_hen_ve Annum _nan_ Repots of the Com_r_r are
ava_ablc upon writ_n request to the Office of the _m_ Depuff Combiner _r Pu_ _nan_,
_h Floo_ Room 517, M_p_ B_n_ One Centre Street, New _rk, NY 10_7. _nan_ plans are
p_pa_d qua_cd_ and the Comp_hen_ve Annu_ _nan_ Repo_ of the Com_r_r is ffp_
prepared at the end of O_ober of each yea_

Nether this Offi_al _ement nor any _mcment which may have been made orai_ or in writing
shall bc _n_m_ as a contract or as a pa_ of a contra_ with the original pu_ha_ or any holde_ of
the Bonds.
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APPENDIX A

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL FACTORS

This section presents _form_n _gard_g cc_ain of the m_or econom_ and demograph_ factors
in the City which may af_ct the City All mform_n is presented on a calendar year basis unless
otherwise in_c_ed. The data set _h a_ the la_st av_H_ Souses of _form_n are _c_ed in the

text or imme_e_ _l_wing the tables. Although the City cons_e_ the sources to be r_b_, the City
has made no independent verific_n of the _rm_n presen_d herein and does not wa_ant its
accuracy

New York City Economy

The City has a highly _ve_ed econom_ base, with a sub_anti_ v_ume of bu_ness activity in the
service, wh_es_e and retail trade and manu_uring mdu_ries and is the location of many securit_
banking, law, accountin_ new media and adverti_ng firms.

_he City is a m_or seaport and foc_ p_ for internation_ business. Many of the major corpo_t_ns

headquartered in the City are m_tin_n_ in scope and have e_en_ve fore_n oper_n_ Numerous
fox,n-owned compares in the United States are also headquarte_d in the Cit_ These firm_ wh_h have
increased in number substantially over the pa_ decade, are found in all se_o_ of the Ciff_ econom_ but
are concentrated in trade, manufa_uring sa_s office, tourism and finance. The Ciff is the location of the
headqua_e_ of _e Uni_d Nations, and seve_l af_h_d organ_ations m_nt_n their prindp_ offices in
the City A large _Nom_ commu_ff e_s_ in _e City _ _aff the 186 m_ons _o _he Uni_d Nmions
and the 96 fo_ign cons_a_

Economic a_iff in the City has experienced periods of growth and rece_ion and can be expe_ed
to experience periods of growth and reces_on in the future. Changes in the econom_ a_Ry in the City,
panic_ady em_oymenL per capita pe_onal income and retail sales, may have an impa_ on the City.
From 1969 to 1977, the City experienced sub_amhl declines in em_oyment, but _om 1978 to 1987 the
City experienced _rong growth in jobs, espe_ in the City_ finance, insurance and real e_e _FIRE_
sector due in large part to lower _flation, lower interest rates and a strong securit_s market. Be_nn_g
in 1988, emNoyment grow_ in the C_y _owe_ and in 1990 the C_y experienced job io_e_ aRhough the
U.S. economy expanded during that period. During 1991 and 1992, emp_yment levels in the Ciff
continued to decline. In recent yea_, the City has experienced increases in em_oyment. Real per cap_a
pe_onal income (i.e., per capita pe_onal income a_u_ed for the ef_s of inflation and the _fferenfi_
in riving co_s) has genera_y experienced _wer flu_u_ns than em_oyment in the City. ARhough the
City pefiod_ experienced declines in real per cap_a pe_onal _come between 1969 and 1981, real per
capita pe_onal income in the City has generally increased _om the m_-1980s until the present. In near_

all of the yea_ between 1969 and 1990 the Ciff experienced strong increases in retail s_es. HoweveL _om
1991 to 1993, the City experienced a weak period of retail sales. Since 1994, the City has returned to a

period of growth in retail sales. Overall, the City_ econom_ improvement accelerated _gn_cant_
between 1997 and 2000. Much of the increase can be traced to the performance of the securities _du_ry,
but the City_ economy also produced gains in the retail trade secto_ the hotel and tourism _du_ry, and
business ser_ce_ with private sector emp_ymem growing at a record pace. The City_ current Finand_
Plan assumes that econom_ growth, after Mowing in the last quarter of ca_ndar year 2000 and in calendar
year 2001, will begin to recover in calendar year 2002. Howeveq there can be no assurance that the
economic projections assumed in the Financ_l Plan will occur or that the tax revenues proje_ed in the
Finand_ _an to be received will be received in the amoun_ antidp_e& The economic pr_e_ns in the
Finand_ Plan were made prior to the September 11 attack on the World Trade Center and have not been
revised to reflect changes that may occur as a resua of this event.

Personal Income

Per capha pe_onal income for City _s_en_, unadjusted for the effe_s of _flm_n and the
dif_m_l in living costs, has steadily increased from 1989 to 1999 (the most recent year for which City
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personal income data are available) and is higher than the average for the United States. From 1989 to

1999, per cap_a personal income in the City averaged _3% growth compared to 4.6% for the nation. The
following table sets forth recent information regarding personal income in the City.

PERSONAL INCOME IN NEW YORK CITY(l)

P_ CapRa Per CapRa
Tot_ NYC Pe_on_ Pe_on_ NYC _

Pe_on_ Income Income _come a Percent of
Ye_ _ _fl_) NYC U._ U._

1989 ......................... $168.2 $22,909 $18,571 123A%

1990 ......................... 182.3 24,895 19,588 127.1
1991 ......................... 186.8 25577 20,099 127.3

1992 ......................... 199.7 27,331 21,077 129.7

1993 ......................... 202.9 27fi77 21f109 127.5

1994 ......................... 208.6 28A16 22,565 125.9

1995 ......................... 221.9 30,192 23,543 128.2

1996 ......................... 236.6 32,147 24,630 130.5

1997 ......................... 245.3 33228 25,851 128.5

1998 ......................... 261. l 35,266 27,292 129.2

1999 ......................... 278.1 37A35 28,508 131.3

Sources U.S. Depa_me_ of Comme_e, Bureau of Economic An_y_s and the Bureau of the Censu_
(1) In current doHar_ Personal Income is based on the place of re_dencc and is mc_u_d from _come w_ch _dudes wages and

s_afic_ other labor income, propriety' income, pe_on_ _dend income, pe_onal interest income, rental income of
pe_on_ and _ans_r payme_s.

Sectoral Distribution of Employment and Income

In 2000, the City_ services employment sector hit an ali4ime peak, providing approximately

1.4 million jobs and accounting for approximate_ 39% of total employment. Figures on the sectoral
di_ribution of employment in the City reflect a significant shift to non-manufacturing employment,
pa_icula_y to the areas of services and FIRE, and a shrinking manufacturing base in the City relative to
the nation.

The structural shift from manufacturing to the services and FIRE sectors affects the _vel of earnings

per employee because employee compensation in finance and related business and professional services
is con_derably higher than in manufacturing. Moreove_ per employee earnings in the FIRE sector are

significancy higher in the City than in the nation. From 1979 to 1999, the employment share for FIRE

remained approximately 13% while the FIRE sector earnings share for the same period rose from 17% to
32% in the Cit_ This shift in employment and earnings di_ribution toward the FIRE sector was more
pronounced in the City than in the nation overall as indicated in the table below. Due to this shift in

earnings distribution, sudden or large shocks in the finan_al markets have a d_proportionatcly adverse
effect on the City relative to the nation.

The City_ and the nation_ employment and earnings by industry are set forth in the following table.
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SECTORALD_TRIBUTION OF EMPLOYMENTAND EARNINGS(1)

Em_oyme_ Eam_)
1979 1999 1979 1999

Sector NYC U.S. NYC U.S. NYC U.S. NYC U._

P_vate Secto_

N on-Manufacturing:
Services ............................. 26.2% 19.1% 38.2% 30.3% 25.2% 17.9% 32.8% 29.1%

Wholesa_ and Retail Trade ........... 18.9 22.5 16.8 23.1 15.3 16.8 9.6 15.3

Finance, Insurance and Real E_ate ..... 13.1 5.5 13.4 5.9 16,6 5.8 31.6 9.2

Transportation and Public Ufififies ...... 7,9 5.7 5.7 5.3 10.3 7.5 5.4 6.8
Contract Construction ................ 2.2 5.0 3.2 5.0 2.5 6.7 2.6 5.9

Mining .............................. 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.4 _7 1.8 0.4 _8

Total Non-Manufacturing .............. 68.3 58.8 77.4 69.9 7_7 56.5 82.3 67.1
Manufa_urin_

Durab_ ............................. 4.7 14.2 1.7 8.6 3.9 16.2 1.3 10.2

Non-Durab_ ........................ 11.1 9.3 5.2 5.8 9,9 9.0 5.3 6.l

Total Manufacturing .................. 15.8 23.4 6.9 14.4 13.8 25.2 6.6 16.2

Tot_ Private Sector ...................... 84.1 82.2 84.3 84.3 84A 82.1 88.9 84.0

Government(3) .......................... 15.9 17.8 15.7 15.7 15.6 17.9 11.1 16.0

Note: lbt_s maynot _1_ due to roun_n_
Sources:The two primarysourcesof employmentand earningsinformationare U.S.Dept. of Labo_Bureauo[ LaborSt_istics, and
U.S.Depa_ment of Commerc_ Bureau of Economic Analys_.
(1) The sectoral di_fibutions are obtained by dividing each indu_ry_ em_oyment or earnings by total non_gfic_tur_

em_oymcnt or earmngs.
(2) Includes the sum of wage and salary disbu_emen_, other labor _com_ and propfi_o_' _come. The latest inform_ion

avm_ble for the City is 1999data.
(3) Excludesmilitaryestablishments

Employment Trends

The City is a leading center for the banking and securit_s indu_r_ life insurance, commun_ations,

pu_h_ fashion design and retail field_ From _993 through 2000, the City expe_enced s_ficant

private sector job growth with the addition of more than 449_00 (an average growth rate of 22%) new

private sector jobs. Over the la_ seven years, the City has experienced its large_ period of employment
growth since the 1950s, which contrasts with the approximate_ 9% loss in the City_ employment base

during 1989-1992. As of Augu_ 2001, total em_oyment in the City was approximatdy 3f138A00
compared to appro_mate_ 3f100_00 in Augu_ 2000.
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The table below shows the distribution of employment from 1991 to 2_)0.

NEW YORK CITY EMPLOYMENT D_TRIBUTION

Av_age Annu_ Em#oymem (M tho_an_)

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2_

Private Sector
Non-Manufactudng

Services .................. 1,097 1,093 1,116 1,148 1,184 1,227 1,275 1,325 1,384 1,456
Who_sa_ and Ret_l Trade . 565 546 538 544 555 565 578 590 610 631
Finance, Insurance and Real

E_ate .................. 494 473 472 480 473 469 473 483 486 490

Transpo_ation and Public
Ufilit _s ................ 218 205 203 201 203 205 206 206 208 211

Con_ruction .............. 100 87 86 89 90 91 94 102 114 122

Total Non-Manufa_ufing ... 2A74 2A04 _15 2,463 _,505 2_57 2_25 _fl07 2,8(12 2_10
Manufa_ufin_

Durab_ .................. 77 72 71 69 68 66 64 64 63 61
Non-Durable .............. 231 220 218 211 206 201 201 195 188 182

Total Manufacturing ....... 308 293 289 280 274 266 265 259 251 242

Total P_vate Sector ............ 2,782 },697 2,704 2,744 2,779 2,823 2,890 2,967 _,053 3,153
Government .................. 593 585 588 578 560 546 552 561 567 568

Total ......................... 3375 3282 3,291 3,322 _,339 3,369 3A42 _,528 _21 3,721

N_e: Totals may n_ add due to roun_n&
Source: U.S. Depa_me_ of Labo_ Bureau of Labor _Nk_

Unemployment

The unemployment rate of the City_ resident labor force is shown in the following table. As of
Augu_ 2001, the total unemployment rate in the City was 5.8% compared to 5.6% in Augu_ 2000.

ANNUAL UNEMPLOYMEWI" RATE(I)(2)

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

New York City ................ 8.7% 11.0% 10.4% 8.7% 8.2% 8.8% 9.4% 8.0% 6.7% 5.7%
United States ................. 6.9% 7.5% 6.9% 6.1% 5.6% 5.4% 5.0% 4.5% 4.2% 4D%

Note: Monthly and semi-annuM data are not seasonM_ a_us_d. Because these estimmes are bascd on a sam#c rather than a _11
count of population, these d_a are su_e_ to sampling error. Acco_in_ sm_l _fferences in the esfimmes over time shoed be
interpreted with ca_ion. The Cu_ent Population Survey mdud_ wage and saM_ worke_, domestk and other household worke_,
_emNoyed persons and unpNd workc_ who work 15 hours or more during the survey week in Nmfly bus_esse_

Source: U_. Depanmem of LaboL BLS.

(1) Pe_en_ge of dfi_an Mbor _rce unemNoyed: excludes those persons unaNe _ work and N_ou_ged worke_ (i2., persons
n_ a_Ndy _eNng work because they bd_ve no suitable work is avMMN_.

_) BeNnmng in late 1992 the Cu_em Pop_M_n Su_ey (whkh profid_ household emNoymem and uncmNoyment _m_fics)
methodMogy was refised _r Sep_mber _992 and thcreaflc_ As a resuR, the m_hodNogy used _r such period _f%rs _om
the m_hodNogy used _r the period prior m SeNcmbcr 1992 and, conscquent_ the pr_SeNcmber 1992 dma _ _conh_em
with the d_a _r Sep_mber 1992 and therea_e_

Pubfic Ass_tance

The following table sets forth the number of persons receding public as_ance in the City As of
February 2001, the number of persons receNing public ass_tancc in the City was 523,178 compared to
599,387 in February 2000.

PUBLIC AS_STANCE(1)

(Annu_ Averages _ Thousands)

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

896.5 976.5 1_47.3 1,116.0 1,146.8 1,055.4 940.0 812.6 713.7 618.2

(1) _gures do not _dude aged, d_ab_d or N_d pe_ons who me_ wans%_ed _om punic asfi_ance to the SSI pro_am, wh_h
is primaNy %deral_ _nde_
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Taxable Sales

The sales tax is levied on a variety of econom_ activities including retail sales, utility and
commun_ation sales, serv_es and manufacturing The total taxable sales volume has grown _eadily over

the past 13 years, except for the period _om 1991-1992, with a growth rate averaging over 4%.

The City is a m_or retail trade market with the greatest volume of retail sales of any city in the
nation. Retail sales account for almo_ 50% of the total taxable sales volume.

The following table illu_rates the volume of sales and purchases subject to the sales tax from 1989
to 1999.

TAXABLE SALES AND PURCHASESSUBJECTTO SALES TAX

(In Bil_ons)

Ufi_y &
Communk_n All

Yea_l) R_ail_) S_es(_ Se_es(_ Manu_udng Othe_ To_l

1989 ............................. $24.5 $7.6 $ 9.0 $3.8 $7.8 $52.8
1990 ............................. 25.4 8.1 9.2 3.7 7.9 54.4

1991 ............................. 24.0 8.5 9.1 3.3 7.8 52.6

1992 ............................. 23.8 7.3 9.0 3.2 7.9 51.1

1993 ............................. 24.1 9.4 9.1 3.2 8.6 54.5

1994 ............................. 26.2 9.3 10.3 3.3 8.1 57.2
1995 ............................. 27.6 9.0 10.7 3.3 8.9 59.4

1996 ............................. 29. l 9.7 11.4 3.6 9.4 63.1

1997 ............................. 31.5 9.8 13.5 3.9 8.8 67.5

1998 ............................. 33.9 9.8 15.0 4.2 9.3 72.2
1999 ............................. 35.0 9.6 16.1 4.2 9.5 74.4

Souse: State Dcp_tmem of Taxationand _nancc puN_mn "TaxaNe Sales and Pu_hase_ Coun_ and Indu_ Data."
(1) The yea_y data is _r the period _om SeNember 1 of the year prior to the li_cd year through Augu_ 31 of the li_cd yca_

(2) R_afl sales _dude building mmefiN_ generN me,hanNa, _od, auto dcNers/gas_arion_ appall. Nm_ur_ caring and
drinking and mi_ellancous retail.

_) Uffikyand Commumcafionsales _ude _c_fic and gasand commun_m_m

(4) Se_es includebuNne_ serv_e_ hotel_ personal _ice_ auto _pair and _her services.
(5) All Nher sales _dude con_ru_n, whN_Me trade and _hers.

Popdation

The Ci_ has been the mo_ populous city in the United States since 1810. Thc _ty_ popul_n is
almo_ as large as the combined popCOrn of Los Ange_s, Ch_ago and Hou_on, the three next mo_
populous cities in the nation.

POPULATION OF NEW YORK CITY

Total
Year Popd_n

1970 ................................................ 7_95563
1980 ................................................ 7,071,639

1990 ................................................ 7,322,155

2000 ................................................ 8,008.278

Note: _gu_s do not include an und_ermi_d number of undocumemedaliens.
Source: U.S. Depa_mem of Comm_ce. Bu_au of the Censu_
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The _l_ng table _ _h Re _fib_n of the City_ population by age between 1980 and 1990.

D_T_BU_ON OF POPULA_ON BY AGE

(In Thousand_

19_ 1_

_ % of _t_ % of Tot_

Under 5 ........................................ 471 6.7 510 7.0

5 to 17 ......................................... 1,295 18.3 1,177 16.1
18 to 24 ........................................ 826 11.7 778 10N

25 to 34 ........................................ 1_03 17.0 1,369 18_
35 to 44 ........................................ 834 11.8 1,117 15.2

45 to 64 ........................................ 1A91 21.1 1_19 19A
65 and Over .................................... 952 13.4 953 13.0

Source: U.S. Depa_mem of Comme_e, Bureau of the Censu_

Hou_ng

In 1999, the housing stock in the City COhered of approximate_ 3_39_00 housing units, ex_uding

ce_n spe_ types of units pfimafi_ in institutions such as hospita_ and un_er_e_ The 1999 housing

inventory represented an increase of approximate_ 44,000 units, or 1.5%, since 1996 and an increase of
approximate_ 62,000 units, or 2.1% since 1993. The 1999 Hou_ng and Vacancy Survey ind_ates that

rental housing units predom_ate in the Cit_ Of all occupied housing units in 1999, approximate_ 34%
were conventional home-owne_hip units, cooperat_es or condominiums and appro_mat_y 66% were

rental units. The following table presen_ trends in the housing inventory in the Cit_

HOU_NG INVENTORY IN _EW YORK CITY

(ltou_ng Units in Thousand_

Owne_Occupancy S_tus 1981 1984 1987 1991 1993 1996 1999(2)

Total Hou_ng Units ...................... 2,792 2,803 2_40 2,981 2,977 2_95 3_39
Owner Units ......................... 755 807 837 858 825 858 932

OwnevOccupied ................. 746 795 817 829 805 834 915
Vacant for Sale ................... 9 12 19 20 20 24 17

Rental Units ......................... 1,976 1,940 1,932 2_28 2,040 2,027 2_18

RentevOccupied ................. 1,934 1,901 1,884 1,952 1,970 1_46 1,954
Vacant for Rent .................. 42 40 47 77 70 81 64

Vacant Not AvNNble for Sale or Rent(l) 62 56 72 94 111 110 89

Source_ U.S. Bureau of the Censu_ 1981, 1984, 1987, 1991, 1993 and 1996 New York City Housing and Vacancy Su_eys and 1999

draft New York City Hou_ng and Vacancy Surve_

(1) Vacant units that are d_aNd_e_ i_ended _r seasonN use, he_ _r occa_onal use, h_d _r mmn_nance purposes or _her

reason_ Nine: Dm_h may not add up to totah due to round_&

(2) Preened.
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LARGEffF REAL ESTATE TAXPAYERS

No single taxpayer accoun_ for 10% or more of the City_ real prope_y tax. For the 2002 fiscal yea_ the
billable assessed v_uation of real estate of utility corporations is $7.9 billion. The following table presen_
the 40 non-ut_ty properties having the greatest assessed valuation in the 2002 fiscal year as ind_ated in
the tax rol_.

2002 2_2
_sca| Ye_ _scal Ye_
A_e_ed A_e_ed

PmpeMy VaCation Pmpeay VaCation

Met Life Building ................ $251,180,000 Solow Building .................. $12_690_00

General Moto_ Building .......... 21655_000 Chase World Headqua_e_ ........ 124_80_00

Sperry Rand Building ............ 186,120_00 The Chase Manhattan Building .... 123,750_00

Stuyvesant Town ................. 185_90,000 Bear Stearns Building (Madison
Empire State Building ............ 175_00,(N0 Ave.) ......................... 121,040,000
McGraw-Hill Building ............ 175N80D00 Park Avenue Atrium ............. 120_61_20

Bear Stearns Building (Park Ave.) . 172_0_000 One Liberty Plaza ................ 11&983_19

Alliance Capital Building ......... 17128_000 Paramount Plaza ................. 11&72_000

Bfi_ol Mye_ Building ............ 166,680,000 666 Fi_h Avenue ................ 112220_00

InternationN Building ............ 163280_00 595 Le_ngton Avenue ............ 112D5_000

Time & Life Building ............. 160A40_00 Carpet Cenmr ................... 110,160_00

Credit LyonnaN Building .......... 15_659_98 Kalikow Building ................ 109,170,000

Paine Webber Building ........... 15433%993 Simon & Schuster Building ........ 106_80,000
Waldorf-Astoria ................. 150_0()_00 Sheraton New York .............. 105_1_000

Equitable Tower ................. 150_50,0(N Cit_orp Center .................. 105570_00

Morgan Guaranty Building ........ 142,29_000 Reute_ Building ................. 103,950,000
Celanese Building ................ 140N9_000 Park Avenue Plaza ............... 103,140_00

One Penn Plaza .................. 139,770_00 W.R. Grace Building ............. 9738_000
N.Y. Hilton & Towe_ ............ 139248_N) One Astor Plaza ................. 96_26_00

Worldwide Plaza ................. 138_00_00 Continental Illino_ Building ....... 91,08_000
IBM Tower ..................... 90,75_000

Source:The City of New York, Department of Finance, Bureau of Real Prope_y A_essmcnt.
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Repo_ of Independent Auditors

The Peop_ of The Ci_ of New York

We have aud_ed me gener_ purpose finand_ _emen_ of The Ci_ of New York _Ci_ as of and for me years ended June 3_ 2000
and June 30, 1999, as listed in me accompanying _dex. These financ_i _emen_ are _e _spons_ili_ of_e Ci_ _ managemen_ Our
_spons_H_y _ _ exp_ an o_n_n on these finan_ _eme_s based on our aud_ We did not audit me finand_ _ements of_e

entities _sdosed _ Note B. Those finan_ sta_men_ were audited by oth_ auditors, whose _ports have been furnished _ u_ and our
opinion on me general purpose finan_ _eme_ _so_r as _ _l_es _ _e amoun_ _duded for such e_ities, _ based soldy on the
_po_s of me _her audi_.

We conducted our au_ _ accordance w_h au_ting _and_ds gen_ accep_d _ _e Un_ed States of America. Those stand_ds
_qui_ _ we _an and perform the audi_ to obtain reasonable assurance about wh_h_ _e finan_ _ements _e _ee of m_efi_

m_emen_. An audit includes exami_n_ on a test basis, evidence suppoaing the amours and disclosures in the finan_
_eme_s. An aud_ _so includes assessing the accounting principles used and _gnifica_ estim_es made by manageme_, as wall as
ev_uating _e over_i _nan_ sm_ment presentation. We believe _ our audi_ and the _po_s of other au_ pro_de a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

_ our o_n_ based on our au_ and _po_s of _e o_er auditor_ _e gene_l purpose financial sta_men_ refer_d to above present
_id_ in all m_eri_ _spe_ the finan_ position of The Ci_ of New York as of June 30, 2000 and 1999, and the resu_s of i_
operations and cash flows of its discre_ presented compone_ units for the years then ended in conformity wig accounting prin_es
gener_ acceded in the U_d States of America.

As described _ Notes A and J, _spe_ely, the Ci_ financial _emen_ _dude TSASC, Inc., _s a b_nded componem uniO, wh_h
was crewed in November 1999 to pu_hase _e Ci_ fu_ 6ght, t_e, and i_ere_ _ _bacco sett_ment _venue_ and _e Come,ons
Variab_ Sup_eme_s Fund, _s a SimH_ Trust Fund), wh_h was _e_ed in December 1999.

As d_cu_ed _ No_ S to the gene_l purpose financi_ statements, certa_ actuarial assumptions and methods used _ me c_c_n of
em_oyer contrib_ns _ the a_uari_ pens_n sy_ems for me fisc_ ended June 3_ 200_ were changed. In add_ion, as discussed in
No_ J, Sloe _sl_n _sul_d in the elim_n of_e lia_l_ wh_h was p_ou_y _corded in me Gener_ Long-term O_ations
Accou_ Group for cea_n pens_n costs incurred prior to 1981.

October 26, 2000
New York, New York
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET--ALL FUND TYPE_ ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2000

(in _ou_nd_

Governmental Fund 1_pes Fundl_peFidu_arYTrust Account GroupSGenerM (Memorandumon_)_b_l PresentedDiSc_tely(Memorandumonly)lbtal
Capit_ Debt and GenerM I_ng-_rm P_mary Component RepoSing

General Projec_ Serv_e Agency FixedAssets O_ns Government Uni_ Enti_ASS_:

Cash and cash eq_va_ms ......... $ 878,116 $ 83,517 $ 41_807 $ 601,775 $ -- $ -- $ 1,978,215 $ 778,457 $ 2,7_6,672
Inve_men_, _ud_g accrued

interest ...................... 966,223 -- 4,082,206 11_34_553 -- -- 124,396,982 _)9,815 12_60_797
Inve_ments, c_l_e_l _om

securities len_ng transactions .... -- -- -- 1_26_340 -- -- 12,268,340 _ 1_26&340

Accoums _c_va_c:
Real estate taxes (less allowance

for unc_ amours of

$38_568) .................. 613,158 ..... 613,158 -- 613,158
Federal, Stmc and _hcr _d ...... 5,369,998 469_98 .... 5,839,496 -- 5_3_496
Patient serv_ net ............. -- ...... 60_000 _)0,(_0
Other ....................... 884_89 -- -- 5,089,837 -- -- 5,974,226 653,140 _62_366

_ Mo_gage loans and in_re_
_ _ce_abl_ net ................ -- -- 35,204 -- -- -- 35,204 2,588,170 _62_374

Due from other funds ............. 2,502,667 1,293,842 -- 100,000 -- -- 3,896,509 -- _89_509
Due from Primary Governme_ ..... -- ...... 47,141 47,141
Due from Discre_ly Presen_d

Componem Uni_ .............. 22_641 252,911 10,452 -- -- -- 48_004 -- 486,004
Propert_ plant and eq_pmem ...... -- -- -- -- 24,847,764 -- 2_84_764 28,822,495 5_670,259
Accumulated dep_d_n and

amon_m_n .................. -- -- -- -- (9,423,778) -- (9,42_778) (1_53_620) (1_954,398)
Res_icted cash and _ve_ments .... -- 1_45_43 .... 1_45_43 1_8_712 2_30,355
Other ......................... 435,372 85,547 647 55,377 -- -- 576,943 307,432 884,375
Amours av_h_e in Debt

Serv_e Funds ................. -- .... 4,189,167 4,189,167 -- 4,189,167
Amoun_ to be prov_ed for

gene_l long-term o_ns .... -- .... 4_448,9_9 4_44_929 -- 42,448,929

Total assets ............... $11_7_564 $3,530,958 $_54L316 $13Z463_82 $15,423,986 $46,638,096 $219_7_802 $26,760,742 $246,233_44

See accompanfing notes to financi_ statements.



THE CITY OF NEW YORK
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET--ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2000
On thousand_

_dudary _b_l ToLl
Fund Type Accnum Groups (Memorandum Di_tely (Memorandum

Governmen_l Fund Types Trust General Only) P_med Only)
Ca_l Debt and Gener_ Lon_rm Primary Cumponem Reputing

Gener_ Proje_s Se_e Agency _xed Assets O_ns Governme_ Un_s Enti_
LIA_U_ES:

Accou_s paya_e and accrued
flawless ..................... $ _08_881 $ 1_07_89 $ 4_349 $ 1_29_916 $ -- $ -- $ 1_73_635 $ 1,201,528 $ 1_93_163

Bonds and no_s payab_ ........... -- 515,000 -- -- -- 3_51_289 3_031 _89 12,752,492 5_78_781
Ca_t_ lease o_ns ........... -- .... 1_03_50 1,803,050 -- 1,803,050
Acc_cd _ c_c mx _nds ...... 50,886 .... 539,895 59_781 -- 590,781
Accrued _x re_nds _h_ .......... 186,189 ..... 186,189 -- 186,189
Acc_ed judgme_s and claims ...... 292_80 105,431 -- -- -- 3_1_884 _012_95 -- 4,012,395
Accrued vac_n and _ck leave ..... -- .... 2_78,700 2,078,700 36_901 2_39_01
Landfill closure and po_su_

care co_s ..................... -- .... 1,085,278 1_85_78 -- 1_85_78
Accrued i_c_ payaNc ........... -- ...... 37,499 37,499
De_ed revenues ................ _315_32 192,505 .... 3fi0_837 245,525 3,753,362
Due to _her funds ................ 1,293,842 _48_864 21,803 10_000 -- -- 3,896,509 -- 3,896_09
Due to Primly Government ......... -- ...... 48_004 48_004
Due to D_c_ Presented

Compone_ Uni_ .............. 47,141 ..... 4_141 -- 4_141
E_imamd d_al_wancc of Federal,

._ SecufitiesSt_eand _h_ a_lending_ansa_ns""" "" "" "........... 205,228__ __-- ---- 12,268,340-- ---- ---- 12,268,340205,228 ---- 12,268,340205,228
Other .......................... -- -- 255,876 1,241,585 -- -- 1_9_461 189,567 1_8_028

qbtal 1_1_ ................ 11_7_579 4,601,289 32_028 23_0_841 -- 46,638,096 8_94_833 15_73fi 16 10_221 _49
EQUffY ANDOTHERCRESTS:

Inve_mem in general fixed assets .... -- -- -- -- 15_2_986 -- 15_23_86 -- 15_2_986
Comfibu_d cap_al ................ -- ...... 9,184,218 9,18_218
R_ned earn_gs:

Rescued for ca_t_ improvemem.. -- ...... 127,956 127,956
Rescued for loans and prog_ms... -- ...... 143,879 143,879
Rcse_cd for donor _mfi_ns .... -- ...... 12,606 12,606
Rese_ed for debt _t_emem ...... -- ...... 425_91 425,091
Unre_rved .................... -- ...... 1,593,476 1_93A76

Fund b_ance_an net assets:
Reserved for debt serv_e ......... -- -- _ 18_ 167 -- -- -- _ 18_ !67 -- _ ! 8_ 167
Reserved for non-current

mo_gage loans .............. -- -- 32,121 -- -- -- 32,121 -- 32,121
Rescued for supplcmcnt_

benefit paymen_ ............... -- -- -- 3_0_725 -- -- 3,706,725 -- 3,706,725
Reserved for plan benefits .......... -- -- -- 10_85_316 -- -- 109,850,316 -- 10_85_316
Un_se_ed(defid 0 ............... 392_85 (1_7_331) .... (677_46) -- (67Z346)

TotM equity (defici0 and
other credits ................. 392,985 (1,070,331) 4_2_88 113_5_041 15_23_86 -- 13_524_69 I 1,487,226 14_01_195

Comm_me_s and co_genoes
To_l I_l_ equity and

othercredhs ................. $ 11_72_64 $ 3_3_958 $ _543_16 $ 137_63_82 $ 15_23_86 $ 4_638_96 $ 219,472,802 $ 2_76_742 $ 24_233_44

See accompanying notes to finano_ _ement_



THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET--ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 20(_
(in _ousand_

_du_ary Ibt_ "_t_
Fund'_pe A_ou_ G_u_ (Memorandum Di_tely (Memorandum

Goveramen_l Fund l_ypes Trust General Only) P_ed Only)
Ca_! Debt and General Long-t_m Pdma_ Com_me_ Rcpu_ing

General P_e_s Se_e Agency _xed A_s O_afions Governme_ Units Enti_
_A_H_:

Accoun_
paya_eandac_uedl_l_es $ _08_881 $ 1,307,489 $ 44,349 $ 1_29_916 $ -- $ -- $ 1_73_63_ $ 1,201,528 $ 1_93_163

Bonds and notes payable ........... -- 515_00 -- -- -- 3_51 _289 38_31_89 1Z752_92 5_78_781
Ca_l _e o_ions ........... -- .... 1,803,050 1,_50 -- 1,803,050
Acc_ed real c_ate tax _nds ...... 5_886 .... 539,895 59_781 -- 5_781
Accrued _x re,rids _her .......... 186,189 ..... 186,189 -- 18_189
Accrued judgme_s and d_ms ...... 292_80 105,431 -- -- -- 3_1_884 4,012,395 -- 4_12,395
Accrued vacation and sick leave ..... -- .... _07_700 2_7&700 36_901 _43_601
Landfill dosu_ and post-dosu_

care costs ..................... -- .... 1_85_78 1_8_278 -- 1_85278
Accrued i_e_ payable ........... -- ...... 3_499 37,499
De_r_d _venues ................ 3,315,332 192fi05 .... 3,507,837 245,525 3fl53_62
Due to _her _nds ................ 1,293,842 2_8_864 21,803 100_00 -- -- 3,896,509 -- 3_96_09
Due to Primary Gov_nmem ......... -- ...... 48_(_4 486,004
Due _ Dis_etely P_sen_d

Compone_ Units .............. 4_141 ..... 4_ 141 -- 4_ 141
E_im_ed _s_wance of Fed_,

S_ and _her aid ............. 205,228 ..... 205,228 -- 205,228
_ Secures _n_ng _ansa_ns ...... -- -- -- 12_6_340 -- -- 1_268_ -- 12,268,340
_ Other .......................... -- -- 255,876 1_41fi85 -- -- 1_97_61 189,567 1_87_28

Total l_l_c_ ................ 11_7_579 4,601,289 322,028 23_0_841 -- 4_638_96 86,947,833 15_73_16 10_22t_49

Eot)ffY ANDOTHERCRESTS:
-- -- -- 15_23_86 -- 15_23_86 -- 15A2_986Inve_mcm in general fixed assets .... --

Co_fibu_d ca_l ................ -- ...... 9,184,218 _18_218
Retained earning_

...... 12Z956 12_956Rese_ed tbr capital im_ovemcm .. --

...... 143,879 143,879Rese_ed _r loans and prog_ms... --
Rese_ed _r donor _fi_ns .... -- ...... 12,606 12,606
Resewed _r de_ _t_emem ...... -- ...... 425,091 425,091
Un_se_ed .................... -- ...... 1fi93_76 1,593,476

Fund b_ance_an net assets:
Rese_ed _r de_ se_c ......... -- -- 4,189,167 -- -- _ _18_167 -- _18_167
Rese_ed _r non-curare

mo_gage _ans .............. -- -- 3_ 121 -- -- -- 32,121 -- 3_ 121
Rese_ed for supplement_

benefit paymcn_ ............... -- -- -- 3_06_25 -- -- 3_06_25 -- 3_06_25

Rese_edun_e_deficit)_rplan benefits.....,..................' 392,985-- (1_7_33-- l) __-- 109,850,316__ __-- __-- I0_85_316_7_346) __-- 10_85_316(67_34_

To_l equhy Ocfi_O and
_h_ _ed_s ................. 392,985 (1_7_33_ 4,221,288 11_55_041 15fi2_986 -- 132,524,969 11A8_226 14_01_195

Comm_mems and com_gcnc_s

TO_lo_c_di_l_ cqufly.................and $ 11_7_564 $ 3fi3_958 $ 4_43_16 $ 137A63_82 $ 15_23_86 $ 46,638,096 $ 219,472,802 $ 26,760,742 $ 24_233_44

See accompan_ng notes to financial _ements.



THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET---ALL FUND TYPE_ ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 1999

(in _ousand_

_du_ary To_l Total
Fund Type Account Groups (Memorandum D_cre_ (Memorandum

Governmen_l Fund Types Trust Gener_ Only) Presented O_y)
Ca_l Debt and General Long-term P_mary Component RepoSing

Gener_ Proje_s Serv_e Agency Fixed Asses O_ations Government Uni_ Enfi_
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equ_a_n_ ......... $ 190,094 $ 109,100 $ 124,313 $ 375,500 $ -- $ -- $ 79_007 $ 63_304 $ 1,433,311
lnve_mem_ indud_g accrued

_ ...................... 1,763,105 -- _130,650 11_51_253 -- -- 11_411_08 1_78_21 11_38_329
lnve_ment_ coll_eral _om

secufit_s _nd_g t_nsa_ns .... -- -- _ 1_79_193 -- -- 1_79_193 -- 10_94,193

Accoums rec_vab_:
Real estate taxes (less _lowance

for unc_ amounts of
$376,472) .................. 594,309 ..... 59_309 -- 594,309

Federal, St_e and _her _d ...... 4,125,996 484,125 .... _61_121 -- 4_1_121
-- 694,224 694,224P_ient serv_e, n_ ............. -- .....

Other ....................... 644_45 -- 245,014 3,068,584 -- -- 3,958,443 60_910 _563_53

._ Mongage_ceNabl_loansandnet ................_re_ -- -- 37,842 -- -- -- 37,842 2fi40,247 _478_89
Due from other funds ............. 2,031,874 70_154 .... 2,734,028 -- Z734_28
Due _om Primary Governmem ..... -- ...... 69,673 69,673

DUecomponem_OmDiscret_Yuni_..............Presen_d 19_ 107 235,143 9,956 -- -- -- 435,206 --
435,206

Prope_ p_nt and equ_ment ...... -- -- -- -- 23_2Z216 -- 23_2Z216 27_67_03 50,594_19

Accumu_damo_ndepreciat_n......,...........and .... (8231_60) -- (8_31_60) (9,81_857) (18,04_917)
RePrised cash and _ve_me_s .... -- 794,038 .... 79_038 1_3_057 _230_95
Other ......................... -- 92,062 537 16,171 -- -- 108,770 292,28 ! 401,051
Amoums

av_eserv_eFunds.... Debt.............in ..... 3_4_329 3A4Z329 --
3,442_29

Am°UmSgene_lTotNt°bel°ng-termassetspr°vided........... ..... ...°bligafi°nsf°r $ 9,540,330-- SL416N22-- $3_48_12-- $12_771_01-- $1_99_156-- $46,745,44743_0Nl18$204,018,56843_0_118$25,703_66_ _229_2L23143'303'118

See accompanying notes to finand_ _eme_



THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET--ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 1999
(in thousand_

_du_ary Total To_l
Fund'I_pe Accou_ Groups (Memorandum Discretely (Memorandum

Governmen_l Fund "Vypes Trust Gener_ O_y) Presented Only)
Cap_ Debt and General Long-term P_mary Compone_ Repo_g

General Proje_s Serv_e Agency _xed A_s Obligations Governme_ Uni_ Entity
LIA_LI'nES:

Accoun_ payable and accrued
I_s ...................... $ 5,39_788 $1_21_27 $ 48,773 $ _97_426 $ -- $ -- $ 1_441_14 $ 1,108,746 $ 15_5_260

Bonds and n_es payab_ ........... -- .... 35_7_926 35,870,926 13fi6_589 4%435_t5
Ca_l lease o_ns ........... -- .... 1_25_48 1,525,448 -- 1,525,448
Accrued real estate tax _funds ...... 18_82 .... 456,972 475,454 -- 475_54
Accrued mx refunds-_olher ......... 60,350 ..... 6_350 -- 60,350
Accrued judgme_s and _ms ...... 254,800 105,683 -- -- -- 3,517,566 3,878,049 -- 3,878,049
Accrued vac_n and _ck leave ..... -- .... 2_59_98 2_59_98 347_50 2_06_48
Accrued pens_n l_y ........... -- .... _33_230 _33&230 99,689 _43_919
Landfill closure and post-closum

care costs ..................... -- .... 979,007 97_007 -- 979_07
Accrued _rcst payable ........... -- ...... 477,925 477,925
De_ed revenues ................ 2,448,915 193,259 .... _64_174 249,670 2,891,844
Due _ other _nds ................ 702,154 _00_777 2_097 -- -- -- 2,734,028 -- 2,734,028
Due _ Prima_ Govemme_ ........ -- ...... 435,206 435,206
Due m Dicr_eN Presented

Compone_ U_its ............... 69,673 ..... 69,673 -- 69,673
ESimmed d_al_wancc of Federal

_ Stme and other aid .............. 204_67 ..... 204_67 -- 20_867
-,.a Secu_t_s _nding t_nsa_ns ...... -- -- -- 1_79_193 -- -- 1_79_193 -- I_794,193

Other .......................... -- -- -- 871,851 -- -- 871,851 147,286 1_1_137

Total l_bilflies ............... _15_029 3,328,246 -- 72,870 19_44_70 -- 4_745_47 78,943,062 16,430,161 95,373,223

EOUITYANDO_IER CREDITS:
lnve_mem _ gen_ fixed assets .... -- -- -- -- 14_9_156 -- 1_99_156 -- 14_9_156
Co_ributed capital ................ -- ...... Z163fi44 7,163,544
R_ned earn_gs:

Rese_ed fi_rcapit_ improvement .. __ ...... 100_72 100,472
Rese_ed for _ans .............. -- ...... 11_964 11_964
Rese_ed for donor _ns .... -- ...... 11,946 11,946
Reserved _r de_ r_kcmem ...... -- ...... 383,437 383,437
Un_servcd .................... -- ...... 1_03,139 1,503,139

Fund b_ance_an net assets:
Rescued for de_ serv_e ......... -- _ 3_4_329 -- -- -- _44Z329 -- _44_329
Rescued for non-current

mortgage _ans ............... -- _ 33,113 -- -- -- 33,113 -- 33,1 ! 3
Rese_ed for supNeme_M

benefit paymems ............. -- _ -- 3A35_22 -- -- 3A35d_2 -- _43_022
Reserved for _an benefits ........ -- -- -- 103_92_09 -- -- 103_92,209 -- 103_92,209
Un_servcd (deficit) ............. 388,301 (911,624) .... (523_23) -- (523_23)

Total cqu_y (defici O and
_her credits ............... 388,301 (911,624) 3A75A42 .10Z12_231 14,996,156 -- 125_75_06 9,273,502 13_34%008

Comm_mems and com_gcnc_s
Total l_lit_ equiff and

mhercred_s ............... $ 9_4_330 $ 2AI&622 $3,548,312 $12_771,701 $1_99_156 $4_745_47 $204,018,568 $25,703,663 $22_72Z231

See accompanying notes to finand_ smmmen_.



THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUER EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000
On thousand_

_du_a_ 1_tal

G_e_me_ Fund Ty_s Fund "l_pe (Mem_andumo__

Ca_l Debt Expenda_e Pfimaff
Gener_ Pr_ects Se_e Trust Gov_nme_

REVENUES:
Real e_e _xes ............................. $ _849_62 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 7,849,962
S_es and use taxes ........................... 4,159,943 -- -- -- 4,159,943
Personal income tax .......................... 5_6_597 -- 247,113 -- 5,611,710
Income taxes, other ........................... 3,589,023 -- -- -- 3_89_23
Other taxes ................................. 1_65_80 -- -- -- I_6_780
Federal, State and other categorical a_ ............ 11_05_70 312,537 291,500 -- 1_509_07
Unrestricted Federal and State aid ................ 631,224 -- -- -- 631,224
Cha_es _r se_es .......................... 1,400,507 -- -- -- 1A0_507
Comfib_ns ................................ -- -- -- 386_63 386_63
Tobacco settlement ........................... 247,364 -- 27,559 -- 274,923
_ve_mem _come ........................... 194,753 -- -- 606,148 80_901
Other ...................................... 1_4_369 851,184 129,428 -- 2,226,981

Total revenues .......................... 37_5_892 1,163,721 695,600 992_11 40,706,424
OTHER _NAN_NG SOURCES:

Trans_r _om D_y P_n_d Compone_ Units 29_78 -- -- -- 29,678
Trans_ _om Capfl_ P_ec_ Fund ............. -- -- 115,730 -- 115,730
Trans_ _om Gener_ Fund ................... -- 182,000 3_7_736 _ 3_5_736
Proceeds from sale of bonds .................... -- _ 125_30 19,177 -- 3,144,407
Ca_t_ed leases ............................ -- 328,686 -- -- 328,686
Refund_g bond proceeds ...................... -- -- 65,828 -- 65,828

To_l revenues and other finan_ng souses ..... 3L88_570 _79_637 4,669,071 992,211 4_345_89
EXPENDITURES:

Cuwent Options:
Gene_l governmem ........................ 1_43,124 -- -- -- 1_4_124
Pu_ sa_ and judici_ .................... 5_4_618 -- -- -- 5_4_618
Educ_n ................................. 1_49Z457 -- -- -- 1_49_457
City Un_er_ ............................ 383,851 -- -- -- 383,851
Social _rv_es ............................. _32_814 -- -- -- 8,329,814
Env_onmem_ pr_e_n .................... 1,398,196 -- -- -- 1,398,196
Transportation se_es ...................... 763,337 -- -- -- 763,337
Parks, recreation and cu_ural activ_es .......... 288,517 -- -- -- 288,517
Hou_ng .................................. 428,644 -- -- -- 428,644
HeMth 0ndud_g paymen_ to HHC) ........... 1_7_299 -- -- -- 1_7_299
Libra.s ................................. 232,521 -- -- -- 232,521
Pensions .................................. 615,085 -- -- -- 615,085
Judgmems and clams ....................... 490,669 -- -- -- 490,669
Fringe benefi_ and other benefit payme_s ....... _06_166 -- -- -- 2,065,166
Other .................................... (36_29) -- 39_19 88,840 91,830

Carrel Proje_s .............................. -- _84Z614 -- -- _842_14
Debt Sc_e:

In_ ................................... -- -- 1_8_155 -- 1_8_155
Redem_ns .............................. -- -- 1,561,018 -- 1,561,018
Lease paymcn_ ............................ -- -- 252,987 -- 252,987
Re_nding escrow .......................... -- -- 16,818 -- 16,818

Total expense.s ........................ 33,920,869 &84_614 3_57_97 88,840 4_70_720
OTHER _NAN_NG USES:

Trans_r _ Ca_l Projects Fund ................ 182_00 -- -- -- 182,000
T_ns_ _ Debt Service Fund .................. _77Z736 115,730 -- -- _888_66
T_ns_ to D_cre_ P_sen_d Componem Units.. 4,281 -- -- -- 4,281
Payme_ to refunded bond escrow holder .......... -- -- 65,828 -- 65,828

Total expendim_s and other finan_ng u_s .... 3_87_886 _95&344 3,923,225 88,840 4&85_295
EXCESS (DEH_ENC_ OF REVENUES AND OTHER _NAN_NG

SOURCES OVER EXPEN_TURES AND O_ER

_A_NG USES.............................. _684 (158,707) 745,846 903,371 1,495,194
FUNDBALANCES(DEFICI_ AT BEaNiNG OFYEAR ...... 388,301 (911,624) 3A75A42 336Z261 6,319,380
FUNDBALANCES(DEF[_ _T ENDOFYEAR............ $ 392_85 $(1_7_331) $4,221,288 $4,270,632 $ 7,814,574
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUER EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999
(in thousands)

_duda_ lbt_

Gove_m_! Fund Types Fund Type (Mem_andumon_)
Ca_l Debt Expendab_ Pdma_

Gener_ P_e_s Serv_e Trust Governme_
REVENUES:

Re_ e_e _xes ............................ $ 7,630,673 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ _63_673
Sales and use taxes .......................... 3_2_997 -- :-- -- 3_25_97
Personal income mx ......................... 5_89_98 -- 138,229 -- _527_27
Income taxes, other .......................... 3,218,165 -- -- -- 3,218,165
O_er taxes ................................. 1,193,823 -- -- -- 1,193,823
Fede_i, St_e and _her c_egor_ aid ........... 11_2_991 351,809 291,775 -- 11_7_575
Un_fi_ed Federal and Sm_ aid ............... 652,343 -- -- -- 652,343
Charges for serv_es ......................... 1,353,164 -- -- -- 1,353,164
Co_ributions ............................... __ __ -- 340,015 340,015
_ve_mem income .......................... 18Z371 -- 77,874 47_(_3 738,268
Other ..................................... 1,15_235 909,502 38,173 -- 2,104,910

Total revenues .......................... 35_3Z360 1,261,311 546,051 81_B8 3_45_760
OTHER _NAN_NG SOURCES:

Trans_r from DNc_ P_sen_d
Componem Un_ .......................... 31,164 -- -- -- 31,164

Trans_ from Gene_l Fund/Ca_l Projec_ Funds -- -- _73_136 -- 3,739,136
Proceeds from sale of bonds .................... 3,609,732 21,841 -- 3,631,573
Ca_t_ed leases ............................ 428,540 -- -- 428,540
Refunding bond proceeds ....................... L05_139 -- 2,050,139

Total revenues and _hcr financ_g sources .... 35_63524 529%583 6,357,167 818,038 48_38_12
EXPEN_TURES:

Cu_em Operations:
Gene_l governme_ ....................... 925,886 -- -- -- 925,886
Public salty and judici_ ................... 5,317,541 -- -- -- 5,317,541
Education ................................ 9A7_352 -- -- -- 9_7_352
Ci_ U_versity ........................... 37_943 -- -- -- 37_943
Social services ............................ 7,891,625 -- -- -- 7,891,625
Envkonme_ prme_n ................... 1,241,171 -- -- -- 1,241,171
Transportat_n serv_es ..................... 682,994 -- -- -- 682,994
Park_ _cre_n and cumuli a_es ......... 264,787 -- -- -- 264,787
Hou_ng ................................. 429,861 -- -- -- 429,861
He_ 0ndu_ng paymen_ to HHC) .......... 1_5_989 -- -- -- 1_5_989
Libra,s ................................ 212,243 -- -- -- 21_243
Pensions ................................. 1,342,415 -- -- -- 1,342,415
Judgme_s and d_ms ...................... 424,305 -- -- -- 424,305
Fringe benefi_ and other benefit paymems ...... 1_2_980 -- -- -- 1,824,980
Other ................................... 54,846 -- 53,238 76,649 18_733

Ca_l Proje_s ............................. -- 5,122,426 -- -- _12_426
Debt Serv_e:

Intere_ .................................. __ -- 1_5Z077 -- 1_5Z077
Redemptions ............................. __ -- 1_30_94 -- 1_3_994
Lease payme_s ........................... __ -- 248,601 -- 248,601
Refund_g escrow ......................... -- -- 107,042 -- 10_042

Total expenditures ....................... 32,118,938 5,122,426 3_91_52 76,649 4_90_965
OTHER _NAN_NG USES:

Trans_ _ Debt Serv_e Funds ................ 3,735,416 3,720 -- -- 3,739,136
Trans_ m D_c_ly P_sen_d Componem Unit . 4,258 -- -- -- 4,258
Paymem to _nded bonds escrow holder ........ -- -- 2,050,139 -- _05_139

Total expenditures and other finanNng uses ... 35_5_612 5,126,146 5,642,091 76,649 4&703N98
ExcEss OF REVENUES AND OTHER _NAN_NG

SOURCES OVER EXPEND_URES AND OTHER

_NANONG USES............................. 4,912 173,437 715,076 741,389 1,634,814
FUND BALANCES (DENOT) AT BEGIN_NG OF YEAR ..... 383,389 (1,085,061) _760,366 -- 2,058,694

FUND BALANCE AT BEaNiNG OF YEAR--AS RESTATE_ . . _625_72 2,625,872
FUNDBALANCES(DEF_IT) AT ENDOF YEAR.......... $ 388,301 $ (911,624) $3N75_42 $3_67261 $ _31_380

See accompan_ng notes to financial _eme_
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENTS OF REVENUER EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 3_ 2000 AND 1999

(in _ousand_
2_0 1999

Budg_ Budg_

Ado_ Mo_fi_ Actu_ Ado_ M_ifi_ Actu_

REVENUES:
Real estate taxes .................. $ _765_97 $ L813297 $ 7,849,962 $ 7,743,498 $ Z62Z000 $ _63_673
Sales and use taxes ................ 3,782,900 4,097,900 4,159,943 3fi5_300 3_33fl00 3_25_97
Personal _come tax ............... _83Z461 5,399,311 5_64fi97 4,587,768 5_8Z978 5_89fi98
_come taxes, _her ................ _13&436 3,608,700 3,589,023 _19_810 3,263,000 321_165
O_er taxes ....................... 1,115_00 1_41_96 1,265,780 997fl00 1,17_700 1,193_23
Feder_, St_e and o_er cmegoficM _d. 11,064,668 1Z62_396 11_05_70 1_635_70 11fl15_71 11_2_991
Un_fi_ed Federal and State _d ..... 614,730 616,730 631,224 564,730 620,939 652,343
Cha_ _r _ ............... 1_8_296 1_91225 1,400,507 1,342,975 1,391,559 1_5_164
Tobacco sett_ment ................ 283,534 24_426 247,364 -- -- --
In_ _come ................... 104,030 168,010 19_753 107,110 172,800 182,37l
Other revenues .................... 777,267 1_55_75 1,246,369 1_5Z721 1_98_67 1,157,235

Tot_ revenues ................ 3_863_19 3_761 _66 3_85_892 3_781_82 3_78_314 35_3Z360
OTHER_NAN_NG SOURCE_

Trans_ _om D_e_ly Presented
Componem Uni_ ................ 30,600 31,100 29,678 3_800 29,000 31,164

Total revenues and o_¢r
financing sources ............ 3_89_419 38,792,666 37,884,570 3_81_382 3_80_314 35_63_24

EXFEN_TURES:

Gener_ gov_nment ............... 1_3_534 1_8_538 1,043,124 945,848 992,803 925,886
Pu_ sa_ and ju_ ........... 5_8_097 5fl2_158 5,648,618 5,054,325 5,411,771 5,317,541
Board of Educ_n ................ 10,067,438 10_3_607 10,492,457 %29_771 9,620,076 %47&352
City U_ve_i_ ................... 420,750 42_484 383,851 399,381 413,887 376,943
So_ _ .................... _91_928 _607_28 8_29_14 _771_82 8,034,780 7,891,625
En_nmenml p_n ........... 1,424,519 1_3_716 1_9&196 1_0_823 1_0_576 1,241,171
Transportation _ ............. 593,292 79Z568 763,337 709,701 742,769 682,994
Parks, recreation and cultural a_N_s. 269_24 287,339 288,517 256,315 267_65 264,787
Hou_ng ......................... 445,796 475,600 428,644 446,15l 525,703 429,861
He_ 0ndu_ng paymen_ _ HHC) .. 1,644,688 1_9_541 1_7_299 1,470,058 1_5_335 1_5_989
Librafi_ ........................ 229,035 232,524 232,521 212,528 212,605 212,243
Pensions ......................... 1_1_950 623,159 615,085 1,307,543 1,352,904 1,34_415
Judgmen_ and d_ms .............. 39_889 490,549 490,669 383,482 412fi26 424,305
Fringe benefi_ and other benefit

payme_s ...................... Z06&615 L065_13 _065,166 1,869,909 1_6_377 1,824,980
Other ........................... 548,389 20_116 _42_ 734,611 154,285 54,846

Tot_ expenditures ............. 33,757,844 3_76_740 3_92_869 3Z15Z728 33_6_062 32,118,938
OTHER_NANC_G USES:

Trans_ and other paymen_ _r
de_ _e .................... 1,13&575 3,842,926 3f17%017 1_5_654 _741_52 3_3_674

Trans_r to ca_t_ pr_e_s _nd ...... -- 182,000 18L000 -- -- --

Total expendi_s and o_er
finandng uses .............. 3_89_419 3&79_666 3_87_886 33_1_382 3_80%314 35_5&612

ExcESs OFREVENUESANDOTHER_NANONG
SOURCESOVEREXPEN_TURESANDOTHER
_A_ONG USES.................... $ -- $ -- _684 $ -- $ -- 4,912

FUNDBAt._'JCESATBE_N_G OFYEAa... 388,301 383,389

FU_O BALANCESATE_D OFY._R ........ $ 392,985 $ 388,301

See accompanying n_es to finand_ m_emems.
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINEDSTATEMENTOFCHANGESIN PENSION
AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS PLAN NET ASSETS

PENSION AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000

(in thousand_

PensionT_st SimilarTrust
Funds Funds _

ADDITIONS:
Con_bm_:

Memb_ con_bufions _et of loans m members) ............... $ 525,914 $ -- $ 525,914
Employer contributions ................................... 703,079 -- 703,079
O_er emp_yer co.ribbons .............................. 20,988 -- 20,988

Total comr_ns .................................... 1249481 -- 1_49_81

_vestment income:

Ime_m income ......................................... L605394 75,284 Z68_678
DN_end _come ........................................ 761,602 28_87 789,889

Net app_dm_n in _ir va_e of invemmems .................. _978fi76 235,295 7,213,871

Less _vemmem expenses ................................. 694,321 10_02 704,523

lnv_tmem _come, net ................................... 9fi51_51 328,664 %97%915

Paymen_ from pension tru_ _nds ............................ -- 100,031 100,031
N_ paymems from _her _nds ............................... 27,636 -- 27,636

Tot_ add_ons ........................................ 10_28_68 428,695 11_57_63

DEDUCT_NS:

Be_ payments and window.s ............................ 5,521,124 156,992 5,678,116
Paymen_ to similar tru_ _nds ............................... 100_31 -- 100,031
Adm_r_e and other .................................... 52,977 -- 52,977

Total deductions ...................................... 5,674,132 156,992 5,831,124

Increase in plan net asses ............................... 525_736 271,703 5_2_439
PLA_ NETASSETSH_D IN TRUSTFORPENSIONBEr,_E_ AND

SU_LEMENTAL _ENEFIT PAYMENTS:

BEaNiNG OF YEAR .......................................... I0_32<948 3,435,022 103,75_970

ENDO_ YEAR................................................ $105fi7%684 $_70_725 $109286_09

See accompanfing notes to finan_ mmemem_
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PENSION
AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS PLAN NET ASSETS

PENSION AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

(in _ou_nd_

Penfion I¥u_ _mi_r T_

Funds Funds Total

ADDITIONS:
Contrib_ns:

Member contribut_ns _ of loans to member) ............... $ 494,963 $ -- $ 49_963
Em_oyer contr_m_ns ................................... l A5_856 -- 1A5_856
Other employer comributions .............................. 20,484 -- 20,484

Total contrib_ns ..................................... 1,968,303 -- 1_6&303

lnve_me_ income:

In_ income .......................................... _33_270 72,942 L41_212
DN_end income ........................................ 763,624 28,621 792,245

Net appre_n in _ir v_ue of _ve_men_ ................... 9,708,981 335,502 10,044,483
Less _ve_mem expenses ................................. 563,536 8,393 571,929

_ve_mem income, net ................................... IL24&339 428,672 1Z677_11

Payme_s _om pension trust _nds ............................ -- 181 181

Net payme_s _om _her _nds ............................... 23,913 -- 23,913

To_l add_ns ........................................ 1_24_555 428,853 1_669,408

DEDUC_NS:

Benefit paymems and w_hd_w_s ............................ 5,301,618 149,986 5,451,604
Payme_s to _mil_ trust _nds ............................... 190 -- 190
Net paymen_ m other _nds ................................. 3_78 -- 3_78
Adm_istr_e and other .................................... 46,693 -- 46,693

Total dedu_ns ....................................... 5,352,179 149,986 5,502,165

Increase in plan net assets ............................... 8,888,376 278,867 9,167,243

PLAN NET ASSETS HELD IN q_UST FOR PENNON BENEFI_ AND

SUPPLEMENq_L BENE_r PAYMENTS:

BEaNiNG OFYEAR........................................... 91A36_72 3,156,155 9G59_727

ENDOFYEAR................................................ $100,324,948 $3A35_22 $103,759,970

See accompan_ng no_s to financial _a_me_K
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3_ 2000
On _ousand_

Hou_ng and Water
Heflth and O_Track Econom_ and

Hm_tals Bett_g D_e_pme_ Sewer
Co.option Corporation Entities System To_l

OPERATING REVENUES:

Patient service revenues, net ......................... $3A80_59 $ -- $ -- $ -- $3A8_859
Charges for se_es ................................ __ __ -- 1_3_862 1_3_862
Fede_l, Sm_ and other aid .......................... -- -- 1_9_890 -- 1_9_890
Renal income .................................... __ -- 655,580 -- 655,580
_ve_mem income ................................. __ -- 64,724 66,539 131,263
O_er ........................................... 57_005 243,874 28_853 45,736 1,151,468

To_l operat_g _venues ........................ 4,057,864 243,874 2A0_047 1,647,137 &34&922
OPERATING EXPENSE_

Personal services .................................. _105_68 76,574 779,150 -- 2,961,592
Affiliated institutions ............................... 461,455 -- -- -- 461,455
Racing _du_ compens_n ......................... 89,036 -- -- 89,036
Operat_ns and m_menance ......................... 1_27_81 _ _ 801,255 1_28_36
ln_ expense ................................... -- -- 134,760 492,747 627,507
Adm_istrative and prog_m ......................... -- 5,546 1_50_92 10,092 1_66_30
Depreciat_n and amo_ation ........................ 155,315 6,118 245,690 347,055 754,178
Provi_on for bad deb_ ............................. 328,624 -- -- 89,062 417,686
Other ........................................... -- 25,057 129,615 -- 15_672
Di_fibm_ns _ the St_e and other local governme_s ..... -- 15,508 -- -- 15,508

Total ope_ting expenses ........................ 4,078,543 21_839 2,540,107 1,74_211 &57_700

Operating income (los_ ......................... (20,679) 26,035 (14_060) (93_74) (22_778)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE_:

lnve_mem income ................................. 25,984 1,596 54,243 3,940 85,763
In_st expense ................................... (8_390) -- -- -- (8_390)
Decease in accrued pennon liabfl_y ................... 93,339 6,297 -- -- 99,636

Amoums _om _her OTB commu_t_s ................ -- 3,120 -- -- 3,120
Other ........................................... -- __ (1,643) -- (1,643)

Total nonoperating revenues ..................... 29,933 11,013 52,600 3,940 97,486

Income (loss) before operating transfe_ ............ 9,254 37,048 (87_60) (89,134) (13_292)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Trans_r from Pfima_ Governmem for de_ serv_e ....... -- -- _281 -- 4,281
Tmns_r _ Primary Governmem ...................... -- (2_677) -- -- (2_677)

Net income (loss) .............................. 9,254 7,371 (83,179) (8%134) (155fi88)

FUNDEOU_¥ AXBE_N_N_ O_YEA_ ..................... 1_3_157 14,357 _15_788 _870_00 9273_02
Comfibu_d fixed assets and debt serv_e ............... 73,835 -- _28%280 5,637 _36_752
Net increase in donor _fi_ed funds .................. 660 -- -- -- 660

FUnD EOU_Y gr ENDOFYEAL .......................... $1,321,906 $ 21,728 $5_5_889 $_78_703 $11_87_26

COMPONENq_OFFUNDEQUITYATENDOFYEA_

Reserved ......................................... $ 502,698 $ 17,617 $_801_60 $4fi71f175 $ 9,893,750
Un_served ....................................... 819,208 4,111 555,229 214,928 1_93_76

FUnD EQU_¥ ATE_D O_YEA_ .......................... $1_21_06 $ 21,728 $5_5_889 $_78_703 $11A8%226

See accompan_ng notes to finand_ _a_mem_
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3_ 1999

On _ousand_

Hou_ng and Water
HeMth and O_Track Econom_ and
Hos_ Betting Devdopment Sewer

Corporation Corpor_n Entities Sy_em To_l
OPERATING REVENUES:

Patient serv_e _venues, net ......................... $_61_951 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 3_1_951

Charges for services ................................ -- -- -- 1_8_673 1_8_673
Federal, State and _her aid .......................... -- -- 1,323,984 -- 1,323,984
Renal _come .................................... -- -- 635,309 -- 635,309
lnve_ment _come ................................. -- -- 40,260 78,291 118,551
O_er ........................................... 443,423 228,741 288,889 45,828 1,006,881

TotN operating revenues .......................... _058_74 228,741 2,288,442 1,604,792 _18_349

OPERATIC EXPENSES:

Personal serv_es .................................. 1,937,801 73,509 708,162 -- _71_472
Affil_d _kufions ............................... 442_31 -- -- -- 442,331

Ra_ng _du_ry compensation ........................ -- 80_19 -- -- 80,719
Operations and maintenance ......................... 906,676 -- -- 777,652 1,684,328
ln_ expense ................................... -- -- 169,501 466,128 635,629
Administr_Ne and program ......................... -- 5,210 1,075,507 10,879 1_91_96
Depreci_n and amortization ........................ 157,440 5,354 225,333 390,570 778,697
Provision for bad deb_ ............................. 526,451 -- -- 103,960 63_411

Other ........................................... -- 24,484 111,002 -- 135,486

Distributions to the State and o_er local governmen_ ..... -- 1_778 -- -- 14,778

Total oper_g expenses ........................ 3_7_699 204,054 2,289,505 1_4%189 8,213,447

Operat_g income (ios_ ......................... 87,675 24,687 (1,063) (14_397) (33_98)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

_ve_mem income ................................. 17,728 1,325 66,077 3,174 88,304

In_re_ expense ................................... (8_196) -- -- -- (8_196)
Amoums _om _her OTB commune,s ................ -- 3,283 -- -- 3,283

Total nonoperating _venues _xpense_ ............ (71_68) 4,608 66_77 3,174 2,391

Income (los_ before operating trans_ ............ 16,207 29,295 65,014 (141,223) (3_707)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Trans_r _om Primary Governme_ for debt serv_e ....... -- -- 4,258 -- 4,258
Trans_r to Primly Gov_nmem ...................... -- (31,164) -- -- (31,164)

Net income (los_ .................................. 16,207 (1,869) 69,272 (141,223) (5_613)

FUNDEooff_ ATBE_N_ OVYEAR ..................... 1,163,143 16,226 _525_79 5_0_034 8,708,782
Contr_uted fixed assets and debt serv_e ............... 58,358 -- 556,137 7,389 621,884
N_ increase in donor _ri_ed funds .................. 449 -- -- -- 449

FUNDEQU_V ATENDOr YEA_ .......................... $1_3&157 $ 14,357 $_15_788 $_87_200 $ %273f02

COMPONENTS OF FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR:

Reserved ......................................... $ 403,294 $ 19,015 $2,651,276 $_69_778 $7,770,363
Un_served (defi_ 0 ................................ 834,863 (4,658) 499,512 173,422 1_03,139

FUNOEQvrP¢ ATENDOVYEA_ .......................... $1,238,157 $ 1_357 $_15_788 $_87_200 $ %273_02

See accompanying no_s to financial _mements.
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000

(in _o_ds)

Hou_ng and Water
HeaRh and Off-Track Econom_ and
Hospita_ Betting Dev_opment Sewer

OPER_I'_G ACq'IVI_ES: Corporation Corporation Enfit_s Sy_em Total

Operating income 0oss) ........................................... $ (2_679) $ 26_35 $ (140_60) $ (93_74) $ (227_78)

A_u_mems _ _con_ operat_g income 0oss) to net cash prov_ed by
(used in) operating activities:

Dep_o_n and amortiz_n ...................................... 155,315 6,118 245,690 347_55 754,178

Pro_on for bad dens ............................................ 328_24 -- -- 8_062 41 Z686

Inc_ase in patient se_'icc _c_va_cs ................................ (23Z037) -- -- -- (23L037)

Decease 0ncrease) in accoun_ and _hcr _ceNa_es .................... 40.751 (16) (58_53) (119_08) (137,126)
lnc_ase (decease) _ accoun_ paya_e and accrued l_litics ............. 26_92 (703) 8_609 5_00 111,898

lnc_asc _ accrued vac_ion and _ck _avc ............................ 12_98 -- 1,771 -- 13,869

Decrease in accrued pension l_bil_y .................................. (265) -- -- (265)
Increase (decease) _ de_ed revenues ................................. 8_59 (12_641 (4,005)

Inc_ase in _fibufion to Primary Government .......................... (29_82) -- -- (29_82)
Decrease in prog_m _ans _sucd ...................................... (199_2) -- (199_92)
Increase from colleens of prog_m loans ............................ __ __ 56,121 -- 5& 121

Decease _ di_ribufion _ State and local governments ................... __ 179 -- -- 179

Increase in paya_e to Primary Governmc_ ............................ __ __ -- 40_01 4_301
Other

.......................................................... 24_909 328 (1,197) _564 24Z604

Total a_u_men_ .............................................. 572,652 (2_341) 13&308 351_10 1D3&329

Net cash prodded by (used in) ope_fing aoivitics .................... 551_73 1,694 (5,752) 258_36 806_51

NONCA_TAL_NAN_NG ACI'IVITIES:

Proceeds from i_uing bond_ notes and other bo_owings ................. -- -- 509_82 -- 509_82

Rcpaymen_ of bond_ n_es and _her bo_owings ....................... -- -- (33_984) -- (336_84)
Trans_r _om Primary Government for debt scrv_e ..................... -- __ 4,281 -- 4,281

Amours from _hcr OTB communities ............................... __ 3,120 -- -- 3,120

Net cash provMcd by noncaphal finandng aoNhks ................... -- 3,120 17_979 -- 18_099

CA_TAL ANDRELATED_NAN_NG AC_|VI_ES:

Additions to fixed assets ........................................... (233,141) (2_521 (48_748) (739_72) (IA5_0t3)

Proceeds from _su_g _mds, n_es and other borrow_gs ................. 6,170 -- -- _724_02 _731_72

Rcpaymen_ of bonds, notes and other borrowings ....................... (1_040) -- (6Z271) (5_13_33) (5,394,844)
Comrib_ed carrel other _an fi)r opc_t_ns ........................... 65,787 -- 515,353 -- 581,140

In_ p_d on bond_ no_s and other borrowings ...................... (89_90) -- -- -- (8_3901

N_ cash used in capaal and _d flnan_ng a_s ................. (26_614) (2,0521 (31_66) (32Z703) (631_351
INVFkg_NGAC_ES:

Proceeds from sMcs and mmurit_s of _vc_mems ....................... -- -- 1Z13_848 503,019 1_641 _67

Pu_hasc of invc_men_ ........................................... __ -- (17_34A20) (99f88) (17,434,008)
ln_ on inve_men_ ............................................ 25,984 1_96 7Z922 3_61 104,363

No cash prodded by (used in) _ve_g a_s ..................... 25_84 1,596 (12Z650) 407,292 312_22

INCREASEIN CA_t AYOCA_t EOUtVAt_Y_ ............................... 308,343 4_58 16_11 338,225 667_37

CA_I A_) CA_t EQUIVALEN_ BEGINNINGOF YEAR ........................ 339,628 23_60 291_90 545_61 1,19_439

CASII ANDCASII EO_VAI.ENTSENDOF YEA.g ............................. $ 64L971 $ 2Z718 $ _01 $ 883_86 $ 1_6_276

Cash and cash cquN_en_ ............................................ $ 435_21 $ 2_216 $ 30_586 $ 8,734 $ 77_457

Re,flood cash and invc_mcms ........................................ 293_90 502 15_60 97_660 1_8_712

Less _ri_cd invc_me_s ........................................... 81,840 -- 14,245 9_808 195_93

Cash and cash equN_en_ end of year ................................... $ 647_71 $ 27,718 $ 308_01 $ 883_86 $ 1_6_276

The above _ a _condlim_n of cash and cash cq_v_cms per _c _emem of cash flows _ the b_ance she_.

The follow_g arc the noncash investing, capital and financing activism

IHtC _ce_cd carrel assc_ of $73_ mHl_n for fisc_ year _0 wh_h _prcscn_ comribu_d capit_ from Primary Government.

The Wa_r B_rd _cdvcd capitol asse_ of $5.6 m_on for fiscal year 20_) wh_h represents contributed carrel _om Primary Government.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UN_S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3_ 1999

On_o_

HouMng and Water
HeMth and Off-Track Econom_ and

Hospitals Betting Dev_opment Sewer

OPERATINGAcrlVITIES: Corporation Corporation Entities Sy_em Total

OperatMg _come 0os_ ........................................... $ 8L675 $ 2_687 $ (1_631 $ (144397) $ 03_98)

A_u_men_ _ _concile operm_g Mcome 0os_ _ n_ cash provided by
(used in) operating a_s:

Depre_ation and amo_n ...................................... 157,440 5_54 225333 390_70 778_97
Prov_ion for bad debts ............................................ 52_451 -- -- 103_60 63_41 l

Increase _ p_m serv_e _ce_ab_s ................................ _4_071) -- -- -- _46_71)

Decease 0nc_ase) _ accoun_ and other receivables .................... 1_641 (32) (15fi831 01Z987) (11_961)

Increase (decrease) _ accoun_ payable and accrued liabilities ............. (9,894) 2_16 (27A521 1_11 (33_19)

Increase (dccreas_ _ accrued vac_n and s_k _ave .................... (3,287) -- 938 -- (2,349)

Decease _ accrued pennon fiabfl_y ................................. (3,141) (259) -- -- (3A00)

lnc_ase (dec_as_ _ de_ed _venues ............................... -- -- 6_904 (7,316) 59_88

Increase in distfibm_n to Primly Government ......................... -- (3_889) -- -- (30_89)

Increase _ program Mans _sued .................................... -- -- (8% 157) -- (8% 157)

Increase _om c_ns of program _ans ............................ -- -- 77,141 -- 77,141
Decease _ distfibut_n m St_e and McM governmen_ ................... -- 120 -- -- 120

Increase _ payab_ _ Primary Governmem ............................ -- -- -- 1,996 1,996

Other .......................................................... 49,240 389 (5_079) (1,035) (9A85)

Tot_ adjustments .............................................. 187379 (2_701) 18(1_45 375_99 720,622

N_ cash prodded by ope_fing a_i_t_s ............................ 275_54 1,986 178,982 231,502 68_524

NONCA_TAL_NAN_NG AC'q'IVI_ES:

Proceeds _om iss_ng bond_ notes and other bo_ow_gs ................. -- -- 298,670 -- 29_670

Repaymems of bond_ notes and other borrowings ....................... -- -- (41_ 175) -- (41 _ 175)
Trans_r from Primary Governmem for de_ service ..................... -- -- _258 -- 4,258

Amoums _om other OTB commu_t_s ............................... -- 3_83 -- -- 3,283

Net cash prov_ed by (used in) noncapit_ finan_ng activities ............ -- 3,283 (113,247) -- (109,964)
CAPITALAND RELATED_NAN_NG ACI'I_ES:

Ad_,ons m fixedassets ........................................... 025_211 (5A25) (459_781 (822A711 (1A12_951

Proceeds _om _smng bonds, notes and other borrowings ................. 18_28 -- 442 %237_07 7,256,377

Repaymems of bond_ notes and _her bo_ow_gs ....................... (12315) -- (6_613) (6_8_397) (6_64_25)
Comributed capitM other than for operations ........................... 42A52 -- 571,368 -- 613,820

intere_ p_d on bond_ n_es and _her borrowings ...................... (8%196) -- -- -- (8%196)

N_ cash prodded by (used in) capitM and related finandng a_ivities ..... (165,1521 (5A25) 43,219 (36_861) (49_219)

INVESTINGACTI_ES;

Proceeds _om sa_s and m_ufit_s of inve_me_s ....................... -- -- 1_37_146 1,004_87 1_381_33

Purchase of _ve_men_ ........................................... -- -- (1_73_362) _A0_128) (1_836#90)
M_mM on _ve_men_ ............................................ 17,728 1,325 73,159 3,218 95 A30

N_ cash prov_ed by (used in) _veming a_ities ..................... 1_728 1325 (28_057) (9_523) _59_27)

ISCREASE(DECREAS_ IN CASHAND CASH EOmVALENTS..................... 12_630 1,169 (175,103) (231_82) (27_186)

CASHAND CASHEQ_VALENTSBEaNiNG OF YEaR ........................ 211,998 2_191 466,193 77L243 1A7_625

CASH AND CASHEOUWALEUTSEND OF YEAK ............................. $ 33%628 $ 23360 $ 291,090 $ 545_61 $ 1,19%439

Cash and cash equ_ems ............................................ $ 325_39 $ 22,612 $ 25_599 $ 35_54 $ 63_304

RePriSed cash and _ve_men_ ........................................ 33%824 748 86,609 1_1_876 IA3_057

Less restricted inve_ments ........................................... 323A35 -- 4_i18 501 _69 870,922

Cash and cash eq_vMen_ end ofye_ ................................... $ 33%628 $ 23_60 $ 291_90 $ 545,361 $ 1,19%439

The above _ a reconciliation of cash and cash eq_vMen_ per _e _mement of cash flows m the balance sheet.

The folMwmg a_ _e noncash mvestin_ ca_tal and financMg acti_ties:

HHC _ce_ed capital assets of 558.4 m_Mn for fiscal year 1999 which _presen_ contributed capital from Primly Government.

The Water Board received ca_tM asse_ of $L4 miH_n for fiscal year 1999 which _presents comributed capitM from Primary Governmcm.

See accompany_g n_es to finan_ _memems.
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK

NOTES TO _NANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 3_ 2000 AND JUNE 3_ 1999

_ S_ OF S1GNI_CANT ACCOUN_NG _ES

The accompany_g gener_ purpose finan_ _emems of The Ci_ of New _rk City or _im_y gov_nmen 0 are
_em_ in _n_ with gen_ acceded accounting _ (GAA_ _r govemme_s in the Uni_d States as
prescribed by the Govemmen_l Accounting S_ndards Board (GAS_. The amoun_ shown in the "_s __m
O_ _m_y Gov_nmem" and "__m_ _ _g _y" c_umns of the _compan_ng com_ned
finan_ _emems are only p_n_d to h_e finan_ analysis and a_ not the equNa_m of cons_ed financial
_emem_

The _llowing is a summ_y of _e _gnifi_ a_ou_g p_s and _po_ing p_ of _e City:

R_o_ng _

T_ Q_ _ _w _ is a mun_ co,option govem_ by the Mayor and _e Ci_ Coun_l.

T_ fi_ _po_ng _fiff consi_s of the _ima_ govemmem _du_ng _e Board of Educmion and the commu_ff
colleges of the _y UnNe_y of New _, o_an_ _r wh_h the primly government _ finan_ accountable, and
_ __s _ _ _e n_u_ _d s_nffi_e _t_k _lm_hip w_h _e primly govemme_ _e _ch _ exdus_n
would _u_ the _po_ing e_y_ _ _memems m be m_ng or _com_e.

The _fi_n _the _poa_g e_y is b_ _m_ _ the no,on of fin_cial _uma_i_ A primly government _
fi_ accou_ab_ _r the o_ankm_ that make up Rs legal enfit_ It is also finan_ accou_a_e _r _g_ _p_e
o__s ff_ offi_s _t a v_g m_i_ of an o_an_n_ govem_g body and _r _ _ a_e _ impo_ i_ will on
• at o_i_ _ _e_ _ a p_l _ _ o_n_ _ pin,de _eofic fin_d_ _ne_s _, or _ imp_e _ific financ_l
bu_e_ on, _e _m_y _v_nme_ A _ gov_nmem may _ be fina_i_ly _coun_Ne _r govemmen_l o_an_ns
that a_ fi_ de_n_m on it.

M_t component uni_ _e included in _e finanoal mpo_ng enfi_ by discrete p_n_fion. Some componem u_, des_
berg _g_ _p_e _om _e _ima_ govemmenL a_ _ _ _ _e _m_y _v_nme_ _m _ _e _ subsmn_ pan
of _e _m_y gov_nmem. Thee compo_m units a_ blended w_h the _ima_ gov_nmen_

B_n_d __t Un_s

Thee _m_m _i_ although legally separ_ _ _ _ __ to the _ and _us a_ _poaed _ if they
we_ pa_ of _e pfima_ gov_nmcm. They i_ludc the _:

Mun_p_ _s_ _o_n _r _e City of New _ (MA_
New _ City _n_ _nan_ A_hofi_ _)

New _rk Ci_ Samuel Funding Co_o_t_n (SF_
TSASC, Inc. _SAS_

New _rk _ __ Cons_u_n Fund _C_
City Un_y Con_n Fund (CUC_
New _rk City School Cons_u_n Amhori_ (SCA)

AHd_e_ p_med _mpo_ un_ _e legally _p_e _om _e primly govemmem. Thee e_ifi_ a_ _poned as
• _ p_n_d componem un_s b_au_ t_ _ _ims a m_ofi_ _e o__' boa_ is aNe _ impo_ i_ will
on them, or a finan_al _n_u_ _u_ _

The d_c_ p_n_d compone_ unit column in the combined finand_ _eme_s includes the finand_ d_a of these

enfifie_ which are reposed in a sep_a_ column to emph_e th_ they are legally separ_e _om the Cir. They include the

New _rk City Heal_ _d H_pi_ls Co_n (HH_
New _ _ O_k Bering Co_o_fi_ (OT_
Hou_ng _d E_nom_ Deve_pmem E_

• New _ Ci_ Houfing Deve_pmem Co_n (HD_
• New _ _ _usi_ _ (_)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

• New Yo_ City _d_ Devdopmem Agency 0DA)
• New Yo_ _ Econom_ Development Co_omtion _DQ
• Bu_n_s Re_c_on As_sta_e Coleman _RAC)
• Broo_yn Navy Ya_ Devdopmem Coleman (BNYDC)

Wa_r And Sew_ Sy_em:

• New Yo_ _ Water Board (Water Board)
• New Yo_ City Municipal Water F_ance Au_i_ (Wat_ Authority)

N_e: These organizations publish sepa_ annu_ finand_ _memems wh_h _e _a_e _ O_ _ _e Comptroller, B_eau
of Accountant--Room 800, 1 Cem_ _, New York, New York 10007.

_ducia_ Funds

Th_ se _nds a_e used _ account for assets when a governmental unit _ fun_ioning either _ a trustee _ _ agent for another
pa_ They include the _i_w_g:

Expend_ T_ Fund:

• De_ned Compensm_n H_ _r Emp_ _The _ _New Yo_ and Rda_d Agendes and _mmem_
(DCP)

Pennon and Simfl_ Trust Funds:

• New Yo_ City Employees' R_i_me_ Sy_em (NYCER_
• New Yo_ _ Te_' Reti_mem System--Qualified Pennon Plan (TR_
• New Yo_ _ Bo_d _ Educ_on R_kemem System---Qualified P_on H_ (BER_

• New Yo_ City Ponce Depa_mem Pennon Fund--Subchapter 2 _O_C_
• New Yo_ City _ Depa_mem Pe_n Fund---Subchapter 2 (FIRE)

• New Yo_ Poise Depaamem P_e O_' Variable Supplements Fund _OVS_
• New Yo_ Poli_ D_artm_t P_i_ Superi_ O_' Vafia_e Sup_emems Fund _SOVS_
• New Yo_ H_ Depa_mem _figh_' Vada_e Sup_emems Fund ffFVS_
• New Yo_ _ Depa_mem H_ O_' Varia_e Sup_em_ Fund _OVS_
• _ Pd_e O_' Variable Supplements F_d _POVS_
• _ Poli_ Superi_ O_' VariaNe Sup_emems Fund _PSOVS_
• Hou_ng P_e O_' Varia_e Sup_emen_ Fund (HPOVS_
• Hou_ng P_e Superior O_' VadaNe Sup_emems Fund (HPSOVS_
• Co_e_n Varia_e Sup_emen_ Fund (CVS_

N_e: Thee o_o_ punish _p_ate _nual financial _eme_s wh_h _e _laNe _: O_ _the Comptroll_ Bureau
_ Ac_um_--Room 800, 1 Cem_ Su_L New Yo_, New Yo_ 10007.

Agency Funds

Significant accounting policies and other matters co_ng _e fin_cial _rm_on of_e o_a_z_ons _e _scri_d
d_wh_e in _e N_es _ _nano_ _emen_.

The _ op_ations also include those n_m_y p_rm_ _ the coun_ level and, _c_d_ t_a_ __ _
• e operations _ the five counties wh_h compfi_ _e C_y _e included in _e_ financial _memems.

The New Yo_ City Transit Authority _ _ affiliated agency _the Metrop_itan Transportation Authority _the _ate _New
Yo_ wh_h is a componem unR _ New Yo_ State _d is _duded _om _e Ci_'s fi_nci_ _porting emi_

Fund A_ounting

The _ty _ _n_ and _coum Vou_ m _pon on _s finand_ pos_on and _e _sd_ of i_ op_m_n_ Fund accounting is
d_ned to demon_r_e _g_ com_nce and to aid financial manageme_ by _egm_g _ansa_ns _lmed to cen_n
govemmem _n_ _ activ_.

A _nd _ a sep_e accounting emi_ wi_ a self-balancing set _ accounts. An a_ount group is a finanofl _po_g dev_e
defig_d _ p_ _un_Nl_y _r _n _s_s _d I_NI_ _ _e n_ _co_ed in _e _n_ _e they do not directly
affe_ net _ndable avfi_Ne financifl resources.
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Funds are d_s_ _ hree __: govemmem_, fiduo_ and p_pfi_a_ Exce_ _r pmpfie_ Ohe o_y
__ h_ _d _ __d _ _o_ _s _e _d _ _ly _em_ _m_ u_, _ c_
in turn, _ _ded _ sep_e "_nd types."

Governmenml

G_e_l _nd

The Gen_ Fund _ he _ _e_i_ _ _he _ Sub_a_i_ _1 mx revenues, Federal and S_e _d _xce_ a_
_r _p_ _e_ _d _r _ _ are _coumed _r _ he Gen_ Fund. T_s _nd _ _ums _r __s
and uans_m _ appropd_ed in he Expen_ Budg_ _ _v_s _ _ _y_ _y _e_ _c_ _ns_ to
Debt Sew_e Funds _ _ _ _n_e_ o_afions.

The Cap_ _e_s Fun_ _cou_ _r resources _ed m con_m_ _ _quke fixed _s_s and make cap_al im_ovemem_
Such asse_ and impm_men_ _dude subsmnfi_ _i hn_ b_lding_ equ_men_ water _fib_ and _wage cd_n

sy_em_ and _her demen_ of the C_ _m_u_ hw_g a m_imum use_l li_ of five years, having a co_ of mo_ ban
_5_ _mum _ _ _ _m $15 _ e_e N_em_r 1,199_, _d h_g b_n ap_opd_ _ he Cap_
Budg_ _ee _ _e Cap_ P_e_ _s _d_e he a_N_ _ _w _ _y _ _e_s Fund, SC& _,
and TSASC. R_oum_ of he CapON P_e_ Fun_ _e derived _ncipally _om Noceeds of C_N _, and TSASC bond i_ues,

_e_ _m _ _ A_N _d _om Fed_N, Na_ _d _ _. _e _w _N _y CaNt_ N_e_s _ cumul_Ne
defid_ of $1.1 billion and $936 m_l_n _ June 3_ 2_0 _d 1_ _e_lN _N_e_ he amours expe_ed to be financed
_om Nm_ bond Nsues _ _eN_emm_ rNmbu_emen_ _ _e extent he _fiO_ _11 n_ _ financed or _imbu_e_ a
_ans_r _om he Gen_N Fund will be _qu_ed.

DeN Se_ke F_

The DeN Sew_e Funds account _r he accum_ion of _sou_ _r payme_ of pfindpN and _ on _n_
ob_g_ns. Sep_e _nds are mNn_ed to account %r transactions _ng to: _ the _ De_ Se_e Funds and he
Gene_l De_ Se_e Fund _qui_d by State _N_; (iO _aN _r pubic b_eN _o_ w_ _de_edn_s has
_ _am_d _ he _ _ w_ w_m he _ h_ ended imo _e pu_h_e _d _mil_ a_m_ 0_ MA_ _, SF_
and TSASC; and (_ ECF and CUCF as _m_m u_ _ _ _

ECF and CUCF are to _t _r _mm_ fin_M _mu_ W pay _ _ _& _t _h he a_fi_ _
the De_ Sew_e Fund_ and not _r he con_n of m_or cap_ _e_s.

F_a_

_u_ and A_n_ Fun_

T_ _u_ _d A_y Funds account _r he _ and a_v_s _ he E_Ne _u_ _, Pension _d S_r _
Fund_ and Agency Funds.

_e Expendable _ Fund accoun_ _r he assem and a_N_es of DCP which was _e_ed in accordance w_h In_m_

The Pennon and S_r _u_ Funds account _r he _e_ _ NYCERS, TRS, BERS, PO_C_ _d HRE em_o_e
_emem H_em_ _d _E _O_E _E _E _O_E _SOV_ _O_E HPSOVSE and CVSE Thee _nds

_ _ _M _s __ _ a __ _s _ _ _ _i_n __, dedu_n_ and n_ _
he_ _ _u_ _r pe_n _s _d _p_ememM _s paymem_

_ A_ _ _um _ m_l_ _ _ _ _ _ty _r _her _n_, govemmen_l uni_, and _d_uM_
The Agency Funds am cu_o_M _ nature and do n_ _voNe measummem of m_l_ of op_.

A_ G_

G_M F_ A_e_ A_m G_

The Gen_M Hxed A_s Accoum Group accounts _r h_e fixed _ _ _ _ _ _ _m_M _s
and are n_ av_Ne _r expend_e. Such assets _dude MIcap_ _s_ _ _r he _ _a_m_e clemens h_ _e
not mqui_d to be __ under G_ _tm_e _emems _c_de he roads, bridge_ curbs and guaer_ streets and
sidew_ks, p_k land and improvements, and subway trac_ and _nnels. The fixed assets of SCA _e _duded in he City's Gene_l
_xed A_e_ Accoum Gro_. _e fixed asse_ of he wa_r d_bufion and sewage c_le_on sy_em am recorded in he Water
and Sewer Sy_em compone_ un_ finandM _eme_s under a _ase a_eemem b_ween the City and the Water Board.
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General Long-_rm Obligarons Account G_up

The Gene_l Lon_rm Oblig_ns Accoum G_up accou_s _r unm_u_d _n_rm bonds paya_e wh_h _ m_ufiW will
be paid _ugh the Debt Sew_e Fund_ In addition, the General Long-term O_ns Accou_ G_up _dudes _her _ng-term
obl_ations for: (i) capital leases; (ii) real estate tax _nds; 0fi) judgmen_ and clams; (iv); unpaid vac_n and sick leave; (v)
ceaain un_nded pens_n fia_l_ and _ landfill closure and po_c_su_ care co_s.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The d_ely preened componem un_s con_ of HHC, OTB, HDC, HA and _h_ componem un_s compr_g the

Housing and Econom_ Dev_opmem Emit_ and the Water and Sewer Sy_em. Thee a_N_ are accoun_d _r _ a manner
simi_r _ priva_ business enterprises, _ wh_h _e _cus is on the Feriodic de_rmination of revenue_ expenses, and n_ _come.

Bas_ of Accounting

The accou_g and financial _porting aphid _ a _nd _ determined by its measu_ment _cu_ Gov_nme_ _nd types
and the Expendable Tru_ Fund use the flow of c_ finand_ _so_ces measu_mem focus. Th_ focus _ on _e de_rm_n
o_ and changes in finan_ po_fio_ and general_ on_ cu_e_ _s_s and cu_ent liabH_ies are included on the balance she_.
These _nds u_ the modified actual b_ of accounfin_ whe_by _venues are _cogn_ed in _e accou_ing period _ wh_h _ey
become b_h measura_e and availa_e _ finance expendhur_ of the fisc_ period. Expenditures are recorded when _e _l_ed
fia_li_ is _cu_e_ except _r _ on long-term o_ns and ce_ain e_im_ed l_l_s _corded in _e Gene_l

Long-term O_ns Account G_up.

The meas_emem _cus of_e Pens_n and _mil_Tru_ Funds and _e d_e_ p_n_d compone_ units ison the flow of
economic resources. This _cus emph_ _e de_rm_n of net income, changes in net assets, and finand_ portion. With
• _ me_ureme_ _cu_ _! _s_s and flawless _so_ed wi_ _e op_n of _ese _nds and _s_e_ p_med compone_
units are included on _e b_ance she_. Thee _nds and d_dy p_ed compone_ units use the accrual ba_s of accouming
whe_by _venues are _cogn_ed in the accounting period in which they a_ earned, and expends a_ _cogn_ed in the period
incu_ed. In accordance with GASB _ement No. 2_ Accoum_g and Finand_ Reporting for Proprieta_ Funds and O_er
GovernmenmlActivit_s Th_ Use Proprietary FundAccountin_ _e d_e_ p_n_d compone_ units have elec_d not to
ap_y _nand_ Accounting _anda_s Bo_d _eme_s and _tat_ns issued aft_ November 3(I, 1989. The Pens_n Tru_
Funds' co,ribbons _om membe_ a_ _co_ed when _e emp_y_ makes payroll deductions _om Plan memb_s. Em#oy_
comfbut_ns _e _cog_zed when due. Benefim and _nds _e _cogn_ed when due and payable in accordance wi_ _e _rms of
the Plans.

The Agency Funds use the modified ac_u_ basis of accounting and do not measu_ the results of operation_

Budge_ and Finan_M P_ns

Budge_

Annual Expense Budg_ app_pri_ns, wh_h a_ p_pa_d on _e modified _ccm_ b_i_ a_ adopted for the General Fund,
and unused app_pri_ns _pse _ fisc_ year-end. The City uses appropriations in the Ca_tal Budget m a_horize _e expen_
of funds for various capital projects. Ca_tal appropri_ns, u_ess mottled or _sdnde_ _m_n in effe_ until _e completion of
each proje_.

The City _ _q_d by St_e Law to ado_ and adhere to a budge_ on a ba_s consistent with GAAE _ wou_ not have
Gene_l Fund expenditures in excess of revenues.

Expendi_s made ag_n_ _e Expense Budget are controlled though the use of quarterly spen_ng Mlotmcms and units of
approw_fion. A unit of app_priation _prescms a subdivision of an agcncy_ budget and is the level of control _ which
expenditur_ may not legally exceed the approprim_m The numb_ of units of app_primion and the span of ope_t_g
_spon_li_ which each unit _p_nts, diffe_ _om agency to agency depending on the size of the agency and the level of
contrM _q_d. q_ans_ b_ween units of app_prim_n and supp_mem_y appropriations may be made by _e Mayor su_e_
_ the approval p_visions _t _h in the City Charter. Sup_emen_ appropriations _ea_d the Expense Budget by $3,898
mill_n and $2_97 m_l_n sub_quem _ its original adoption in fiscal yea_ 2000 and 1999, _spcctivel_

Finan_al P_ns

The New Yo_ _ate _nan_M Eme_ency A_ _r The Ci_ of New Yo_, _ amended in 197_ _q_s _e City m ope_
under a "rolling" Fou_¥e_ _nanciM Plan (Plan). Revenues and expendRu_ _cluding operating trans_rs, of each year of the
Plan are _qui_d to be balanced on a basis consistent with GAAE The Plan is broader in scope than the Expense Budget; it
compris_ General Fund revenues and expenditures, Capital Pr_ects Fund revenues and expenditures, and all sho_ and _n_rm
finan_n_
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The Expense Budg_ h general_ consistem with the firm year of _e Plan and ope_tions under the Expense Budg_ mum
refle_ the aggnga_ hmi_tions contused in the approved Plan. The Ci_ nv_ws its Han period_ during the year and, if
necessarg makes modifications to inco_orate actual resul_ and nvisions _ assumption_

Encumbrances

Encumb_nc e accoumin_ und_ w_ch pu_h_e o_ers, com_cts, and mh_ commitmems _r expendimns _e nco_ed _
refle_ _e use of the ap_aNe spending app_pri_n_ is used by the Gener_ Fund during the fisc_ year to con_ol
expendi_res. The co_ of _ose goods nceNed and _w_ _ndered on or be_n June 30 are ncogn_ed as expendi_ns.
Encumb_nc_ not _su_ng _ expend_uns by year-en_ lapse.

Cash and lnvestmen_

The City conside_ _! h_hly liquid investments (including restfi_ed a_ w_h a m_urity of_ne momhs or le_ when
pushier, to be cash equN_en_.

Cash and cash equNalents _dude compensm_g b_anc_ m_n_ed w_h cen_n banks in I_u of payme_s _r _es
nnd_ed. The average compensating bahnc_ m_nm_ed during fi_ yea_ 2000 and 1999 w_e approxim_e_ $264 m_n
and $227 m_ nspe_d_

Inve_mems in fixed _come _curities an _co_ed at _ir value. Secur_es pu_ha_d pu_uam _ agnemen_ _ _ll an
carried at the contract price, ex_us_e of in_nsL at wh_h _e securities will be resold.

Inve_men_ of _e Expendab_ Trust Fund and Penfion and Simii_ Tru_ Funds a_ npo_ed _ _ v_ue. Inve_mems are

stmed at the _ npo_ed sales price on a national secur_ies exchange on _e la_ business day of the fiscal yea_

A description of _e Ci_ _ _curifi_ _n_ng a_s _r _e Pennon and Simi_r Tru_ Funds in fiscal yea_ 2000 and 1999
is p_ded in Depo_ and lnv_tmen_ _ee No_ G).

Mo_ inve_men_ _e npo_ed in the balance sheet _ _ir v_u_ _ve_me_ _come, _du_ng chang_ in _e _ v_ue of
_ve_me_ is npo_ed in operat_ns.

lnven_hes

Mmeri_s and supplies are recorded _ expen_mns _ government! _nds mthe time of pu_h_e. Acco_ inven_ri_
on hand _June 3_ 2000 and 1999 _im_ed _ $210 mffi_n and $201 mill_ mspectivel_ ba_d on avenge cost) have not been
npo_ed on _e govemment_ _nds b_ance she_s.

Res_md Cash and Investmen_

Ce_n proceeds of componem unit bonds, as wall as ce_ain resources set aside _r bond npaymem, are clarified as
n_ric_d cash and inve_men_ on the balance sheet because their use _ limi_d by ap_a_e bond covenant_

F&ed A _e_

_xed asse_ an gene_i_ _ed at hi_oric_ cost, or at e_im_ed hi_oric_ co_ based on appraisals or on _her accepm_e
m_hods when h_rical co_ is not av_hb_. Donned fixed _se_ are stated at their hir m_k_ value as of the da_ of _e

don_m Cap_al _a_s _e das_fied as fixed assos in amoun_ equ_ to _e _ of_e _ m_k_ v_ue or the present value of
net minimum _e p_ymems _ _e _ce_n of _e lease _ee Note I).

Accumdmed depndation and amortizat_n _e npo_ed _ ndu_ns of fixed _ts. De,edWin is compu_d using _e
str_ght-line m_hod based upon e_ima_d u_l l_es of 40 _ 50 yea_ _r buildings and 5 to 35 yea_ _r eq_pme_. CapR_
lease asse_ and _aseh_d imp_vemen_ _e amo_ed over the _rm of the lease or the li_ of the ass_, w_chev_ _ less.

See N_es M, N, O, and P _r fixed _t accoum_g p_s u_d by HHC, OTB, HA, and the Water and Sewer Sy_em,
respe_d_

Allowance for Uncollectib& Mortgage Loans

Mo_gage loans and _n_ receivable in _e De_ Se_e Funds _e n_ of an al_wance _r uncol_ amoums of $74Z4
mHfion and $737.8 mill_n _r fisc_ yea_ 2000 and 1999, nspe_Nel_ The _wance is compo_d of the balance of fir_
moagages one or mort years in a_ears and the b_ance of nfinanced moagages when paymems _ _e C_y _e n_ expe_ed m be
competed for app_m_dy 25 _ 30 yea_.

Vaca_on and Sick Leave

Earned vacation and tick _ave _ nco_ed _ an expend_un in the period when Ris payable _om cu_em finan_ resources.
The _fimated value of vacation leave earned by emp_yees w_ch may be used in subsequent yea_ or earned vacation and sick
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leave paid upon _rm_ation or _fi_menL and _e_m_ paya_e from _mre resources, is recorded in _e Generfl Long-term
Obl_m_ns Accoum Gmu_ exce_ mr leave of the employees of the discretely pre_nted compone_ uni_ w_ch _ accou_ed _r
in _o_ componem un_ finan_fl _memem_

Treasu_ Obligations

Bonds payable _duded in _e Gene_l Long-term ON_ations Accoum G_up and inve_mems in _e De_ Sew_e Funds
are _po_ed net of "t_asu_ o_m_ns." Treasu_ oN_ns _p_ City bonds held as _ve_men_ of the De_ Se_e
Funds which _e offs_ and _po_ed as if these bonds had been _deemed.

Judgments and C_ims

The Ciw _ u_nsured w_h _spe_ _ risks _dud_b but not limi_d _, prope_y damage, pe_onfl i_ury, and work,s'

compensation. Expendi_s for judgments and dfims _ _an wo_e_' compens_n and condemnm_n proceed_g_ _e
recorded on _e basis of _eme_s reached or judgments ended wRh_ the cu_ent fiscfl yea_ Expendi_s _r work,s'

compensm_n are recorded when paid. Seffiemenm _lm_g to condemn_n p_ceed_gs are _poaed in _e Ca_l Proje_s
Fund when the liability _ estimable. The e_im_ed lhbili_ _oudgmems and dfims wh_h have n_ been a_ud_a_d, sett_ or
_poaed at the end of a fiscal year is recorded in _e Gen_fl Long-term ON_ns Accoum Group. The current lh_li_ _r
settlemen_ _ached or judgmems e_ed bm n_ yo pfid is _corded _ the Gene_l Fund.

General Long-mrm Obligations

For general long-_rm obl_ions, only _ poa_n expe_ed _ be financed Rom expenda_e avfilab_ finan_fl resources is
_po_ed as a _nd liab_ity of agovernmental _nd. The _ma_g posen of such o_ns _ _po_ed _ _e General Long-term
ON_mions Accoum G_up. Long-term fiabH_es expe_ed _ be financed _om d_ely p_med componem unR op_ations
are accoun_d mr in those componem un_ finanoal _memems.

Real Esm_ Tax

Real estate tax paymen_ for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000 we_ due July 1, 1999 and Januaw 1, 2000 exce_ that
paymen_ by owne_ of _al propeay as_ed _ $8_000 or _ and coop_es whose _d_ufl uni_ on average _e vflued _
$80,000 or less were due _ qua_ly _fllmems on the fir_ day of each qua_er beginning on July 1.

The _vy d_e mr fiscfl year 2000 taxes was June _ 199_ The lien d_e is _e d_e _xes are due.

Refl e_a_ _x _venue _p_sen_ paymems _c_ved during _e ye_ and paymems _c_ved Og_n_ the current fiscal year
and prior yea_' levies) w_hin the fir_ two momhs of _e _l_w_g fiscal year reduced by tax re_nds.

The C_y offered _e usu_ _scoum of 2% _r _e prepayment of _fl esm_ taxes mr fiscal ye_s 2001 and 2000. C_le_ns
of these _ es_ _xes _ceNed on or bem_ June 3_ 2000 and 1999 Were $1fi76 mill_n and $935 mffi_ _spe_Nd_ These
amours w_e recorded as de_ed revenue.

The Ci_ so_ appro_m_e_ $65 mffi_n of _fl propeay tax l_ns, _lly a_fib_a_e to fiscfl ye_ 2000, _ various dates _
fisc_ year 2000. As _ prior ye_ _ lien sale agreements, the Ciff will _fund the vflue ofl_ns lat_ determined _ be de_ive, plus
_ and a five p_cem su_h_ge. It has been e_ima_d that $5.7 miH_n wogh of liens sold in fiscal year 2000 will _qui_
replacement. The estimated _fund acc_al amoum of $6 m_l_ induing _e su_h_g_ _sul_ in fiscfl ye_ 2000 sa_ proceeds
of $59 million.

_ fiscfl year 200_ $1_8 mill_ _dud_g _e su_ha_e and in_st, was _nded for de_e l_ns _om _e fiscfl year
1999 sale. T_s _sd_d in an _ease _ fiscfl year 2000 revenue of $3.2 m_l_n for _e unused b_ance of _e fiscfl year 1999
acc_fl of $14 mffi_n and increased the proceeds of _e fiscal year 1999 sfle _ $13_2 mill_n up _om _e ori_nfl fiscfl year
1999 proceeds _ported la_ year of $127 miil_n.
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In fiscal yea_ 2000 and 1999, $388 mffi_n and $376 million, respective_ were pmv_ed as M_wanc_ _r uncol_cti_e
hal estate taxes ag_nst the balance of the receivab_. Delinquent real _ _x_ _ceNab_ th_ _e _tim_ed m be c_i_e bm
which are not c_ed in the fir_ two mom_ _ _e next fiscal year are recorded as de_ed revenue_

The _ _ perm_ed m _vy n_ e_e m_s _r genii o_ting pu_ _ an amoum up _ Z5% of _e avenge _11 value
_ mxa_e hal es_m in the City _r _e last five yea_ and in _limited amoun_ _r _e 9aym_t of prin_pal and inmnst on
_ng-term Ciff debt. Amoums col_cted for payment _ prindpal and in_n_ on _ng-_rm debt in ex_ss of that _q_nd _r _
purpose in the year of the levy must be appl_d _wa_s _ture y_' de_ _w_e. For the fisc_ yea_ ended June 3_ 2000 and
1999, exc_s amoums of $414 mill_n and $410 millio_ n_e_N_ were _ans_ed to the Debt Se_e Fund_

0_ Tax_ and 0_ R_enu_

Taxpayer-assessed taxes, such as sales and income taxes, net of n_nd_ are ncogn_ed in the accounting period in which
they become _eptib_ _ accrual.

Licenses, permits, privileges and franchises, fine_ and other revenues are _co_ed when nceNed in cash. The City receiv_
nvenue _om the Wa_r Boa_ _r operating and m_n_e c_m _d nntal payments for use of the Water and Sew_ Sy_em.
These revenues an _cogn_ed when the services _e pmv_ed by the Ci_ _r the Water Board.

Fedem_ _a_ and Other AM

Ca_gofic_ aid, n_ of a p_v_on _r estim_ d_wanc_, is npo_ed as nvenue when the _la_d nimb_Ne
expen_ns are incurred. UnnOtiCed aid is npoaed _ nvenue in the fiscal year of e_ffiemem. The City has not ncogn_ed
$178 miH_n of pri_ ye_ Boa_ _ Education d_ms _r nimbu_eme_ _om _e New Yo_ State Educ_n Depa_mem. While
these revenues _e me_u_b_, they are not considered av_b_ m _nd curnm ope_t_ based on _e S_ app_i_n
p_ over the _ _ve_l ye_

Bond D_coun_/Is_an_ Cos_

In govemme_ _nd ffpes, bond d_coun_ and issuance co_s an ncogn_ed _ expen_mms _ _e p_d incurnd. Bond
• _ou_s and issuance costs in _e discretely presented componcm units arc de_ed and amo_ed ov_ _e _rm of the bonds

using _e bond_ou_an_ng me_od, which app_m_ the effective in_nst mc_od. Bond d_coun_ an pnsen_d as a
nduction of the _ce amou_ of bonds payable, whenas _suance cos_ are ncordcd as de_ed cha_.

Transfe_

Paymen_ from a fund _ discretely _esented componem un_ n_N_g n_nue _ a _nd _ d_dy pn_n_d _omponem
unit _ugh wh_h the nvenue is _ be expended are npo_ed _ ope_fing t_ns_. Such paymen_ include _a_ _r de_
_w_ capital con_ction, and OTB net nvenue_

Su_idi_

The City mak_ vario_ paymems _ _bs_e a number _ o_ations wh_h pmv_e _ _ City ns_em_ The_
payments are recorded as expen_ns in the year paid.

PenMons

Pe_n co_ _ nq_nd to be measund and _sdosed using the accrual basis of accounting (see No_ SL ng_dM_ of the
amount _cogn_ed as pension expense on the modified accrual basis of accountin& Annum pension cost shou_ be equM to the
annum _quind comfibm_ns to the pe_n _a_ cMcuh_d in _co_ance with _nain p_am_s.

Comparative Dam

Com_rat_e m_ _m for the pri_ _ _ve _ _em_, w_ _pmpfia_, _ o_ m _ov_e _ unde_t_ng _ch_s
in _e _ op_on_ R_l_fific_ons _d a_ummems of _nain pri_ ye_ amoums have b_n made m co_orm w_h _e cu_em
_ar _mt_n _d _p_mdy i_d fin=riM mmem_m _ nponed entitie_

E_ima_s and Assumptions

A number of estima_s and _m_ nixing to the _pon_g of nvenues, expendffun_ assets and HaMl_e_ and the
d_dosun ofcontingem lh_l_s w_e u_d m pnpan them financial _atements _ conformity w_h GAAE A_uM n_l_ could
differ from those emimm_.
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P_nouncemenm _su_d But Not Yet Effective or Implemented

In DecembeL 199_ GASB _sued _a_mem N_ 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Trama_n_
The _ement e_a_hes accoum_g and financial repoaing _andards for nonexchange _a_a_ns _voN_g finan_ or
ca_l _sou_es. Nonexchange transactions _e _ose _ wh_h a gove_me_ _v_ _ _c_v_ value witho_ _ctly _c_ng _
_ng equ_ value in _m. A _gnifica_ amou_ of_e City_ revenues are derived _om nonexchange _ansa_n_ such _ _
e_ _com_ and sales taxe_ _ well _ Federal, St_e and _her c_eg_ aid. _a_me_ N_ 33 p_fib_ _and_ds primari_

_lated to the tim_g of_e _cog_fion of nonexchange t_nsa_. The Ciff has n_ competed the task of estimating the effe_ of
Statement No. 33 on all of the nonexchange transactions _co_ed in its financial _emen_ _emem No. 33 is effective _r
financial _eme_ periods be_nn_g a_er June 15, 2000, which would _qui_ the City to im_ement its _q_me_s _r i_
fiscal year ending June 30, 2001.

In June, 1999, GASB issued Stateme_ No. 34, Ba_c Finan_ Statement---and Manag_nent_ D_cu_n and

Ana_s_---for_a_ andLocal Governmen_ The Statement significantly changes the finan_ _po_ng model _r _e and local

gov_nme_s and will resu_ in significant changes to the finan_ _emen_ of the Cit_ The City h_ not completed a d_d
analysis of the impa_ of _eme_ No. 34 on its finan_ _emen_. S_mem No. 34 requires government-wide financ_l
_emems to be p_pa_d using _e accrual basis of accounting and the econom_ resources me_eme_ _cus.
Gov_nme_-w_e finan_ _emen_ will not _ovide _formation by _nd or _ccount group, but will dist_gu_h between the
Ci_ govemme_ a_N_s and a_ of its _scretely _emed compone_ u_ on the City's _eme_ ofn_ _s_s and

_eme_ of a_N_. S_n_ca_l_ the Ci_'s _emem of net assets will include b_h noncu_ent asses and noncu_ent
l_s of the Cit_ which are current_ recorded in the Gene_l Fixed A_e_ Accou_ G_up and the Gener_ Long-term
O_ns Accou_ Grou_ In addition to the fixed _s_s now _c_ded in_e Gen_ _xed A_s Accou_ G_u_ _e Ciff will

be _qui_d to retmact_e_ capit_ize in_a_u_ asse_ _ we_ acqui_d beginning with the Ci_ fi_ year ended June 3_
1981. The City_ gove_ment-wide _atement of activities will reflect de_e_n expense on the City_ fixed a_ _u_ng
_a_ If cea_n condemns _e met, the City may u_ an _Ne m_hod to _co_g de_e_n on in_a_u_
assets.

_ ad_tion _ &e govemmenvwide financ_l _atements, the City will be mq_md _ _ep_e _nd finandM _memem_ Fund
finandal _memen_ will cominue to u_ the mottled ac_uM b_ of accounting and cu_ent finandM _so_c_ me_emem
_cus. Acco_ingl_ the accounting and financial reporting for the City_ Gene_l Fun& Ca#_l _e_s Funds and DeM S_vke
Funds will be simil_ to that cu_emly p_med in the City_ financial _cmem_ although the finandM _Memems will be
modified by _memem No. 34.

Statement No. 34 also _quims two componems of _qui_d suppkmenm_ _rm_n: Management_ d_cu_n and
anMy_s wffi include an ana_t_M ove_w of_e C_y_ finandM a_Nffk_ Budg_a_ comparison _hed_es will compa_ the
adored and mottled general fund budget with actual _sults.

The City will be _qui_d _ im_emem _memem No. 34 in fiscal year ending June 30, _2, exce_ _ _e City can delay
the r_a_e _cord_g of inffamm_u_ assets utah fi_M ye_ en_ng June 3_ 200& The componem units cugem_ _duded M
the City_ financial reporting enti_ will also be mqui_d _ im#ement _Memcm No. 34 at the _me time _e City im_emems this

_Mement. The Ci_ _ continuing the complex analysis of demrmining the finandM Matemem impa_ of implementing _atemem
No. 34.

In NovembeL 1999, GASB issued _Mcmcm No. 35, BaMc FinancMl Sta_menm---and Managementk Discussion and

Analys_---forPublic Colleg_ and Unive_BMs. This S_tement amends _ement No. 34 _ make ffap#kaMe _ puM_ c_Mg_
and unN_sit_s and is n_ expe_ed to have an impa_ on the C_y_ financial _a_men_.

In April, 2000, GASB i_ued _Memem No. 36, Recount Reporting for CemaM Shared Nonexchange Revenuex This
_mement amends Statemem No. 33 _ _qui_ govemmems _ a_ _d#ems of sh_ed mvenu_ _m are provided by another
govemmem _ account for those revenues Mthe _me period _ _e p_d_ govemmem. This Statemem is n_ expe_ed to have a
s_ficam impa_ on the City_ financiM _emem_ It mum be im#ememed _m_neou_y wRh _emem No. 33.

B. AUDIT RESPONSImLI]_

In fi_M yea_ 2_ and 199% _spectiv_ _e mp_ately adm_iste_d o_ankM_ns _duded _ _e financ_l m_emen_ of
the City aud_ed by audi_ other than KPMG LLE a_ the Mu_dpal A_istance Co_orat_n For The Ci_ of New Yo_, New
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_ _ Housing Amho_ _w _ City _onom_ Devd_mem _o_ N_ _ _ __ C_u_

Fund, _w _ City Indu_fi_ Dev_opmcm Agcnc_ New _ City O_k B_i_ C__ New _rk City School

Conmm_n Au_o_ B_ N_y _ Deve_pmem C_p_ Busine_ Re_c_n A_ C_pomfio_ _

UnNe_ C_m_ Fund, De_ued Com_n_fion Plan, the New _ Ci_ Tran_t_n_ _e __ and TSAS_
Inc.

The _ _s _e pmpon_n _cenain _y _1 _m_ that is audited by _her aud_o_ in fiscal yea_
2000 and 1999:

_ _p_ Account G_u_

"_st Gener_ Gener_ P_ed
Cap_al Debt and _x_ _n_m Compone_

Gener_ P_e_s Se_e Agen_ A_e_ O_ Un_s
2_0 1999 2_0 1999 2_0 1999 20_ 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999

(percenO
_tal _s_h_i_s ............... 0 0 19 19 43 41 3 3 32 30 26 21 36 22

O_g revenues and other

finan_ngsources ................ 0 0 54 40 30 25 8 4 NA NA NA NA 32 29

NA: Not Ap_a_e

C. Mu_O_L A_s_ CO_OR_ _)R THE C_Y Or NEw YORK (_C)

MAC is a _o_e _mme_ agency and _me_Mi_ of the State con_ing a public benefit _M_n. MAC

was c_a_d in June, 1975 by the Mun_ A_i_ance C_n For The Ci_ of New _rk Act (AO) to assist the _ty in

p_v_g c_emhl _ _ its in_m_ _ i_m _ _ _e_a_ng _n confidence in the soundness of

_ __g P_m _ _ A_ MAC _ empowc_d _ i_ue _d _ll bonds and no_s, _y _ _ _ _e _ _nds _ed

_om such _ and exchange i_ o_ns _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ t_ A_ MAC p_v_s _ _ of the
Ci_ finand_ a_v_

MAC h_ no taxing powe_ _I _di_ _s issued by MAC a_ genc_l o_ns of MAC and do not con_i_ an

en_e o_n _ a debt _e_ _e _ _ t_ _e and _hh_ the City nor the St_e _ lh_e _e_on. Nei_er the City

nor a _e_r of _e City has any claim _ MAC's revenues and assets. De_ _c _qui_men_ _d _e_i_ _ are

_nded by _b_fio_ _m _e S_ _ _n _s _ __g _ _s 0_ _ _ _ _in _ _

at _ _y _d by the Ci_), the stock Wans_r _ and cen_n _r _m _d _e_ _ each case to _opf_on by the

State Le_MMu_. Net c_ns of taxes and per capita aid arc returned to the City by the State after MAC de_ _e

__ _ m_ _ MAC _ _s _ _r I_ by bondh_de_ on ce_ain monks _ed by MAC _om the
S_.

MAC w_ __ _ _ A_ _ _, umil _nua_ 1,1 _, o_ _ _ _g_ _ _o_ _$10 _, of

which MAC _ _oxim_y $_5 _11_ exduMve _o_o_ issued _ _nd out,haling o_ _ MAC _d

of n_ _ed to enable _e _ _ _lfill i_ season_ bo_owing _qui_men_. _ J_ 1_ S_c _M_ w_ _a_ wh_

among _r _g_ _ofi_d MAC _ i_ up _ an addfl_n_ $1.5 billion of bonds and no_s _ _nd a p_ _ _ _

_o_a_ _e N_ _ _ _ Au_o_y _d SCA. Thg _g_n al_ _ov_ _r a _du_n h _e J_% 1990 issuance

authority to the e_c_ _ the transfl _d _h_ _ p_ams _c funded by the Cit_ As of June 30, 1997, the City had

commend _nding of these _og_m_ and MAC's addfl_n_ $1.5 billion in bo_ow_g a_ho_y lapsed without any of it
being used.

MAC _s to be a_hodzed _ i_ue o_ to _new or _nd om_anding o_, wi_out Hmfl_n as _

amount. No o_ns of MAC may m_u_ 1_ than July 1, 2008. _C may issue new o_at_ns _o_d _r i_e

would not cause _n de_ _ice limfl_ns and debt service covc_ge ratios to be exceeded.

As ind_ed in No_ A, MAC Wansa_ns and account b_ances a_ in_uded in the accompanying finan_ _emen_

because MAC's finandng a_N_ are cons_ed an _mhl pa_ of thc City_ finandng a_fl_g In order to include the

financhl _em_ _ MAC _ those of the Cit_ the _llowhg _im_ns we_ made: (i) July 1_ bond _dem_ and

_ on bonds _yaNe _ _ _ _ MAC_ __ at J_ _ _ 00 _in _ o_s _d _ MAC

(see No_ J). MAC _cou_ balances and t_n_O_ns a_ shown in the Debt Se_e Funds and _n_M _n_e_ Obl_ns
A_oum G_u_ _v_s _o_d and _ _ _e S_c _w _ _ MAC _c fir_ _duded _ Gcne_l Fund revenues and

then _ans_ed _ the Debt Service Funds in the fiscal year of such payment.
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D. NEWYORKC_¥ TRAN_ONAL FINANCEAUTHO[]TY(TFA)

TFA is a co,orate govcmmcmal agency constituting a pu_ bcncfit corporation and _strumcmali_ of_c Sta_. TFA was
c_a_d in Ma_h, 1997 by _c New Yo_ Ci_ Hnand_ A_hori_ A_ (A_) _ _sist _c Ci_ in _nding i_ cap_ p_gram, thc
pu_osc of wh_h is to ma_tai_ rebuild and expand the in_wuc_ of the City. TFA became opcrat_nal in O_obcL 1997
concu_ent with _s fi_t debt offerin_

TFA has no taxing powe_ All om_an_ng bonds issued by TFA am gene_l obligations of TFA and do n_ constitute an
en_eaNe o_n or a de_ of eRh_ _e City or _e _a_ and nether the City nor _e S_ _ lhb_ _eom Ne_h_ _e Ci_
nor a_edi_r of_e Ci_ has any claim _ TFA's revenues and asse_. De_ _e _qui_mems and operating expends _e _nded
by al_c_ns _om _e _me_ collection of pe_onal _comc taxes 0mposed by the Ci_ and c_ed by the _Q an_ und_
ce_n O_um_anc_, _1_ _x_. Sales taxes a_ only available m TFA after such amounts _qui_d by MAC _e deduced and if
• e amours of pe_on_ income _x _venu_ fall be_w _a_rily spedfied cove_ge _vel_ N_ col_ctions of taxes n_ _qui_d

by TFA are paid to the City by TFA. No sales tax _venues were _ceived by TFA during fiscal year 2000.

TFA was authorized by the A_ to issue oN_m_ns in an agg_gme princ_ amou_ of $11.5 billion in debt _r City

pu_o_ proving an _m_e _ the issuance of Gene_l O_ation De_ su_e_ _ the constitution_ limitation, of wh_h
TFA issued $1.815 billion revenue bonds and $515 mill_n Series 3 Bond A_m_n Nines _r the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2000.

TFA accou_ balances and transactions _e shown in _e Ca_l Pr_e_s Fund_ Debt Se_e Fund_ and Gen_ Long-t_m
O_ations Account G_up.

E. NEW YORKC_Y SAMURAIFUN_NG CORPORATION(SFC)

The City _c_ed SFC on Augu_ 25, 1992. This is a spc_urposc gov_nmcntal no_p_fit cntity, cma_d _ issue
Ycmdcnom_cd bonds. Thc mcmbc_, dim_o_, and office_ of SFC a_ all clc_cd offic_is or cmp_yccs of _c Cir.

SFC issued Yen-denominated bonds _ _vcstors on May 2_ 1993 and _m_mncous_ boug_ gcn_M obligation bonds from

• c City. Such bonds _qui_ _c Ci_ _ make flo_g _ _ and prinopM paymcn_ in U.S. d_l_s _ SFC, SFC cn_d in_
cu_ency and im_e_ r_e exchange agreemen_ _ swap _e City's paymen_ i_o fixed r_e Yen wh_h are used to pay SFC's
bondh_d_ These agreeme_s lim_ the Cia's cunency and exchange ra_ change exposure. SFC's bonds are included in the
Ci_ Gen_ Long-term ONe,ions Accou_ G_u_ The p_cee ds from _e Ci_ _ bonds sold _ SFC we_ u_d for housing and
econom_ devdopme_ pr_e_s.

E TSASC, INC. (TSASC)

TSASC _ a special puwose, local developme_ co_oration organ_ed under _e hws of_e _e of New York. TSASC _ _n
_strumem_ity of the C_ but is a separ_e legal emi_ _om the Cit_

Pu_uant to a pu_h_e and _le agreeme_ wi_ the City, _e Ci_ so_ _ TSASC all of its futu_ right, title and inte_st in the
_bacco sett_mem revenues under the Ma_er Sett_mem Agreemem and the Dec_e and _nal Judgmem. This sett_mem
ag_eme_ resolved ciga_tte smoking-_lated lit_mion between the _g _es and pa_ipafing manuh_u_, released the
pa_idp_ing manuh_ur_s _om past and present smoking-related d_ms, and pin,des _r a co_ng release of _re
smo_n_relmed d_m_ in exchange _r certain paymems m be made _ the scttl_g _es, _ wall as cen_n tobacco advertising
and m_keting _strict_n_ among o_er _gs. The CRy _ _c_ed a shoe of _e _b_ cco sett_mem _venues _ceNcd by New
York Stme.

The pu_h_e price of the Ci_ _ture right, t_le and in_re_ in the _bacco sctt_me_ _venu_ has been financed by the
issuance of aseries of bonds. In addition, the City _ entitled to _cdve _1 amoums _q_d _ be _stributcd aft_ payment ofde_

_wice, operating expenses and certain other costs as set _nh in _e _demure. These paymems _e subo_ina_ to paymems on
the bonds and paymem of certain mh_ co_s specified in _e _de_ur_

The City _ _qui_d _ use _e net p_ceeds of bonds _r ca_! project. TSASC _ expe_g m issue a _tai amount of
Tobacco Flexible Amort_ation Bonds _ the approximate principal amount of $2.8 billion, wh_h _dudes _e $709 miH_n _sued
during the period _om November 5, 1999 0nce_ _ June 3_ 2000.

TSASC account balances and transactions are shown in the Capitol Proje_s Fund_ De_ Se_e Funds and Gene_l

Lon_term O_ns Accou_ Group.

B-26



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

G. DEPOSITSANDINVESTMENTS

DeFos#s

The City's bank depositories are designated by the Banking Commission, which consists of the Comptroller, the M_yor, and
theFinance Commissioner. Independent bank ratingagencies are used to determine thefinancial soundness of each bank, and the
City's banking relationships are under periodic operational and credit reviews.

The City Charterlimits the amount cf deposits at any time in any one bank ortrust company to a maximum of one-half of the
amount of the capital and net surplus of such bank or trust company. The discretely presented component units included in the
City's reporting entity maintain their own banking relationships which generally conform with the City's. Bank balances are
currently insured up to $100,000 in the aggregate by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each bank for all funds

other than monies of the retirement systems, which are held by well-capitalized banks and are insured by the FDIC up to $100,000
per retirement system member. At June 30, 2000 and 1999, the carrying amount of the City's cash and cash equivalents was $1,978
million and $799 million, respectively, and the bank balances were $1,620 million and $890 million, respectively. Of the bank
balances, $737 million and $363 million, respectively, were covered by Federal depository insurance and $883 million and $527
million, respectively, were uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the City's agent in the City's name. At June 30,
2000 and 1999, the carrying amount of the discretely presented component units' cash and cash equivalents was $778 million and
$634 million, respectively, and the bank balances were $64 million and $120 million, respectively. Of the bank balances, $4
million and $5 million, respectively, were covered by Federal depository insurance and $58 million and $111 million,
respectively, were uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the City's agent in the City's name. Of the bank balances, $2
million and $4 million, respectively, were uninsured and uncollaterized.

The uninsured, collateralized cash balances carried during the year represent primarily the compensating balances to be
maintained at banks for services provided. It is the policy of the City to invest all funds in excess of compensating balance
requirements.

Investments

The City's investment of cash in its governmental fund types is currently limited to U.S. Government guaranteed securities
and U.S. Government agency securities purchased directly and through repurchase agreements from primary dealers as well as
commercial paper rated A1 and P1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation and Moody's Investors Service, Inc., respectively. The
repurchase agreements must be collateralized by U.S. Government guaranteed securities, U.S. Government agency securities, or
eligible commercial paper in a range of 100% to 103% of the matured value of the repurchase agreements.

The investment policies of the discretely presented component units included in the City's reporting entity generally
conform to those of the City's. The criteria for the Pension and Similar Trust Funds' investments are as follows:

1. Fixed income investments may be made in U.S. Government securities or securities of U.S. Government agencies,
securities of companies rated BBB or better by both Standard & Poor's Corporation and Moody's Investors Service,
Inc., and any bond that meets the qualifications of the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law, the New
York State Banking Law, and the New York City Administrative Code.

2. Equity investments may be made only in those stocks that meet the qualifications of the New York State Retirement
and Social Security Law, the New York State Banking Law, and the New York City Administrative Code.

3. Short-term investments may be made in the following:

a. U.S. Government guaranteed securities or U.S. Government agency securities.

b. Commercial paper rated A1 or P1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investors Service, Inc.,
respectively.

c. Repurchase agreements collateralized in a range of 100% to 103% of matured value, purchased from primary
dealers of U.S. Government securities.

d. Investments in bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, and time deposits are limited to banks with
world-wide assets in excess of $50 billion that are rated within the highest categories of the leading bank rating
services and selected regional banks also rated within the highest categories.

4. Investments up to 15% of total pension fund assets in instruments not specifically covered by the New York State
Retirement and Social Security Law.

B-27



NOTES TO _NAN_AL STATEMENTS, Continued

5. No inve_ment in any one corporation can be: (i) more than 2% of the pension plan net assets; or 00 more than 5%
of the total outstanding _sues of the corporation.

All inve_ments are held by the City_ cu_odhl banks On bearer or book-entry form) solely as agent of the Comptroller of
The City of New York on beh_f of the various account owner_ Payments for purchases are not released until evidence of
ownership of the underlying investmen_ are received by the City's cu_odhl bank.

lnvestmen_ of the City and its discretdy presented component uni_ are categorized by level of credR r_k _he risk that a
counterpa_y to an inve_ment _ansaction will not fulfill fls obligations). Category 1, the Iowe_ risL includes inve_ments that are
insured or registered or for which securit_s are hdd by the enthy or i_ agent in the entity _ nam_ Ca_gory 2, includes inve_ments
that are uninsured and unregi_ered with securities held by the counterparty_ tru_ depa_ment or agent in the enfity's name.
Category 3, the highe_ risk, includes inve_men_ that are uninsured and unregistered with securit_s held by the counterpart_ or
by i_ trust department or agent but not in the enfity_ name.

The City_ inve_ments, including those of the discretely presented component units (DPCU_ as of June 30, 2000 and 1999
are classified as follows:

2O00
Total

Ca_gocy Carry_g F_r
1 2 3 Amount Value

C_y DPCU Ci_ DPCU City DPCU __Ci_ DPCU City DPCU

On m_n_

Repu_h_eagreeme_s ...... $ 2_48 $ 263 $- $- $- $- $ 2,448 $ 263 $ 2,448 $ 263
U.S. Gov_nme_

_curit_s ................ 16_95 1_47 .... 16,895 1,447 1_895 1_47
Comm_o_ paper .......... 3_80 10 .... 3,880 10 3_80 10
Corporate bonds ............ 1_404 ..... 1_404 -- 12_04 --
Corporate stocks ............ 63,888 ..... 63_88 -- 63,888 --
Agency _scoum n_es ....... 522 171 .... 522 171 522 171
Open time deposes .......... -- 244 ..... 244 -- 24d.
Ce_ific_es of deposit ....... -- 31 ..... 31 -- 31
Securities _nd_g _vc_m¢_

c_l_er_ (categorize_:
Repu_hase a_eemems .. 461 ..... 461 -- 461 --
U.S. Governmem

securities ............ 105 ..... 105 -- 105 --

Commer_ paper ...... 5,883 ..... 5_83 -- 5,883 --
Co_or_e bonds ........ 2_48 .... L448 -- 2A48 --
Ce_ific_es of deposh ... _473 ..... _473 -- _473 --
Open time depo_ ...... 802 ..... 802 -- 802 --
Co_or_e s_cks ........ 67 .... 67 -- 67 --

$112,276 $2,166 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- 112,276 2,166 112,276 2,166

Mutual _nds (1) ............ 3,187 44 3,187 44
Intemation_ _ve_ment _nd--

eq_ (1) ............... 16_25 -- 16,625 --
Guarameed _vestme_

com_s (1) ............. 1_22 -- 1_22 --
Management Mve_me_

commas (I) ............. 182 -- 182 --
Sho_-term inve_me_

_nd (1) ................. 3,331 -- 3,331 --
Securities lend_g _vemme_

collateral _ncategorize_:
Mmu_ _nds (_ ........ 30 -- 30 --

Sm_l mo_gages (1) ......... 12 -- 12 --

Total inve_men_ ..... $13_665 $2,210 $136,665 $2210

(1) These inve_menm are not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exi_ in phyfic_ or book entry form.

In fiscal year 2000, the re_ricted cash and cash equivalents applicable to the Capital Projects Funds was $1,346 million of
which the repayment of $1,346 million was insured or collateralized and none was uninsured and uncollater_ized.There were no
res_icted cap_al inve_ments for fiscal year 2000.

In fiscal year 2000, the re_ricted cash, cash equivNen_, and inve_menN applicab_ to discretely presented component uni_
include $1,089 million of cash and cash equivalent_ of which the repayment of $1,089 million was insured or coHaterNized and
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none was uninsured and uncdhmr_ke& RepriSed _ve_ments, principal_ in U.S. Governmem securit_s with a cost and
approximme fair value of $196 mHHon are fully m_emd wig securit_s held by the C_y's agent in the emRy_ name of wh_h
$64 mill_n have m_urit_s of three monks or less.

1999
Total

Ca_gory Carrying F_r
I 2 3 Amount Value

C_y DPCU City DPCU C_y DPCU City DPCU C_y DPCU

(in m$_n_

Repu_hase ag_emc_s ...... $ 2,051 $ 415 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 2,051 $ 415 $ 2,051 $ 415
U.S. Gov_nmcm

securities ................ 16A16 1,414 .... 16,416 1,414 16,416 1_14
Comm_d_ paper .......... 4,211 19 .... 4,211 19 _211 19
Corpor_c bonds ............ 11,929 ..... 11_29 -- 11,929 --
Corpor_e _ocks ............ 63,796 ..... 63,796 -- 63,796 --
Agency d_count notes ....... -- 100 ..... 100 -- 1(_
Other .................... -- 11 ..... 11 -- I1
Sccurit_s _n_ng _vc_mc_

c_l_e_l _cgor_cd):
Repu_hasc ag_cmcn_ .. 936 ..... 936 -- 936 --
U.S. Gov_nmcm

secufit_s ............ 104 ..... 104 -- 104 --
Comm_o_ paper ...... 4_07 ..... 4_07 -- 4_07 --
Co_or_c bonds ........ 2,030 ..... 2_30 -- 2_30 --
Corpora_ stocks ........ 75 ..... 75 -- 75 --

$105,955 $1_59 $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- 105,955 1,959 105,955 1_59

Mmu_ _nds (1) ............ 2,392 19 2_92 19
lmern_n_ invc_mcm _nd--

cqu_y (1) ............... 12,598 -- 12_98 --
Gu_an_ed mve_mem

contra_s (1) ............. 220 -- 220 --
Management inve_mem

contracts (1) ............. 219 -- 219 --
Shoa4crm invcstmcm

_nd (1) ................. 3_65 -- 3_65 --
Sccu6tics _n_ng investment

c_l_c_l (unc_cgorizcd):
Sho_-_rm investmem

_nd (1) ............. 3,173 -- 3,173 --
Mum_ _nds .......... 68 -- 68 --

Small mortgages (1) ......... 15 -- 15 --

Total investmems ..... $128,205 _1,978 $128,205---- S1,978---

(1) These investments are not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

In fiscal year 1999, the restricted cash, cash equivalent_ and investments applicable to the Capflal Projects Funds include
$682.6 million of cash and cash equivalent_ of which the repayment of $682.6 million was insured or collateralized and none was
uninsured and uncollateralized. Re_dctcd investments, principally in U.S. Government securities with a cost and approximate
fair value of $111.5 miHion are fully regi_ered w_h securities held by the City% agent in the ent_y% name of which none have
maturities of three months or less.

In fiscal year 1999, the rc_ricted cash, cash equivalents, and investmen_ applicable to d_cretely presented component units
include $565 million of cash and cash equivalents, of which the repayment of $562.6 million was insured or collateralized and

$2.4 million was uninsured and uncollateralized. Re_ricted inve_men_, principally in U.S. Government securities with a cost
and approximate fair value of $870.9 million are fully registered whh securities held by the City_ agent in the ent_y's name of
which $4.9 million have maturities of three months or less.
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S_uh6_ L_d_g

_e _m_ _d _ _ _ _ _ _e Pelion and R_m_t _ems _d _n _e Sup_eme_s
Funds _y_ems and Funds) to lend their _ _he _d_y_g _c_ to broke_-de_e_ and o_er em_ wi_ a
_m_s _em_t m _um _e _H_ _r _e _me _ _ _ _ _ _' _ Fun_' cu_od_ _nd _e
_l_w_g types of securities: __ securifie_ common _oc_ _n_ _e bonds, U.S. Gov_nmem and U.S.
Govemme_ agencies' _ __d _ and im_n_nfl equities and bonds held _ _i_ _mem _Ms.
Securities on loan _ _d _e dasfified as a C_ego_ 1 risk in _e _e_ng _hed_e _ _ _R _ _m_fl
_s _e _c_d. _ _um, _ey _Ne c_l_fl in _e _ _c_h _ 1__% _ _ _ a_m_
_ _r _m_ _ yea_end, the Sy_ems and Funds _d _ _ _k _ _ _owe_ _e _e amoums _e

S_ms and Fun_ owe _e bo_ow_s ex_ed _e amoums _e bo_owe_ owe _e Sy_ems and Fund_ The com_Os w_h _e
Sy_ems' and Fun_' cushman _quk_ bo_owe_ _ _demni_ _e Sy_ems and Funds _ _e bo_ow_s _il m _mm _e
secufitie_ ff _e c_l_fl is _adequ_ and if _ b_ _1 _ _y _e Sy_ems and Fun_ _r _me __s by the
securities' issuers while _e _s _e on loan.

_1 securit_s loans can be _d on demand _ a period spedfied _ _ch a_me_ by _ _e Sy_ems and
Funds or the bo_ow_ Cash c_l_eml is _ve_ed in _e lending agent' _o_mrm _ve_mem poo_ wh_h have a

we_e_av_age m_uri_ of 90 days. The _g _c_s _d incomO have an average mamri_ of 10 ye_s _ _
• e TRS _curiti_ _nd_g p_g_m _u_ed brow wh_h h_ _ av_age m_ufi_ _ 5 y_.

_ ad_tion, TRS adm_i_s a _curit_s lending p_am _r TRS _d BERS _e A _ve_mem vo_am wh_h _
comp_a_e _ the securit_s lending _og_m d_cussed abov_

and _ve_men_ made wRh _ c_h are also recorded _ _. _a_l_ _s_ting _om _e _ansa_ns _e _po_ed on _e
bflan_ _e_. A_o_ _e _y _ _ __ __ @ _ c_h c_l_fl _ _ve_m_, CCl_fl F_m
Securities _g __ _ a co_espond_g liabil_y as Securities _g __s.

H. G_____

_e _ is a summ_y of changes in gen_fl fixed _se_ _r the fiscal yea_ ended June 3_ 1999 and 2000:

Bflance Bflance Bflanee
June 3_ June3_ June 3_

1998 _d_m Dd_ns 1_9 Addfiom D_efloas 2_

_nd .................. $ 635_ $ 13,049 $ -- $ _8_96 $ 23,975 $ -- $ 672,471
B_gs .............. 11_0_407 1_7_226 54,318 1_31_315 1_28_50 29,657 1_61_008
Equ_mem ............. 3,25_726 77,3_ 1,995 3,333,075 291,829 5L601 3_7L303
C_m_ wor_-

progress ............. 6,398r299 1,598_257 1_7_226 6,926,330 1,387,002 1_2_350 6,984,982
21fi9_879 _75_876 1,12_539 23_2_216 _031,156 1A1_608 24,847,764

_ss accumd_ed
_ed_n a_
amo_z_ .......... 7_303,490 929,372 1,802 &231_60 1,195_75 3_157 9A23,778

_tfl changes in net
fixed a_s ....... $1_291_89 $1_2%504 $1,12_737 $1_99_156 $1_35_81 $1A0_451 $15_2_986
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The following a_ We sources of fun_ng for We gener_ fixed asse_ for the fisc_ years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999.
Sources of funding for fixed asses are not availab_ prior m fisc_ year 1987.

2000 1999
_nthousand_

Capi_l Proje_s Funds:
Prior to fiscal year 1987 .............. $ 6,632,113 $ _71&370
C_y bonds ........................ 15_9Z552 1&35_491
Federal gran_ ...................... 35_833 31&851
St_e grants ........................ 123,965 119,923
Pdv_e grants ...................... 49_54 48_21
Cap_ed leases ................... 1,998,847 1_7_160

Total funding sources .............. $24,847,764 $23_2Z216

At June 3_ 2000 and 1999, the Gener_ Fixed Asses Account Group includes approxim_dy $1.3 bi_ion of City-owned
asses _ased for $1 per year to We New York Ci_ Tran_t Au_ori_ which opera,s and m_n_s We ass_ In additio_ assets
_ased to HHC and to the Water and Sewer Sy_em are excluded _om the General Fixed Asses Account Group and are recorded _
We respective component unit finan_ _ement_

Included in land and buildings at June 30, 2000 and 1999 are leased prope_ies capiml_ed at $1,999 million and $1,670
milHo_ respe_Nd_ w_h rd_ed accumul_ed amo_ation of $196 miH_n and $145 mfll_n, respectivel_

The City_ in_astru_ure _ not requi_d to be capit_ed _ WeGeneral Fixed Asse_ Account Group under GAAP aRhough
the acqu_ifion and con_ru_ion of such items are expenditures of We Capital Proje_s Funds _ee Note A). For _is reason,
expen_tu_s of the Capi_l Pr_ects Funds for the fiscal years ended June 3_ 2000 and 1999 exceed the $3.031 billion and $Z759
bill_n _creases recorded as gener_ fixed asses by $1_12 billion and $2.363 billion, respectivel_

I. Lr,AS_S

The City leases a sig_ficant amount of prope_y and equ_ment _om other. Leased prope_y having _ements of owne_hip
_ recorded _ the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The related oblig_ns, in amounts equfl to the present value of minimum
_ase paymen_ payable during We _mfin_g term of We lease_ are recorded _ the Generfl Long-term Oblig_ns Account

Group. Other _ased prope_y not having e_ments of ownership are _asfified asoper_ing _ases. BoW capitol andoperating _ase
paymen_ are recorded as expen_tures when payable. Totfl expend_u_s on such _ases for the fiscfl years ended June 3_ 2000
and 1999 were appro_ma_ly $425 million and $392 million, _spe_iv_

As of June 3_ 200_ the Cky (excluding _scr_y presented component un_ had future minimum paymen_ under ca_tal
and operating _ases w_h a _mfin_g term in excess of one year as foi_ws:

Capit_ Ope_t_g
Leases Leas_ To_l

finthousand_
Fiscal year end_g June 30:

2001 ....................................... $ 160,560 $ 220,709 $ 381,269
2002 ....................................... 163,816 21Z870 376,686
2003 ....................................... 169,622 203,565 373,187
2004 ....................................... 170,887 200,271 371,158
2005 ....................................... 171,279 19_337 361,616
Thereafter until 2039 .......................... 2,455,449 1_5_566 _71&015

Furore m_imum

paymen_ ............................... $_291_13 $_28_318 $5_7Z931

Less _m ................................. 1_8_563

Present v_ue of future m_imum payments ...... $1_03D50

The present v_ue of future minimum _ase paymems _dudes approxim_dy $1338 biH_n for _ases with Pu_ic Benefit
Corporations (PBC) where State law general_ provides th_ _ Weevent We City fai_ to make any requked _ase payment, the
amount of such payment will be deduced from St_e a_ otherwise payable to We City and pa_ to PBC.
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The CiU also _ases Ciu-owned property to others, primarily for mark_ poa_ and term_als. Total rental revenue on mesc
ope_fing leases for me fisc_ yea_ ended June 3_ 20(_ and 1999 was appro_mmdy $139 mill_n and $114 mill_ respectively.
As of June 30, 2000, the fol_w_g future m_imum renmh are prov_ed for by the leases:

Amou_
On_o_andO

Fisc_ year ending June 30:
2001 .......................................... $62,587
2002 .......................................... 56,851
2003 .......................................... 52,560
2004 .......................................... 47,767
2005 .......................................... 44,971
Thereafter until 2086 ............................. 1_60_11

Future minimum _ntals ......................... $1,325,247

J. Lo_6-T_v_ O_mnT_O_S

Long-mrm Debt

F_w_g _ a summary of me bond and no_ t_nsa_ns of the Cit_ MAC, TFA, TSASC, SFC, and ce_n pu_ benefit
corpo_fions _ am componem uni_ of me Ci_ and/or whose de_ is guaran_ed by the Cit_ For _formation on no_s and bonds
payable of the d_c_ presen_d componem un_s, see No_s M, N, O, and E

B_ance B_ance B_an_
June3_ Repa_or June3_ Rep_dor June3_

1998 Issued De_ed 1999 Issued Demand 2000

On_ou_nd_
City debt:

General oblig_nbonds $26,879,034 $3_8_725 $L52Z696 $2Z441_63 $ 666,385 $121_342 $2_89_106

MAC debt:(4)
1991 gene_l res_n

bonds ............. 4,066,515 5_415 774,515 _83_415 -- 300,850 3,531,565

TFA debt:(5)
Future tax secured bonds 2,150,000 2,000,000 -- 4,150,000 1_1_940 41,785 5_2_155
Bond anfi_p_n notes .. -- -- -- -- 600,000 600,000 --

_15_000 _000_00 -- _15_000 _414_40 641,785 5_2_155
TSASC debt:

Tobacco flexible amo_-

ization bonds ....... -- -- -- -- 709,280 -- 709,280
SFC debt:

Japanese Yen bonds .... 20_000 -- 40,000 160,000 -- 40,000 120,000

Component un_ debt: (1)
Ci_ Un_erfi_

Cons_ucfion Fund(2) . 429,769 _004(3) -- 435,773 -- L522(3) 428,251
New York City Educ_ionM

Con_ru_n Fund . .. 158,080 -- 7,665 15_415 -- 8,015 142,400

58%849 6,004 7,665 586,188 -- 15,537 570,651

Total before _easury
obl_ations ........... 3_883_98 5,631,144 _34_876 3_16_666 3,790,605 2,213,514 3_74_757

Less _easury o_afions .. 365,494 -- 66,754 298,740 -- 68,272 230,468

Total summary of
bond_ansa_ns .. $33f1Z904 $5,631,144 $327&122 $35_7_926 $_79_605 $Z145242 $3Z51_289

(1) The debt of CUCF and ECF am reported as bonds outstanding pursuant to m_r _emme_ as componem unim _ee Note A).

(2) Excludes $281,009 in 1999 and $259,901 in 2000 to be provided by the St_e.

(3) N_ a_u_mem based on _locafion of debt between New York State and New York Cit_

(4) Includes $314,530 of principal debt due July l, 2000 which MAC repots as redeemed as of June 30, 2000.

(5) TFA debt does not include $515 mill_n of bond ant_m_n notes wh_h are recorded in the capkal proje_s fund.
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The bonds payable, net of treasury oblig_ion_ _ June 30, 2000 and 1999 summarked by type of _sue are as follows:

2000 1999

Gener_ Gener_
O_ns Revenue To_l Obligations Revenue Total

(in _ou_nds)

Bonds payable:
City debt .................. $2_661,638 $ -- $26,661,638 $27,142,323 $ -- $2_142,323
MAC debt ................. 3,531_65 -- 3,531,565 3,832,415 -- 3,832,415
TFA debt ................. 5,923,155 -- 5,923,155 4,150,000 -- 4,15_000
TSASC debt ............... 709,280 -- 709,280 -- -- _

SFC debt .................. 120,000 -- 120,000 160,000 -- 160,000
Component unit debt ........ -- 570,651 570,651 -- 586,188 586,188

TotN bonds payable ....... $36,945,638 $570,651 $37_16,289 $35,284,738 $586,188 $35,870,926

The following table summaries future debt serv_e requiremenN as of June 30, 2000:

City Debt
General Other Bknded

Ob_gafion Interest on Component
Bonds Bonds (1) MAC TFA TSASC SFC (2) Un_ Debt To_l

On_ousands)
F_cal year end_g June 3_

2001 .................... $ 1,266,032 $1A2%985 $ 495,501 $ 40_336 $ 5_450 $ 48,400 $ 65,148 $ 3fl55_52
2002 .................... 1_61_20 I_6_445 501,513 40_892 51_05 45,600 63,675 3_00,550
2003 .................... 1,340,748 1,295,965 501,792 411,142 5_676 42,800 64,310 _70%433

2004 .................... 1,383,740 1_22_30 501,581 421,982 48_00 -- 64_60 3_4_693
2005 .................... 1_6_382 1,167,513 50_837 423,190 48,764 -- 63,325 3_6_011
The_afier until 2147 ....... 1_94&816 1_16_505 1_5_813 _13_785 1_0_609 -- 61_594 4_12_122

2_661_38 1_641_43 4N5&037 11_02_27 1_55_04 136,800 939512 61_9_661

Less in_ compone_ ....... -- 1_641_43 92_472 5_7_172 84_024 1_800 368,861 24,078,372

To_l future den serv_e

_qui_men_ ............ $26,661,638 $ -- $3fi31_65 $5_2_155 $ 709,280 $120_00 $570,651 $3_51_289

(1) Includes in_ e_im_ed _ 4% rate on _x_xem_ _us_Ne rate bonds and at 6% rate on mxaNe a_ustaNe rate _Ms.

_ l_e_ e_im_ed at 7% rate.

_e average _e_N_) _ rates _r outstandi_ City general oN_n bonds as _b_h _ne 3_ _ and 1999 was
5.7% and ranged from 3.0% to 13.55%, _spe_N_N and Ne inte_ rates on ouNanding _C bonds as ofb_h June 3_ 20_

and 1999 ranged _om 3.75% m 6.25%. The la_ mamfi_ of the ou_ing _ _ is in _e ye_ 2147.

In fiscal year 2000, _e Ci_ issued _4 _H_n _ _ne_ _l_on _s m advance _Nnd gen_N oN_afion bon_ of

$7_7 m_i_n agg_ga_ _nd_l amour. _e n_ p_ce_s _m the sales of_e _n_ng bond_ _g_h_ wi_ _h_ _n_ of

$16.8 mill_n, were i_evocably placed in escrow accoun_ and _ve_ed _ Uni_d _es Govemme_ secures. As a result of

_ov_g for the _yment _the _nci_ and ime_ _ m_ufit_ and any _dem_n p_m_m, _e advance _nded bon_ _e

cons_e_d _ be debased an_ acco_in_ the l_l_y _ n_ _po_ed _ _e Gene_l _n_rm O_ons Account Group. The

_nd_g t_nsa_ns will increase _e _ _g_g_e _ sew_e paymen_ by $4.3 miH_n bm prov_e an e_nom_ g_n of
$3.1 mill_n. At June 30, 20_), $&257 Nlfion of _e C_y's om_and_g gene_l oN_n bonds we_ con_dered debased.

The City util_es _ve finano_ in_rumems _ conne_n whh ce_n bond _sues in ord_ m _duce de_ se_e co_

The Ci_ minim_es t_ _ _ ri_ of _ese _s_umen_ _rough hed_ng _ansa_ns and m_im_es coun_a_y _ed_ ri_

by _M_g _ h_h_uMi_ coun_a_es.

The Ci_ has ended into a number of im_e_ rme swap ag_emen_ _ _dlffme _e _suance and sale of ce_ain variable rate

bonds by prov_ prote_ion to the Ci_ against variable rate risk. _e _ements e_vely change the City_ _re_ rate
exposure on _ _li_fion _ pay fluc_afing amours of in_ on _mi_ rate debt in_rumen_ _ fixed r_e in_ payme_

Debt _strumems su_e_ _ in,rein rate swap ag_emen_ were: $22.5 mill_n Sho_ RITES bonds, $43.8 miHMn indexed

inverse floa_, and $14.6 mfll_n inve_e floaOng rate no_s.
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The _e Con_flution _quires me Ci a m pledge its full fai_ and credit for the paymem of the principal and inm_ on City
_rm and serial bonds and gu_ameed debt. The general de_-incurring pow_ of me Cia is lim_ed by me Constitution m 10% of
me avenge of five yews' _11 v_um_ns of _xab_ _ e_e. Excluded from this debt limitation is certain _de_edness incur_d

_r water suppl_ ce_ain o_ns _r trans,, sewage, and other specific o_ns which exdufions are based on a
relationsh_ of debt _e to net revenue.

As of July 1,200_ the 10% gene_l lim_n w_ approxim_e_ $3_593 bill_n _omp_ed wi_ $2_332 _H_n as of July
1,199_. To pmv_e _r me Cia_ capital Frog_m, TFA and TSASC we_ created, the debt of wh_h is not su_e_ m me gen_
debt limit of the City. The debt-_curring power of TFA and TSASC has p_m_ed the City to cominue to enter into new
contra_u_ commitmem_ As of July 1,200_ the combined City, TFA and TSASC remaining de_ incurring power totaled $8,489
_ll_n, after providing for c_pital comm_men_.

Pu_uant to Sta_ _Mation on Janu_y 1, 1979, the City e_a_hed a Gene_l Debt Se_ice Fund adm_ist_ed and
m_m_ned by me Stme Com_mll_ into wh_h payments of _ estate ux_ and _h_ _venu_ _e depo_d _ advance of de_
se_ice paymem dates. De_ se_e on _i Ci_ notes and bonds _ pa_ _om this Fund. In fi_ ye_ 200_ disc_t_na_ and _her
_ans_ of $Z509 _H_n we_ made from me Gene_l Fund m me Gen_ De_ Se_e Fund _r fisc_ year 2001 de_ _ _

addition, in fiscal year 2000, dis_na_ _ans_ totaling $524 mill_n were made to certain componem units of the Debt
Se_e Funds. In fiscal year 1999, a d_n_y and _h_ _ans_ of $2.00l _ll_n w_e made from the Gen_ Fund _ the

Gene_l De_ Se_e Fund _r fisc_ year 2000 de_ _ _ addk_ in fiscal year 1999 d_c_t_na_ t_ns_ _ling $424
mill_n we_ made m certain componem uni_ of the De_ Se_e Funds.

Sub_quem m June 3_ 2000, the City comN_ed the fol_wing long-term financing:

Ci_ de_: On J_y _ 2000, the City sold _ the pu_ c_ed_ mark_ its fiscal 2001 _ries A tax exem_ general obligm_n
bonds of $150 m_n princip_ amoum _r v_us mun_ ca_tal pu_os_. On O_ober 1_ 2000 the Cia s_d i_ series B and
C tax exem_ bonds of ap_o_m_y $403 mill_n, tax exem_ m_tbmod_ bonds of $100 mill_n and taxable bonds of

appro_m_y $85 mill_n. The _ries Bbonds _5_5 miH_ we_ issued for various municipal capital pu_oses and the series C
bonds ($63 m_l_ for _nding pu_oses.

Judgmen_ and C_ims

The City _ a de_ndam in lawn,s pertM_ng to ma_fiM m_, _Ou_ng d_ms asseaed wh_h a_ _ddental to
performing routine governmem_ and other fun_ns. Th_ litig_ion includes but _ not limited _: act_ commenced and claims
asse_ed against the _ty ari_ng out of alleged toas; alleged b_aches of com_ alleged violations of hw; and condemn_n
_o_ed_gs. As of June 30, 2000 and 1999, d_ms in excess of $455 billion and $458 _ll_ _spe_Nel_ were om_an_ng
ag_n_ the C_y _r w_ch me City estimates its p_enti_ futu_ liab_ity _ be $3.6 billion _nd $3_ billio_ _spe_d_

As exhaled in Note A, the e_im_e of the I_li a _r unsexed d_ms has been _po_ed in the Gene_l Long-term
ON_m_ Accou_ Grou_ The lhN_ a was e_immed by _gorizing the various d_ms and applying a hi_oric_ avenge
pe_emage, based primari_ on actual sett_men_ by ape of d_m during the p_ce_ng ten fiscal yca_, and sup_emcmed by
_formation _ovided by the New Yo_ Ci a Law Depa_mem wi_ respect _ _rtain large _dividual claims and p_edi_gs. _he
_corded l_Nii a is the Cia's best e_im_e based on av_hb_ _rm_n and ap_n of the _going pm_du_s.

In Feb_ary, 199Z a _rm_ New Yo_ City _ho_ principal filed _ a_n in New Yo_ St_e Su_eme Cou_ challen_ng me
_ve_mem polici_ and _a_ of _e R_emem Bo_d _e New Yo_ City Tethers' Rokemem Sy_em (TR_ wi_ _ga_
m a componem of TRS con_sting of memb_ comribm_ns and earnings _eon known _ me Variab_ B Fund. H_nfiff _g_
thin the trusses of TRS il_g_ m_ned the Variab_ B Fund as a fixe_come _nd and _nomd a _qui_mem that a
subs_mhl amount of the Fund_ assets be invested in equiff sccurifie_ The de_ndams are TRS and its indN_u_ trustees.
H_nfiff seeks damag_ on behalf of all Variable B Fund pa_icipams in excess of $250 mill_n. In May 1999, the Appdh_
Divi_on, Hrst De_a_menL affirmed me Suweme Cou_ earlier de_ of the defendant' motion for _mma_judgement. If the
_nfiff w_e to p_v_l in this a_io_ it could _suR in _b_tial co_s _ me City.

In Ma_ 199Z an a_n w_ commenced ag_n_ me Cia in the Uni_d St_es Di_ri_ Cou_ _r the Sou_n Di_fi_ of New
Yo_ by _n _du_s on bch_fof _em_N_ and perso_ _milarly _mated, _ging _ City correction_ offi_ _n_ Jd_
1996 had v_la_d the con_i_tion_ righ_ of pe_ons a_c_ed _r m_demeano_ or non_rim_ offe_ by _rip_a_hing
such pe_ons upon entry _ prearraignment holding pens _ the Manhattan and Queens criminal courthouses. In April, 1998, the
• _ri_ coua g_n_d _aintiffs' motion _r d_s _fication. The City estimates that them a_ app_xim_e_ 65,000 pe_ons in
the cl_s. While me cla_ a_ion is in its _im_y s_ges and _e p_emiai co_ _ me _a of adverse detcrminmions of liability
and damag_ in me a_n cann_ be de_rmined at this time, any such adv_ de_rm_ns cou_ _R in sub_anti_ co_s to
the City.
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In add_ion to Me above chims and pmceeding_ num_ous real estate tax ce_iorad proceed_gs are p_semly pending
ag_n_ the City on grounds of alleged ove_Nuation, _equN_ and H_gN_y of _mem. In _spon_ _ the_ a_ns, in
Decembe_ 1981, _me _Mation w_ ena_ed wh_h, among _her _gs, au_odz_ Me City _ _ _N p_pe_y acco_ing _
_ur d_s and makes ce_n ev_e_i_y changes _ _N e_e _x certiorari pmceed_gs. B_ed on historicN _ttlemem activity,
Me Ciw e_im_es its p_emi_ I_li_ _r outstanding ce_iorari p_ceedings _ be $540 mill_n as _po_ed in the General
Lon_term OM_m_ns Accoum Group.

Pens_n L_M_

The Ci_ _ pennon iiaN_y _ of June 3_ 1999 resumed from a _o_ change _ Me tim_g of Me Ci_ _ conU_m_n m its
pens_n Nan_ Prior to fiscN year 1981, Me Ci_ pens_n co_6but_n _fle_ed pension co_s _cu_ed two yea_ ead_r and a
phase-in ofceaain actuarial assumption_ The City _ liability was original_ amortized ov_ 40 years. Later legislation reduced _e
amo_n period to 20 yea_. As of June 3_ 199_ Me _ma_g amortiz_n period was 11yea_. In accordance wig Chap_r
85 of the New York S_ Laws of 2000, ena_ed on June 24, 2000, _ pa_ of a numb_ of chang_ to a_uariN _sumptions and

mmhods _ee No_ S), _N liability is no longer bNng Nnded _paratdy _ paa of actuariNly-determined pension contribm_ns
and a _abH_y on Mepart of_e Ci_ _pa_ _om its actuarially-determined pens_n contribN_ns no longer exists. Acco_inNN
the amoum of_e recorded liabH_y was decreased to zero as of June 3_ 200_ For a_uariN purpo_ Me INbility w_ elimin_ed

_r Me pu_ose of cNcul_g fiscal year 2000 pension co_ribution_

Land_H C_sure and Postclosure Care Cos_

The City _ only active landfill avNNNe _r w_ disposal N Me Fr_h Kiln landfill. A portion of Me total e_immed cu_e_
co_ of_e dosu_ and po_dosu_ ca_ is _ be _cogn_ed _ an expen_ and _ a l_Nli_ _ each period Me Nndfiil accep_ solN
w_. For gov_nmemN Nnd_ Memeas_eme_ and _cogn_n of Me accrued liabili_ _r dosu_ and po_dosu_ ca_ is based
on total estima_d cu_ent cost and landfill u_ge m dine. ExpendRu_s and Nnd INNIngs are _cogNzed using Me mo_fied

accrual basis of accounting. The _mNnd_ of _e l_Nl_y is _poaed in Me Gen_N Lon_rm Obi_N_ns Accou_ Group.

Upon the landfill becoming inactiv_ the City is _qui_d by Federal and State law to close the Nndfil_ _dud_g finn cove_
stormwater managemen_ Nndfill g_ ¢o_ml, and _ pmv_e po_dcsu_ c_e _r a period of 30 yea_ _llowing _osu_. The Ci_
is also _qui_d under Consent O_er win the New York Nate Dcpartmem of Environmental Con_n m condu_ ce_ain
codeine menu,s associated with the landfill. The codeine measu_s include con_m_n and operat_n of a leach_e

m_N_n sy_em _r Me a_Ne potions of_e landfill _ wall _ _osu_, po_dosu_, and groundw_ monitoring activN_ _r
Me sections no longer accepting solid wa_e.

The liability for these a_N_s _ of June 30, _N(I is $877.8 m_n b_ed on _e cumM_Ne landfill capaN_ used m d_e.
The totN estimated curre_ co_ N $890.9 mill_n; the_, Me co_s _mNNng m be _cogn_ed a_ $13.1 mill_n. During fiscal
year 1996, New YoN State _N_n w_ ena_ed wh_h _ _ no w_ste will be acceNed _ Me Fr_h Kills Nndfill on or after
Janua_ 1, 2002. Acco_in_N Me _abH_y _r dosu_ and po_dosu_ ca_ cosN is based upon an effe_Ne cumMative NndNl

capaN_ used to d_e of appmximme_ 98%. Co_ e_immes are based on cu_e_ d_a _du_ng contra_s aw_ded by the CitN
co_ NdN and engineering stu_. Thee emim_es _e su_e_ m a_u_me_ _r infl_n and _ account _r any changes in
landfill cond_n_ _gul_o_ _qu_emem_ _chnNo_c_ or _ost estim_.

During fiscal year 200_ expenditures for landfill doNng costs totN_g $143 m_n w_e recorded in the GenerN Fund.

Resource Con_n and Recove_ A_ SuN_le D Pa_ 258, which became effective April, 1997, _qui_s finanNN
assurance _g_ng closure and po_dosu_ ca_. This _su_nce w_ most _cently pmvide_ on Mamh 31, 2000, by Me C_y_
Chief NnanNN Officer placing in the Fresh Kills Landfill ope_0ng record _p_ntat_ns in _tis_ction of the LocN
Gov_nme_ NnandN Test.

The C_y h_ five ina_Ne hazardous waste sites not covered by the EPA mira The Ci_ has inc_ded Me _n_rm pog_n of
these po_c_su_ care co_s _ Me Gen_N Lon_rm ON_ations Accoum Group.

The _llowing _p_ms the City's t_al landfill and hazardous wa_e sites l_Nl_y which is recorded in Me General
Long-term ON_afions Account Group:

Amount
Onthousand_

Landfill ....................................... $ 877,812
Hazardous was_ sites ............................ 207,466

Total Nndfill and hazardous wa_e si_s _abil_y ...... $1_85_78
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Changes In Cenain Long-term Obligations

In fiscal years 1999 and 2000, the changes in long-_rm obligations other than for bonds were as follows:
B_ance B_ance B_ance
June 3_ June 3_ June 3_

1998 Ad_fions Dd_ns 1999 Ad_tions D_efions 2000

fin thousand_

Capitaileaseoblig_ions .. $ 1,141,128 $ 428,540 $ 44,220 $ 1_25,448 $ 328,686 $ 51,084 $1_03,050
Real estate tax refunds .... 405,688 95,499 44,215 456,972 121,890 38,967 539,895
Judgments and claims .... 3,495,484 446_87 424,305 3,517,566 587,987 490,669 3,614,884
Vacation and sick leave (1) 2,031,970 27,328 -- 2,050298 19,402 -- 2,078,700
Pennon l_bility ......... 2,414,856 -- 78,626 2_3_230 -- 2_36,230 --
Landfill closure and post-

closure care co_s ...... 925,923 53,084 -- 979,007 106,271 -- 1,085,278

Total changes in ce_ain
long-_rmobligations .. $10,415,049 $1,050_38 $591,366 $10,874fi21 $1,164,236 $2_16_50 $9,121_07

(1) The amoum of ad_fions and delet_ns is not av_ble, _us _e net amounts are presemed.

K. PRIMARY GOVERNMENT/DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT REC_VABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES

At June 3_ 2000 and 1990 primary governmem and _s_dy presemed component unit _c_va_e and payable balances
were as folbws:

2000 1999

Rec_vab_ Paya_e R_fiva_e Paya_e

On_o_and_
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

Gene_l Fund:
New York City Capit_ Projects Fund ............. $2,480,864 $1,293,842 $2_07,777 $702,154
HDC ....................................... 222,471 -- 189,632 --
General Debt Serv_e Fund ..................... 7,408 -- 7,408 --
CUCF ...................................... 14,395 -- 16,689 --
OTB ....................................... 170 -- 475 --
Water Board ................................. -- 47,141 -- 69,673

Total Genc_l Fund ........................ _725_08 1,340,983 2,221,981 771,827

Carrel Projec_ Funds:
New York Ci_ Carrel Projec_ Fund ............. 1,293,842 -- 70Z154 --
TFA ....................................... -- 65,600 -- 392_88
Water Authority .............................. 252,911 -- 235,143 --
Gene_l Fund ................................ -- 2,415,264 -- 1,615,489

Total Cap_ Proje_s Fund ................. 1_4_753 2,480,864 937,297 Z00Z777

Gene_i De_ Serv_e Fund:
Gene_l Fund ................................ -- 7,408 -- 7,408

CUCF:
Gene_l Fund ................................ -- 14,395 -- 16,689

Private Housing Loan Programs:
HDC ....................................... 10_52 -- 9,956 --

Pension and Similar Trust Funds:
NYCERS ................................... -- 100,000 -- --
CVSF ...................................... 1_}_00 -- -- --

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:
Primary Government:

OTB ....................................... -- 170 -- 475
Wa_r Board ................................. 47,141 -- 69,673 235,143
Water Anthofi_ .............................. -- 252,911 -- --
HDC ....................................... -- 232,923 -- 199,588

Total D_cr_ely Presented Compone_ Uni_.. 4Z141 486,004 69,673 435,206

Tot_ primary government/d_cretely presen_d
component unit _ce_a_e and paya_e balances... $4_29_54 $4_29_54 $3,238,907 $3_38_07
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L SEGMENT INFO_ION FOR _C_ PRESENTED CO_E_ U_TS

Selec_d _gmem in_rm_n _r HHC, OTB, HDC, _, the Econom_ DeveMpmem Enfit_ and the _ _d Sewer
Sy_em as of and _r the fiscal years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 is _ _lMws:

20_

_r
He_ and O_k Houfing _o_c and
H_s B_g D_dopme_ Hous_g D_dopme_ Sewer

_r_ _r_ _o_ Au_o_y Entities Sy_em _tal
On _on_

Opiating revenues ................ $4,058 $244 $ 178 $l,847 $375 $ 1,647 $ 8,349
O_i_ expends _xdu_ng

_V_n and amo_n
expense) ....................... 3,924 212 142 1,835 318 1,393 7,824

Dep_d_n and amoa_n expense . 155 6 -- 242 3 347 753
Ope_fing income (los_ ............. _1) 26 36 _3_ 54 (93) (22_
Nonope_fing revenues _xpen_Q .... 30 11 _ 44 10 4 97
Net income 0oss) be_re _e_g

_ans_ ....................... 9 37 34 (186) 64 _ (131)
T_ns_ _ _om primly

gov_nmem .................... -- (3_ -- 4 -- _
Net income (loss) .................. 9 7 34 (18_ 64 _ (15_
Comfibu_d fixed assets and deM

_e ........................ 74 -- -- 2,289 -- 6 2,369
Cu_ent assets ..................... 1,092 27 994 1,332 365 483 4,293
Morgue loans and ime_ _ce_a_e . -- -- 2,540 2 46 -- 2,588
Prope_ plant and _u_me_ net ..... 1,333 18 6 4,043 68 12,824 18,292
Other assets ...................... 338 2 43 100 27 1,078 1,588
Cu_ent l_fies .................. 379 17 456 622 132 364 1,970
_n_erm lh_l_s ................ 1,012 3 2,557 307 -- 9,234 13,113
_her ........................... 50 5 -- 50 85 -- 190
_tal equ_y ...................... 1,322 22 570 4,498 289 4,787 11,488

1_9

Water
Heath and O_ck Houfing Econom_ and
Ho_i_ls _ng Devdopmem Ho_ing Devdopmem Sewer

Co.option Cor_tion Corporation A_hod_ Entities Sy_em To_l
_n m_n_

Opemfing_venu_ ................ $_058 $229 $ 202 $1,824 $262 $ 1,605 $ 8,180
Operating expenses _xdud_g

_wec_n and amo_m_n
expense) ....................... 3,814 199 138 1,702 224 1,358 7,435

Deweda_n and amo_a_n
expense ........................ 157 5 -- 223 2 391 778

O_rat_g _come 0oss) ............. 87 25 64 (101) 36 (14_ (33)
Nonoper_g revenues _xpense_ .... (71) 4 -- 53 14 3 3
Net income 0os_ be_ _eratMg

_ans_ ....................... 16 29 64 _ 50 (141) O_
_ans_ O_ from _ima_

gov_nmem .................... -- 01) -- 4 -- -- _
Net income (los_ .................. 16 _ 64 O_ 50 (141) (5_
Con_bm_ fixed assets and debt

service ........................ 58 -- -- 557 -- 7 622
Cu_em a_e_ ..................... 1,116 23 886 1,201 256 500 3,982
Mon_ loans and in_ _ceNa_e . -- -- 2,391 2 46 -- 2,439
Pro_r_ plant and equomem, net ..... 1,247 22 1 3,825 52 12,406 17,553
Other assets ...................... 381 2 44 161 26 1,115 1,729
Cu_em liab_ies .................. 350 18 406 1,035 109 353 2,271
_-_rm l_l_s ................ 1,109 10 2,380 1,716 -- 8,798 14,013
O_er ........................... 47 5 -- 48 46 -- 146
_tal equity ...................... 1,238 14 536 2,390 225 4,870 9,273
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_S _ _N_ STAT_ENTS, _ntinued

M. NEWYORKC_Y HEALTUA_D HOS_TALSCORPORA_ON(HHC)

General

HHC, a pu_ benefit corporation, assumed responsibility for the operation of the City_ municipal hospitfl sy_em in 1970.
HHC_ finandfl n_eme_s include Me accou_s of HHC and i_ whC_wned subs_iaries, M_m_us HeaiM Plan, Inc. and

HHC Carrel Co_oration. All s_n_ca_ _ompany accounm and transactions have been elimin_ed.

The Ci_ pin,des _nds to HHC _r care given to unasked _d_e_ p_ie_ memb_s of Me u_rmed _es and
pr_oners, and _r _her cos_ n_ covered by other payors. The Ci_ _ Annufl Expense Budg_ de_rmin_ _e suppo_ m HHC on a
cash-flow basis. In addition, the C_y has paid HHC's costs _r sett_me_s of dfims _r med_fl mflpractice, ne_enc_ and
_her m_c_ianeous m_s and conua_ as w_! as _her HHC cons _du_ng util_es expense, Ci_ debt wh_h funded HHC

ca_l acquis_ions, and New York St_e Houfing _nance Agency (HFA) debt on HHC assets acqui_d Mmugh _e pu_h_e
agreemems. HHC _imbu_ Me City _r Mese debt payments. HHC records both a revenue and an expense _ an amount equfl _
expenditures made on its behalf by _e Cit_

Revenues

P_ serv_e accounts _ceNa_e and revenues are _po_ed at _fim_ed c_le_ amours. Sub_a_l_ all dire_

p_nt service revenue is derived from Mi_a_y payor_ Genemll_ revenues from these sources are based upon cost
_imbu_eme_ principles and are su_e_ to routine audit by appl_aMe payor. HHC _co_s a_u_me_s _su_ng _om au_
and from appea_ when Me amou_ _ _asona_y de_rm_a_e.

Fund Accounting

HHC m_ns _pam_ accou_s _ _s finan_ records _ assu_ compliance with spe_fic _stri_ions imposed by the Ci_
and _h_ gmn_ or comribu_.

P_nt and Equ_ment

All _l_es and equ_mem are leased _om the Ci_ at $1 per yeaL In ad_fion, HHC op_es ce_n _dlifi_ wh_h are
financed by HFA and le_ed _ Me Ci_ on beh_f of HHC. HHC records as revenue and as expense the int_en port_n of such
lease pu_h_e obl_ations p_d by the CRy. Because HHC _ _spons_ for the co_rol and m_enance of all pla_ and
equ_ment, and becau_ dep_d_n _ a _gnificant co_ of op_n_ HHC ca_t_ _a_ and equ_me_ _ con or estima_d
cost based on ap_ls. Dep_cht_n is compu_d on a stra_q_e basis using enim_ed use_l lives based on American
Hosp_al A_o_n gu_es. As a result of modem_g p_gmms and changes in _e _q_mem_ HHC has dosed
_l_es and potions of _lities during Me p_t _veml years. It _ the p_y of HHC _ _fle_ Me financial effe_ of Me dos_g
of _di_s or po_ns Me,of _ Me finand_ na_men_ when a deds_n has been made as _ Me _spo_fion of such a_s. HHC
records the cost of con_m_n Mat it controls as costs are incurred. Cos_ a_od_ed with _dl_es con_m_ed by HFA are

recorded when the _l_es _e _aced _ serv_e.

Donor Restric_d A_e_

Co_rb_ns which are _ri_ed as to use are recorded as donor _nri_ed _nds.

Pens_ns

Substa_ial_ _1HHC em_oyees a_ digi_e _ pa_i_pate in NYCERS _ee N_e S). The pm_ons _r pens_n costs we_

a_u_hHy d_m_ed and amou_ed _ $9 mflBon and $7 mill_n _r _sc_ yea_ 2000 and 1999, _spectivd_ These amoums
were _lly _nded.

HHC's pens_n liabfl_y as of June 30, 1999 _s_d _om a _u_ change in the timing of HHC's co,ribbon to _s
pension plan. P_or to fiscal year 1981, HHC's pension con_b_n reflec_d pension costs incuged two years earlier and a
ph_ ofce_a_ a_uari_ assumption_ _ acco_ance w_h Cha_er 85 of Me New Yo_ S_ Laws of 2000, enacted on June 24,
2000, as pa_ of a numb_ of changes _ a_uari_ a_umptions and m_hods _ee No_ S), this liability is no longer being _nded
_p_y as pa_ of an actuari_ly-determ_ed pension co_ribution and a lh_li_ on the pa_ of HHC sep_e _om _s
a_uari_ly-determined pension contribution no longer exist. Acco_ingl_ this liabili_ was decreased to zero as of June 30, 2000
resulting _ a $933 ruffian increase in nonoperating revenues _r _e fiscal year ended June 3_ 2000.

Affiliated Institution Expenses

Affiliated _stitut_n expenses represent conga_u_ expenses incurred by affiliated _sti_t_ns and ch_ged to HHC _r
participation in p_m se_e programs at HHC_ _dl_es.
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NOTES TO HNANC1AL STATEMENTS, Continued

Debt Serv_e

In fiscal year 199_ HHC issued Series A Health Sy_ems bonds in the amou_ of $236 mHl_n for the purpose of advance
_fund_g $218 million of HHC_ 1993 Series A Bonds. Al_ough the advance _fun_ng _sul_d in an accoun_ng _ss of $19
mill_ HHC _duced its debt service payments by approximate_ $12.9 miH_ result_g _ an econom_ g_n of $i_6 m_l_m
The accounting loss is being amoaked over 20 years.

The following table summaries fum_ debt service req_men_ as of June 3_ 2000:

P_n_p_ _ To_l
_n _ousand_

Fiscal year end_g June 3_
2001 .................................... $ 17,330 $ 40,867 $ 58,197
2002 .................................... 18,075 40,032 5_ 107
2003 .................................... 18,960 39,150 58,110
2004 .................................... 19,890 38,212 58,102
2005 .................................... 20,960 3_216 58,176
Thereafter until 2026 ....................... 718,144 415,955 1,134,099

To_l fu_ de_ serv_e _q_men_ ............ $813,359 $6_ 1,432 $1_2_791

The _ _s on the bonds as of June 30, 2000 range _om 4.1% to 6.0%.

The fol_wing _ a summary of _venue bond _ansa_ns for HHC for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 2000:

Ba_nce Debased Ba_uce Demand B_ance

June 3_ or June 3_ or June 3_
1998 Issued Retied 1999 Issued Retired 2000

On _ousand_

Revenue bonds ....... $827,610 $235,700 $233,330 $829,980 $ -- $16,621 $813,359

Installment No_ Payable

HHC _sued a secured 8-year _lme_ note payable with an 8% rateof in_re_. The fol_wing table summarizes future
debt serv_e _q_me_s as of June 30, 2000:

P_n_p_ _ To_l
On _ousand_

F_cal year ending June 30:
2001 .................................... $420 $56 $476
2002 .................................... 456 20 476

Total future debt serv_e req_rements ....... $876 $76 $952

Capital Lease Obligations

HHC en_red into a _ng-term agreement wh_h _volves the con_ru_n of a parking garage at Elmhur_ Hospi_l Cen_
As of June 3_ 200_ _e furore m_imum _ase paymen_ under the cap_ed lease are as fol_ws:

Amou_

Fiscal year ending June 30: On_ousand_
2001 ............................................. $ 982
2002 ............................................. 978

2003 ............................................. 1,003

2004 ............................................. 10,547
2005 ............................................. I00
Thereafter until 2013 ................................ 775

Future m_imum lease paymen_ ..................... 14,385
Less interest ....................................... 2,555

Present value of fum_ m_imum lease paymen_ ........ $11,830
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New York Power Authori_ (NYPA) Financing

NYPA has provided con_rucfion serv_es and financing _ HHC for energy-efficie_ he_cooling systems and l_hting

improvements. _ fisc_ year 1999, NYPA completed projects amoum_g _ $11_ m_n _ variable inte_ rat_ ov_ 10 ye_s.
The effective _ rate _r fisc_ ye_ 2000 w_ approxim_dy 3.6%.

The fol_wing ruble summarizes _ de_ _e _qu_emems as of June 30, 2000:

P_ndp_ _ Tot_
fin_ousand_

_SC_ year ending June 30:
2001 .................................... $1,148 $ 325 $ 1_73
2002 .................................... 1,124 281 1,405
2003 .................................... 1,132 239 1,371
2004 .................................... 1,175 196 1,371
2005 .................................... 1_19 152 1,371
Thereafter until 2009 ....................... 3,445 180 3,625

Total lucre de_ se_e mqu_emen_ ........... $9,243 $1,373 $10,616

Equipment Financing Agreement

HHC entered _to an equ_ment finanong ag_eme_ th_ allows HHC to bo_ow up to $50 m_n to primarily fund _e
purchase of patient _formation sy_ems. In fisc_ year 1998, HHC d_w down $11.6 mi_n wi_ a 5.19% r_e of in_.

The fol_wing _Ne summaries fu_ debt serv_e _q_ments as of June 30, 2000:

P_n_p_ _ To_l
_n ou_d_

Fisc_ year en_ng June 30:
2001 ................................................... $2,336 $304 $2,640
2002 ................................................... _460 _80 2,640
2003 ................................................... 1,929 50 1,979

Total lucre de_ serv_e _q_ments ....................... $6,725 $534 $7,259
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

Changes _ Fund Equi_

Presen_d be_w aM the changes in fund equ_y for the fisc_ yea_ ended June 3_ 1999 and 2000:

Contdbu_d
Un_ed Capi_l _ant R_erve To_l

Re_ed and _r Donor Fund
Ear_n_ Eq_pme_ Re_dctions Equ_y

(in _ousand_

Ba_nce, June 30, 1998 ................................ $ 737,656 $ 413,990 $ 11_97 $1,16_143

Excess of revenues over expenses ........................ 16,207 _ -- 16,207
Decrease _ bonds payable .............................. (16_80) 16,880 _ _
Increase in other deb_ net .............................. &092 (8,092) _ _
Increase in l_bflities .................................. 1_917 (1_917) -- _

Additions to plant and equ_ment funded by:
Donations ......................................... _ 695 -- 695
Grantor and donor reprised asses ..................... _ 15_11 -- 15_11

The City of New York ............................... _ 4_452 -- 4Z452
HHC ............................................. (6%652) 67,652 _ --

Donor _fi_ed fund activity:
Intere_ earned and contributions ....................... _ _ 1,175 1,175

NO assOs re_ased kom restrict_ns ...................... -- _ (726) (726)

Dep_ation charged to _ant and equipme_ leased .......... 15_440 (15_440) -- _

BMance, June 3_ 1999 ................................ 849fl80 37_431 11,946 1_3_157
Excess of revenues over expenses ........................ 9_54 _ -- 9_54
Decease in bonds payable .............................. (1_157) 15,157 _ --
Decrease in other debt, net .............................. (3,883) 3,883 _ --
lnc_ase in flawless .................................. 6,170 (6,170) -- _

Additions to _ant and equipment funded by:
Donjons ......................................... _ 163 -- 163
Gran_r and donor _fi_ed asse_ ..................... _ _885 _ _885

The City of New York ............................... _ 65_87 -- 65,787
HHC ............................................. (16_354) 167,354 _ --

Donor mstri_ed fund acti_:
ln_ earned and contr_utions ....................... -- _ 724 724
Net assets _leased from _fi_ns .................... _ _ (64) (64)

Depreci_ion charged to plant and equipment _ased .......... 155,315 (155_15) -- _

B_ance, June 30, 2000 ................................ $ 834,125 $ 475,175 $ 12,606 $1_21_06
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N. NEw YO_K CITV OFr-TaAcK BE_'rINGCOReOr_AT1ON(OTB)

General

OTB was esta_ished _ 1970 _ a public benefit co_oration _ opiate a system of off-track b_ng _ Me C_ OTB e_ns: 0)
revenues on i_ betting op_ations mng_g between 15%and 31%of wages han_ed, depending on _e _pe of wag_; _ a 5%

su_harge and su_ha_e breakage on pari-m_uel winn_g_ (ii_ a 1% _ha_e on muhipl_ exoti_ and super exotic waging
pools; and (iv) b_akage, the revenue _su_g _om the mun_ng down of w_n_g payoffs. Pursuant to St_e law, OTB: (i)
d_tributes various potions of the su_ha_e and su_ha_e b_akage _ other _c_s in the St_e; (ii) fl_c_es various
p_ce_ages of wage_ han_ed _ _e racing indu_; Off)al_c_ v_us pe_e_ages of wage_ han_ed and b_akage mg_h_
wi_ _1 unc_hed p_i-m_uel ticke_ _ _e _e; and0v) fl_ca_s _e 1%su_ha_e on ex_ wagering pools for the financing of
cap_al acqu_on_ All _mfin_g net revenue is di_fibuta_e _ _e Cit_ In ad_t_ OTB a_s _ a c_le_n age_ _r _e Ci_
wi_ _spe_ _ su_harge and su_ha_e b_akage due from other commu_ off-_ack betting corporations.

OTB had a cum_ative deficit of $4.7 miil_n after pm_ng for mand_ory tmns_ in fiscal year 1999. Infiscal year 2000,
OTB has a cumulative unreeled _nd equ_y of $4.1 mfll_n a_er pmv_g _r mand_o_ _ans_.

Net Revenue Re_ined for Capital Acquisitions

For _e fiscfl ye_s ended June 3_ 2000 and 1999, _e chang_ in n_ _venue _ined _r ca_l acquisit_n we_ _ fol_ws:

20_ 1999
Onthousand_

B_ance, June 30 ............................ $19,015 $19,764
Cap_fl acquisit_n su_ha_e ................... 3,758 3,550
Dep_d_n of _ pu_h_ed with _nds _fi_ed

_r ca_l acq_fion ....................... (5,156) _99)

B_anc_ June 30 ............................ $17,617 $19,015

S_ce _ce_n of _e cap_ acqu_on su_h_ge at July 21,199_ surcha_es of approxim_dy $39.3 mffi_n have been
c_ed and approxima_ $3&8 mffi_n h_ been u_d to finance _aseh_d improvemen_ and _e acquisit_n of propeay and
equ_me_ _rough June 30, 2000.

Properq and Equ_mem

Propeay and eq_pme_ are recorded at cost. Dep_d_n and amo_n a_ compu_d using _e str_ght-l_e m_hod
based upon estim_ed use_l INes mn_ng _om 3 to 15 yea_. Leaseh_d improveme_s _e amortized prindpal_ ov_e _rm of
the lease.

Rental expense, _dud_g escalation cha_es _r _ed _ope_y was approxim_y $14 mffi_n _r both fiscal yea_ 2000
and 1999. As of June 30, 2000, OTB had fu_ m_imum remal o_ns on noncanc_a_e operating leases as _l_ws:

Amou_

On_ou_nd_

Fiscal year end_g June 30:
2001 ............................................... $12,241
2002 ............................................... 11,012
2003 ............................................... 10,326
2004 ............................................... 9,472
2005 ............................................... 8,463
The_after until 2015 .................................. 27,491

Total _ture minimum rental obligations ................. $79,005

Pensions

Sub_anfifl_ all full-time em_oyees of OTB are members of NYCERS _ee Note S). The provis_ns for pension co_s were
a_uari_ d_ermined and amounted to approxim_y $.4 minion and $.5 mi_n for fiscal years 2000 and 1999, _spe_Nd_
These amoums were fully funded.
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OTB_ pennon lia_li_ as of June 3_ 1999 _s_d _om a_u_ry change in the fim_g of OTB_ comfibm_n to i_ pennon
plan. Prior _ fiscal year 1981, OTB's pens_n contribution reflexed pension cos_ incu_ed two yea_ earlier and a phaseqn of
ce_n a_uafi_ assum_ns. In accordance w_h Cha_ 85 of _e New York State Laws of 2000, ena_ed on June 24, 2000, as
pa_ of a number of changes m a_uari_ assumpt_ns and m_hods _ee N_e S), _ l_b_Ry _ no longer being funded sep_dy
as pan of an actuari_-determined pension comfibmion and a fiabfl_y on the pan of OTB sepa_ _om i_
actuari_-determined pension contr_m_n no _nger exist_ Accordingly, th_ liability was decreased m zero as of June 30, 2000
_suNng in a $6.3 m_i_n increase in net revenue avNNNe for dist_bu_ons for _e fiscal year ended June 3_ 2000.

O. HOU_NG AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ENTITLES

General

The Hou_ng and Economic Dev_opment Entities are comprised of the New YorkCity Hou_ng Dev_opment Corporat_n
(HDC), _e New YorkCi_ Hou_ng Au_or_y (HA), _e New YorkCi_ _dustri_ Dev_opme_ Agency (IDA), the New York
Ci_ Econom_ Developme_ Corporation (EDC), _e Bu_ness Re_c_n A_nce Corpor_n (BRAC), and _e Broo_yn

Navy Yard Deve_pment Corporat_n (BNYDC), _e l_ge_ of wh_h _e HDC and HA.

HDC

HDC was e_abl_hed _ 1971 to encou_ge prN_e housing deve_pme_ by proving low _ mortgage loans. The
comb_ed financial _emen_ include _e accoun_ of HDC and _s wh_-owned subsi_arie_ Housing Assistance Corpor_ion,
Houfing New York Corporation, and _e New York Ci_ Re_denfiM Mortgage Insurance Corporation. HDC finances muRiple
dw_l_g mo_gages sub_a_ial_ _rough issuance of HDC bonds and notes, and also acts as an _rmedi_y for the sale and

_financ_g of cea_n C_y multip_ dwelling mo_gages. HDC has a fiscal ye_ end_g O_ober 31.

HDC is au_ofized to issue bonds and noms for any corporam purpose in a prindpal amount ou_nd_b exdu_ve of
_fun_ng bonds and no_s, not to exceed $2.8 billion and ce_n _her limitat_ns.

HDC is supported by serv_e _es, _ve_mem incom_ and _ charged to mongago_ and has been sdbsu_n_&
Moagage loans are carried at cost. Mo_gage loan _mm income, _es, charges, and in_m expense a_ _cogn_ed on _e
accrual bas_. HDC mMm_ns separ_e funds in _s financial _co_s to assure com_iance wi_ specific _fi_ns of _s various
bond and no_ msolut_ns.

Substantial_ _1HDC employees are digible _ participate in NYCERS _ee No_ S). The provisions for pens_n co_s wen
a_u_iM_ compu_d, determ_ed, and funded by HDC.

The fu_m debt serv_e _quimme_s on HDC bonds and notes payable at O_ober 31, 1999 were as fol_ws:

Pdndp_ _ To_l
Onto_d_

Fisc_ year end_g O_ober 31:
2000 ....................... $ 32,906 $ 128,448 $ 161,354
2001 ....................... 37,335 127A23 164,758
2002 ....................... 43,428 125,322 168,750
2003 ....................... 55,828 12_686 178,514
2004 ....................... 64,021 119,503 183,524
The_after until 2037 .......... _37_294 1,608,938 3,981,232

Total furore debt

serv_e _quimmen_ ...... $Z605_12 $2,232,320 $_83_132

The bonds and notes will be repaid from assets and fu_ earnings of the asse_. The _m_ _tes on the bonds and notes as of
Oc_ber 31, 1999 range _om 1A% _ 8_5%.

The fol_w_g is a summary of bond Wansacfions of HDC for _e fiscM yea_ ended O_ober 31, 1998 and 1999:

B_ance Balance B_ance
O_ober 31, O_ober 31, O_ober 3L

1997 Issued Retied 1998 Issued Retied 1999

On _ousan_)

Revenue bonds ................. $_54%212 $298,670 $414,423 $_431_59 $511,330 $336_77 $_605_12
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HA is a public benefit corporat_n chaaered under the New York State Public Hou_ng Law. HA deve_p_ con_ru_
manage_ and m_ns _w co_ houMng for digible _w income hmilies _ The Ci_ of New York. At December 31,199_ HA
m_nm_ed 346 devdopmen_ encompassing approxima_ 181_00 units. HA also maint_ns a leased housing program which
provides housing assi_ance payments to appro_m_dy 76_00 famH_

Substantial operating losses (the difference between operating revenues and expenses) result from the esse_hl serv_es _
HA prov_e_ and such oper_g losses will continue in the fo_seea_e furore. To meet the funding _q_men_ of these

ope_fing losses, HA receives sub_d_s kom: (a) _e Fede_l governme_ primari_ the U.S. Depa_mem of HouMng and Urban
Devdopment (HUD) in the form of annu_ grants for operat_g asfi_anc_ debt serv_e payment_ contributions for capi_l and
reimbu_emem of expenditures incurred for cenain Federal housing programs; (b) New York Sta_ in the form of operating
asM_ance, _imbu_ement of cenain expenses, and debt serv_e payment_ and (c) New York City in the form of oper_g
as_anc_ _imburseme_ of ce_ain housing police costs prior to May 1, 1995, and debt serv_e payme_ Subsets are
e_a_hed through budgetary procedu_s wh_h e_aN_h amounts to be funded by _e grantor agende_ Proje_ed operating
income or _ss amounm are budg_ed on an annu_ ba_s and approved by _e grantor agency Expe_ed variances _om budge_d
amoun_ are commun_ed to _e agency during per_c budg_ _v_n_ as any _v_ions to p_v_usly approved budge_ mu_
be ag_ed to by the g_mo_ HA has a calendar yea_end.

Revenue

Reins are due _om _nants on the first day of each mo_E RecovaNe b_ances primarily conM_ of _nts past due and vac_ed
_nan_. An _wance for doubtful accounts _ e_a_hed to prov_e for _1 accou_s wh_h may not be coiffed in the futu_ for
any reason. At December 31, 1999 and 1998, tenant accounts _ce_a_e approxim_ed $21.8 million and $31.7 mfll_n,
_spe_ivel5 with _ia_d _wances of $14A million and $27.6 mill_n, _spectively.

HA receNes Federal financial as_ance from HUD in the form of annual contributions for debt service and operat_g

subsidies for publ_ housing projects, as well as rent subsidies for the Se_n 8 Housing Assistance Paymen_ Program (HAP). In
add_ion, asfi_ance is also _ceNed under HUD's Public Houfing Devdopme_ Program_ Comprehen_ve Grant Program,
Comprehen_ve Improvement AssUrance Program, and other prog_ms.

HA also receives Federal assi_ance _om the U.S. Department of Agriculture for child and adult care food and summer food
service prog_ms.

HA receNes finand_ asfi_ance from _e Depanme_ of Houfing P_servm_n and Developmem (HPD), a City of New York
agency. HPD receNes these funds from HUD based on ce_n crheria _.g., pop_ation, poven_ and extent of overcrowded
housing in the a_a ap_y_g for fund_.

HA _so _ceNes assi_ance _om New York State and The Ci_ of New York in the form of operm_g subdues for public
housing pr_ec_ and annual comributions for debt serv_e and cap_al.

Lan_ Structures, and Equipment

Land, _ru_ure_ and eq_pment are recorded at cost which is comprised of initial proje_ devdopment costs, prope_y

b_rmen_ and add_ion_ and modern_m_n program cost_ HA dep_d_es these assets over their e_im_ed useful lives
(buildings--40 years, capRal improvements--I 0 to 30 year_ and equipment--5 to 15 years) ufing the str_ght-line m_hod of
depredation. Land, _ru_u_ and equ_ment, _du_ng modcrn_ion co_s, are general_ funded _rough grant awards (for
Federal, S_, and City programs). A summary of cos_ _ December 31, 1999 and 1998 is as follows:

1999 1998

(_ _ousand_

Land ..................................... $ 691,415 $ 695,570
B_M_gs .................................. 3,188,050 3,188,432
Ca_t_ improvements ........................ 3,410,180 3,006,134
Equ_mem ................................. 364,221 303,803

_653_66 7,193,939
Accumd_ed depreciation ..................... (3ill 1,154) (3_68_07)

Land, _ru_u_ and equ_ment--n_ ......... $ _04_712 $ 3_25,132
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Debt Serv_e

The futu_ debt serv_e mqui_men_ on HA bonds and no_s _ December 31, 1999 we_ as follows:

P_ndp_ Interest Total

_n _o_an_)

C_endar ye_ ending December 31:
2000 .......................... $ 11,695 $ 5,884 $ 1_579
2001 .......................... 11,864 5_20 17,284
2002 .......................... 1_050 4,944 16,994
2003 .......................... 1_241 _470 16,711
2004 .......................... 11_45 _005 15,350
The_a_er until 2024 ............. 10_492 20_60 122_52

Total fu_ debt service

_qui_men_ ............... $161,687 $4_783 $206#70

In_re_ rates on omstand_g bonds and notes as of Decemb_ 31, 1999 and 1998 range from 1D% to 7.0%. During cMend_
yea_ 1999 and 1998, prinrpal mpaymen_ _mled $55.8 millMn and $58.5 m_M_ _spe_d_

Advance Notes---HUD

Advance No_s--HUD at Decemb_ 31, 1999 and 1998 confi_ of the folMwing:
1999 1998

_n _o_and_

Unsub_d_ed improvement no_s ............... $ _262 $ 1_524
Modern_m_n and devdopmem n_es ........... _ 990,039

Total advance no_s--HUD ................. $ 6,262 $1,002,563

Through 1985, HA funded deveMpmem projects by _su_g Advance No_s wh_h gene_l_ mmu_d in less than one year
and we_ refinanced _ m_k_ ra_s upon m_ur_ Princ_ and _ payments we_ financed by funds prov_ed by HUD
through accr_ng annum contr_m_ns.

In 1985, the U.S. Treasury purchased _1 then-outstan_ng Advance N_es. Subsequently, additionM Advance No_s were
issued by HUD to fund devdopmem and modern_ation pr_e_s. In April 198_ HUD ceased fun_ng the debt serv_e on M1
Advance N_es. The_fo_, principal and _ have not been pa_ s_ce _m dine.

Through December 31, 1998, HA com_ued _ accrue inte_ for a poaion of the Advance Notes _ _e cont_uM _s _
accordance w_h HUD guidelines. Accrued intere_ relm_g to _ese no_s m December 31, 1998 was $4342 mill_n, ln_

expense of $1_4 miliMn _ Mduded in _e _a_men_ of operations and equi_ for _e year ended December 31,199& but no
subsidy is _flec_d since HUD does not fun& and HA has not been _qu_ed to pa_ _e _re_ on _e Advance Notes.

Effective with _e calendar year 1999 financial statement_ HUD au_orized the _dasfificm_n ofHUD gua_nteed debt and
HUD h_d debt _ equ_y. At December 31, 1999, _e Advance Notes and accrued _ _ansfe_ed to equRy to_d $990.0
mill_n and $434.2 mill_ _spe_Nel_

Accrued intere_ Mdudes in_ of $132 _ousand and $341 _ousand _lming m Unsubs_ed Improvemem No_s mbo_
December 31, 1999 and 199& _spe_d_ The n_es which are currently h_d by HUD, were used to finance capital
improvements and _habilitations _ various proje_s and _e b_ng _paM _om commerdM _nts and State maximum subs_y
funds. Relined ime_ expense of $.8 mill_n and $1.4 miH_n was _duded in _e _memen_ of operat_ns and equ_y for _e
caMndar yea_ ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, _spe_ivd_
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HA em_oyees are memb_s of NYCERS &ee N_e S). The calendar yea_ 1999 and 1998 pension co_s reported in the
finandM _emems amoumed _ $&9 mi_on and $2.8 millio_ _spectivd% The c_end_ ye_ 1998 co_s w_e de_ea_d by

$1.1 mill_n, mpr_e_g a _duction in cMendar year 1997 pension co_s which was _ceNed during calendar year 1998.

Changes _ Fund Equi_

P_sen_d below are _e changes in _nd equ_y _r _e c_endar yea_ ended Decemb_ 31, 1998 and 1999:

Cumu_fi_
Un_ Cont_bufions To_l

On thousand_

B_anc_ Decemb_ 31, 1997 .............................. $ 136,328 $1,742,332 $1,878,660
N_ defi_t ............................................. _4:7_ -- (44_77)
Al_cation of depreciation _ cum_be comributions .......... 223,051 (223_5_ --

Contributions _r cap_al ................................. -- 556,137 556,137

BNanc_ Decemb_ 31, 1998 .............................. 31_902 2D75_18 Z39_320
Net deficit ............................................. (181_4_ -- (181_42)

Al_cation of dep_ation _ cum_ative co_ributions .......... 242,347 (24_34_ --
Contr_ns for capit_ ................................. -- Z289_80 228_280

B_ance, Decemb_ 31, 1999 .............................. $ 376,007 $ 4,122,351 $ _49_358

Cumu_tive Contribu_ons

Th_ accou_ _p_sen_ _e cum_Ne amou_ of subsides _ceNed _ fund annu_ operating defici_ and i_e_ expend,
and con_ufions made ava_a_e to HA _r cap_ai expense,s a_o_a_d with mod_n_n and imp_vemen_ of public

housing and _e payme_ of debt _e.

Commitmen_

HA _n_ office space under ope_fing le_ w_ch ex_ _ various da_s. Fu_ m_imum _e comm_men_ und_ these
leases as of Decemb_ 31, 1999 are as _Hows:

Amou_

fin thousand_

Ca_nd_ ye_ en_ng Dec¢mb_ 31:
2000 ............................... $ 23,997
2001 ............................... 23,444
2002 ............................... 23,337
2003 ............................... 22,562
2004 ............................... 21,105
The_afler until 2020 .................. 319,494

Tot_ futu_ m_imum lease comm_me_s.. $433,939

Rental expense approximated $15.8 million and $11.7 million for the c_endar yea_ ended December 31, 1999 and 1998,
respectivel_
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_C

BNYDC issued a note payable _r _5,00_ due 2008, $6,500 m_ufing annual%

Leases

BNYDC has _e commRmems fom comm_d_ _nan_ _r space _ _e Navy _. _1 rental revenue on these lease

_m_ _ _ _ _ ended June 3_ 2000 and 1_ _ __ $_ m_ _ _6 _ _d_ As
of June 3_ _, _e _l_wing _e _n_um _ntals a_ pmvi_d _r by the lewes:

Am_

fin _o_and_

Fiscal year end_g June 3_
2001 ...................................................... $ 9,800

2002 ...................................................... 10,275
2003 ...................................................... 1_790
2004 ...................................................... 11,325
2005 ...................................................... 11,900
The_afier until 2040 ......................................... 34,125

_tal _ture _n_um _n_s ............................... $88,215

_ WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM

General

The Water and Sewer Sy_em, consisting of two _g_ly sep_e and independent entities, _e New Yo_ City Water Board
(Wa_r Board) and the New Yo_ Ciff Munidpal Water _nance Au_o6ty (Wa_r Au_ofit_, w_ _blished on July 1, 1985. The
Wa_r and Sew_ Sy_em pmv_ _r w_ sup_y and distribution, and _wage c_n, t_mem, and dispo_l _r the C_%
The Water Authori_ was established _ i_ue de_ _ finance _e co_ ofcapR_ impmvemen_ _ _e w_ _fibufion and _wage
collection system. The Water Boa_ was established m _e _e w_ di_fibution and _wage colle_n sy_em from _e Ciff and
m e_a_h and c_ _e_ m_ _ and _h_ _w_e cha_ _r _es furnished by the system _ produce cash suffidem
to pay debt _w_e on the Water A_hority_ bonds and m place _e Water and Sew_ Sy_em on a _lfisu_n_g basis.

Under the terms of the Water and Sew_ Sy_em Gen_ Revenue Bond R_ut_ wh_h cove_ all outstand_g bonds of
the Wa_r Authority, operations _e _qui_d m be balanced on a cash basis. At June 3_ 2000 and 199% _e Wa_r Au_ofi_ has a
cum_ative deficit of $3_69 million and $2,959 millio_ _spectiv_ which _ more _an offs_ by a su_s in _e Water Board.

Financing Agreement

As of July 1, 1985, the City, the Water Board, and the Water Authority ended i_o a _nancing Agreeme_. The Agreemen_
_ amended, prov_es _ the Water Au_ority will _sue bonds _ finance the cost of capital investment _ the water d_tribution
and sewage collection sy_em _g the CRy. It also s_s _ah the _nding of the de_ _e co_s of _e Wa_r Au_ority,
operating costs of the w_er distribution and _wage col_n sy_em, and _e _n_l payment to the Cit_

Lease Ag_eme_

As of July 1, 1985, _e Ci_ ended in_ a _n_rm lease wi_ the Water Board which leased all _e wa_r and _w_ _d
real and pe_on_ pmpe_y valued _ h_mr_ cost, net of dep_dation and all work-in_rog_ss, _ cost, m the Water Board _r the
_rm of _e _e. The Ci_ administers, operates, and maidens _e w_er disuibufion and sewage collection sy_em. The lease
pmv_ _r paymen_ m the City to cover _e Ci_ co_ _r op_n and m_enance, cap_ co_s n_ _herwise _imbu_e&
rent, and _r other _ pmv_ed.

Contribu_d Capital

City financed addit_ns _r the fiscal yea_ ended June 3_ 2000 and 1999 amoun_d m $5.6 miil_n and $7.4 mill_n,
_spe_Nel_ and are recorded by the Water Board as eo_fibu_d capital.
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All addfl_ns m ufili_ plant-in-service are recorded a cost. Depreda_n _ compmed on _1 mfliff Namqn_e_e ufing He

str_ght-l_e me_od based upon emimmed useful lives as f_lows:
Yea_

Buildings .................................................................. 4(I-50

Water supply and wa_ew_er _e_me_ sy_em .................................... 15-50
Water Nstribution and sewage cN_n sys_m ................................... 15-75
Equ_me_ ................................................................. 5-35

Dep_n on contr_med utility _amdn_erv_e _ _cmed _ comfibmed capital after the computm_n of net _come.

Debt Serv_e

The folMw_g table summarizes futu_ debt service _qui_men_ as of June 30, 2000:

(in thousand_

Fiscal year end_g June 30:
2001 ..................................................... $ 358,575 $ 5(_,993 $ 861,568

2002 ..................................................... 170,492 494,438 664,930
2003 ..................................................... 181,986 485,498 667,484

2004 ..................................................... 19 1,875 475,924 667,799
2005 ..................................................... 208,869 465,656 674,525
The_afler until 2031 ........................................ _66_575 _87%880 15_44_55

Total futu_ debt serv_e _quimmen_ ......................... $%77@372 $%30_389 $1%08_761

The _W_ rates on the outstanding bonds and comme_hl paper as of June 3_ _ and 1999 _nge from 3_5% to 5.00%
and _om 3.10% _ Z90%, _spe_Nel_

The foIMwing _ asumma_ of bond and commercial paper transa_ions of the Water Authori_ for the fiscal years ended June
30, 1999 and 2000:

Ba_nce Demand B_ance De_ Balance
June3_ or June3_ or June3_

!998 Issued Retired 1999 Issued Retied 2000

Onthousand_

Revenue bonds ........... $8,281,006 $ 865,601 S 374,897 $_771_10 $1_06_55 $ 201,793 $_57_372

Comm_ paper ........ 600_00 6,40_500 _40&500 _00 4,712,400 5,112,400 200,000

Total summ_y of bond

and commercial paper
t_nsa_ns .......... $8,881,006 $7,274,101 $@783_97 $%371_10 $_71N855 $5,314,193 $9,776,372

During fiscM year 2000, the Wa_r Amhoriff used $40 mill_n of currem _venues to advance refund long-term debt. The
advance _funding _sul_d in an accounting gain of $.7 million and an econom_ gain of $1.8 mill_n.

For fiscal yea_ 2000 and 1999, amon_m_n expense of $16.4 millMn and $19.0 million, _spe_NelN was incu_ed to
amo_e pr_r ye_s' losses on advance _fun_ngs.

During prior fiscM years, the Water Authority de%ased _ submancc $_087 mill_n of revenue bonds. As of June 3_ 2000,
$Z702 mill_n of the defeased bonds have been r_i_d from the assets of the escrow account.

In prior yea_, the Water Au_ori_ has issued oN_M_ns MvoNing the concu_ent issuance of Mng-_rm variable rate
securit_s _ are m_ched with long-term floating securities. These obl_ations when taken together as a whole, y_N a fixed rate
of _ m _1 times. These securit_s have been issued m ach_ve a Mw_ pmvaifing fixed rate of imere_ _ _lm_n m _a_t_nM
fixed rme bonds.
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Re_H_ed A_e_

P_ceeds from the i_uance of debt and _nds set aside for theopinion and maintenance of _e wa_r _fibm_n and _wage
c_n sys_m are das_fied as re_6cted assets since their use is limi_d by ap_a_e bond indemures.

Ckanges _ Contribu_d Capital

Changes in comfibmed capitol _r the fiscal yea_ ended June 3_ 2000 and 1999 am as _l_ws:

2_0 1999
(_ thousand_

B_anc_ June 30 ............................ $_69_778 $_81%668
Plant and equ_mc_ co_fibu_d ................ 5,637 7,389

Al_c_n of depredation to comfibu_d cap_al ... (13_64_ (12&27_

Balance, June 30 ............................ $_571fl75 $_69_778

Operating Revenues

Revenues from m_e_d cu_om_ who represent 80% of w_er cu_ome_, are based on billings at rates impo_d by the
Water Board that are applied to custom_s' consum_n of w_er and _dude aclu,s based upon e_ima_d usage not billed
during the fiscal yea_

Commit_nen_ and Contingencies
Constrt_tion

The Water and Sewer Sy_em has commitments of approximate_ $2A _H_n _ June 3_ 200_ _r wa_r and _w_ project_

Legal

The City is a de_nda_ in a number of lawsui_ pe_aining _ the Wa_r and Sewer Sy_em. As of June 30, 2000, the City
e_im_ i_ p_emi_ _ l_l_y _r _ese claims _ be $8.2 mffi_m T_s amoum is included in the Ciff_ General Long-term
Obl_ns Account G_up.

Q. EXPENDABLETRUST FUND

Defe_'ed Condensation P_n For Employees of The Ci@ of New Yotk and Re_d Agen_es _ ln_rumenmlities (DCP)

The Ci_ offc_ i_ em_oyees a de,fred compens_n _an crewed in accordance wi_ lme_M Revcnue Code Se_n 457
(Scction 457). DCP is available to certain em_oyccs of The City of New York and _la_d agencies and _memM_es. It
p_mits _cm _ de_r a potion of their sa_ umil future yca_. The compens_n de_wcd _ not av_la_e _ em_oyces until
wrm_ation, _t_cmen_ death, or unfo_seen em_gency @s dcfined by the In_rnal Rcvenue Serve@.

Scct_m 457 _qui_s amoun_ m_nmined under a dc_wed compcnsat_n plan by a state or local gove_mcm m be held in

tru_ (or cu_o_ accoum or annui_ com_ct) for _e ex_us_c benefit of_an pa_an_ and _r benefi_afies. Consequenfl_
DCP is presen_d as an Expendab_ Tru_ Fund in the City_ financial _atemcnts. The beginning fund b_ancc of_e Expendab_
Trust Fund was inc_ased by $2,626 million whcn DCP im_cmemed _e _q_d changes December 31, 1998.

Investmen_ _e managed by DCP_ _u_cc under one of eight _ve_mem options or a comb_n _ereoE The cho_es of
the _ve_mem o_ns a_ made by the partic_ants.
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The following _ asummary of me _c_ases anddecreases of the fund for the calendar years ended December 31, 1999and 1998:

1999 1998

On _o_and_

Fund assets, December 31 .................... $_36_261 $L625_72
Defe_s of compens_n .................... 385,691 339,689
Earnings and a_u_me_ to mark_ value ......... 606,148 478,023

Paymen_ _ d_ paa_an_ and beneficia6es . (84_55) (7L734)
Admini_r_e expenses ...................... (4,213) (3,589)

Fund asse_, December 31 .................... $_27_632 $3_6%261

Ro OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENE_TS

In accordance wflh c_e barg_ng ag_eme_ _e Ci_ prov_es Omer Po_em_oyme_ Benefi_ (OPEB) wh_h
include basic med_ and hospi_l_n (heahh ca_) benefi_ to digi_e r_i_es and depende_s _ no co_ to 95.5% of the

part_ants. Bas_ helm ca_ p_m_m cos_ wh_h a_ paa_lly p_d by me _m_ning paa_an_ vary according to me _rms of
their de_ed _an_ To qu_ify, retirees mu_: (i) h_ve worked for the C_y wire _ _a_ five years of crewed serv_e as a member of
an approved pens_n sy_em _equirement does not apply if r_keme_ is as a resu_ of ac_de_ d_a_H_); (ii) have been
em_oyed by the City or a Ci_ _l_ed agency prior _ reti_ment; (ii0 have worked regularly for _ least twemy hou_ a week prior
to retireme_; and 0v) be _ceN_g a pension check _om a reti_me_ sys_m m_ntained by the City or another sys_m approved
by the City. The City_ OPEB expense is recorded on a pay_s-you-go basis.

The amounts expended for heath care benefi_ for fisc_ yea_ 2000 and 1999 are as fol_ws:

2000 1999

Active Retired Active R_i_d

Number of emp_yees .................... 344_56 180,610 338,007 180,340

Cost of healm care (in mousand_* .......... $1_95_56 $457,501 $1_2%217 $425_24

* The amours _fle_ed _e based on averagc headcount_

In addit_ me Ci_ sponso_ a sup_emem_ (Superimposed M_or Medial) benefit plan for City manageri_ employees _
refund med_ and hosp_al bills that are not _imbu_ed by me _gui_ heath insurance carder_

The amoums expended for sup_emem_ benefim for fiseal yea_ 2000 and 1999 are as follows:

2000 1999

Active Retired Active Retied

Number of d_ms ............................. 14,385 4,110 11,719 3,182

Co_ of Superimposed M_or Med_ (in mousand_.. $ _005 $ 578 $ 1,979 $ 504

B-50



NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS, Co_ued

S. PENSION AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS

Pens_n Sy_ems

P_n Desertions

The CiW sponso_ or participles in pens_n sy_ems prodding benefi_ to i_ empbyees. The pennon sy_ems _nction in
accordance wRh existing _e _u_s and C_y hws. Each sy_em com_nes k_ures of a defined benefit pens_n _an wi_ those
of a defined co_r_n pens_n plan. Co,ribbons are made by the empbye_ and the member_

The m_oriW of City em_oyees a_ membe_ of one of the fol_wing five m_or a_uari_ pens_n sys_ms:

1. New York Ci_ Empbyees' R_i_me_ Sy_em (NYCERS), a cog_h_ing mu_ple-empbyer public em_oyee
_ti_me_ sy_em, _r em_oyces of_e C_y n_ cove_d by one of the _h_ pennon sys_ms andemp_yees of ce_n
compone_ u_ of the Ci_ and ce_n _h_ govemme_ unRs.

Z New Yo_ Ci_ Teaches' Refiwment Sy_em-Qu_ified Penfion _an (TRS), a co_haring m_fi_em_oy_ pu_
em_oyee retirement system _r _ache_ in the pu_ _hoo_ of_e C_y and ce_n _h_ spedfied school and college
em_oye_.

3. New York City Board of Educ_n R_ement Sy_em-Qu_ified Pens_n Plan (BERS), a co_-sharing
muiti_e_m_oyer publ_ em_oyee _ti_mem sy_em, for nonpedagogical em_oyees of the Boardof Educ_n and
ce_n em_oyees of _e School Construction A_ho_ty.

4. New York Ci_ Police Depa_menL Subchapter Two Pension Fund (POLICE), a _n_e_m_oy_ public em_oyee
r_i_me_ sys_m, _r hH-time uniformed em_oye_ of the P_e Depa_me_.

5. New YorkCi_ _re Depa_menL Subchapter Two Pension Fund(FIRE), asingle-employer publ_ em_oyee reti_ment
system, for _ll-time u_rmed em_oyees of the _ Depa_me_.

The a_ua_ pens_n sys_ms pro_de pension benefi_ to r_iwd em_oyees based on sala_ and len_h of se_e. In
add_o_ the a_u_i_ pennon sy_ems pro_de co_-o_l_g and _her sup_emen_l pens_n benefi_ to ce_ain retirees and
benefidafies, h _e eve_ of disabi_y during em_oyme_, pa_an_ may _ce_e reti_me_ _bwances b_ed on s_hh_n
of certain se_e requiremen_ and other provis_ns. The a_uari_ pennon sy_ems Mso prov_e de_h benefit.

Su_e_ _ ce_n condifion_ membe_ become hl_ vexed as to benefi_ upon _e compktion of 5 years of ser_ce. Except
_r NYCERS, permanent, full-time em_oyees aregene_l_ _q_d _ become memb_s of_e a_uari_ pens_n sy_ems upon
em_oyme_. Permane_ _ll-time em_oyees who a_ _igi_e _ partidp_e _ NYCERS _e _qui_d _ become membe_ wi_in
s_ monks offer p_mane_ em_oyme_ _us b_ may ek_ _ become membe_ ea_ Other em_oyees who are digi_e _
participaW in NYCERS may become memb_s at _eir option. Upon _rmination of em_oymem be_w retiremenL ce_ain
membe_ _e entitled to _hnds of their own contributions _dud_g accumul_ed _ less any loans outstanding.

P_n Membersh_

At June 30, 1999 and 1998, _e membe_p of _e ac_i_ pens_n sy_ems con_ed o_

1999

NYCERS TRS BERS POLICE _RE TOTAL

R_irees and beneficiaries _c_v_g benefi_ ...... 121,880 50,525 9,058 34,739 16,146 232,348

Termin_ed vexed memb_s not y_
mceN_g benefi_ ......................... 6,276 3,065 771 85 14 10,211

Active members ............................ 16_458 86,682 22,933 3_ 107 11,477 32_657

To_l _an membe_h_ ..................... 297,614 14_272 32,762 73,931 27,637 572,216

1998

NYCERS TRS BERS POLICE FIRE TOTAL

Retirees and beneficiaries _ceN_g benefi_ ...... 122,438 50,268 8,794 35,047 16,180 232,727

Termin_ed v_d memb_s not y_
_co_ng benefi_ ......................... 5,678 3,276 292 52 11 9,309

A_Ne memb_s ............................ 165,461 83,940 23,323 38,133 11,224 322_81

Total plan membersh_ ..................... 293,577 137_84 32,409 73,232 27,415 564,117
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The Ci_ _nding polly _r period_ em_oy_ contributions to the a_uafi_ pens_n sy_ems is to p_v_e _r
a_uari_etermined rates M_, exp_ed _ p_cemag_ of annulled cov_ed pay_ll, are deigned _ accumul_e suffic_m
asses _ pay benefi_ when due.

Memb_ contr_utions are established by law and vary by Han. Employ_ contributions are accrued by the a_u_i_ pennon
sys_ms and a_ _nded by Me em_oy_s on a cu_ent basis.

_e_ I and II em_oyee contr_ution rates, _her Man Trans_ 20-Ye_ Han employee contribution _s, a_ depende_ upon
the memb_ age _ membe_h_ and _fi_mem plan e_n. As of July 1, 1970, Me 20-Ye_ Trans_ Plan was made
non_ontribu_ _r Ti_ I memb_s and the 20-Ye_ Trans_ Plan _r Tier II memb_s is _so non_omr_u_ry.

Ti_ III and Ti_ IV em_oyees comfibu_ 3.0% of _l_y _ga_l_s of_ge _ members_ Cert_n members of NYCERS and
BERS make _d_fion_ memb_ contributions.

Annual Pens_n Cos_

For fisc_ ye_ 2000, the City_ annu_ pens_n costs of app_xim_ely $695.4 million were equal _ the Ci_'s _qui_d and
a_u_ contrib_ns. The_ _qu_ed con_butions we_ de_rmined as part of MeJune 3_ 1999 a_uafi_ v_uations us_g _vised
a_uari_ _sum_ns and m_hods including the Frozen In_l Liability A_uari_ Cost MeMod. Annu_ pension costs _r Me
a_uari_ pens_n sy_ems we_ equ_ _ Me amoums comp_ed by _e sy_ems' A_uary.

The Ci_ pennon ces_, _dud_g Mo_ compu_d by Me A_ua_ _r Me a_uafi_ pension sy_ems, _r Me fisc_ yea_
ended June 30, 2000, 1999, and 1998 w_e _ _l_ws:

20_ 1999 1998

On mi_on_

NYCERS* ..................................... $ 35.6 $ 126.1 $ 166.6
TRS* ......................................... 178.6 444.6 426.5
BERS* ........................................ 9.2 43.7 34.2
POLICE ....................................... 250.0 502.1 544.2
FIRE ......................................... 182.9 256.1 261.3

OTHER* * ..................................... 39. l 39.3 38.7

To_l pennon cos_ ........................ $695.4 $1,411.9 $1_71_

* NYCERS, TRS, and BERS a_ cost-sharing multi_e_m_oyer public emp_yee r_ement sy_ems. The Ciff_ total
a_uarially-determ_ed contribut_ns as a percen_ge of contribut_ns for all em_oyers _ NYCERS, TRS, and BERS were:

2000 1999 1998

NYCERS ................... 51.95% 7_41% 69.85%
TRS ....................... 98.27 96.54 96.51

BERS ...................... 96.93 97.26 96.88

** Other pennon expenditures represent comfibutions to other a_uafi_ and pay-a_you-go pension sy_ems for cea_n
employees, retirees, and benefidafies not covered by any of Me five m_or acmari_ pens_n sy_ems. The City also
contfibu_s per diem amoun_ into ceaain un_n-adm_i_ered annu_y funds.

The foi_w_g is a M_e-year _end _form_n for the City% actuari_-funded _ngl_em_oyer pennon plans:

_ Annu_ Pe_en_ge N_
Year Pennon of APC Pennon

En_n_. C_t (APC) Cont_bu_d Obligation
On m_l_n_

POLICE ............................ 6/30/00 $250.0 100% $ --
6/30/99 502. _ 100 --
6/30/98 544.2 100 --

FIRE .............................. 6/30/00 $182.9 100% $ --
6/30/99 256.1 100 --
6/30/98 261.3 100 --
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Actuarial Assumptions and M_hods

The more significant a_uafi_ assumptions and m_hods used in the calculations of em_oyer contributions to _e a_uari_
pension sy_ems for the fiscal yea_ ending June 30, 2000 and 1999 a_ as fol_ws:

2000 1999

Va_n D_e .................... June 3_ 1999. June 30, 1998.

A_uafi_ Co_ M_hod(U ........... Frozen In_ial Liability(2). Frozen Emry Age.
Amoa_n Me_od for Unfunded

A_uafi_ Accrued Liabilities

(UAAL) ....................... _c_a_ng d_lar for FIRE(3). Increa_ng dollaq except for UAAL
attribu_ble m ERI 95, ERI 96, ERI
97, 1995 and 1998 R_i_e

Sup_emen_fion Laws(4_

All om_an_ng components of the
UAAL are being amo_ed over

closed period_

Rem_ng Amo_n Period ...... 11 yea_ for FIRE(3). 3, 4, 5, 8, 10, and 12 years.

A_uad_ Asset Valuation Me_od ..... Modified 5-ye_ moving avenge of Modified 5-year mov_g average of
Mark_ Value with Market Value Mark_ Value with Market Value

Re_aa as of June 30, 1999. Re_a_ as of June 30, 1995.

Assumed R_e of Return On

Inve_mems .................... 8_% per annum(5) (4_% per annum for 8.75% per annum(6) (4.0% per annum
benefi_ payable under the variable for benefi_ paya_e under _e
annuity programs of TRS and BERS). variable annui_ programs of TRS

and BERS).

Post-Reti_me_ Mortali_ ........... Tables adored during fiscal year Tables adop_d by the Board of
2000 by the Board of Tru_ees. TrusSes.

A_ive Service WindrowS, Dea_,

Disability, Serv_e R_imment ...... Tables adored during fiscal year Tables adop_d by the Board of
2000 by the Board of TrusSes. Tru_ees.

Salary Increases ................... In general, Merit and Promot_n In general, Merit and Promot_n
Increases plus assumed General Increases _us assumed Gener_
Wage Increases of 3.0% per year(5_ Wage Increases of C0% per year(6).

Cost-of-Living A_ustments ......... Provided by _e _u_ on an Prov_ed by the _u_ on an
ad-hoc bafi_ ad-hoc basis.

(1) Under bo_ me_od_ the exce_ of the a_uafi_ p_se_ value of proje_ed benefits of _e membe_p as of _e vflu_n
date, over the sum of the a_uari_ value of asse_ plus p_sem value of UAAL and p_sem value of furore emp_yee
comrib_ns is _c_ed on a _vd ba_s over _e futu_ earnings of membe_ who a_ on _e payroll as of _e v_u_n d_e.
A_uafi_ gains and losses _e _fle_ed in the em_oyer norm_ comr_ufion r_e.

(2) Under the Frozen _ithl Liabili_ Actuarial Cost metho_ the lniti_ LiaNli_ has been esm_hed by _e Enuy Age A_uari_
Cost M_hod bm wRh the UAAL not less than $0.

(3) In co_un_n w_h Chap_r 85 of _e Laws of 2000, there is an amoa_n m_hod. Howeve_ _e UAAL of NYCERS,

TRS, BERS, and POLICE equ_ $0 and no amo_n periods _e _q_d.

(4) Laws established UAAL for Early R_kemem lncemNe Programs m be amo_ked on a _vel d_lar amoum over a period of
5 years.

(5) Deve_ped a_uming a _ng-term Consumer Price Infl_n assum_n of 2.5% Fer yea_

(6) Devdoped assuming a _ng-_rm Consumer Price Infl_n assumption of 3.5% per yea_
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The inv_tmem _mm assumptions used for determ_ing employer contributions m the actuariM pension sys_ms a_ ena_ed
by me New Yo_ S_ Le#_u_ upon me _commendm_ns ¢f me Bo_s of T_ste_ and me A_uary.

Pu_uant _ Se_n 96 of_e New Yo_ Ci_ Chapel a s_dy of_e a_uafiM _sumptions used to vMue _aMl_ of me five
a_uariall_nded New York Ci_ R_emem Sys_ms (NYCRS) _e conduced by an independent a_uafiM firm every two
years. The most recem such study was competed in O_ober, 1999 an_ ba_d upon me _sults and _commend_ns of ram mud_
• eA_ua_ _r NYCRS _commended change _ actuariM assum_ions and methods _ be used for fiscM years beginning on and
a_er July 1, 1999 i.e., fiscal year 2000.

The A_uariM Asset Valuation M_hod (AAVM) was changed as of June 30, 1995 and 1999 to refle_ a m_k_ ba_s for
_ve_men_ held by the Plan and was made _ one componem of an ove_ _v_n of a_uafiM assum_Mns and memods as of
June 30, 1995 and 1999, _spe_

Und_ this AAVM, the A_uafial A_et Value (AAV) was _set _ M_k_ Va_e i.e., Mark_ Value Re_a_ as of June 3_ 1995.
Prior _ June 30, 1995, m_ AAVM recognized expected invemment _ms immedimdy and ph_ed _ _v_tmem _mms grem_
or M_ man expec_d ira., Unexpe_e d Invemmem R_ums (UIR) ov_ five yea_ m ar_e of 20% per ye_ _r m a cumulatNe rateof
20%, 40%, 60%, 80%, and 100% over five ye_.

The AAVM used as of June 30, 1996 _ a modified v_s_n of mm used prior to June 30, 1995.

Under th_ modified AAVM, any UIR for fiscM yea_ 1997 or 1Met_e bfng ph_ed _ me AAV beginning the fol_w_g
June 30 m a _ of 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, and 30% p_ ye_ _r _ a cumulm_e rate of 10%, 25%, 45%, 70%, and 100% over five
years). The UIR _r fiscM ye_ 1996 is being phased in_ AAV beginning June 30, 1996 at a cumuim_e rme of 20%, 35%, 45%,
70%, and 100% ov_ five yea_.

Under the AAVM, any UIR _r fiscal year 2000 or lM_ w_l be phased _ me AAV beginning the folMwing June 30 Ma r_e
of 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, and 30% per ye_ @r at a cum_m_e m_ of 10%, 25%, 45%, 70%, and 100% over five years).

For me June 3_ 1998 a_uariM vacations used _ determ_e fiscal ye_ 1999 em_oyer comribm_ns, me Frozen EnVy Age
A_u_iM Corn M_hod is ufil_ed by me A_u_y to cMculate _e comfibm_ns _qui_d of me em_oy_ The em#oy_ carried
pa_ of me UAAL _ an accounting liabil_ This accounting HabHffy is _ed to as the BMance She_ LiabHffy (BSL).

The schedules of paymen_ _ward the UAA.L and the BSL provide _m the UAAL and BSL as of June 30, 1995 be amo_ed
ov_ a p_Md of 15 ye_s be#nn_g fiscal year 199_ wh_e each annum paymem afi_ _e first annum paymem wou_ equM 103%
of its p_ced_g annual paymem.

Chapter 390 of _e Laws of 1998 emabl_hed a UAAL _r me R_itee Supp_memm_n _eases _ be amo_ed on a _vd
dollar amoum over a p_d of 10 yea_.

For the June 30, 1999 a_u_iM vMum_ns used to d_mine fiscal year 2000 em_oy_ contribm_ns, me Frozen In_ial
Liabil_y A_uarial Corn M_hod (whe_ me _itial Liability has been e_abl_hed by _e EnVy Age A_uariM Corn Memod bm wi_
• e UAAL not less than $_ _ ufil_ed by the A_ua_ _ cMc_me the contribm_ns _qM_d of the em_oy_s.

Chapter 85 of the Laws of 2000 reestablished aUAAL and eliminated me BSL for a_uafiM pu_oses as of June 3_ 1999. The
schedules of payment mw_d _e _e_aM_hed UAAL pmvid_ thin me UAA_ if an_ be amoa_ed ov_ a period of 11 yea_
be#nn_g fiscM ye_ 200_ when each annum payment aft_ me firm annum paymem would equM 103% of i_ p_ce_ng annual
paymem _ee No_ J).

Similar Tru_ Funds

Fund Descr_6ons

Per enabling StMe M#_ation, ce_ain r_i_es of POLICE, FIRE, and NYCERS are d_M to _ce_e scheduMd
sup_ememM benefi_ from ce_ain VariaMe Sup_ements Funds (VSF_.

Und_ cu_ent law, VSFs are not to be conmrued _ conmffudng pens_n or _fi_mem sys_m _nds. Ins_a_ mey pin,de
sched_ed sup_emen_l payment, other than pension or reti_ment system Mlowance_ in accordance wire ap_aMe s_
pro_ons. While a portion of these paymems _e gua_meed by the City, me Le#slatu_ has _ed _ _self and _e State of
New York, _e right and power to amend, modify, or _peal the VSFs and the paymen_ they pin,de.

The New Yo_ Ci_ Police Depa_ment mMntains the Police Office_' VariaMe Sup_emen_ Fund (POVSF) and the Police
Superior Office_' Variable Supplements Fund (PSOVSF). Thee _nds operate pu_uam _ me provisions of Tire 13, Cha_ 2 of
the Admi_strative Code of The Ci_ of New Yo_.
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1. POVSF p_des sup_emenml benefi_ m _ti_ who reti_ _r _wi_ (with 20 or mo_ years) _ poise office_ of Me
New York City Police Depanmen_ Subcha_ One or Subchapter Two Pens_n Fund and who _fi_d on or a_er
O_ob_ 1, 1968.

2. PSOVSF p_v_ sup_ememal benefi_ m _ti_ who _ti_ _r _e (wiM 20 or more yea_) h_ng Me _nk of
_ea_ or h_her, or de_ive, of Me New Yo_ Ci_ P_e Depa_men_ Subcha_ One or Subcha_ Two, Pension
Fund and who _fi_d on or a_er O_ob_ 1, 1968.

The New Yo_ Ci_ _ Department m_ns the _fig_e_' Varia_e Supp_mems Fund (FFVSF) and the _ Office_'
Variab_ Sup_emems Fund (FOVSF). The_ _nds ope_ pu_uam _ Me pmvi_o_ of Title 1_ Cha_ 3 of_e Adm_e
Code of The Ci_ of New York.

3. FFVSF p_v_es sup_eme_ benefits m retirees who _ti_ _r s_v_e (with 20 or mo_ ye_O as fi_fig_e_ _r
wipers) of the New Yo_ Ci_ _ Depa_ment, Subchapter One or Subchapter Two Pens_n Fund and who retired on or
a_er O_ober 1, 1968.

4. FOVSF p_des sup_emental benefi_ _ _ti_ who _fi_ _r s_ce (with 20 or mo_ years) holding Me rank of
_eu_nam or h_h_ and _1 _lots and marine engineers _niforme_ of the New Yo_ City _ Depanmem, Subcha_er
One or Subchapter Two Pension Fund and who retired on or a_er O_ob_ 1, 1968.

The New Yo_ Ci_ Emp_ye_' R_eme_ Sy_em m_ns the Transit Police Office_' Vafab_ Sup_emen_ Fund
(TPOVSF), Me Trans_ P_e Superior Office_' Variab_ Supplements Fund (TPSOVSF), _e Hou_ng P_e Office_' Variab_
Supp_menm Fund (HPOVSF), and Me Hous_g P_e Superior Office_' Varia_e Supplemen_ Fund (HPSOVSF). Chap_r 657
of Me Laws of 1999 establ_hed _e Corre_n Office_' Varia_e Sup_emen_ Fund (COVSF) and Me Correction Captains' and
Above Variable Supplemen_ Fund (CCAVSF). Chapter 255 of_e Laws of 2000 com_ned Me COVSF and the CCAVSF in_ an

amended Corydon Office_' Variab_ Sup_emen_ Fund _r_d to herein as the Co_ection Variable Sup_emen_ Fund
(CVSF). These _nds ope_ pursuant m the p_sions of _tle 13, Cha_ 1 of Me Administrative Code of The City of
New York.

5. TPOVSF pmv_ supp_menml bencfi_ to _ti_es who r_i_ _r _w_e (with 20 or mo_ yea_) _ Transit P_e
Office_ on or a_er July 1, 1987. Prior _ calendar year 2007, when this plan pm_d_ _r guamn_ed schedules of
defined sup_emental benefits, tot_ supp_mental benefi_ paymenm cannot exceed the assets of Me _nd unless Me
Ci_ guarantee becomes effective. As aresult of calculations performed by the Funds' A_ua_ during Novemb_,199_
the Ci_ gua_n_e became effe_ive.

6. TPSOVSF pmv_ supp_mem_ benefi_ m reti_ who r_i_ _r _w_e (with 20 or mo_ years) _ Transit Police
Superior Office_ on or a_ Ju_ 1,1987. Prior m calend_ ye_ 2007, when M_ plan pro_d_ _r gua_n_ed schedu_s
of defined sup_eme_ benefit_ total supp_me_ benefits payme_s cannot exceed the asse_ of Me _nd.

7. HPOVSF pro_des sup_eme_ benefi_ _ _ti_es who _ti_ _r _e (wiM 20 _ mo_ ye_ as Hou_ng Poffce
Office_ on or a_er July 1, 1987. Prior to calendar year 2007, when this plan p_v_es _r gua_n_ed schedu_s of
defined supplemental benefits, total sup_emental benefits paymen_ cann_ exceed the assets of the fund. Chapter 719
of Me Laws of 1994 amended Me defined schedules of benefits for certain Housing Police Office_ and gua_eed the
schedul_ of defined sup_emem_ benefit_

8. HPSOVSF pro_des sup_eme_ benefits m _ti_es who retire for _wice (with 20 _ mo_ years) _ Houfing P_ice
Superior Office_ on or a_ Ju_ 1, 1987. Pr_r _ calend_ year 200_ when M_ _an p_v_ _r gua_n_ed _hed_
of defined sup_eme_ benefit_ tot_ sup_eme_ benefi_ paymen_ cannot exceed the asse_ of the _nd.

9. COVSF w_ ena_ed _ prov_e sup_emen_l benefi_ to retirees who retire as C_n Office_.

10. CCAVSF was enacted to p_vide supp_mem_ benefi_ _ r_i_es who _ti_ as Corre_n Captains and Above.

11. CVSF _ac_ COVSF and CCAVSF and p_v_ _p_eme_ benefi_ _ _fi_ who _ti_ _r _w_e (wiM 20 or
mo_ years) _ Correction Office_ or _ Co_e_n Ca_ains and Above on or a_er July 1, 1999. Pdor _ c_end_ ye_
2019, when _ _an pro_des _r gua_eed _hed_ of defined sup_emem_ benefits, total supp_me_ benefi_
paymen_ cannot exceed Me a_e_ of Me fund unless Me City gu_a_ee becomes effe_Ne.

The Admin_ive Co_ of The City _New Yo_ pmvid_ _m PO_C_ _R_ and NYCERS _y m M_r _e_ VS_
amoun_ equ_ m ceaain excess earn_ _ equ_ i_estmen_ gen_Mly limited to Meunfund_ accumdated bene_ obl_ation
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_r each VSE The exce_ earnings a_ defined as _e amoum by wh_h e_ngs on equky _ve_me_s exceed wh_ _e e_ngs
would have been had such _nds been inve_ed at a yield comp_a_e _ _at av_b_ from fixed _come _cu_t_ less any
cum_Ne defiden_.

For fi_ ye_s 2000 and 199_ no exce_ earn_gs on equi_ inve_ments are estimated _ be trans_ble m _e VSFs exce_
m the CVSF _r fiscal ye_ 2000 wh_h _ expe_ed m _ceNe ap_o_m_e_ $100 milfion. The a_u_ amoums uans_ed _e
b_ed on fin_ ca_ulations and will be _cogn_ed in _e finan_ _emen_ when p_d or when a_u_ amoums cf _e vans_ _e
known.

Subsequent Even_

During _e Spring 2000 _ _e New York St_e Le_slatu_ app_ved and _e Gov_nor signed laws wh_h _ov_e an
au_matic coW,f-living adjustmem (COLA) for reti_ (Cha_ 125 of the Laws of 2000), addition_ _ice _edi_ _r cen_n
Ti_ I and Ti_ II member, and _duced memb_ co_ribufions _r ce_n _ III and _er IV memb_s (Cha_ 126 of _e Laws
of 2000) and sever_ _her changes _ benefi_ for various group_ These benefit enhancemems are not _fle_ed

in the a_uafi_ valuations as of June 30, 1999 and are expe_ed to increase _mre em_oy_ comributions to _e a_uari_
pens_n sy_em_

Of pa_icular n_e, Cha_ 125 of _e Laws of 2000 _ov_ _r a phase-in schedule _r _nd_g _e ad_fion_ a_uafi_
fiab_s _ea_d by _e benefi_ _ov_ed by _ _w. The impa_ of _e ph_in wo_d _s_t _ gre_ em_oy_ contributions
during and afl_ _e fifth fiscal ye_ _nd of _e phase-in period).

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

The fo_ow_g schedule of fun_ng prog_ is p_sen_d as _qui_d sup_ementary _formation for the five m_or actu_ial
pension sy_ems as of June 3_ 1999, 1998, and 1997:

(1) _) _) (4) (5) (6)
Aaua_

A_uafi_ A_ed UAAL _ a
_scal Va_e _ _aMfi_ Un_nded Pe_en_ge
Year Asse_ (AAL)* AAL Funded Co_d _ Co_d

En_ng (A) (A) & (B) (UAAL) (C) Ratio _ Pay_H
(2)-(1) (1)+(2) (3)+(5)

On m_n_

NYCERS .............. 6/30/99 $4_93_0 $4_93&0 $ -- 100.0% $7,593.2 -- %

6/30/98 29,334.7 28,805.3 (529.4) 101.8 6,935.2 (7.6)
6D0/97 2L22Z9 26,296.3 (926.6) 103.5 6,752.9 (13.7)

TRS .................. 6/30/99 34_26.1 34,626.1 -- 100_ 4,217.6 --
6/30/98 2L06_ 8 28,793.1 1,723.3 94.0 3,873.2 44.5
6/30/97 24,354.9 25,972.6 1,617.7 93.8 3,556.9 45.5

BERS ................. 6D0/99 1,705.4 1,705.4 -- 100.0 592.2 --
6/30/98 1,252.9 1,368.1 115.2 91.6 579.8 19.9
6/30/97 1,146.8 1,257.1 110.3 91.2 512.5 21.5

POLICE ............... 6/30/99 1_877.8 16,877.8 -- 100.0 2,332.0 --
6_0/98 1Z39%8 13,812.5 1,414.7 89.8 Z091.1 67.7
&30/97 11,237.6 12,475.6 1,238.0 90.1 Z036.5 60.8

FIRE .................. 6/30/99 6,179.8 _328.7 148.9 97.6 729.7 20.4
6_0/98 4,537.7 5,926.0 1,388.3 76.6 676.1 205.3
6/30/97 _157.1 5,473.1 1,316.0 76.0 660.8 199.2

* Frozen EnVy Age (1997-1998), Frozen Initial Liab_y (1999).

(A) Revved econom_ and noneconom_ assumptions due to experience review as of June 3_ 1995 and 1999, _spe_d_ The
A_uar_l Asset Valum_n M_hod (AAVM) was changed as of June 30, 1995 and 1999 to refle_ a mark_ basis for
_vestmen_ hdd by _e _an and was made as one componem of an over_l _s_n of a_uari_ a_umptions and m_hods as
of June 3_ 1995 and 1999, respectivd_
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Und_ this AAVM, the A_uafiM Asset Value (AAV) was reset m Market Value i.e., Mwk_ Value Re,art _ of June 3_ 1995.
Pr_r to June 30, 1995, AAVM _cogn_ed expe_ed _vemmem r_urns immedimMy and ph_ed _ _vemmem returns
g_a_r or less than expe_ed i.e., Unexpe_ed _vestment R_ums (UIR) over five yea_ at a rote of 20% per year (or a
cum_ative rme of 20%, 40%, 60%, 80%, and 100% over five yewS.

The AAVM used as of June 30, 1996 is a modred v_on of_ used _im _ June 3_ 1995.

Und_ _ modred AAVM, any UIR for fiscal years 1997 m liner we b_ng ph_ed in_ _e AAV beginning _e _How_g
June 30 m a m_ of 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, and 30% per yew (or m a cumulative rme of 10%, 25%, 45%, 70%, and 100% ov_

five years). The UIR _r fi_al yew 1996 is being phased imo _e AAV be#nn_g June 3_ 1996 Ma cum_ative rate of 20%,
35%, 45%, 70%, and 100% over five yea_.

Under the AAVM, any UIR for fiscal year 2000 or hter will be phased in_ the AAV be#nning _e folMwing June 30 m a rate
of 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, and 30% p_ year _r _ a cumdative r_e of 10%, 25%, 45%, 70%, and 100% ov_ five yewS.

(B) To effe_Ne_ _ t_e _n_ng _ogr_s _f _e Pla_ it _ nec_ m compwe _e aauafiM value of _ and the AALs
cMc_med in a manner consimem wi_ the Plan_ _n_ng m_hod over a period of time. The AAL is _e port_n of _e
aauafiM present value of pensMn #an benefi_ and expenses wh_h is n_ prodded for by _m_ normM costs and _mre
member comribution_

(C) The UAAL is the excess of the AAL over the actuarial value of assets. This _ _e _me _ un_nded _ozen a_uafiM accrued

l_b_y wh_h _ nm a_u_ed from one a_uafiM vMu_n _ _e ne_ m _fle_ a_uafiM gMns and lo_es.

• COMM_MENTS

At June 30, 200_ the outstan_ng commitments relating _ _6ects of_e New Yo_ Ci_ Capital Pr_ec_ Fund amoumed m
appmximmdy $8_ M_n.

To ad&_s _e need _r _gn_cam _ffa_m_e and puM_ _cility capitM _ve_men_, _e Ci_ ha prepwed a _nffew
capital spending program which contem_m_ expenditures of $43.3 billion over the _maining fiscal years 2001 _mugh 2009. To
h_p me_ _s carrel spending program, the City, TFA, and TSASC borrowed $3.1 b_lion _ _e puM_ c_t mwk_ _ fi_M yew
2000. The City, TFA, and_r TSASC _an m bo_ow $3A billion in _e puM_ _edff m_k_ _ fi_M yew 2001.
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APPENDIX C

SIDLEY AUSTIN BROWN & WOOD LLP

CHICAGO 875 THIRD AVENUE BEIJING

DALLAS NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10022 HONGKONG
TELEPHONE 212 906 2000

LOS ANGELES FAC_M_E 212 906 2021 LONDON

SAN FRANC_CO _W. _(_ey. COI"D. SHANGHAI

SEATTLE FOUNDED 1866 _NGAPORE

WASHINGTON, D.C. TOKYO

November 1, 2001

HONORABLE ALAN G. HEVESI
COMPTROLLER

The City of New York

MunicipN Building
New York, New York 10007

Dear Comptroller Hevesi:

We have acid as counsel to The City of New York (the "City"), a municipal corporation of the State

of New York (the "State"), in the City_ issuance of its GenerN Obl_ation Bonds, Fiscal 2002 Series A
(the "Bonds").

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of the Constitution of the State, the Local Finance

Law of the State, and the Cha_er of the Citg and in accordance with a ce_cate of the Deputy

Comptroller for Public Finance and related proceedings.

Based on our exam_ation of exiting law, such legal proceedings and such other documents as we
deem necessary to render this opinion, we are of the opinion that:

1. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and issued in accordance with the

Con_Rution and statutes of the State and the Cha_er of the City and con_Ru_ valid and legally
binding oN_ations of the City for the payment of which the City has validly pledged its faith and

crediL and all real prope_y wRhin the City suNect to taxation by the City is suNe_ to the levy by

the City of ad valorem taxes, without limit as to rate or amount, for payment of the prinNpM of and
interest on the Bonds.

2. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from pe_onN income taxes imposed by the State or any
political subdi_fion thereoK _duding the Cit_

3. Except as prodded in the following sentence, _tere_ on the Bonds of Subseries A-1 through
A-8 (the "Tax-Exempt Bonds") is not in_udab_ in the gross income of the owne_ of the

Tax-Exempt Bonds for purposes of Federal income taxation under e_ing law. Intere_ on the
Tax-Exempt Bonds will be _dudab_ in the gross income of the owne_ thereof retroa_Ne to the

date of i_ue of the Bonds in the event of a failure by the City to comNy with the apNkaNe
req_rements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and the covenants
regard_g use, expendRure and _ve_ment of bond proceeds and the tim_y payment of ce_ain
_ve_ment earnings to the United States Treasury; and we render no oNnion as to the exdufion _om

gross income of interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds for Federal income tax purposes on or a_er the
date on which any action is taken under the Bond proceedings upon the approval of counsel other
than ou_ve_
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4. Interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the
Federal individu_ or corporate aRernafive minimum tax. The Code contains other provisions that

could result in tax consequence_ upon which we render no opinion, as a resu_ of owne_p of such

Bonds or the indufion in certain computations 0nduding without limitation those related to the
corporate a_ernatNe minimum tax) of interest that is excluded from gross income.

5. The excess, if an_ of the amount payable at maturity of any maturity of the Tax-Exempt

Bonds over the initial offering price of such Bonds to the public at which price a sub_ant_l amount

of such maturity is sold represen_ original issue discount which is excluded from gross income for
Federal income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds. The Code
fu_her provides that such ofi_nal _sue discount excluded as intere_ accrues in accordance with a

constant interest method based on the compounding of interest, and that a holderX a_u_ed basis for
purposes of determining a holder_ gain or loss on disposition of the Tax-Exempt Bonds with original

issue discount will be increased by the amount of such accrued intere_.

The rights of the owne_ of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subje_ to bankruptc5
insoNenc5 reorgan_ation, moratorium and other simiMr laws affe_ing creditor' rights heretofore or

hereafter enacted, to the extent con_itufionMly appl_abM, and the enforcement of related contra_uM

and _atutory covenants of the City and the State may also be subject to the exercise of the State_ police
powe_ and of judidM d_crefion in appropriate cases.

The opinions expressed herein are based on an ana_sis of existing Mws, regulations, rulings and court
deosion_ Such opinions may be adve_ely affe_ed by a_ions taken or even_ occurrin_ including a

change in law, regulation or ruling (or in the appi_ation or official interpretation of any law, regulation

or ruling) after the date hereoL We have not unde_aken to determine, or to inform any pe_on, whether
such actions are taken or such events occur and we have no obl_ation to update this opinion in light of
such actions or even_.

Very truly yours,
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APPENDIX D

BOND INSURERS

The fol_wing inform_n pe_ng to Ambac A_urance Corpor_n, MBIA Insurance
Corporation and XL Ca_l A_urance Inc. has been supplied by Ambac A_urance Corpor_n, MBIA
Insurance Corpo_t_n and XL Capital A_u_nce In¢, respe_ivdy The City makes no representm_n as
to the accuracy or adequacy of such informm_n or as to the absence of mmerial adve_e changes in such
_formm_n subsequent to the date inOc_ed. Summa6es of or m_mnces to the insurance p_ides to be
issued by Ambac A_urancc Corporat_ MBIA Insurance Corpor_n and XL Cap_al A_urance Inc.,
mspe_N_5 are made su_e_ to all the detailed provisions thereof to which re,fence is hereby made for

_her _formm_n and do not purpo_ to be com_e_ sm_men_ of any or all of such pro_s_ns. See
"APPENDIX E--SPECIMEN INSURANCE PO_ES."

Arnbac Assurance Corporation

Ambac A_urance Corporation ("Ambac") has made a commitment to issue a municipal bond
insurance policy (the "Ambac P_y') related to the Bonds mmuring in yea_ 2_ and 2010 (the
"Amba_lnsured Bonds") effe_Ne as of the date of i_uance of the Amba_Insurcd Bonds. Under the
terms of the Ambac Pol_ Ambac will pay to The Bank of New York, in New York, New York or any

successor thercto (the "Ambac Trus_c') that potion of the principal of and interest on thc Amba_
Insured Bonds which shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by the
City (as such terms are defined in the Ambac Policy). Ambac will make such paymen_ to the Ambac
Trustee on the later of the date on which such prindpM and interest becomes Due for Payment or w_h_
one business day following the date on which Ambac shMl have received notice of Nonpayment from the
Tru_e_Pa_ng Agent. The insurance will cxtcnd for the term of the Amba_lnsured Bonds and, once
issued, cannot be canceled by Ambac.

The Ambac Policy will insure payment only on stated m_u_ty dates and on mandatory _n_ng fund
_lment dates, in the case of pfin_paL and on stmed dates for payment, in the case of _tere_. If the
Amba_Insured Bonds become su_e_ to mandatory redemption and insuffident funds are av_b_ for
redemption of all outstanding Amba_Insured Bond_ Ambac will remain o_a_d to pay prindp_ of
and interest on outstan_ng Amba_Insured Bonds on the ofi_n_ schedu_d interest and prinop_
payment dates including mand_ory fining fund redemption dates. In the event of any acceleration of the
prin_pal of lhe Amba_Insured Bonds, the insured paymen_ will be made at such times and in such
amoun_ as would have been made had there not been an accderat_n.

In the event the Cityg Fiscal Agent has notice that any payment of pfinc_ of or interest on an

Amba_Insured Bond which has become Due for Payment and which is made to a H_der by or on behalf
of the City has been deemed a pre_renthl transfer and theretofore recovered from its rendered owner

pu_uant to the Uni_d States Bankrupty Code in accordance w_h a final, nonappe_ab_ order of a cou_
of competent jufisdi_iom such rendered owner will be entRled to payment from Ambac to the extent of
such recovery if sufficient funds are not otherw_e av_b_.

The Ambac Policy does not insure any risk other than Nonpayment, as defined in the Pol_
Spedfically, the Ambac Policy does not cove_

I. payment on acceleration, as a result of a call for redemption (other than mandatory _nking fund
redemption) or as a result of any other advancement of m_ufity.

2. payment of any redemption, prepayment or acceptation premium.

3. nonpayment of pfindp_ or interest caused by the _soNency or ne_ence of any Trustee or
Paying Agent, if any

If it becomes necessary to call upon the Ambac Pol_5 payment of prindp_ requires surrender of
Amba_Insured Bonds to the Ambac Trustee together with an appropriate _rument of asfignment so
as to permR owne_h_ of such Amba_lnsured Bonds to be rendered in the name of Ambac to the extent
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of the payment under the Ambac Pol_ Payment of interest pu_uant to the Ambac Policy requires proof

of Holder entit_ment to interest paymen_ and an appropria_ as_gnment of the Holder_ right to
payment to Ambac.

Upon payment of the insurance benefits, Ambac w_ become the owner of the Amba_Insured Bond,

appu_enant coupon, if ang or fight to payment of principal or interest on such Ambacqnsured Bond and

will be fully subrog_ed to the su_endefing Holder_ fights to payment.

The insurance provided by the Ambac Policy is not covered by the prope_y/casuNty insurance

secu_ty fund specified by the insurance laws of the State of New York.

Ambac is a WNcons_-domici_d stock insurance corporation regulated by the Office of the
Comm_fioner of Insurance of the State of W_cons_ and licensed to do business in 50 states, the Di_fi_

of ColumbN, the Territory of Guam and the CommonweNth of Pue_o Rico, with admi_ed assets of
approximate_ $4,830,000_00 (unaud_ed) and _utory capital of approximate_ $2,870,000,000 (unau-

dited) as of June 30, 2001. Statutory cap_al consists of Ambac_ pol_yholde_' surplus and _atutory
contingency reserve. Standard & Poor_ Credit Markets Serv_e_ a DNision of The McGraw-Hi_

Compan_ Moody_ Investo_ Service and Fitch, Inc. have each assigned a tfiNe-A financial _rength

rating to Amba_

Ambac has obtained a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service to the effect that the insuring of an

obligation by Ambac will not affect the _eatmcnt for federal income tax purposes of interest on such

obl_ation and that insurance proceeds representing maturing interest paid by Ambac under policy
provNions sub_anthl_ _ent_N to those contained in its financial guaranty insurance policy shall be

treated for _deral income tax purposes in the same manner as if such payments were made by the City
of the Amba_Insured Bonds.

Ambac makes no representation regarding the Amba_lnsured Bonds or the adfisabifity of inve_ing

in the Amba_lnsured Bonds and makes no represent_ion regarNnN nor has it pa_icipa_d in the

preFarafion o_ the OffiNal Statement other than the information supplied by Ambac and presented in
APPENDICES D AND E.

The parent company of Amba_ Ambac Finand_ Group, Inc. (the "Company"), is su_e_ to the
information_ requiremen_ of the Securit_s Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange A_'),

and in accordance therewith files reports, proxy _a_mcn_ and other information with the Secufit_s and
Exchange Comm_on (the "Commission"). Such reports, proxy _atements and other informat_n may
be inspe_ed and copied at the public re_rence _dlities m_ntained by the Comm_on at 450 Fifth

Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549 and No_hwe_ern Atrium Cente_ 500 West Mad_on Street, Suite
1400, Ch_ago, Illinois 60661. Copes of such martial can be obtained from the publ_ reference section

of the Comm_on at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549 al prescribed rates. In addition, the
aforementioned matefi_ may a_o be inspe_ed at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (the

"NYSE") at 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005. The Company_ Common Stock is l_ted on the
NYSE.

Copies of Ambac_ financial natements prepared in accordance with statutory accounting _andards
are av_b_ _om Ambac. The address of Ambac_ admini_rafive offices and its te_phone number are
One State Street Plaza, 1_ _ Flooc New York, New York 10004 and (212) 668-034_

lncorporaHon of Cer_in Docurnen_ by Reference. The following documen_ filed by the Company

with the Comm_sion (File No. 1-10777) are incorporated by reference in this Offidal Statemen_

l) The Company_ Cu_ent Repo_ on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2001 and filed on January 24,
2001 ;

2) The Company_ Cu_ent Report on Form 8-K dated March 19, 2001 and filed on March 19, 2001;

3) The Company_ Annual Repo_ on Form 10-K for the fiscal year epded December 31, 2000 and
filed on March 28, 2001;
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4) The CompanyN Qua_efly Repo_ on Form 10-Q for the fiscal qua_e_y period ended March 31,
2001 and filed on May 15, 2001:

5) The Companyg Cuwent Repo_ on Form 8-K dated July 18, 2(_1 and filed on July 23, 2_)1; and

6) The Company_ Qua_erly Repo_ on Form 10-Q for the fiscal qua_efly period ended June 30,
2_)1 and filed on August 10. 2001.

AH documen_ subsequent_ filed by the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act
a_er the date of this Offi_al St_ement will be ava_able for _spe_n in the same manner as described
above.

MBIA Insurance Corporation

Concu_ent_ with the issuance of the Bonds, MBIA Insurance Corporation ("MBIA") will issue its

financial guaranty insurance policy (the "'MBIA Polly') for the 5½% Bonds maturing in 2013 and the
5¼% Bonds maturing in 2014 through _)16 (the "MBIAdnsured Bonds'L The MBIA Policy uncondi-
tionally and i_evocably guarantees the full and comp_te payment required to be made by or on behalf
of the City to the City_ Fiscal Agent or its successor of an amount equal to (i) the prinNpN of (either at

the stated maturity or by an advancement of matufiff pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund paymen0,
and interest on, the MBIAdnsured Bonds as such paymen_ shall become due but shall not be so paid
(except that in the event of any acce_rmion of the due date of such pfin_pM by reason of mandatory or
optional redemption or acceptation resulting from default or otherwise, other than any advancement of
maturity pursuant to a mandmory sinking fund payment, the paymen_ guaranteed by the MBIA Policy
shall be made in such amounts and at such times as such paymen_ of prin_pM would have been due had
there not been any such acce_rat_n); and (ii) the reimbu_ement of any such payment which _
subsequently recovered from any owner of the MBIAdnsured Bonds pursuant to a final judgment by a
court of compe_nt jurisdi_ion that such payment constitutes an avoidab_ preference to such owner
within the meaning of any apN_aNe bankruNcy law (a "Pre%rence").

The MB1A Policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment premium which may at any time
be payable with respect to any MBIAdnsured Bond. The MBIA Polly does noL under any drcum_anc_
insure again_ loss relating to: (i) optional or mandmory redempt_ns (other than mandatory sinking fund
redemptions): (ii) any paymen_ to be made on an accelerated basis: (iii) paymen_ of the purchase price
of MBIAqnsured Bonds upon tender by an owner thereof; or (iv) any Preference relining to (i) through
(iii) above. The MBIA Policy also does not insure against nonpayment of prindpN of or interest on the
MBIAdnsured Bonds resuR_g from the insolvencg neN_ence or any other act or om_fion of the Cityg
Fiscal Agent or any other paying agent for the MBIAdnsured Bonds.

Upon receipt of re,phoNe or _graph_ notre, such notice subsequent_ confirmed in writing by
rendered or certified mail, or upon receipt of writ_n notice by regis_red or ce_ified mail, by MBIA
from the City_ Fiscal Agent or any owner of a MB[A-lnsured Bond the payment of an insured amount
for which is then due, that such required payment has not been made, MBIA on the due date of such
payment or within one business day a_er receipt of notice of such nonpayment, wh_hever is late_ will
make a depofit of funds, in an account with State Street Bank and Trust CompanN N.A., in New York,
New York, or its successo_ suffident for the payment of any such insured amoun_ which are then due.
Upon presentment and surrender of such MBlA-Insured Bonds or presentment of such other proof of
owne_Np of the MBIAdnsured Bonds, together with any appropriate _ruments of ass_nment to
evidence the asfignment of the insured amoun_ due on the MBlAdnsured Bonds as are paid by MBIA,
and appropria_ _ruments to effect the appointment of MBIA as agent for such owne_ of the
MBIA-Insured Bonds in any legal proceeding related to payment of insured amoun_ on the MBIA-
Insured Bonds, such in_rumen_ being in a form safisN_ory to State Street Bank and Trust Compan_
N.A., State Street Bank and Trust Compang N.A. shall disburse to such owne_ or the City_ FiscM Agent
payment of the insured amounts due on such MBIAdnsured Bonds, less any amount held by the City_
Fiscal Agent for the payment of such insured amoun_ and legally avNNb_ therefo_

MB1A is the prindpal operating sub_diary of MBIA Inc., a New York Stock Exchange listed
company (the "'Company"). The Company is not oN_ated to pay the debts of or claims against MBIA.
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MBIA is domici_d in the State of New York and licensed to do bufiness in and su_e_ to regulat_n
under the laws of all 50 mates, the District of Column& the Commonwe_th of Pue_o Rico, the

Commonwe_th of the Nomhern Mafiana Island_ the Virgin Islands of the United States and the Territory

of Guam. MBIA has two European branche_ one in the Republic of France and the other in the K_gdom
of Spain. New York has laws prescri_ng minimum capital requirements, limiting classes and concentra-

tions of inve_menm and requiring the approval of policy rates and forms. State laws also reguhm the
amount of both the aggregate and indi_du_ risks that may be insured, the payment of dividends by

MBIA, changes in control and transa_ions among affifiates. Addifion_ly, MBIA is required to m_ntain
contingency reserves on its fiaNlities in ce_ain amoun_ and for cemain periods of time.

The following documents filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commotion (the

"SEC") are _corporamd herein by re_rence:

(1) The Company_ Annu_ Repom on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3l, 2000;

(2) The Company_ Quarterly Repo_ on Form 10-Q for the qua_er ended June 30, 2001; and

(3) The repo_ on Form 8-K filed by the Company on January 30, 2001.

Any documenm filed by the Company pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange
A_ of 1934, as amended, a_er the date of this Offidal Statement and prior to the mrm_ation of the

offering of the MBIAqnsured Bonds offered hereby shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in

this Offidal Statement and to be a pan hereoL Any _atement contained in a document incorporated or
deemed to be incorporated by re,fence herein, or cont_ned in this Offidal Statement, shall be deemed

to be modified or superseded for purposes of th_ Offidal Statement to the extent that a _atement
cont_ned herein or in any other subsequent_ filed document which also is or _ deemed to the

incorporated by reference herein modifies or supemedes such _atemen_ Any such mamment so modified

or supemeded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or supemeded, to constitute a pa_ of this
Offid_ Statement.

The Company files annual, qua_edy and special reports, information _atements and other
information with the SEC under Filed No. 1-9583. Copies of the SEC filings 0nduding (1) the Company_
Annual Rcpo_ on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, (2) the Company_ Qua_edy

Repoa on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001, and (3) the repo_ on Form 8-K filed by the
Company on January 3_ 2001) are av_ble (i) over the Internet at SEC_ web site at http://www.sec.gov;

(ii) at the SEC_ public reference room in Washington D.C.; (iii) over the Internet at the Company_ web

_te at http://www.mbia_om; and (iv) at no cost, upon request to MBIA Insurance Corporation, 113 King
Street, Armonk, New York 10504. The te_phone number of MBIA is (914)273-4545.

As of December 31,2000, MBIA had admit_d assets of $7.6 billion (auditedL total lh_iities of $5.2

billion (audited), and total capRal and surplus of $2.4 billion (audi_d) determined in accordance with

_atutory account_g pra_es prescribed or permRted by insurance regulatory authoritie_ As of June 30,
2001, MBIA had adm_ted a_ets of $8.1 billion (unauditedL total lhbilities of $5.8 b_fion (unaudited),

and total capital and surplus of $2.3 billion (unaudited) de_rm_ed in accordance with _atutory
accounting pra_es prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory authofit_

Fu_hermore, copies of MBIA's yea_end financial _atements prepared in accordance with _utory
accounting pra_es are ava_able without charge _om MBIA. A copy of the Annual Repo_ on Form

10-K of the Company is av_ble _om MBIA or the Securities and Exchange Comm_sion. The addre_
of MBIA _ 113 King Street, Armonk, New York 10504. The te_phone number of MBIA is (914)
273-4545.

Moodyg Inve_o_ Service, Inc. ("Moody's") rates the financial _rength of MBIA "Aaa'.

Standard & Poor_ Ratings Serv_es Group, a division of The McGraw-Hill Compan_ Inc.,
("Standard & Poor_'), r_es the finand_ _rength of MBIA "AAA".

Fitch, Inc. ("FiSh") rates the financial _rength of MB1A "AAA".
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Each rating of MBIA should be eva_ed independently The ratings reflect the respective rating
agency_ current asse_ment of the creditworth_ess of MBIA and its ability to pay claims on its policies
of insurance. Any fu_her ex_anation as to the s_ficance of the above ratings may be obtained only
from the appl_ab_ rating agency

The above ratings are not recommendations to bu_ sell or hold the MBIAqnsured Bonds, and such

ratings may be su_e_ to revision or withdrawM at any time by the rating agencies. Any downward
revision or w_hdrawM of any of the above ratings may have an adve_e ef_ct on the market price of the
MBIA-Insured Bonds. MBIA does not guaran_e the market price of the MBlA4nsured Bonds nor does
it guarantee that the ratings on the MBlA-Insured Bonds will not be revised or withdrawn.

This policy is not covered by the PropenflCasuality Insurance Security Fund specified in A_le 76
of the New York Insurance Law.

XL Capiml Assurance Inc

Concu_ent_ with the issuance of the Bonds, XL CaNtal A_urance Inc. ("XLCA") will issue its
muNdpM bond insurance policy ("XLCA P_y_ for the 5% Bonds minuting in year 2006 (the
"XLCAdnsured Bonds"_ Payment of prindpN of and interest on the XLCAdnsured Bonds when due
will be insured by the XLCA Policy to be i_ued by XLCA _muRaneous_ wRh the execut_n and delivery
of the XLCA-Insured Bonds.

XLCA is a monoline financial guaranty insurance company incorporated on July 25, 1991 under the
laws of the State of New York. XLCA is cu_enfly licensed to do insurance business in, and is su_e_ to
the insurance regu_tion and super_on b_ the State of New York, fo_y-two other states, the Distfi_ of
Columbia and Nngapore. XLCA has license appl_mions pending in the m_ofiff of the states in which
it is not current_ ficensed.

XLCA is an indire_ whN_ owned subfiNary of XL Ca_tN Ltd, a Cayman Islands corporation ("XL
Cap_al Ltd"). Through i_ subfidhrie_ XL CapRal Ltd is a leading pro_der of insurance and reinsurance,
including coverages relining to certain financial risks, to indu_riM, commerdM and pro_ionN service
firms, insurance compaNes and other en_rprises on a worldw_e basis. The common _ock of XL Capital
Ltd is publicly traded in the United States and listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Neither XL
Capi_l Ltd no_ except as set forth below, any subfidhries or shareholders of XL Capital Lid N obl_ated
to pay the deb_ of or dNms against the lnsure_

XLCA was formerly known as the London A_urance of America Inc. ("London"). On February 22,
2001, XLCA's direct parent, XL Reinsurance America Inc. ("XL Re"), acq_red 1(_% of the stock of
London. XL Re merged its former financial guaranty subfiNary, known as XL Capital A_urance Inc.
(formed September 13, 1999) with and into London, with London as the sur_ng entry London
immediate_ changed its name to XL CapitM A_urance Inc. The name change is effe_Ne in the m_ority
of states where the Insurer is _censcd, including the State of New York. XLCA has apN_ations pending
to change its name with the insurance depa_men_ of several other states in the Uni_d States. All
previous bus_ess of London was 100% r_nsured to Royal Indemn_y Compan_ the pre_ous owner at the
time of acquisition.

XLCA has entered into a NcultatNe quota share reinsurance agreement with XL FinandM
A_urance Ltd, a monoline financial guaranty insurance company organ_ed under the laws of Bermuda,
and an affilime of XLCA ("XLFA"). Pu_uant to this reinsurance agreemenC the Insurer expels to cede
up to 90% of its bus_ess to XLFA. In additiom the obl_ations of XLFA to XLCA under the reinsurance
agreement are uncondifionM_ guaran_ed by XL Insurance Ltd ("XLI"), a Bermuda company and one
of the world_ leading excess commerdM insure_. XLI is a wholly-owned indire_ subfidNry of XL
Cap_al Ltd. XLFA also has the benefit of a nine-year _op-_ reinsurance hdlity from an "AAA" rated
r_nsurer with coverage of $100 mill_n for losses in excess of $250 million. As of December 31,2000, the

capital and surplus of XLI is approximam_ $3.025 billion and the capital and surplus of XLFA is
appro_mat_y $281 mill_n.

XLCA may also cede reinsurance to third pa_ies on a _ansa_ionmpedfic basis, which cessions may
be any or a comb_ation of quota share, first loss or excess of loss. Such reinsurance N used by the Insurer
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as a risk management device and to comp_ with statutory and _ting agency _q_mcn_ and does not

alter or limit the XLC_ _o_ under any financial guaranty insurance polly Nm_O_ the
capital suppo_ provided to XLCA described in this pa_aph, the holde_ of the XLCAdnsu_d Bonds
will have direct recou_e against the Insurer only and neither XL_ nor XLI will be di_ly liable to the
holders of the XLCA-lns_ed Bonds.

XLCA and XL_, XLC_ _ima_ reinsure_ believe that they will not sustain any martial claims
as a result of the attacks on the _rld _ade Center on Se_ember 11. 2001, and related events. In
addit_ XLCA does not believe that these even_ wffi have a ma_rial adve_e effect on its ability to pay
claims on the XLCAqnsu_d Bonds.

XLC_ finan_M _n_h is rated "Aaa" by Moodyg lnve_o_ Service CMoody_') and "'AAN" by

Standard &Poor_ Rming Se_. a _v_on _e McG_H_I Compa_, Inc. _S&W) and _m_ In¢
("_mh'). In _ XLCA has obtained a financial enhan_mem rating of "'AA_' from S&E These

ratings reflect Moody_. S&P_ and _tch_ current _mem of the lnsurer_ _i_o_hi_ and

d_ms_ing ability The reinsurance _ngemcnt with XL_ described above is in_g_l to these

ratings given XLCA_ _ve_ small capital base.

The above ratings are not mcommend_ to buy sell or hold securit_ _du_ng the XLCA-

Insured Bonds and are su_ect to rev_ion or _t_w_ at any time by Moody_, S&P or Fitch. Any
downward revision _ _d_wal of these _tin_ may have an adve_e ef_ct on the market price of the

XLCAqnsu_d Bonds. XLCA does n_ guaranty the market price of the XLCA-Insu_d Bonds nor does

it guaranty that the _tin_ on the XLCA-Insumd Bonds will not be revised or _awn.

As of December 3l, 1999, XLCA had total admired assets of $83_64_ Ou_d), total _

of _51_0 (au_d) and total _ _d _ _ $_£13,_0 Ou_d) d_mined in accordance with

_mu_ a_ounting p_es p_fibed or _d by m_n_ _g_mo_ authorities (_AW_ As of
December 31, 2000, XLCA had total admitmd assets of $86,959,000 Ou_, total _b_ of

__ (au_d) and total capital and su_lus of _1 _ Ou_md) d_m_ed in accordance with
SAE

XLCA has filed the _llowing in_rmm_n with entities de_gnated as N_M_ Recogn_ed
Mun_l Securit_s In_rmm_n R_o_ofi_ ("NRMSIR_) pu_uant to Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934:

(i) XLC_ cons_med _c_ s_m_ _r the yea_ ended December 31, 2_0 and 1999
p_pamd in accordance with generM_ accepted accounting _nd_ an independent auditor_
repo_ and notes relating to those s_men_;

(ii) XLC_ quavery unaud_ed cons_med balance sheet as of March 31, 2_1. unaud_ed
condensed _emem of _e_ and _mwe_Ne income _r the three month period then
ended and unaud_ed condensed _memem of cash flows for the three month period then ended,

prepared in accordance with _ accepted accounting prindp_ and notes related to those
condensed _memem_ and

(iii) XLC_ quavery unaud_ed cons_med balance sheet as of June 30, 2001, unaud_ed
condensed _memem of operations and comp_he_Ne income _r the six month period then ended,
unaud_ed condensed _memem of changes in sh_eh_der_ equity _r the six month period then
ended and unaud_ed condensed _memem of cash flows _r the six month period then ended,
prepared in accordance with generM_ accepted accounting pfi_ and notes related to those
condensed _emem_

XLCA is _g_a_d by the Superin_ndem of Insurance of the State of New _rk. In ad_t_ XLCA
is su_e_ to _g_n by the insurance laws and _g_ns of the other juri_ in which it is
l_ense& As a financial gu_anff insurance company licensed in the State of New _rk, XLCA is su_e_
to A_le 69 of the New _rk Insurance La_ which, among other things, limi_ the business of each
insurer to financial guaranty insurance and related lines, prescribes minimum _andards of solvenc_
_du_ng minimum capital mq_mem_ _m_h_ contingenc_ loss and unearned p_mium reserve
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requirements, requires the m_ntenance of minimum surplus to pol_yholde_ and limi_ the aggregate

amount of insurance which may be wfiaen and the ma_mum size of any single risk exposure which may
be assumed. XLCA is also required to file detailed annual financial _atements with the New York

Insurance Depa_ment and fimilar supervisory agendes in each of the other jurisdictions in which it is
ficensed.

The extent of state insurance regulation and supervision varies by jurisdiction, but New York and
mo_ other jurisdictions have laws and regulations prescribing permuted _ve_ment_ payment of

dividend_ transactions with affifiates, merge_, consolid_ns, acquisitions or sales of assets and
incurrence of I_iities for bo_owings.

THE FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICIES ISSUED BY XLCA, INCLUDING
THE XL POLICY, ARE NOT COVERED BY THE PROPERTY/CASUALTY INSURANCE
SECURITY FUND SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE 76 OF THE NEW YORK INSURANCE LAW.

The pfindp_ executive offices of XLCA are located at 250 Park Avenue, 1_ _ Floo_ New York, New

York 10177 and its telephone number at this addre_ is (646)658-5900.

XLCA accepts no responfibifity for the accuracy or completeness of this Offidal Statement or any
other information or disclosure cont_ned herein, or omiued here_om, other than with respect to the

accuracy of the information regard_g XLCA and its affilimes set fo_h under this heading. In additio_

XLCA makes no representation regard_g the XLCAqnsured Bonds or the adv_a_l_y of inve_g _ the
XLCAqnsured Bonds.
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APPENDIX E

Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy Tele_on_NewYoN,Newel_ 668_340York10004

Obllgor: Policy Num_r:

ObligaOons: P_mium:
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_b_ De _ _Am_N_York, Mew York_sur_ce _t__a'l_415thFl_r
_p_: (212) _

En_emem

_e Date of _domm_

_wNve or _nd _ of _e t_, control, pm_siom, _
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FINiCaL GU__ _S_CE POLICY

_ Insurance Corpo_fion
_on_ New Yo_ 1_

eo_ No.__]

_ _ _ _ _ ___ _m _A_G AG_U_] _ __ '_ _) _ __ _ _ _
_ _(__ _ __y_of__ a_ _ _ _) _ _ _

__v_ _ _y __ _ a _j_ _ a____ _ _ _ _ avo_
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CAPITALASSURANCE
250 Park _enue

New _rk, New _rk 10177

__e: (646) 658-5900

MUNICIPAL BOND
INSURANCE POLICY

ISSUER: [ ] Poficy N_ [ ]

BOND_ [ ] Effecti_ D_ [ ]

XL CapitM A_urance ln_ (XLCA), a New York stock insurance compan_ in cons_eration of the payment of the
premium and su_e_ to the terms of this Policy (wh_h includes each endo_ement attached hereto), hereby agrees
uncon_fionM_ and iwevocably to pay to the trustee (the _Frus_e") or the paying agent (the "Pa_ng Agent") (as set fo_h
in the documentation provid_g for the issuance of and securing the Bonds) for the benefit of the Owne_ of the Bonds eL
at the election of XLCA, to each OwneL that portion of the prindpM and intere_ on the Bonds that shall become Due for

Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of Nonpayment.

XLCA will pay such amoun_ to or for the benefit of the Owne_ on the later of the day on which such prindpM and
interest becomes Due for Payment or one (1) Bufiness Day following the Business Day on which XLCA shall have received

Notre of Nonpayment (prodded that Notre will be deemed received on a given Busine_ Day if it is received prior to 10:00
a.m. New York time on such Bu_ne_ Day; otherw_e it will be deemed received on the next Busine_ Day), but only upon
recdpt by XLCA, in a form reasonab_ sat_fa_ory to it, of (a) evidence of the Owner_ right to receive payment of the
pfindpM or interest then Due for Payment and (b) evidence, Mduding any appropriate in_ruments of asfignment, that all
of the Ownerg rights with respect to payment of such prindpM or interest that is Due for Payment shall thereupon vest in
XLCA. Upon such d_bu_ement, XLCA shMl become the owner of the Bond, any appu_enant coupon to the Bond or the
right to receipt of payment of pfincipM and interest on the Bond and shall be fully subrogated to the righ_ of the OwneL
including the OwnerX right to receive paymcn_ under the Bond, to the extent of any payment by XLCA hereunde_ Payment
by XLCA to the Trus_e or Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owne_ shall, to the extent thereoL discharge the obl_ation
of XLCA under th_ Policy.

In the event the Trustee or Paying Agent has notice that any payment of prindpM or interest on a Bond which has

become Due for Payment and which is made to an Owner by or on behalf of the lssuer of the Bonds has been recovered from
the Owner pu_uant to a final judgment by a court of compe_nt jurisdi_ion that such payment con_utes an avoidable
preference to such Owner within the meaning of any appl_able bankruptcy law, such Owner will be entitMd to payment from
XLCA to the extent of such recovery if sufficient funds are not otherw_e avMhbl_

The following terms shall have the meanings specified for all purposes of this Pol_ except to the extent such terms are
expressly modified by an endo_ement to this Polic_ "Bufine_ Day" means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday or
(b) a day on which banking institutions in the State of New York or the InsurerX Fiscal Agent are authorized or required by
law or executive order to remain closed. "Due for Payment_ when re_ing to the pfin6pal of Bonds, is when the stated
maturity date or a mandatory redemption date for the ap_ation of a required sinking fund in_Mlment has been reached
and does not refer to any earlier date on which payment is due by reason of call for redemption (other than by applkation
of required sinking fund in_Mlmen_), acc_eration or other advancement of matufit_ unless XLCA shall elect, in its sole
d_cretion, to pay such pfindpal due upon such acceMration; and, when referring to interest on the Bonds, is when the stated
date for payment of interest has been reached. "Nonpayment" means the _ilure of the Issuer to have provided suffic_nt
funds to the Trustee or Paying Agent for payment in full of all prindpal and interest on the Bonds which are Due for
Payment. "Notice" means teMpho_c or teMcopied notice, subsequently confirmed in a signed writin_ or written notice by
re#_ered or certified mail, _om an OwneL the Trus_e or the Paying Agent to XLCA which notice shall spe6fy (a) the
person or entity making the _aim, (b) the Polly Numbe_ (c) the _med amount and (d) the date such _Mmed amount
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became Due for Payment. "Owner" means, in respect of a Bond, the pe_on or entity who, at the time of Nonpayment, is
entitled under the terms of such Bond to payment thereoL except that "Owner" shall not include the Issuer or any pe_on
or entry whose direct or indirect obl_ation con_utes the unded_ng securRy for the Bonds.

XLCA max by giving wfi_en notice to the Trustee and the Paying Agent, appoint a fiscal agent (the "Insurer_ Fiscal
Agent") for purposes of this Policy From and aSer the date of receipt by the Trustee and the Paying Agent of such notice,
which shall speofy the name and notice addre_ of the Insurer_ Fiscal Agent, (a) copies of all not_es req_red to be ddNered
to XLCA pursuant to this Policy shall be _m_taneously delivered to the Insurer_ Fiscal Agent and to XCLA and shall not

be deemed received until received by both and (b) all paymen_ required to be made by XLCA under this Policy may be
made dire_ly by XLCA or by the lnsurer_ F_cal Agent on behalf of XLCA. The lnsurer_ Fiscal Agent is the agent of XLCA
only and the lnsurer_ Fiscal Agent shall in no event be hable to any Owner for any act of the Insurer_ Fiscal Agent or any
failure of XLCA to deposR or cause to be depofi_d suffide_ funds to make payments due hereunde_

Except to the extent expressly modified by an endo_ement hereto, (a) this Polly is non_ancdab_ by XLCA, and

(b) the Premium on this Policy is not refundable for any reason. This Policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment
or other acce_ration payment which at any time may become duc in respeO of any Bond, other than at the sole option of
XLCA, nor again_ any risk other than Nonpayment. This Policy se_ fo_h the full unde_ak_g of XLCA and shall not be
modified, altered or affected by any other agreement or _rument, _duding any modification or amendment thereto.

THIS POLICY IS NOT COVERED BY THE PROPERTY/CASUALTY INSURANCE SECURITY FUND
SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE 76 OF THE NEW YORK INSURANCE LAW.

In witne_ whereo_ XLCA has caused this Policy to be executed on its behalf by its duly authorized officers.

I SPECIMEN SPECIMEN
Name: Name:
_tlc _tle:
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